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HIGHLIGHTS

> Excellent financial > Posifive reservofions and

performance rental outiook for 2016017
? Visible eamings » Development pipefine
growth outiook remains strong
> Growth prospects
remain strong
Eamings per share™? Dividend per share
Net asset volue? Tl aecounting relum
Profft before tax Loan-to.-volye rafio

" The financial siatemants are prepated in occordance with iInfemational Fnoncial
Reporting Stondards {IFRS). These financial ghlights are based on the Europeon Pubiic
Real Eslate Associatian (EPRA} best praciice recommendations ond these performonce
medatures are publshed as they ore infenged 10 help yters in the comporablity of these
resuls acrass other isted real astate companes in Europa. The meirics are also used
intemally to measure and monage the business ond aiign to Ihe perfarmance reiated
condiliora for Drecion’ Remuneration *

2015 and 2016 EPSis based on adjusted EPRA eamings

A full reconciliation of the finoncial stotements sighed under IFRS 1o the EPRA
performance measuresis set oyt in note 2.2 of the finangial statemens,

161  Read more on our frequently used terms: Glossary
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PROVIDING HOMES FOR OVER

49000

STUDENTS

DELIVERED BY

1,450

PASSIONATE
PEOPLE

DPERATING

140

PROPERTIES

LWE WORK CLOSELY \WITH

60

UNIVERSITIES
ACROSS THE UK

FOCUSING ON

24

UNIVERSITY TOUNS

AND CITIES



CELEBRATING
25 YEARS

WE ARE THE LARGEST AND 20
3 + MOST EXPERIENCED PROVIDER =X K
3 OF PURPOSE BUILT STUDENT inSheffeld

ACCOMMODATION IN THE UK. We launchioin

1992 1994 1999 200

We open our first property We ocquire more propertiesin We ore listed on the Allemative We form Europ

in Bristol where we remain 8ristol and start specialist property fnvestment Maorket (AIM) speckalist studie
head-quartered and now management services investment fun
Accommodati

have 140 properties, housing
49.000 students for the 2016/17
academic yeaor

1998 2000

We open our first London properties We are floated on London Stock
Exchange to expand info Manchester,
Liverpool and Portsrnouth



2009 2015

We become the first Living Woge

We ara vofed one

of ‘Britain’s Top Employer In our sector

g? mﬁ teby fe The first four unite foyndation
? scholars graducte

The Noficnga! Union of Students

awards our students 12 Green
impact Awards for their susiainable
work while ving with us

We open d new

London offica which

provides o bose for

our property and
development fearns

4 2011 2014

Joth property - We have grown to house 40,000 Wea kaunch our bysiness purposa,
sfudents in 135 properties across 24 Home for Success
University towns and cities every year
t venture with GIC We invest £21 million in improving
We are awornded the Investors in lighting across ol of our buikdings
People Sitver Award 10 benefit our students and
the envronment

We launch our employee recognition
programme — the Stars Awords

6 2012 2016 1/2 MILLION |

e's iargest uniisted we found ond donate £8 milli We are owarded the investors in Peopie
nt occor:n:'no’zjoiion fo ’rheUUnif: Foundm;n - c?zhg!rty G:Id Award I ST U D E NT S
3, the Unite UK Studient to support students without farmiy
on Fund (USAF) support. Qur first 28 students ore We open a sales and morketing office H 0 USED
recruifed fvough four universifies n Befing
nd ive scholarships mode
gfmmmu?mﬁoxa I‘Ningup wa donafe afurfher £5 mifion fo the SINCE 1991
allowance to support them through Unite Foundation in the form of USAF units S ———
their study years
Qur students and employees woike
we raiser £90 milfion after issuing EI;J:S,OOU for Sport Refief LUE LAUN CHED
o refail bond We sco0op the Stucent Accormmodation OUR INNOVATIVE
th d 1o of the Year gward ot
s, ERILTe™ TECHNOLOGY

Unite recomrosmaon SOLUTION, PRISM

Accommodation Operator of the

Foundation Yeor aword af Property Week's RESI S ——
e oot P 50 WE EXPANDED
OUR BUSINESS,
OPENING AN
OFFICE IN CHINA

—_——
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STRONG
FOUNDATIONS

FOR THE FUTURE

More than half a million students have lived
with us during our 25-year history and we
continue to grow. In 2014, we opened five
new properiies which means we have the
privilege of housing our largest ever number
of students, 49,000. As the UK's biggest and
most established provider of purpose built
student accommodation we have leamt

a huge amount from our students and

the universities with which we work.

It is crifical to our 1,450 employees
that we use our unique experience
to continue fo develop the mos!
supportive student experience,
which delivers for our cument and

future students, our universities and.,

of course, for our employees.

Cur consistently strong
performance throughout 2016
and visible deveiopment pipeline
and operational expertise mean
we are wel| positioned 1o deliver
sustainable eamings growth in
the coming years for our investors.

2 For more information

Sirategic report Corporate govemance Finencial siatements

Fnoncial highlights 50 Chairman's inlredyction to governcnce 100 independent auditor's report
2 Where we operate 54 Board of Directors 105 intreduction and table of cantents
4 Ourpurpose ) 56 Shareholder relations 106 Corsolidated income statement
5 Business model and strategy 57 Leodership 106 Corsolidated statement of
12 Relationships 42 Effectiveness comprehensive income
14 Chairman's staternent 44 Nominafion Committee report 107 Consollgated balance sheet
15 Chief Execuhve's review 65 Accountability 108 Compaony balonce sheet
18 Markel review &6 Audit Commitiee Report 107 Consolidated siaterment of changes
20 KRey performance indicators 70 Health & Safety Committea report insharehoiders' equity
22 Rk monaogement 73 Annual statement of the Chair of the N0 Company statement of changes
26 Pnncipalrisks and uncertainhes ‘Remunenation Commitiee insharehociders' equity
30 Operafions review 77 Directors’ Remuneration Policy 111 Statements of coshilows
34 Property review 84 Annualrepart on remunerafion 112 Notes to the inancial statements
49 Financial review 96 Directory’ raport
44 Resporsible business review 99 Statement of Dinectors' responsibifities Other Information

inrespect of the annual report and the
fincncicl sialements

154 financiol record

155 Nofice of Annual Generol Meeting
161 Glossary

163 Company information
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WHERE WE OPERATE

UWE OPERATE ACROSS THE UK IN
24 CITIES, WITH OUR TOP TEN
MARKETS MAKING UP 75% OF OUR
TOTAL BEDS. 47% OF OUR CAPITAL
IS INVESTED IN LONDON.

Qur development and forward
funds plpeline

This is our development pipeline unfil 2015.
Once comgpleta it will bring 4,765 beds to the market.

THE UMITE GROUP PLT ANNUAL REPORT AMD ACCOUNTS 2914

Top ten properties
by value

1

Moonralasr Point. London bads: 74 (Wholly owned)
Moonraker Part Offers 147 studics ano 527 10onms

i cluster fiots, Stucnedin Ione T and nexd fo the

Tate Modem, Moonmker Foint provides ahome

for Kngy's College. London students,

® o o o

'

| \
‘ New openings Opening i Qpening . Opening
in 2014 In 2017 | in 2018 | In2019
Greethom Sirest, Pofismouth | St Leonards. Edinburgh Newgole Sirast, Newcastie Skelhome, Liverpool
(Wholty owned)” ~ (Wholly owned) ; (wWholty owned) {Wholly owned)
| 836 beds - 58] beds [f 575 beds | 1.085peds
Cousswayend, Aberdeen ~ Millannium Way, Covanlry : Brunel House, Bristol , Oid BRL Bristo)
t (Wholly owned) - (Wholly owned) {Wholly ovmed) i {Wholty owned)
| 399 beds | 391 beds 232 beds [ 706 beds
Far Gostord Straet, Covantry . Tara House, liverpool Chaucer House, Porfsmauth Comtitution Sivest
(Whoily awned)* (Whoty ownad] | (Wholly owned] Aberdeen
286 beds 775 beds 484 beds ' (Wholly owned)
Slopieton House, London Beech House, Oxlord® f $t Vincents, SheMielkd | 600beds
{Lsav) {USAF) 147 beds (Wholly owned)
842 beds Lutton Court, Edinburgh® ; 345Deds ’
Olympic Way, London ; (USAF) 237 beds Intamdional House, Birmingham
(L3A) (Wholly awned)
£99 t‘?eds 586 beds i
[
New beds New beds ! New beds l New beds

3,082

* Soid to USAF dunng 2016

l

2,152

2422 2,391
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Slapleton House, London
Bedx 842 (LSAY)

Grect value, high quaily
student accommodiation
next 1o Holloway Rood
tube station, quick finks
to clfcentral London
Univarsities.

Stratiord ONE, London

Sadx 1,001 (Wholly owned]

This 28 fioor property is
Unite's largest in London
with panoramic views
across London and the:
Olympic Park.

The Maxa, Leeds

Badts: 1,500 (USAF)
Completedin two phases,
the property & corvenien!
for both Uriversihes in
Leeds. h offers a ange

of en-suite rooms in
three- 10 sx-Dedroom
fiots and shudios.

$t Fancras Way, london
Sadx: 571 (Wholly cwned)
St Pancras Way is ashort
ke frowm Kengy's Crioss and
5t Pancros stations. The:
building provides a horme
for 571 UCL students.

Angel Lane. London
Beds: 759

Opened in September
2015 with a ronge of

o suite and studio
sccommaodation, Angel
Lane is located in Stratfond
with Wesifield shopping
centre and the Olympic
Park on the doarstep.

1@

Emily Bowes Court, London
Beciy: §73 (USAF)
A oom

cordemporary
design, Zone 3location
and cpack finks nto central
Londonmake thisa
popuiar choice for
students seeking a lower
rent offering.

owned)
Campus-style living within
a city centre environment
prowviding homes
for students at both
Universities in Sheffield.

Top ten cities in which we operate*

Ronk  Cty OO Rets | numbes | she
o London 10424 22704 3.5%
©  simingham 4845 57.767 8.4%
©  shetfea 3.731 51,095 7%
Q@ s 3,479 0,286 84%
(-] Leeds 3,458 53,185 4.5%
Q@  monchester 2.33 85.664 3.6%
©® ero 2239 46245 45%
© rotmoun 222 18.828 8%
© eicester 1.687 3299 51%
9 Glasgow 1.643 57921 28%
Tolal 35785 7% So%
Proportion of Unile porfiolio 75%

* Top ten cities in which we operate has been adjusted to reflect the
portfolio changes in February 2017, Aston University on-campus
acquisition (3,067 beds) and the regionot portiolio disposal [4.175 beds)

i ; % capital nvested in London

4 Read more: Proparty review
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OUR PURPOSE

Home for success

Individually and
collectively, our 1,450
people are driven by

a common purpose;

o provide the students
who live with us o 'Home
for Success'. This means
providing the best home
for all students, helping
them grow and succeed
at University and beyond.

We do so through the
passion of our people,
great properties and a
deep-rooted commitment
to customer service for
both our students and
our University partners.

The best home...

We provide a high quaiity and secure Rving
snvironment where young people can develop
acodemically and sockolly

Because we know that while, for most people,
University is ¢ fime of excitement and opportunity,

il can aiso be g time of anxiety and stress. Our
resaarch shows that students who feel wel
integrated are more resilient and befter equibped
to navigate the transifion to University. We therefore
aim fo provide an environment, which, in every way,
heips thern achieve this,

for all students...

We ynderstand that a University education is
nowadays o significant investmant for young neople
ot believe thot no-one shoukd miss out simply

b of their p al clrcumstances.

we themfore offer a varety of accommodation

at different price points, ranging frorm rooms with
sharerd batheooms, fo Clusters of ensuite bedrooms
with shared kitchens and living spaces 1o setf-
contained studio apartments. n addition, the Unite
Foundation is currentty providing accommodation
and a generous iving alowance for 134 students
from severely disadvantaged backgrounds at
Universities across the UK.

helping them grow and succeed...

For many people, University is where the academic
foundations of ther career ore iaid. But, for every
generation of studants, University is more fhan simply
o stepping stone to a job.

it moulds them as individuals ana provides a critical
bridge to adutthood, where they canleom the
interpersonol skills they will nead for lifa. We therefore
aim to create an environment that is caring and
supportive but Glso allows our students to express
ther notural desine for independence.

ot university and beyond...

We befeve that whaere g student kves has a material
impact on iher ocodemic ond sociol experience of
University and., uifimately, the ives.

Through our people, our buiklings and our focwus on
custamer senvice, we aim fo help our students make
the transition from teenagers fo resilient adults,
equipped for everything thatlies ahead. We
reguiarly measure how well we are meeting thelr
needs and ore confinucusly looking for ways to
improve owr proposifion.
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

Delivering our purpose through our business model

Unite Studants is the seclor-eading
manager and developer of student
accommodation, with a high quality.
well-located portiolio of approximately
140 properties in the UK's sirongest
University fowns and cities. Wa have a
customer-focused opproach and work
closely with our University partners to

provide a seamiess service to over 42000

students, providing them with a safe and
secure home at a wide range of price

points and room sizes, tailoring our service

fo meet ther neads.

Qur focused business model seeks fo
dediver low double-digit tofal returns aond
sustainable, growing eamings. by
maintaining our compelitive advantage.
growing and maintaining the highest
quality portfolio and beng the most
frusted brand in the sector, underpinned
by a strong capitol structure.

11 Read more: Market raview
12 Read maore; ReloHonships

We opercte through two main Business Unils:
Operations and Property. Qur Cperations
unit is responsible for the portfolio, including
thase owned by our co-investment vehicies,
USAF and LAV, We aim to deliver operaling
cashfiows and eamings. defivering
sustanGbie annual growth in rentalncome
and profits, increasing the value of

owr invesiment portfolio through the
strengthening of our brand. Qur operating
platform PRISM enhances and improves
our operational capabiities, delivering
improvements o customer services,
revenue managennent and demonsirating
the efficiencies of scale.

The Property business unif is responsibie
for our development and asset
management strategy and oversees our
two co-investrment vehicles, We identify
and manage acquisitions, disposals and
the development of operational assets
that enabile us to leverage our highly
scaloble operating platform.

26 Read more: Princlpol risks
ond uncertainfles

30 Read more: Operations review

Dekvering great custormer service and
building strong relationships with our
University partners, the communities in
which we operate, our customers,
syppliers and 1.45) employees s crucial
1O QUT SUCCeSss.

We work strategicolly with University
leaders, using ourknowledge ond
expearencs o help them with the
realisation of ther estates and residences
strategies. We invest in our employees and
support their development, helping them
achieve their personal and professional
potential. We work closely with the local
community, from the early stages of
development and planning to providing
opportunities for students living with us 1o
voilunteer and bring positive benefits fo
the areq in which they ive. Overall, we
aim to provide the homes and services
that enable and support our students’
personat and acodemic achievernents.

34 Read more: Properly review
40 Read more: Financiol review
4 Read more: Up to us
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In 2014 we welcomed our largest ever number
of students, 49,000. We ore the first home from
home for the majority of our students meaning
that almost one in 10 first year students live
with us. We are responsible for more students
than any single University.



DELIVERING
FOR OUR

STUDENTS

PRISM

We kiunched our innovotive
technology soiution, PRISM,
which provides a huge range
of benefits for our students.

wWe will be able to process their
bookings much quicker and book
them into thewr rooms faster when
they arrive to stay with us. PRISM abso
has the capocity to speed up how
we can respond to student requesis
on maintenance issues.

15 For more informafion

Ambassador prograomme
In 2016 we piloted our Student
Ambassador programme,
which aimed 1o identify
students fiving with us who were
willing ond passionate to share
their own first-hand experience
o help our new students
throughout their time with us.

The 12 Initial Ambassadors were
recruited across four city iocations
and actively engaged in helping
new students, particulorly during
the on-boarding experience. The
Ambassadors quickly became
recognised by new arrivals as the
‘go to' people to help them to settle
in and the programme will continue
to develop.

Focus on empioyability

As part of our Home for
Success commitrment, our
Ernployability initictive identifies
ways in which we can help
students and their friends

to be successful inincreasing
their employability once they
finish their University studies.

The Student Ambassador programme
piloted in 2016 was seen as a potenticl
stepping stone to identifying such
future opportunities, while our online
Student Life Hub was also further
developed in 2014 to include
employability tips.

Meanwhile, for students who finishea
their University course in 2016, the Unite
Students Infernship programme gave
students the space and tools fo leam
rmore about our business, while building
employable skills. Ten students joined
us Qs inferns in 2016, working inak parts
of the business.

&5 For more information
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DELIVERING
FOR OUR

UNIVERSITIES

J Our long-term agreements with more
than 40 Universilies across England and
Scotiand guarantee that more than 50%
of our students are allocoted rooms In our
buildings. As student numbers increase
and Universities seek fo atfvact students,
they look to us fo support them by
providing atfractive accommodaiion
that fits with their sfudent strategies.

Further strengthening

our University parinerships
Dedicated University
partnership team working
collaboratively with our

40 University partners.

70%

of 2016 openings are let o
Universities under nomingtion
agreements

58%

of oll rooms let through
University agreements

=

& For more information

First move info on-campus
in Birmingham

Aston Student Villoge

[ASV) acquisition in central
Birmingham comprises
3.067 rooms in our first move
on-CamgwLs,

34 For more inforrmation

“I just think the Unite
product is inspirational.
(think as a brand, they're
ahead of other providers
inthat they've kept

the prices not al an
unreasonable level”

Unite Students Reputalion Survey,

2016 - an independent survey of
Higher Educotion insfitutes

21 For more information
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invesiors in

People Gold

Unite Students joined the elite
group of UK companies fo
achieve the coveled Investors
in People Gold accreditation
in 2016.

Developing our teams continues to
be a priority for us and this accolade
recognises that by providing effective
programmes across the company.
our teams can deliver exceilent
customer service, while offering

a great place 1o work with

a clear commitment to

developing employees.

tiving Wage

2016

we ware proud o receive the
Living Wage accreditation

Training

wWe have continued to develop
our comprehensive range of
high quality training courses and
development programmes for
our employees ai all levels. In
total, 4,100 training days were
delivered to help employees
evolve their skills and grow in
tandem with the company.

Cur leadership framework nas aso
continued to mature, with 43 delegates
aftending leadership courses
throughout the year including

the programmes gecoming a
supervisor, Becoming a Manager
and leadership development.

4,100

we offered a total of 4,100 training
daysin 2014

Other reiated content

15 Chief Executive's revierw
EL Cperations review
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We have 1,450 employees at Unite
Studentis with the majority working
with our students In 24 fowns and
cifies, They are supported by
250 people in our Bristol support
cenire. Our property and development g
team have a cenival London base. t
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RELATIONSHIPS

WE RECOGNISE THAT THE STRENGTH
AND SUCCESS OF OUR RELATIONSHIPS
ACROSS A VARIETY OF STAKEHOLDERS
HELP US TO CREATE LONG-TERM VALUE

FOR THE BUSINESS.

Ouwr success s founded on defivering grect customer service ond building strong
redationships with our University pariners, the cormmunities in which we operate,

our customers ond employees.

We are commitied to high ethical standards in the way in which we engage with
our customers, partners, employees, sharenolders, suppiiers and other stakeholders.
Qurrepuiation as the most trusted brand in our sector is founded on our achievement

of these high standards.

THE UMITE GROUP PLC AMNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2816

Investors and stakeholders

We seek to provide balanced, clear
and transparent communications that
allow our shareholders ta better
understand the business and our
strategy. through a progromme of
regular mestings, Capital Markets Days,
results briefings and trading updates
with its institutional shareholders, equity
analysts and investors. These provide
opportunities to discuss the progress

of the business. All presentations given
to institutional shareholders are made
available on our website.

in April 2016, we hosted a Capitol
Markets Day which allowed investors
ta view our Coveniry portfolio and
davelopment pipetine and the
opportunity fo interoact with our
cutting-edge operating platform,
PRISM. In Dacember 2014, a second
Capital Markets Day held in London
included demonstrations on how
PRISM improves and sfreamilines
our operations.

Universities

We aim to maintain the strong
relationships we have built with our
University pawtnars who trust Unite
Students fo provide students with a
scife ang secure home that supports
their perscncl and acadensc
achiavement. In 2016, we have
continued 10 grow the proportion of
beds let through University partnerships,
increasing ihe percentage of the
portfolo let under nominations
agreements with Universities, to 58%.

We con boost our recruiiment by offering
assurances to students (and thelr
parents) about quality accommodation.
When we ynderstood Unite was bullding
next o Wembley Stadlum we took the
opporiunity to take the whole building
for our students at the start of the 20156117
academic yaar, We belleve this will help
our University become part of the
excliing regenerated community around
the ttadium, snhancing the experlence
for our current and future students,

Jomes Kennedy
Chlef Financiol Officer,
Mliddlesex University

Students

Unite Students is focused on providing
Quality services to its students. atno
extra cost, to ensure that they have
the best resources and faciiities
avaikable. This includes 50MB/s Wi-Fi
access, free fortnightly cieaning
services for shared spaces. discounts
with retail partners and allinclusive bills
and insurance, We also offer a number
of career opportunities to help them
develop their employability and life skills,

We have also continued to add to
the My Unite app and our oniine
platform, the Student Life Hub which
has improved our ability to
communicate in real-time with our
students and engage with them on
relevant, interesting and usefut topics.

Students’ welfare is a core priority for
Unite and there are a number of
initiatives in place fo help better
understand and address the issues
facing students, conducting extensive
research and working closely with
University portners to identify and
suppert struggting students.

The impact the Foundation scholarship
had on my academic abllity and my
e in general has been immense. It
provided me with a safe, comforiable
and independent environment ~a
space | could call rry awn. And, most
importantly, a space which wasn't
going to sprout legs and run away.

Emily Drew
A student and Unite Foundation
graduate 2014



THE UNITE GROUP PLC AMNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 20156

People

Cur people gre at the heart of our
business and our engagement with
ail of our stakeholders. We recruit.
develop ond retain employees in
accordance with the following key
themes: Resourcing. Reward. Talent
and HR Policies and Procedures,
Diversity ang Culture,

We gre committed o fostering a
diverse and inclusive workforce with

a cubure that is rewarding for all of our
pecple and shat remains engaging
and chaollenging. We want to maintain
our culture, which desivers high
empioyee retantion rates and career
development.

The welfare and professionol
development of our employees is a
high pricrity for us. We have effective
systems through which can identify
appropricte, high quolity training
programimes for our employees to
evolve their skills and grow in tandem
with the company.

| have worked at Unite Students for
neardy 12 years. | have leomi and
gained 30 much through my time
here, it realty has been a great
expetience. | started off as o
caretaker in Sirmingham but | always
had a particular interest in elechical
work ond my mentor at the time,
saw potential in me. With his and the
businets’ help | was able go back to
<ollege to complete my bask: Engfish
and Numeracy exams ond move on
to siudy ta be an Eecirician.

Jon Cash
Unite Students Central
Compliance Team

Suppliers

we rely on the strong relationships
that we develop wifh cur suppliers
and partners. We aim 1o ensurg they
share our conporate commitment

o providing excellent service to our
customers and wider stakeholders,
and that they are most suited to our
tong-term strategy. By setecting the
right suppliers through a rigorous
tender process, we con ensurg that
they enable us fo drive efficiencies
and improve margins, from both

an operotional and a development
point of view. This enables the
forming of strong, strategic and
mutually beneficial partnerships with
consistently high stondards of guality
and innovation.

Technology is an important resource
for Unite Students and following the
appointment of a supplier, we
condyct ongoing and regular vendor
management activities through
collaboration between the
Procurement and IT departments. This
process is designed to not only monifor
performance against agreed levels,
put to ensure we continue 10 take a
leading role inindustry develapments.

Forbo Flooring Systems have been
woridng with Unfie for over lour years
now, and it is a partnership we are
proud fo be part of. From working
with the accommodation designers
1o ensure we get the right floordng
solutions for the application, to
managing the giont iogistics and stock
condrol requirements fo ensure projects
un smoothly, we are pleased fo be part
of the process svery step of the way.

Elizabeth Byshell
Kay Accounis Manager,
Forbo Flooring Systems

Charities and communities

We appreciate the central role that
we play in the many communities we
occupy across the UK. we work closely
with the local community, from the
early stages of development and
planning to providing oppaortunities for
students fiving with us 1o volunteer and
bring positive benefits to the area in
which they live,

In 2014, in support of our 2016 charity,
Sport Relief, our students, people and
marathon static cycling world record
hokier Jamie McDonald cycled
43,000 miles and raised £i75,000 on
The world's Biggest 'Virtual' Tandem.
This included a static bike challenge
in 24 cities where we have student
accommoedation and the John
Q'Groats to Lands End challenge.

we also continued our national
volunteering programme, lounched

in 2015, which allows every employee

a paid day to volunteer for a gocd
cause. We also encourage our students
o voluntesr and support local and
national charities. For example through
clothing donations alone we raked
£140,000 for Cancer Research. The Unite
Foundation continues to support young
people from the mosi challenged
backgrounds achieve a degree.

We are delighted that Unite Students
took on this amazing challenge and
ralsed such a fantastic amount for
Sport Rellef 2014. The money raised
will help give exirvemaety vuinerable
and disadvaniaged people in the
UK, and across the worid’s poorest
commuynities, g helping hand to lum
their ves around.

Anne-Ceclie Berthier

Head of Fundroising & Parinerships,
Cormic Rellef which manages Sport
Rallet, our charity for 2016

g.
%

SHUSWIBLD)S [DIOUDUIY

UDLDLLLIOWI JBYLC)



"

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

STRONG PERFORMANCE DELIVERED
THROUGH TALENT AND HARD
WORK OF OUR TEAMS

Phil White
Chairman

Govemance highlights

The Govemance Report on pages
50 to 99 (inclusive) provides
detalls of the Group's approach

fo govemance arxd how i supports
the delivery of our strategy.

The highlights of the year included:

» Succession planning and talent
development - CEQ transition
during 2016

> Govemnance/risk management
following Leove vote and dynamic
externai market

> Substantialinvastment in PRISM

» Preparation for REIT conversion
on 1 January 2017.

a For more information

214 has been a landmark year for Unite
Students for several reasons: Celebrating
our 25th year, wekeoming our 500,000th
custormer and providing homaes for 49.000
students, our lorgest ever intake in @ single
yaar. We also achieved o Gold
accreditation in the ‘investors in Peopia’
people management standard. plocing
us in the top tier of businesses.

Performance has again been sirong,
with a total accounting return of 15%
and growth in Adjusied EPRA earnings
10 £51.3 million, up 24%. Profit belore

tax wos £201.4 million which includes
property revaluations of £136.3 million
(2015: £388.4 million and £324.6 milion
respectively). As a result of this strong
performance, we are increasing our
dividend poy-out ratio 1o 75%. a yeor
ahead of schedule and declaring a final
dividend of 12.0p, This odds up to a tolal
of 18.0p for the full year, an increase of
20% year on year.

Unite Students is o service brand and the
strong performance we have defivered
for pur customers, University portners and
shareholders is only possible because of
the ialent ong hard work of our teams
across the business. On behalf of the
Board, | would like to thank them for

another excellent year.
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On 31 May, Moark Allon stepped down as
Chief Execulive, arole he held since 2006.
Mark played a key role in the success of
Unite Students and on behalf of the Board
and everyone at Unite, | would like to
thank him for his service and wish him

well for the future.

Richard Smith has taken over as Chief
Executive, having been the Monaging
Diractor of our Operafions business for
the last five years, successtully leading
the transformation of our service delivery
ond implementation of our PRISM
operating platform.

A core part of cur recent success has
been owr consistent strategy and we

will continue to focus on its three main
elements: 10 deliver great service 1o

our students and University pariners,

to operate briliant buildings ond to
maintain high quality eamings and a
strong copital structure, As a result of our
continuing progress in these areas, we
have successfully fransitioned to become
a REIT, effective from 1 January 2017, and
we believe Ihis is consistent with our focus
onincome and capital discipline.

The outlook for our market remains
positive with structural growth being
supported by the strength of the world
rencwned UK Higher Education sector,
increasing participation rates, the
internationalsation of Higher Education
and the shortage of housing in the UK.

The impec! of Brexit is starting to become
clecrer anc we do not expect it to have
a material impact on student numbers.
Cur high quality portfolio, University
relationships and market-leading
operating pkattorm leave us well placed
to continue performing strongly in the
yeors 1o come.

Phii White
Choirman
22 February 2017
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

MAINTAINED FOCUS TO DELIVER
HOME FOR SUCCESS FOR ALL
STUDENTS WHO LIVE WITH US

Richard Smith
Chief Exacutive Officer

Financiul highlights

EPRA earnings

£62.7m

Adjusted EPRA eamings

£61.3m

Adjusted EPRA EPS

27.7p

Profit bafore hax

£201.4m

Bade EPS

101.3p

Dividend per shore

18.0p

Total acc.ounfing retum

15%

Loan-to-value

34%

In vy first year as Chief Executive, lam
preased to report another strong sel of
rasulis for the year ending 3 December
2016, We hove maintained our focus on
delivering sustaingidie growih in recurring
profits and cash flow in the long term,
and delivering a Home for Success 1o all
of the students who five with us. wWe do
this by providing great service ond
operating briliant buildings that students
and Universities choose. We alsc ensure
investment discipline to maintain

a strong copilal structure and deliver
hign-quality earmings.

Perfarmance in 2016 was driven by
onother year of strong growth in EPRA
eqrnings, renial growth and development
profits, combining to deliver a total
occounting return of 15%. Adjusted EPRA
eamlings (adjusted to exciude the vietd
related element of the USAT performance
fee) increased by 24% to £61.3 milion
and now represents one-third of the

fotaf sharehoider return. As a result of

the significont growth in earnings and
the positive outlook for further earnings
growth, we are deckaring a final dividend
of 12.0p {2015: 2.50}, making a dividend
per shore of 18.0p for the full year [2015:
15.0p). an increase of 20% year on yedar.

We are continuing to focus on growing
eamings in gbsolute tarms and aiso asa
proportion of our fotal retum. This s drivan
by our ability 1o continua growing rentat
levels on an annual basis, the delivery of
cost effciencies ond from the completion
of our high-quality devekspment pipeline.

QOur PRISM operating plaffosm, which
became fully operational in 2016, provides
s with a unique capabiflity to drive

vaiye from our portfolio through scole
efficiencias and revenue management,
supporting cur ongoing income focus.

Since the year end, we have campleted
twa important strategic initiatives with the
ocquisiion of @ 3.100-bed, on-compus
portfolio at Aston University and also

the sole of a regional portfolio, which
together improve our porifolio quality
and focus on the best Universities,

The busingss completed its plonnea
conversion to become g RET on 1 January
2017, This transition supports our continued
focus on earnings, capital discipline and
commitment to distribute eamings to
shaveholders, As a result of the strong
petformance and positive outicok, we
hove acceleroted ourincreased poy-out
ratio to 75% of Adjusted EPRA exarnings
{excluding USAF performance fees)

o yeorahead of schedule.

Defivering great service fo our

students and University pariners
We provide a high-guaiity and secure iving
environment where young peopie con
deveiop academically and socialfy and
rmake the mast of their time at University.

For many people, University is where the
foundations of ther career are iaid. We
understand that a University education is
a significant invesiment for young pecple,
and believe that no-one should miss out
simply because of their personal
circumstances. Bu, for every generation
of students, University is more than simply
@ stepping stone to a job. It moulds them
as Individuals and provides a critical
bridge to adulthood, where they con
learn the interparsonal skills they will nead
for ie. We believe that where a student
lives has a materialimpact on their
academic and socil experience of
University and, ultimately, the'r lives. we
therefore aim 1o create an envirenment
which i§ caring and supportive, but aiso
allows our students to express their natunal
We recognise that affordability of Higher
Education is animportant consideration
and therefore we offer a variety of
accommaodation at different price

points 1o students with the majority of

our accommmodation focused at the
mid-range price point for purpose-puift
student accommeodation. 5% of our
customers are from the UK and we
continue to attroct growing numbers of
second and third-yaar students, who now
make up one-third of our customer base.
We will continue to facus on providing our
customers with excellent service and on
experience ihat they value.

Qur focus on the tludent experience s
completely aligned to the aims of our
University pariners, for whom student
experience is o key measure, With
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

CONTINUED

students spending mone time in their
accommodation than on campus, we
can demonstrate to Universities how we
can support them ond their ambitions,
This focus has led to 58% of our
occommodation being iet ta Universities
through nominations agreements, With
an average remaining fife of six years, our
nominations agreements provide incorme
and rental growth cerlainty on over haif
of our revanue. In turn, this provides
protection from any potential changes to
student numbers, and has helped 1o deliver
averoge occupancy of 8% and rentol
graw th of 3.5% over the last five years.

Students too, expect more from thewr
accommadation and this year, we
mointained custorner service satisfaction
levels - a key parformance indicator for
us —at high levels, placing us on a par
with some of the best European service
companies. We also secured excallent
results in aur independently assessed
employee effectiveness ond University
frust scores. The delivery of great custormer
service to students and Universities
translates into our strong fingncial
perforrmance, delivering occupancy of
#8% and rental growth of 3.8% in 2016
[2015: 8%, 3.8%). With our new operating
system, PRISM we have also delivered
further improvements to our NQI margin
and overhead efficiency measure,

Qur people, University retationships, the
quality of cur portfolio, PRISM and the
broader operating piatform set us apart
from the other operators in the sector
and will support the ongoing growth

in our portfolio, service levels ong
financial performance.

Operating brilliant bulldings

QOur strategy is built around the quality.
location and scale of our portfolio, wWe
aim to operate buildings thal are located
in and around the Universities with the
beast prospects. We bslieve that our focus
on high-quality Universities Gcrass the UK
is the best siralegy o ochieve continued
high levek of occupancy and rental growih.
We generate 82% of oyr income from
customers attending high and mid-
ronked Universifies, incredsing to B4% on
completion of our development pipeline.

During 2016, we openead 3,100 new beds,
invested £12 million in asset management
and refurbishment programmes and sold
£114 million of assets {on o see-through
basls). Taking into account these activities
together with vaiuation movements, the
volue of ourinvestment portfolio {including
our share of co-investment vehicles)
increased by 14% to £2.1 billion a3 at

31 Dacamber 2014 and i volued at an

average portfolic yield of 5.45% (2015
£1.8 billion and 5.55% yield).

We also made excellent progress with

our development pipefine during the yedr,
We completed five new buildings over the
surmmer and secured an additional four
new development schemes, which
increases our secured developrment
pipeine to 7.000 beds for delivery aver
the next three years. Construction of all
our 2017 openings is prograssing in line
with plans, pianning consents and buitd
contrects ane in place for all of cur 20018
deliveries and planning permission is in
place for all but one of our 2019 schemes.

We are continuing to see attractive
cevelopment opportunities in strong
University markets and we plan to invest
salactively in target markets to enhance
portfolio guality and deliver target
returns. Whilst demand for student
accommodalion remains strong in
Londan, the fallin land prices over the
last 12 months has not been sufficient,
when combined with new planning
requirements for affordable student
housing provision, 10 encble us 10 achieve
our target returns, We will confinue to
monitor the situation for opportunities.

The anticipoted yield on cost of aur
secured pipeline s 8.4% and prospective
refurns on new schemes rermain attractive
at 8.0-8.5%. The secured development
pipeline i highly occredive and remains

a significant component of our future
earnings growth and coukd contribute
12-14 pence per share to EPRA earnings
once buillt out.

We continue to target acquisitions of
completed assets and portfolios that
enhance the quality of our portfolio ond
the eamings profile of the business. These
acquisitions are largeted through our
co-invesiment vehicles due to their lower
cost of capital, allowing us to generate
enhanced returns through our asset
management and acquisition fees.

USAF has ocquired two assets under
development which will be opened for
the 2017 academic year. These ‘forword
fund’ assets represent 404 beds, in Oxford
and Edlinburgh ond were purchased for

a combined total of £56 million. Following
the yaar end, LSAY acquired a £227 miilion
porifolio located on the Aston University
campus. This exciting development allows
u$ 1o build a strategic retationship with g
high-ranked University and to leveroge our
PRISM operoting system to deliver strong
financial returns,

Dispasals remain an important part

of our strategy and we wilt continue

o recycle assets out of our portfolio to
ensure that we increase exposure to the
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best Universities in the UK, and also to
generote capital to invest in further
development aclivity and exciting
opporiunities such as the Aston Student
Village acquisition. During 2016, we sold
£114 million of assels {on a see-through
basts) including the sale of two assels o
USAF. These assets were sold in line with
book valuations. We intend to sell
£150-200 milion [Unite share} of assets on
a see-through basis during 2017 to take
advantage of the ongoing strength in the
invastmeni market and to ensure thatwe
maniain a strong and flexibie balance
sheet as we progress cur developmant
pipeine. We have rmade good progress
already in 2017 having compleled the sale
of 0 4.175-bad regional portfolfio in February
for £295 million [Unite share £102 milion)

in line with book vaiue,

Mainteining high quality eamings
and a shong capital structure

we hove maintained full occupancy
qcross our pertfolio ($8%) with rental
growth of 3.8%. with 58% of this income
underpinned by nominations
agreements, we have g high level of
visibility in the ongoing cccupoancy and
rental growth outiook of the partfolio, in
addition fo revenue growth. a focus on
efficiency hasresulted in further
improvements in our NOImargin up to
73.1% (2015: 72.5%), and in our overhead
efficiency ravenue which shows that our
averheods, net of management fees,
now represents 40 basis points of gross
asset value {2015 48 basis points), We
remain confident about our ability to
make further efficiency gaoins and to
deliver our targets of 75% and 25-30 basis
points by the end of 2017

Unite's share of net debt grew by £45
million to £776 million in 2016. Our capital
expenditure programme [Uinite share
£144 million} was majority funded by

our disposal programme and retained
earnings. We maintained our LTV within
pur target range in the mid-30% level at
34% {2015: 35%) as devekopment profits
and rental growth cutstripped the
increase in net debt. Our net debt to
EBITDA ratio is 6.5 (2015: 6.9), again within
our fargat level which we infend to mainkain.

Interest rates have remained at low levels
throughout 2016, and we have continued
1o take odvantoge of these historically
low rates both on new debt facilities and
through entering into forward starting
interest rate swaps in respect of future
borowing requirements of our secured
development pipeline. As aresult of these
activitias, our overage cost of debt has
fallen o 4.2% from 4.5%. We expact it to
fall a litte further over the next few years
as forward starting swaps becomes
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offective. At these levels, the spread to
ungeared development yields and
investmant yields remains significant,

The Group's conversion 10 REIT statuy
reflects the consistency ond gquality of the
earnings profile and s conservative
financing strategy, The Group will ensure
that the baiance of business, gearing ratios
and dividend pay-out levels remain within
the guidelines set out within the RET regime.

Market and strategy

The outiook for the student ocoommodation
sectorremnoins posifive, with struchurdd kactors
continying to drive the dermand: supply
imbakance in the Univensity markets nwhich
we operate. The UK Higher Education sector
isrecognised globally for he strength of its
Universities ond contribution that it mokes 1o
research, innovatkion, falent development
and the UK economy more broadly. The UK
is the second mest populor destination for
internafional students and has 18 out of
the world's top 100 Universities ond 47 of
Ewrope's top 200 Universities, We expect
the UK Higher Educadtion sector 1o
maintain its global standing and reputation.

The number of applicants and the number
of students accepted into coursesin 2014
was agen at record levels at 725,000 and
540,000 respectively (2015: 710,000 ond
530,000}, driven by growth in demond from
both UK and international students. With
appkcants outstripping the ploces offered
by Universities by 185,000, the sector is
well piaced 1o withstand ony potential
reductions from UK dermographics or the
impact of the UK legving the BU.

Foliowing the removal of the student
number cap in 2015, the Higher Education
sectoris facing further change with the
infraduction of the Teaching Excellence
Frarmework, (TEF} in May 2017, This will provide:
students with greater visibility of the quality
of teaching at Universities and also aliow
Universities 1o increose fees in line with
inflation if they meet certain criteria. We
expect tha TEF to have o significant mpact
on the attractiveness of Universities.
particularty 1o UK students, and we are
well placed to respond o chonges
resulting from this new information.

The gop between the number of applicants
and the number of University piaces could
be reduced by extemal faciors, inciuding
the potential impact of the EU referendum
on student numbers, Since 2015,
demographic frend has seen o reduction
in the number of 18-21 yeor alds, affecting
the next four years. Earty appications dota
in Jonuary 2017 shows a $% reduction in
applicants for the 2017/18 academic yeor.
Howaver, we expect that the 185000
sumius of applicants over places and the

emoval of the cap means the number of
students accepled onto courses wil not
be moterialy impocted, ond we expec!
the high and mid-ranked Universities to
recruit more students than those at the
lower end of the league fables.

The qualities of the student cccommeodation
sector have attracted significant levels of
capitalinvestrent over the last three years
with over £11 bilkon of investment activity. This
increased investrment octivity has ciso seen
ihe level of new supply increase and the:
toicl number of purpase-built beds to
increose to 250,000 beds {14% of the UK's
student population). The outiook fof new
supply suggests that the rate of new supply
will continue at a similar rate of around
20,000-25,000 oves the next two years.
However, a significant proportion of the new
beds are focused on the upper end of
the price range which will have a minimal
impact on our type of accommodation.

Furthermaore, owr exposure to changes

in student numbers is Mitigated by our
high quality University relationships and
nominations agreements and therefore
wae remain confident that welldoccted,
mid-range, direct-let student
occommodation will be able to maintain
high levels of occupancy and renial growth,

Outlook

Building on a periad of consistent strong
performance, and supportive market
fundamenials, the Group remains well
placed to deliver sustainabile earnings
growih in the years ahead. Our
devetopment pipeline and operational
expertise provides good visibility over the
future rental growth and increosing
recurming earnings. Our portfafio s
focused on stronger Universities, plus our
highty scalable cperating platform and
strong brand leaves us well placed fo
extend ouwr morket leoading position.

Despite the broader macro uncertointies
crected by the EU referendurn, the
supply/demand outiook for student
accommodation remains in our

favour, and we williook to benefit

from opportunities to extend our
davelopment pipeline, graw an-campus
accommoedation and strengthen University
relationships. With this backdrop, a strong
balance sheet and our néw REI status,
wa are confident that the business
remains well pkaced ta deliver highly
attroctive sharehcider returns,

Richard Smith
Chief Executive Officer
22 February 2017
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Chief Executive's QLA

Richard Smith
addresses some fopical
questions from our sharehoiders

What has the highlight of 2014
been for the business?

PRl In 2016, we welcomed our
500,000th student to Unite

Students, a faniostic milestcne in the
Company's 25-year history and
testament 1O the high quality service
we provide students during their
university careers. The launch of PRISM
was aneother important achieverment
in 2014, which is delivering significant
efficiencies for ihe business ond
considerably improving the customer
experience we can offer to students.

Q

How will the exit from Europe
offect the business?

N Following the EU referendum, the
Govemment has confrmed that

alexisting EU students and for the
2014/17 and 20i7/18 academic years
will have funding provided for the
duration of their courses. wWith $% of
our students coming from the EU. any
potential impact on student numbers
from the EU referendum would have
a limited impact on Unite’s occupancy
given the continued supply/dermand
imbalance. We continue to be positive
on the outiook for the higher education
sector in the UK which is recognised
globally for its excesence and its abifity
o attract takent from across the world.

Q

25 Read more: Brexit

Does the board plan to expand the
exaculive management leam?
Yl The Board, senior management

and | remain focused on and
committed 10 the continued success of
the business. The Board hos established
a comprehensive senior leadership
developrment programme: to giow
and nurfure our talent and develop
ouwr high performers. This ensures we
have aclear talent pipeline for future
Board appointments.
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MARKET REVIEW

MARKET FUNDAMENTALS

REMAIN ROBUST

This year we aré seeing ancther year
of student number growth with more
students accepling places for the 2016/17
academic yeor than ever before. A total
of 535,000 students started at Univarsity
in 2015/16, faking the totainumber of
full-time students ta £1.8 million, up from
£1.7 million in 2014115, Acceptances have
risen 15% since lultion fees were infroduced
in 2012. Applications continue to oulstrip
acceptances. A record 723,353
applications were received for 2016/17
which left o demand gap of 188,450
students. This number hos remained

~ stable for the last five years. See Figure 1.

Demand drivers for student

accommeodation
we fully expect the dernond for UK Higher

Bducation to continue from both domestic
ond intermational students. More young

peop:s in the UK are choosing to go fo
Universily than ever before, with 37%

of 18-year-olds now applying togo fo
University up from 33% 10 years 0go.
Expectations confinue 10 rise and we
axpect o see school leavers continue o
piace real value on a University educafion.
The UK remains the #2 deastination far
international students in Higher Education,
attracting 10% of intfemational students.
The UK draws almost double the number
of international students compared

with third place Australio. See Figure 3.

The UK continues fo atiract interationot
students due 1o the high quality of the
Universities in the UK. The UK now has
three universities in the global top ten,
fourin the top 20 and seven in the fop 50
in Europe, six of the top seven univensities
are UK institutions. See Figure 5.

Figure 1: AppRcands and occeplances [thousands)

Hgure 2: PASA beds (thousonds)
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Educaotion ogents support these rankings
as 91% roted the UK, as a dastination to
study o5 “ottractive” or “very attroctive”.
This will support UK national’ desire to go
to university at horne as well as drawing
maore international students to the UK.
Intfernationol numbers grew by 15,000
beatween 2014/15 and 2015/16.

Student numbers

Total student numbers in the UK have
been steadily incraasing since 2012, The
2016717 year is expecting to see 1.8 milion
students {under-graduate ond post-
graduate) in the UK. This is a 2% increase
from 2015716 and comfortably above 1%
average student growth of the previous
five years. Ses Figue é.

The number of intemational students has
grown since 2015716 by 1'% to 428,000,

International students make up a

higher proportion of demand for
accommaodation. They account for 30%
of students needing accommodation,
compared with 25% of full-time sludents.
See Figure 4.

Unite maintains its focus on providing beds
for those sagments of the market that

suit PBSA, namely international students,
who aecount for 35% and first years, who
account for 85% of our beds.

Figure 3: Internciional
student mobiiity
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Figure 4 Demond for accommadalion (%)

Supply of purpose bullt student
accommodation

The structural growth of the Higher
Education sector has attracted significant
levels of nvestment over the last three
years. This increased investment has seen
PBSA beds grow from around 200,000 in
2014 to 250,000 in 2016. A further 50.000
beds are expected to be built over the
next two years, taking the fofcl to around
16% of the full-time student poputation.

In a more cormpetitive market place,

the quality of the portfolio, price point,
customer service and university
relationships are crifical 10 gnsuring fult
occupancy and ongoing rental growth,

Brexit and immigration

The fullimpoct of Brexit on the UK Higher
Education sector will become cClearer
over the naxt few months. Funding
amrangements have been confirmed

for current EU students and thase starting
in 2017118,

Foliowing Brexil, we expect to see EL)
studenls join other international students
and therefore see on increase in fees.
However, given the quality of UK Universities
and the attractiveness of studying in

the UK, we estimate that overall student
numbers from the EU should anly fall by
around 20,000 - 30,000. Universities will
work hard to ensure that any foll in student
numbers is mitigated with additional
recruitment from the UK, the EU and from
other international destinations.

Figure 5: University ronidngs (institutions]

Figure &: Full fime student numbers {milions}

The UK’s imrmigration policy for
infernctional students remains one of the
most robust in the world, compared with
cther rajor destinations for inlernational
stugdents. International students make a
significant contribution to the UK econamy,
generating an estimaied £10.7 billion of
axport earnings for the UK, and over
135,000 jobs. immigration and immigration
policy remains a political issue ond the
sector will continue 1o monitor and assess
the impact of any further changes in

fhis areq.

EU research funding curmently accounts
for £688 million or 2.5% of fotal income

for Universities and there ore concems
regarding the long-term outicok for this
funding. Universities’ exposure to this issue
varies, with six UK insfilutions receiving over
50% of their research funding from the EU.

However, the Government has stated that
Universities will have certainty over future
funding and shoukd continue to bid for
competitive EU funds while the UK remains

. @ member of the EU, with a commilment

that the Treqsury will underwrite the
payments of such awaords, even when
specific projects continue beyond the

UK’s departure from tha EU.
3 Read more; Our business model
ond sirategy
26 Reqd more: Principol risks
and uncerialniies
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KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

FINANCIAL KPIS

Eamnings per share®

Pence

28p

Mecsure

QOur EPRA earnings KPlisa
measure of profil per share
in fine with EFRA guidelines.

Net asset value*

Pence per share

646p

Measure

Qur EPRA NAV per share
measures the market value of
properties and developments
less any debt used to fund
them plus ony working capital
in the business.

Comments Target

Sustainable growth in @arnings  Deliver visile and

has been driven by high levels meaningful growth

of cccupancy and rental in EPS by maintaining
growth supporfed by o focus  high cccuponcy rental
on delivering operational growth and delivering the
efficiency. The grawth in development pipeline.
eamings underpins ocur

strategic priorities of delivering

great service and growing

Commants Target

Consistent NAY growth has To continue delivering
been delivered through rental  strong balanced retums,
growth, yield compression, contributing to o double-
development profifs and digit fotalreturn.

retoined eamings. Qur
sustanmublke growth in NAV
reflects the implementation

of the business model and

our strategic priority to operate

73 Remuneration

and sustainable ecrnings. oriliant properties.

Alignment to strategy 2 ° Alignment lo strategy “
Total accounting retum Loan-to-value ratio

% %

Measure Measure

The fotal ratum fo shareholders is Qur ratio of net debt to

the ratic of growth in EPRA NAYV property volues,

plus dividends paict as o

percentage of opening

EPRA MNAY.

Commenis Maintaining a strong total Comments T

Tolalretuom hos avenoged 16%  retum from owr portfolic Confinued to deliver reduction  To maintain LTV amound
in the last six years, driven by the  is a result of our business in LTV through ongoing focus  the mid 30% laval.

growth in EPRA ecmings, vielkd  model and defivery of
compression, rental growth and  our strategic priotities.
development profits, The

performonce in 2016 wos Target

dedverad by focusing Continue fo deliver

cn growing rental level ond double digit-totol retums.
the defivery of our high quality

deveioprnent pipeiine.

Alignmart fo strotegy

00

* Resufls are based on the European Pubic
Real Estate Association Performance medasures.

on disposais and growing the

valye of the property portfoiic. 73 Remuneration
Our LTV reflects our strategy to

maintain the strongest capital

structure in the sector,

Alignment to strategy
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OPERATIONAL KPIS

Safely

Number of accidents

5

Measure

The number of reportable
accidents in our Operations
business each year as a means
of assessing our success in
approaching health and safety.

Comments

Cur Accident Incident
Monagement System (AIMS),
has provided us with greater
visipility on our incident
neporfing, enabling us to
implement new ways of
working fhaf have improved
efficiency. Safety is a high

Alignment fo sfrategy

priority within our
business and supports
our strategic pricrity fo
offer great service.

Target

We strive to reduce the
number of reportable
incidents year on year.

Employee effeciiveness
%

54%

Measure

We have an emplovee survey
fool. run by the Hays Group,
called Emplkyyee Effectiveness.

-2-3

Comments

Our new survey rasults provided
detailed insight info the
motivations and drivers of our
employees and positions us 6%
above the General UK Industry
Benchrark [48%) and 1%
behind the High Performing
Indusiry Benchmark {55%] in
our third year.

Allgnment to strategy

Target

We aim o increase the
employee effectivenass
percentage above the
&0% threshold.

1

Key

Great service Bnliant propectes
Customer safisfaction

%

Meacsure

We underiake an independent
survay with TNS twice a year fo
understand our rekifionship with

Qur custormers, the experience

-0

Growing and
sustanoble somings

we provide and their ikeshood 1o

ngbock and racommend Unite,

Commaents Target

While there has been We gim toreach the top
improvament in customer 10% of benchmarked
satisfaction over the prior four  companies within the
years our 2016 resulf moved nex! three years.

back 3% points. we need to
work hard through our strategic
priority to offer great service so
that we pul customers at the:
heart of that process.

Aflignmeni fo siralegy

73 Remuneration

Higher Education trust
%

719%

Measure

Annual quolifative research with

our Higher Educotion partners to

understand their perception of
Unite and the degree to which
we meet their needs,

Commeanis

undesstanding what our Higher
Education partners need from
us, both for themselves as
institutions ond for their students,
is a vital part of improving our
tevel of service to offer great
service, The ovenall score s infine
with jast year and whilst our
strong University partnerships
were supported by the ongoing.

Allgnment to strategy

focus of providing @ Home:
for Sucoess. we need to
continue to work hard o
ensyre this is reflected in
the score.

Targel
We gim 1o reach the mid
B80% level within the next
three years.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

THE UNITE GROUP PLLC ANRUAL REPORT ANC ACTIRINTS 2014

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND
RISK MANAGEMENT IN A
DYNAMIC EXTERNAL MARKET

Chils Szpojnarowicz

Company Secretary and Head of Legal

2014 -~ the year we celebrated
our 25th birthday — was the most
dynamile exdernal market the
PB3A seclor has seento date.
With the Higher Education sector
and the broader economy lacing
new challenges such as Brexi
and political changes around
the globe, our strategic planning
and risk management is evolving
in response to these changes.

Being well prepared for o combination

of risk events happening at the same time
is central to our readiness preparation,
Aftordobility and volue for money is
increasingly important and our risk
management focus on student experence
ond the efficient delivery of a quality
product is more important than avear.

The foliowing pages provida insight into
our key risks and how we navigate them.

Assessing our risk profile and key
risk developments during 20146

As an intinsic part of our strolegic
planning, and fo support the Board's
robust assessment of the Group's
principalrisks and its ongeing longer term
viability, the Board conducted a thorough
review of our risk profile, This review
involved both a fop-down approach:

» 1he Board considered a wide range
of strategic and emaerging risks and
opportunities and their impact

ond a bottom-up approach:

> the Board scrutinised and chollenged
the risks identified in the Qperations
and Property Business Units, as wel
our financing and treasury risks.

To ensure a broader perspective, this
review nclyded engogement with extermal
experts, such as property valvers & health
& safety auditors, os well as senior leoders

Increasing uncertainty following the Leave vote and the impact

in the Higher Fduoation sector. This
exiternal engegement was especially
important this year as the sector starts fo
digest the impact of Brexit.

This risk profile review identified four
risk categories:

" Market - supply and demand 26
Operational risks 27
Property/development risks 28
Fnoncing risks %

These risk categaries are consistent
with those identified in prior years,
with movement in specific risks —
driven principally by unceriginty
due to Brexit — as follows.

{reduction on the Higher Education sector, UK ple and immigration policy
In demand} uncertairty flowing frorm this.
While the impact of Brexit on the UK ecanormy and Higher
Education sectorremains unclear, it has led to greater uncertainty.
aoted m |
Rel . We have focused a significant proportion of our risk activity
5 Ausiness model and strategy * understanding the potentialimpact on our business.
12 Resctionships | Property/ Liquidity and uncertainty in the brogder real esiate sector.
— . developmend risks .
Market overview \ The property market has been affected by Brexit ond broader
.‘ | macro economic factars, we have focused risk activity an
Key performance indioalors (KPls) determining how this impacts our property-refated business

Principal risks and uncertainties

£ ¥ 2 %

Corpordte governance

activity during the year.

‘26

Read more: Principal risics ond uncertainties on poges 26 fo 29.
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Re-calibrating our risk appetite in 2014

Tha Group's risk appetite is considered as a fundomenial part of the Boord's strategy setting and annual budget - it does not happen
in isolotion. Our risk appetite is undeminned by our principal financial aim to continue delivering double-digit total retums and
sustainable growing eamings. Having regard to the key risk developments in 2016 sef out on page 22, the Board recaiibrated our risk
appetite. This recaiboration considers both threats lo— and apportunifies in — our business in the context of maco and miner developments,
not only in the PBSA sector, but also thae broader Higher Education sector, property markel and economy more generally.

Gredal service With higher fee levels, the affordability and value of Higher Education remains a risk focus.

- Home for Success, PRISM and our University relationships remain an opportunity for us to differentiate
from compedtitors.
Brilllont properties  Focusing our portfolic on high quality Universities and recycling our portfolio in & competitive market ploce.
0 Undertoking development activities.
Growing ond During 2016, focus on becoming a REM and ongoing complicnce with REIT tests 10 enable REIT conversion

sustainable samings effective | January 2017,
N _o Planning and compiating our conversion 1o REIT status.
Maintaining full occupancy across our portfolio.

Stress testing our

strategic planning

Each year, the Boord develops and
refreshes the Group's Strategic Plan.
This s based on detailed three-year
strategic/financial projections fwith
related scenario planning) and rolls

forwand for a further two years using increase in Yield
more generic assumptions. The Boord . .
maps our fhree strategic objectives interest rates expansion
set against our risk profile {described The influences

diractly below). Recognising that risk of multiple

evenls do not necessarity happen in combined

isaiation, the Board then stress tests risk events

these projections against various
multiple combined risk events. Through
this process, Q base cose and stress
tested Strutegic Plan is devalkoped.
Reductionin EU/
internctional
students

During 2014, this stress tested scenario
plonning considered a materia)
reduction in the number of European
and international students, a material
rise in long term interest rates and
yield expansion, together with o
combinotion of oll these events
occuring at the same time.

Mapping our three shrategic objectives against our risk profile

Gredl service Market (supply The health, safety. wellbeing Gnd security of the 49 000 students who make Unite Students
ond demand] ther home is the foundation of our reputation and confinued focus on heatth & sofety is key
Opwrational to buliding and maintaining this fryst,

Alfordability ond volue for money are increasingly crificat in the incregsingly competitive
maorket place. Developing the most frusted brand In the seclor continues to be criticol
to our sustainable aond longer temm success.

Britiant properties  Property/ Our focus an working with kigh and mid ranked Universitias mearns that we will
_e developmaent recycle capital into higher performing cities. Property developmant is a higher rigk,
higher return activity.
Growing and FAnancing Maintain a fimely opproach to amanging new debt and extending debt maturities,
sustainable samings reducing the cost of funding, diverifying our funding sources and introducing new
B o lenders to the Group. Secure a strong botance sheet with appropriate levels of leverage
and liquidity 1o ensure the business can withstand any property cyCle.

2
§
3
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RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED

Creating the right comporate
culture for effective risk

management

The Group's risk management framework
is designed to identify the principal

risks and ensure that risks are being
approprately monitored, controls are in
place and requ¥ed actions have clear
ownership with requisite accountability.

The organisation hos on open and
accouniable culture, lked by a stable and
experienced lkeadership team that has
operated in the sector for a number of
years. This culture is set by the Board in the

way it conducts its Board and Committee |

meefings and coscades through the
orgonisation enabling the same cuiture
for risk manogement.

During 2014, this corpomte culture was
assessad as part of the Board's effectiveness
gvaluation, using the key learnings from
the Financial Reporting Council (FRC]'s
recent report, Corporate Culture and the
Role of Boords.

&2 Read rmore; Effectiveness

The culture of the organisation recognises
—and accepts — that risk is inhevent in
business and encourages an open ahd
proactive approach to risk managsement
osopposed to a blame cullure. By viewing
our risks through the lens of our three
strategic objectives, the Group is able fo
ensune risk management is proactive and
pra-emptive and not a tick box exercise.

The Board has the everall rasponsibility for
the governance of risks and ensuras thers
are adequate and effective systemsin

| place. it does this in various ways:

Risks are considerad by the Board as
an ntrinsic port of strategy setting and
consideration of new opportunities —
risk is recognised as an inherent part
of each opportunity
> A twice yearly formalraview by the
Boaord of principal risks, how they
are chonging and considering any
emerging risks
» Risk Committee reviews the principal
risks that the Group is facing or
shoula consider
> Specific risk management in
dedicoled Boord sub-committaes
allowing focus on specific risk areas
{for exomple, the Audit Committee
and Health & Safety Commiltee)

R

Our risk management framework

f
!
\
|
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> Risk Committee scrutiny and challenge
of Business Unit risk management
octivity allowing a focused forum
for risk identification and review
> Board directors also sit on Business Unit
boords ond thus provide the Board with
direct line of sight to Business Unit risk
management activity
Risk assurance through external and
internal oyditors as well as specialist
third party risk assurance where
oppropriate (e.g. specialist
independent heatth and safety
complignce in the Operations and
Property Business Units).

v

Robust assessment

of principat risks

The direciors confirm thal thay have
conducted a robust assessment of the

| principalrisks facing the Group. The

process for how the Boord determined
these principal risks is explained above
and the specific principal risks are set
out on pages 26 10 29,

The board rfﬁ
Risks assessad as part * Owned by the Board and its Committees
of strategy setting » Twice yearly formal risk review and ongeing monitoring
and risk oversight of risk integral to Baard meetings
\[// ‘\L
Risk management Policies and controls Composition
of Risk Commitiee
> Owned by the Risk Committes and the Unclerpinning risk management Chrls S1pojnorowicz
Business Unit boards (such as Capital Operating Guidesines; Company Secretary
> Monthlyrisk tracker review at Business Treasury Policy: Anti-Bribery Policy: Major and Head of Legal and
Unit boards Investment Approvals Commitiee and the Chair of Risk Committee
> Risk Committee review of allrisk trackers intermei controls framework)
Jou Lister

‘
W7
s L

~

People and culture

N}

Q
M

Embedded rsk
manogemeant culture

Opennass, fransparency and clecr ownership of
risk management {shrough risk frackers) cascades

through the organisation

Chief Financial Officer
and MD of People
and Communications

Richard Smith
Chief Executive Gfficer

Richard Simpson
Group Property Director
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Key Risk Indicators (KRls) :
linked to our KMs and our
three sirategic objectives

Customer

satisfaction |
Scrlety ‘
- - Higher Education frust
% Noms v. Drect Let
Briibant Net asset value \
properties Age of asset i
CGcecupancy ‘
& Rental growth i
Grawing and Earnings per share ‘
suglalnoble Total return |
eamings Net debt !

Loan-to-value ratio
Net debt : EBITDA

Viabliity stalement

The Directors have cssessed the viability
of the Group over a three-year period

o December 2019, taking cccount of fhe
Group's cument position and the potential
impact of the principal risks. The Directors
consider the three-year lookout period to
be the most appropriate as fhis
fundamentally aligns with the Group's

| own strategic planning period combined

with the levels of planning certainty that

| can ba derived from the deveiopment

pipefine. Based on this assessment, the
Direciorn have a reasonable expeciation
that the Group wik be able to continue

n opearafion and meet is kabilities os they
falidue over the period ko December 2019.

As explained above, the Group has
deveioped an annual business planning
process, which compxises a Strategic
Plan, a financiai forecast for the curent
year and a financial projection for the
forthcoming three years (which includes
stress testing and scenario planning and
also rofls forwards for o further two years).
This plan is reviewed each year by the:
Board as part of its sirategy selling
proceass. Once approved by the Boord,
the plan is cascaded down across the
Group and provides a basis for setting ol
detailed financial budgets ond sfrategic
actions that are subsequentty used by
tha Boord 1o rmonitor performance.

Our risk management In action; Brexit

One tool in ourrisk management
process 5 g risk 'deep dive'. This involves
an in-depth review of a specific risk with
Brexit o key focus since the prospect

of an In/Qut referendum first crystalised
in 2015,

in the period through 1o June 2016, our
risk deep dive proceass concluded that
no specific pre-emplive octions [other
thon ongoing engogement with the
Higher Educakion sechkor) shoulkd be
taken for our business in the event of

o Leave or Remuain vole. This decision
was driven by the anticipated impact
to our business if there wos o Leove vote
{see below] and the minimum two-year
transitional period under Article 50.
Engagement with the Higher Education
sactor is helping inform our inking on
implications for the PBSA sector and
specifically our business.

Qur risk deap dive process concludes
that Brexit shouid not significanity
impact our business for the
following reasons:

> Following g period of inifial
uncertginty immediately gfter the
result in June 2014, confidence has
returned to the PBSA market with
a high volume of portfolios and assets
trading in the second half of 2014

> EU research tunding is important 1o UK
Universities and this, togethes with the
imrnigration status of EU academics
and EU studenis in the UK more
genaerally, clearty creates uncediainty
for the Higher Education secior olong
with 1he broader uncerdinty in fhe
wider economy. This unceriainty is
moderated by the strength of UK
Universities {the second kargest
destingtion for international
students ofter the US): the ongoing
infernationalisation of Higher
Education with the global rise of the
middle classes. Sterling depreciation
also makes UK Higher Education/
accommadation more affordable
for international students

The forecast performance cutlookis also
used by the Remuneration Commitiee fo
astablish the targets for both the annual
and longer term inceantive schames.

The financing risks of the Group are
considered 1o hove the potential grectest
impact on the Group's financial viabiity.
The two principal financing risks for

the Group are: the Group's ability ta
arange new debl/replace expiring dabt
facilities; and any adverse interest rate
moverments. The Group hos secured
funding for the cammitied future
development pipeline and prepares its
Strategic Planon a fully funded basis in
fine with the three-year cutiook period.
To hedge against the potentiol of
adverse interest rate movements the
Group mongges its exposure with g
combination of fixed rate facilities ang
using interest rote swops for iis loating
rate debt. During the yeor the Group has
cormplied with all covenant requirements
attached Yo its financing focilities.

40 Read more: financial review

» EU students’ lunding arrangements
under cument luition fee amangermenis
are confirmed for 2014/17 and 201718,
but thave s uncertainty beyond then.
EU students represent 9% of our
custorners and so any impact on

EU student nurnbers would have
olimiled impact on our cccupancy
Despite these broader uncertainties,
the supphy/demand outlook remains
favourabie and with the benefit

of cur development pipeline, the
strengthening of our University
rekationships ond our focus on high
and mid-ranked Universifies, our
business is well ploced 1o navigate
the uncertainty risk,

v

We continue t© monitor the
developments and engage inthe

other risk management actions cutlined
in the principal risks see page 26).
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PRINCIPAL RISKS
AND UNCERTAINTIES

Market risks

1. Demand reduction {driven by Govemnment policy or other macro events)

Fossible svent

¥ Biextimpacting numbers of EU students coming to study in the UK

> Changes n Government pofcy on Righer Educahon funding

> Immigrafion policy changes affeciing intemational student numbers
and behaviour,

Impact

coming fo the UK

What happened in 2016

Student numbers in the UK continue to grow with opproximately 3,000 more applicants han 2015/2014

The total number of applcants In 2016 also grew wilh 155,000 more opplications than places

Stronger growth {3% in occeptances) in the high and mid-fanif Universities

Urite Students occupancy of P8% (2014/2017} compared to P9% {2015/2016) but more beds 49,000

at 31 Decembar 2014 as comparned with 46,000 at 31 December 2015 Increase in overol student

rumbers continues (o framsicte 1o mare students staying ot Unite

EU stuctents tunding amangements for duration of shudy conlfirmed for 2014/2017 and 201772018

> Duwring 2014, we have seen an mcreose in nomnalions with more committed 1o beds thon aver
belore 58% beds — 2016/2017 vs. 57% 2015/2018

L2 Read mone: O and ot nominall

L ¥

VvV

v

» Potenfiairecuction in demand ond hence profitabillty and asset vaiues
> Depariue from EU Impacting EU resaorch gronts and EU studenis

Risk mgnagement

Oongeing monltorng of Brexl implcations.
Govaernment policy andits impact on UK.

EU and intemdationat student numbers studying
in the UK. Reguiarly reviewing our portioo to
ensure we have the highest quality portiolio,
appropriately szed and in the right kadations.

Risk Mifigation in 2014
Risk deep dive Info impact of Brext.

25 Read maore: Our fisk monagernant in oction: Seexdl

Thecugh implemantation of Home for SuCCets - our core purpose 1o provide environments that heip
studtents achieve more during their ime at University - we are seeing consistently hwgh customer
satsfaction and Higher Educahon tnust scares,

20 Reod move: Key parfemance indicotors (KMs)

Focus tor 2017

Sirategic objechive

CHering great service ks key 1o haiping us susiain
any reduction n demand [as well as emwing
wer have briant properhes and graowing

and sustainable eamings to manage any
dernand defictt),

5 Readmore: Qur siralegy

90

Continued engcagement with the Highar Educafion sector to undentand and be ready for the iImpact of Brexit and other HE pokicy changes

2. Demand reduction {due to societal change)

Foselble avents

» Corcems aver the costs of a University education - affordabiity anad
vaie for money

> ARemative course delvery (such as Massive Open Oniine Courses)

> Shortarimore semester led coursed.

impact

and asset values

What happened in 2016
During 2016, robed out PRISM, ow digrial and scataple operaling platiorm, dmang efficiency ond
customet service

EN Rea more: PRISM

Applications ond accepiance data continue 1o provide evidence thal stronger Univetsities ane
periorming betler.

18 Read more: Market keview

Enhanced tenice lavels over the kst tew yedrs with faster wi- R speeds, free communal cleons and
enhanced common spaces.

> Maofe compeition for valse andreduced demand for year round
student accommaodalion i tha longer term resuling m lower profitability

Risk management

Ongoing monitorng of attordabilty and value for
money and the evolution of Igital leammg and
enswing we pariner with the stronger Univensities
with properties In the best lncations

Mk mitigotion activity in 2014
Ensured the successiul mll out of PRISM, enobding onfine and more flexible fenandcies.

Conhhued investment in market knowledge and building on our relaticrships with the strengest
Universities, daven by Home for Success and our University parinerships team.

Focus for 2077

Sinvtegic cbiective

OHering great sanice is key 1o ensuring we

have relahorships with the higher and megium
tantf Universiies {the ones most kel fo sustan a
reduction in demand). PRISM heips v delver the:
best custorner servca sfficiently

5 Reod more. Our siralegy

Using PRISM to drive enhanced cusiomer sermice ondg value for money. through its scalcbiily ond digital eficiency.

Continued focus on Home lor Success and our parnerships with the stronget Universies.
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Key

. I

Greal service

Briliant propermes Growing and

sUSTamAabie Sarings

3. Supply increase (due lo iIncreasing interest in the perfformance and appeal of the PBSA sector)

Fossible evenls

? New supply as sustained high levek of investrment demand filter inta the
development market, pdrmarty through investons providing forwoard
commitmenis to smalier developers.

What happened in 2014
Volume of PESA assets raded n 200 moderaled from record levels seen in 2015

impact
> More competition for the best sites
> Potenfiolimpact on rentcl growth and occupancy

During 2016 confinued rofl out of Home for Succass and maintaining asirong proportion of bects secured under neminations agreements at 58% {2015, 57%).

Opening of five new proparties during 2015
34 Read more Properies deltversd
Lewvet of new supply

18 Read mor Morkel review

Risk Miligation in 2015

We coniinue with aur focus and strategy on:

3 Markets with supply/demand imbalance

3 Exposure fo the best Universities undarpinned with hew developments secured with nominahors deats:

EL ] Read more: Operaiion heview

» [nvestment in our brand and studenf expenance — crealing betfer snvironments wAthin our new
developments through Home lor Success nitianve
> Maintdining strong relationships with key Higher Education pariners.

Focus for 2017

Sirsdegic objective

Oftsring great servce os well as having
briliant propertias is critical to mitigating
ary supply surplus,

Confinued focus on cur portfolie m the towns and cities with the sirongest growth prospects and using PRISM, our scakable operating pkrttomm, o cifferenticte

our brand ond offer consistently high levets of sarvice to students and Universites alke
Ensuring a strong yet fienable captal structure so we can adapt appropriately as supply grows.

Operational risks

4. Major health & safety (H&S) incident in a propenty or o development site

fossibia evenis
> Faotalty or major injury from a fine o other incident at a property
? Multipie contractornjunies at a developmsent or operational site.

What has happened during 2014

With fire s our biggest safety risk in our operating ponfolio, during 2016 we estatiished a Primary
Authority Agreement with Ihe Avon Fire Authority to focus on

» The development journey tor our fue strategy adecisions

» Fire Satety Managemant - improved policies ard procedures, risk assessments, training & fire records
> aaintenance Regimes - festing and piorned preveniaive mantenance

> Speciiication for new bulkh gnd developments.

Extemal assurance sought through.

» Appointment of the British Satety Counail as our new external satety aucktor

¥ Physicol secunty review of our properiies by WSP Parsoms Brinckernolf.

Continued good performance agalnst our operational safely KP1 with five reporiable accidents and
posiive rasuits 0gains! o KPE 10 our development achivity.

0 Read mote: Key Performance indicalors {(KPl)

mpoct
> Impact fo students iMng with us. coniractors working on-site and visitors
> Reputational domoge and trust in Urite Stucients os a rallabie partnar

Risk management
HES s given diect Board supervision by the H&S
Commitiee [a sub-committes of the Board)
which actively supervises H&S. ensuring robust
polcies ond pracedures arein place and
consistently cofmphed with,

e Read more: HLS Commities report
HL&S is also actively reviewed in the Operations
and Property Business Units. ensuring thot HAS is
tap of mind in our gay to day operations and
regulary assessed ond vaidated.

Risk MRltgation in 2015

Reguicr exiemal oudits and intemal inspections of our properties. Fullreview of our operations risk
ssessmeants 10 ensure adequate hazard contiol, fogether with improved contractor monagerment and
parmit fo work system for hazardous work aclivities. improved sclety Irgining, using augmentedreality.
focusing on driving for work, lone working, safely signage. houseke noNCe, NoXards such os
chemicak, machinery, asbestos ond pemonal protective equiprnent. Mus mciudes an intaracive game lor
occidend. incident and near misses.

Focus for 2017

$Sirategk: oblective

Ersuring the HAS of our custorners, contractons
and employees is fundamental lo us offering
great service.

§ Read more: Our shrakegy

Work on the jouney 1o interdependence with empowerment in day to day H&S management at the core of everything we do.
Ongaing tocus on continuous improvement {including priadiising ihe fire sk neview. crisis management, securfty teview and exterial cudit recommendatians

and actions)
Infegrafing welbeing mio e H3.S Management System.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS

AND UNCERTAINTIES
CONTINUED

THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANMUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

Fossible avents

> Site acqukition nsk - increasing competition lor the best sites pushes
up prices

> Plonning rsk - deldys of foilure to get pranning

» Construchon msk —bulki cost infiation as the economy improves

What happened in 2016
Five sites gcquired, adding 3,082 beds to the development peling:

Five pkinring consents secured.
2016 schemes detivered. onfime and 1o budget.
34 Read more: Property review

Impact
> NAY and EPS atfected by abarted schemes ond/or reduced financial

retums. with cash ted up in developmen!,

Risk management

Expenenced development leam with exdensve
site selection and planning expertse, coupted
with streng frack record and focus on project
delivery and stirong relaionships with
construclion partners with appropriate risk
sharing. Group Boord approval for cormritments
above a certain threshokd

Anancigl imvestiment in schemes carefully
managed priar to grant of planning

To ersure we have the highest quality portfolio, we
are pusung new apporunities on o conditionat
basis. buiwith a Imited! number of sites conlracted
not condfifonai on planning following a detaled
sk assetsment of that opportunity

Rk Mmgotion in 2014

oblective

Shotegk:
Regular development team and property roview, with Group Board director oversight to ensure fgilure Bdllant properfies

10 secure siles or camplele on time are managedin the budget,

Dalalled pianning pre-applications and due dilgence betfore site acqukition

2 Road more Development acfivity

Build cost Inflation reguiorly appraised and refreshed in Property Baard meetings mid-sized framework
consrocion wed and longer ferm relationships estabished to mifigate cyclcal swings.,

Focus for 2017

5 Readmore Oursirategy

Moin focus will be on delivenng muliilocation developments ond securing pipefine for 2020.

2 Raad more Development pipaiine

Possible events
> Buying of sefing properties at the wiong point in the cycle.

What happened In 2014

Yourne of PBSA assets moderated in 2016 fokowing record volumes in 2015

The value of the Group's Investment porttolio (including our share of co-irvestment vehicles) increased
to £2,277 million as af December 2014 {31 December 2015: £2.045 mulion) with the average ponfola

yield faling bps io 5.4%.

During 2014 we continuad o maximise our portfolio value through a progromme of selective

davelopments, acquisihons, dsposals and refurbishments,
39 Read more. Disposols

Customer salistaction continues at tigh tevel supporling rental growth and our poritolio value.

36 Read more. Renkal growih ond porticlio volue

mpact
» Reduction in asset values reduang financial returns

Risk management

Group Board ond Property Boart! ongong
fmoniforing of property market, direction
ond values

Forecas! rental growth and recurning profit
oitsets any yleld movement.

Ersuring we hove astrong yet flexible copitai
sinuchue 5o we can adopi appopriatety 1o
maiket Condiftons.

Clear and active asset management sirategy

Risk Mumgation in 2016

objective

Strategic
Dispasals — ongoing monitoring of our entire portiolio with selective disposals to beneht from keenes Brilant properfies.

prices in the market, We sold £114 milon of assets in 2014,

Acquisifions - ascipkned dcquisitions shalegy exercring caution over poartiolio premiurms being paidin

the market.
Caretul management of net debt and see-through LTV.

Maintaining discipined approach to new developrment fransactions by maintaining Group hurcie rates

Focus for 2017

5 Readmore Our stralegy

To confinue to ocqulre sites in ine with Group hurdle rates and to procure contracts In ine with budgets,
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Financing risks

7. Unable to armange new debt or explring debt tacllifies cannot be replaced or only

at high cost. Adverse interest rate movements

Poulble svents mpoci

> Unite breaches a loan covenant of falls to replace dabl on expiry > Hunable lo replkace debl. then possible forced sale of assels

> Interestiate increase

potentially leading o soles below valuation. Skowdown 6l

development aclivity. Reduced level of profitability

> Adverse iate movements can leod lo reduced profitobitty
andreauction in property vaiues (thwough resulting expansion
of valuahion yletds and lower valuations).

Yhat hoppened In 20)é
DQuring 2014, LTV ratio mpraved to 34% from 35% af the end af 2015 and net debt grew by £45 miion

to £776 milkon. During 2014, £150 milion of new debt was argnged.
100% of debt at fixed rateswanped.

During 2014 our average cost of debi has faken to 4.2% from 4.5%: 2615 ond we expect it fo fall furthes
by the end of 2017 a5 a proporhion of forward starfing swaps become eftective.

48 Read mover Fi lal review/cophol sruch

Risk mancgement

Proaciivety managing debt maturities to
refinance these tacilities at leost 4-12months
kefore matunty and in parailel diversifying our
wources of tinance (o rapay Moe expensive and
less flexibie borowings.

Conitrol of fuiee cash commitments in ine with
progress of disposak and refinancing.

Interest rates monitored by the tunding team
as an Integral part of our refinancing activity
—owned by the CFO and with Group Board
overight. Gearing ratios definedin our Copiiat
Operating Guidelines.

Hedge exposure with Interest rate swaps ond
refinance tacitties with llxed rates.

Risk MRgation in 2016
Reguiar and relicble engogement with ienders.

With berign interest rate environment. have cortinued 1o take advaniage of historically low rales (both
on new debl and alsa entedng Into forward starting interest rate swaps locking in rates for owr 2007 and
2018 development pipekne}.

48 Read more. Debt develop

t debt and swaps

Focya for 2017

Sirategic
Growing ond susiginable samings.

5 Reod more: Dwt siraegy

Funding futute davelopment acguisifions os well as 2017 fuhding requirerments for the Group. USAF and LSAY.

g
g
3
g
§

SUDULIBIOLS |OUDU

UOHDULIOWI RO



OPERATIONS REVIEW

GREAT
SERVICE

Our commliment lo providing

a Home for Success for students
and to be the most trusted brand
in the sectar is cenfred around our
high quallty properties, hetpful
staff and @ commiiment to great
customer service for both aur
studenis and University pariners.

The implementation of our operating
platform, PRISM, has braught considerable
improvements to our customer sarvice,
altowing us 1o move to o seven day
operaling madel, offer online room
viewings and to adopt paperiess tenancies.
These improverments have resulted in the
fime for tenancies fo be confirmed
reducing o five days from 15 days.

30% of bookings are now done online or
through mobile bookings. ensuring the
process of securing accommodation is

as easy and as efficient as possible for
students. Additionally, through ouriiving
with Unite app, 75% of maintenance jobs
are now fixed within 24 hours.

Our Home for Success investment
programme, which has seen usinvest

£40 million ccross key areas of the business
including physica), digital. customer
service and people, has been complated.
We have enhanced our Wi-F speeds
across student rooms and communai
spaces to S0Mbps, completed the
insiciiotion of our LED ighting programme
and our Student Life Hub continues fo
prove popular with students.

We continue fo build on Gur strong
relationships with over 40 high and
mid-rank Universities, with nominations
agreements now representing 58%.
with néw ferms agreed for a longer

THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REFORT AMD ACCOUNTS 2016

duration, on average 10 years, compared
to seven yaars for existing amongements.
Our partnerships ensure that Universities
ore able to provide their students with
accommodation close to campus and
a safe and secure environment in which
to live, succeed in thelr ocodemic studies
and meet fallow students.

Cur continued focus on cusiomer service
hats ed to high occupancy levels with
?8% of beds lgt and rental growth of 3.8%.
In 2016, we achieved record high levels
of customer satisfaction and a growing

. proportian of return students,

| demonstrating our commitment o
helping students grow and succeed
at University and beyond.
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BUILDING ON OUR GREAT
SERVICE THROUGH THE
LAUNCH OF OUR NEW
OPERATING PLATFORM

Related sections
5 Businaess model and strategy
12 Relatianships

Simon Jones
Operations Director

18 Maorket review

#®  Key performance indicators (KPls)

6 Principail risks and unceriainfies

Simon Jones addresses some topical questions
from our sharehokders

g
{
%

a How has PRISM benefitied the How Impartantis the offordabiitty
services Unite provides? of your accommodation to your
Our operating piatiorm, PRISM, business model? o
which is unique 1o Unite, Gllows PR A fordability is important for g
us to drive greater efficiencies of scale students and therefore it is 8
while offering the best possible service important to us. We offer o wide range of -
1o our customers. PRISM has cliowed price points and room sizes as pan of our g
us 16 move to a seven doy operating focus on delivering o more affordable g
model and offer new services such os rroposition for students. Cver the past g
online bookings and room viewings, in few years, Unite has focused on &
addifion fo paperiess tenancies. These deiivering a more affordabie proposition
improvements have not only delivered for students. We alse reinvest each year
afficiencies fior the business but greaily in the accommodation and extend our
improved the service we provide student services 50 thot students get
to our students. As we continue volue for money,
fo grow the portfolio, PRISM enables
us to dermonstrate a different a Haow do you assass and value
approach to other operations. competition and what do you
doto counteract #?
) Do you snvisoge growing the JRll ¥e monitor he market clasety and
proporion of your beds oftersd competition for sites and property 2
through University porinarships? portfolios has continued. We continue 1o 2
i we pride oursalves on our invest in our key diferentiators such as our 3
parinerships with Universities portfolio scale and the locations or our 5
and work with them to ensure that buildings as well as PRISM. through which %
they are able to offer high quality we defiver unmatched customer services, ?35"

accommodation and services to their
students, an imporiont component

of the overall student experience.
Nominations agreements make up
58% of the portfolic with the remaining
bedis let directly 16 students. We centinue
to explore future parfrerships with
Univensities, which typically spon

10 years and provide visibility on future
income. We expect to remain at
around this level,

and through our Higher Education
indusiry experience ond raiationships.
Our experiise continues 1o be Important
as investor interest in the sector ingreases.
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OPERATIONS REVI
CONTINUED

Summary EPRA incomae siatemeni

EW

2014 2015

tm £m

Unite’s share of renial income 159.1 1443
Unite's share of property operating expenses (42.8) [39.8}
Net aperating income (NOI) 1163 104.5
NOI rargin 73.0% 725%
Monagement fees 14.0 120
Operating expenses (23.1) {21.9)
Finance costs {45.9) {48.1)
USAF acquisition and net performance fee 4.9 20
Developmeant aond other costs (5.5) [7.2)
EPRA garnings 827 613
Yield relcted slement of performance fee (1.4) n1.8)
Adjusted EPRA eamings 41.3 49.5
Adjusted EPRA EPS 217 21p

* A full reconcilation of Profit before tax to EPRA eamings 5sct oul in nole 2.2 of the financhal statements

The Group continues to report on an IFRS
basis and fo also present its performance
in line with best practice recommended
Dy EPRA. The Operations and Property
reviews focus on EPRA measudes os these
are Gur key internal measures and aid
comparabiity across the real estate sectar.

Sales, rental growth

and profitabliity

The kay sinengths of cur operating business
are oyr people, our PRISM operating
platform, the strength of our brond and
the strength of our relationships with
Universities. We have continued to build on
these strengths throughout 2016, resulting
in G £11.8 milion, 24% increass in Adjusted
EPRA eamings to £61.3 milion compared
1o last year (2015; £49.5 million). This growth
has Ggain been driven by high occupancy,
rentat growth and the impact of porttolio
movements as well as further operatfienal
efficiencies and angoing cost discipline.

The Group's share of rentalincome has
increased by £14.8 milion, up 10%, asa
result of new openings and sustained
rental growth, NOI margin improved to
73.1% (December 2015: 72.5%], reflacting
further operating efficiencies that were
driven by the implementation of our new
PRISM opercting platform during 2016.
PRISM provides us with the ability to
differentiate ourselves from others, driving
efficiencies through the use of technology
" which enables us to provide enhanced
levels of service t¢ our customers, We
mainigin our expechalion that NOI morgins
will improve towards 75%, although
bakncing margin growth and service
level anhancemeant will remain our
overriding priority.

We are now managing 4%.000 beds
compared to 456,000 at 31 December
2015. Alongside this increase in beds
there has been a growth in overheads of
£1.2 millicn, driven mainly by depreciation
costs associoted with the new PRISM
systern, and we expect a further small
increase of depreciation costs in 2017,
Recurring manogement fee income from
joint venturas increased by £2.0 million to
£14,0 million (2015: £12.0 million), as a result
of the growth of assets under management
in USAF and LSAYV, In addition fo the
recurring asset managerment fees. o further
£4.% million of net USAF performance

and acquisition fees were generated
{2015: £22.0 million). Cur kay overhead
efficiency measure {total operating
expenses less management fees as a
proportion of Unite's share of property
volug) confinues to improve and now
stands at 40bps (December 2015: 48bps),
and we remain focused on our iarget of
25-30bps by the end of 2017 based on
current yields.

The £6.5 milion USAF net performance
fae is payable in units and is based

an USAF's cumulative totalreturn at

31 December 2016, The component of
the fee that relates to yield movement
has been excluded from Adjusted EPRA
eqrnings purposes to reflect a normalised
level of earnings. The operational element
of the performance fee is driven by USAF's
income and rental growth performance
and is not expected tosignificantly add
o our eamings performance going
forword given the current voluotion yields,
georing levels and rental growth oullcok.
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Finonce costs decrensed to £45.9 million
{2015: £48.1 milion), An increase in net
debt of £45 million to £776 million {2015:
£731 million) was offsat by a lower
average cost of finance of 4.2% {2015
4.5%) as we have added new deb!
facilities at tower average rates, taking
advanfage of the historicolly low cost

of debt. In addition. the increase in net
debt has been driven largely by spend
on development activities which hasin
turn lead to an increase in the amount
of interest thot is capitalized into
developmenl schemes to £5.2 million, up
frorn £2.7 milion in 2015. We expect the
level of interest capilalisation to remain
at around this level given the ongoing
level of development activity in 2017,
Developmenl [pre-contract) ond other
costs fell to £5.5 million {2015: £7.2 million),
reflecting the levels of site acquisitionin
the business, the earnings impact of shore
based incentives and our contribution to
our charitable trust, the Unite Foundation,

Occupancy, reservallons

and rentat growth

Occupancy across Unite's portfolio for
the 2014/17 academic yeor stands ot 8%
and like-for-like rental growth of 3.8% was
achieved on our stabilised portfclio. We
have continued to grow the proportion
of beds let 10 Universities with 58% of
rooms under nominations agreements,
up by 5.000 beds over the tast three
years. Enhanced service levels and our
deep understanding of student needs
have resulted in longer term and more
robust partnerships with Universities.

We expect the proportion of beds let

fo Universities to remain ot or around

this fevel in the future. This balance of
nominations and direct-let beds provides
the benefit of having income secured
by Universitias, as well s the ability to
offer rooms to returning students and fo
determine market pricing on an annual
basis. On average. rents on nominations
rooms are ¢.5% below direct iet
equivalents and, based on ourrecent
experience with néew agreements, there
is an cpportunity to close this discount in
the coming years.

Reservations for the 2017/18 ocademic
year are encovraging, at 73% (67% at the
same point last year) as arasult of our
confinued focus of working alengside the
UK’s best Universities as well as our kocal
presence in Ching building relationships
with Chinese Universifies. This structural
growth within the cities we operate,
together with our differentiated service
offering. provides us with further
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69%

Reservotions for the 2017/18
academic yeor

THE FINAL ELEMENTS OF
PRISM WERE DELIVERED
IN 2016, PROVIDING FULL
ONLINE VIEWING AND
BOOKING FUNCTIONALITY
ALONGSIDE ENHANCED
MAINTENANCE SERVICE
LEVELS AND REVENUE
MANAGEMENT
FUNCTIONALITY

confidence in occupancy and rental
growth for the 2017/18 ocademic year
which we expect to be in the region of
30-3.5%.

Home for Success

Our Home for Success investment
programme provides us with a reol
point of differentiation to other providers
of student accommodation. The
programme, which was initicted in 2014,
genercied significant enhancemants in
our operating platform, the establishment
of communal study and relaxation
spaces that our customers hawve told us
that they want and the development

of o sense of hame within our properties.
These factors, together with our service
lavels, student insight, prime locations
and mid-market price points, make us
stang out for students and Universifies.

Investment in people,
technology and reiationships
Satisfaction with service and the strength
of our relgtionships with Universities has
been maintained ot high levels gs both
students and Universities benefit from
tha investments that we ore making.

i The final elements of PRISM were

delivered in 2014, providing full online
viewing and booking functicnality

. alongside enhanced maintenonce

service levels and revenue management
tunctionality, We will conlinue to invest
in and evolve this plkatform to mointain
owr sector leoding advantage in this areq,

. We have cantinued to invest in our

digital capabililies. focusing on the
student expearience. In 2014, this hos
sean us deliver further enhancements

to our student-focused apps and our
website, a portolio-wide communications
portal fo drive engagement and to help
students access the information they
need to support them during the course
of the academic year. Our apps and
digital platforms provide students with

a hossle free solution to every day
concems, provide them with the support

. they need and so allow them to focus

on their studies and time at University.

EE)

Developing our teams remains ¢ priority
for us and we have impliemented new
leadership programmes across the
whole organisation over the past two
years. These programmaes ensure that
we are peoviding our teams with the
training required ta deliver excellent
customer service as well as developing
their careers, and they have been an
integral part of our successful attainment
of Investers in People Gokd status in 2016.

We atso continue to invest meaningfully
in our Higher Education sector
retotionships. Our Universities Portnerships
and Engaogement team is dedicated o
building strong working rekationships
with key University partners, ond this
opproach has seen us incorporate
University requirements into new
developments and driven the growth

in the number of beds under nominations
agreements.

In China, our marketing office is now
fully cparational and our local oniine
prasence has been eskablished, We
have also started to create meaningful
relationships with both kocal and British
Universities in China, as well as providing
important support to our Chinese
customers before they fravel o the UK
and fo their parents while their children
are overseas. We are confident thot this
investment will deliver long-term benefit
to the business as well as to Chinese
students and UK Universities.

Simon Jones
Qperations Director
22 Februory 2017
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PROPERTY REVIEW

BRILLIANT ™

PROPERTIES

Stapleton House, Lonoon

In 2016, we opened five new
bulidings. adding to our poriiolio
ol high quality, conveniently
located accommodation for
students studying in the strongest
University towns across the UK.
The new bulldings Increased

our number of beds by 3,082

to a total of 51,310. The bulldings
compirise mainly cluster flat
accommodation and provide
facilities such as on-site laundry,
study space, communal areas
and dry cycle storage. We
entered 2014/17 with the largest
ever number of students at the
start of an academic year.

More than half of the beds, 1,561, are
located in London at our two new sites:
Olympic Way and Stapleton House,
Olympic Way, which has been let to
Middiesex University under a nomination
agreement, sits nex} to the iconic Wembley
Stadium ond is port of the regeneration
of that areq. Stapleton House, Holloway
Road, alsc opened its doors to students
in September 2016 ond is let under

a nomination agreement to Lendon
Metropolitan University.

Two further completions, Greetham
Street Portsmouth and Far Gostord Street
Caventry, were acquired by USAF, recycing
capitat for the Group's development
pipeline, with an additional development
caompleted in Aberdeen. The ocquisition
by USAF was funded with a new

£100 million, five-year focility provided

oy Wells Fargo. Both properties are on
nomination agreements 1o Portsmouth
University and Coventry Univesity and are
fully let for the 2016/17 ocademic year.

We continue to progress our 7000-bed
developrment pipeline which extends out
o 2019, with five schemes set lo open in
September 2017. These developments will
provide @ home for students studying at
some of the UK's strangest Universities in
Coventry, Edinburgh, Liverpooland Oxford, 0 /*ewevens. Assresn
In addition to this, we ocquired five
developmaeant sites: St Vincent's Sheffieid,
Intemationat House Birmingham,
Chaucer House Portsmouth, Skelhorne
Street Liverpool and Millennium Way
Coventry and secured four planning
consents (Skelhorne Street Liverpool,
infermational House Brmingham,
Millennium Way Coventry and Brunel
Chaucer.}

Greathom Sreet, Portsmouth
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COMPLETION OF FIVE BRILLIANT
PROPERTIES AND STRENGTHENING
OUR DEVELOPMENT PIPELINE

Richard Simpson
Group Property Director

Related sechons
Business model and strategy

wn

12 Relationships
18 Market review

20 Kay pertormance indicators (KPis)

26 Principal risks ond uncerfaintias

QRA

Richard Simpson addresses sorme topical questions
from our shareholders

Has investor appetite forthe
sector continued?

Rl Furpose built student

accommodation continued to
attract high levels of investment in 2016
at £3.25 bilion, albeit at slightty lower
levels than seen in 2015 at £5.5 bilion,
Transaction volumes have remained
healihy, supporting cumrent valuations,
with arange of buyers in the market. This
continued interest reflects the defensive
nature of the asset class and atractive
rental growth outlook.

o) Are you sewing fulure development
opporiuntties given the levels of new
supply coming onlo the market?
There is still strong demand for
affordable, well-located and

high quality accommodation n
leading University fowns and cities.
Dur development pipeline of 7000 beds
spanning untll 2019 15 progressing well.
We continue to monitor the market for
devalopment opportunities that aren
iine with our target returns for regional
development, focusing on high to
mig-ranked Universities in towns and
cities which we expect will see the
strongest growth.

Q Do you envisage the London market
for development opening up?
Pl We are starting to see signs that
opportunities May re-emerge in
London. However, returns on potential
new projects in London rermain below
our hurdle rate due, principally to
excessive planning levies and higher
alternatlive use walues for prospective
sites. We monitor the market closely
and remoin alive 10 future opporiunities.
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PROPERTY REVIEW

CONTINUED

EPRA NAV growth
EPRA NAV per share increased by 12% to

444 pence at 31 December 2016, up from
579 pence at 31 December 2015. n total,

EPRA net assets wera £1,557 million at

I December 2014, up from £1,394 million

a yeaor eorlier.

. Looking forward, cur portfolio is wel placed

fo defver Oontinued value growth, Our

focus on the strongest University locations
underpins rental growth prospects andwe |
will continue to deliver meoningful upside
from owr denvaloprment activity. In fotad, our
secuned pipeine is expecied to deliver

43 pence per shore of NAY uphft and

» Capital expenditure on developmaents
of £146 million and £12 million on
investment assets relafing to
refurbishment and LED instaliations
Disposais of £114 million

>
| ¥ Valuation increases of £136 miliion on

the investrment and development
portfolios, with like-for-ike rental growth

Tre main foctors behind the 67 pence per 13 pence of eamings per share of 3.8% being generated on the
share growth in EPRA NAY per share were: | Once completed. stabilsed portfolio
¥ Increcsed share of USAF of £32 million,
» The growth in the value of the Greup's | Property portfolio as a resutt of the performance fee
share of investment assets (+34 pence),  The valuation of our property portfolio at eamed in 2615.
as a result of renlal growth {+26 pence) 31 December 2014, inchuding our share of
and yield comprassion [+8 pence) gross assels held in USAF and joint ventures,
> The volue added to the developrment was £2,277 million (31 December 2015;
portiolio (+21 pence) £2.065 million). The E212 milion increqase
» EPRA earnings for the period (+25 pence] | in portfolio value (Unite share) was
» Dividends poid of 14 pence attributable to:
reduced NAV.
Summary balance sheet
0% 015
Wholly Share of Whaoly Share of
ownrd Fund/Iv Tolal Owred Fund/Fy Toral
tm tm tm £m £m £m
Rental properties 1,062 1.023 2,085 1,024 81 1.835
Properties under developrment 145 7 192 = 80 230
1247 1,030 2277 1174 891 2065
Adjusted net debt (432) (344) (778) (448) (783) 1731)
Other assets/{liabilities) 5 (14) {29) {3) (18) (23}
Convertiblke bond 85 - 85 83 - g3
EPRA net assets 885 472 1,587 804 5%0 1,394

* A reconciiation of the IFRS balkonce sheet 1o EPRA net assels is set out in section 2.2 of the financiol stalements

The proportion of our property portfolio that s income generating is 92%, up from 89% at Cecember 2015, with 8% now under
development. With the completion of the LSAV development pipeiing, the majority of development activity relates to wholty-owned
assets. We will continue to manage the development weighting of our balance sheet and expect it toremain at around these
levels, well within our intemal cap of 20% going forward.
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Unite investment porifolio anatysis at 31 December 20146

whally Untie
USAF owe nscd Lexcese Tobal showe
London vaolue [£m) a5 465 425 - 1.741 68
Beds 2014 5,861 1,989 240 10,124 ATR
Maijor provinciol value [£m) 1,584 44 440 - 2,048 826
Beds 20,456 331 5914 2.577 29,478 0%
Provincial vaive [£m) K72} - 197 - 519 m
Beds 4,804 — 3,253 1,059 9114 13%
Total Value [£rm) 2,257 1.009 1.041 - 4,327 2,085
Beds 27,474 6,192 11,156 3895 48,718 100%
Unite ownership share 23% 50% 100% -
Unite ownership (Em) 519 505 1,061 - 2,085

The investment portfolio (see-thmough} i spiit between Londan [47% and the rest of the UK [53%), broadly in ine with previous years,
The regional focus of our development pipeline means that the London weighting is kel to foll to around 35% as the portfolio is built out.

Student accommodation yields
The level of transactions in the student
accommodation sector has remained
high in 2016 following the unprecedented
levels seen in 2015, with over £3 billion of
assats troding during the year. The majority
of buyers have been supporied by global
institlutional capital. An element of
wnceriainty in the few months following
the EU referendum in June was repioced
with confidence in the market with a high
volume of portfolics and Qssets trading

in the second half of the year.

As aresult of the investor oppetite and
subsequent fransactions. there has been
a modest level of yiekd cormpression
across the sector. This yield compression
has been reflected in our portfolic and
the average yield {on a see-through
basis) at 31 Decamber 2016 was 5.45%,
an inword movement of nine basis

paints over the year.

tndicative valuvation yields

_ 3IDec Nt 31 Dec 2015
London 45-50% 45525%
Prime provinciol 5.28-575%  5.3558%
Provincial 6.0-4.5% 6,0-6.5%

Development activity
Development activity continues to be

a significant driver of growth in NAV and
future eamings. We are continuing to see
opportunities o selectively secure sites
for delivery in 2019 and 2020 in strong
regional locations alongside high-quality
Universities within our target mange

of 8.0-8.5% yield on cost. Returns on
potential new projects in London still
remain below our hurdie rate of 7.0%

due principally to higher alternotive

use values for prospective sites and
plonning levies, and we have not seen
the camection in land prices that were
anficipated following the EU referendum.

2016 and 2017 compiletions

We compieted five schemes during 2014
in line with budget and programme. Over
70% of these beds are let to Universities
under nominations agreements for the
2016/17 acodemic year, with an average

. duration of 10 yeors.

The 2017 pipeline is progressing wel.

We are on track 1o deliver three wholly-
owned schemaes in Edinburgh, Liverpool
and Caveniry and, in USAF, two forward
funded developments in Oxford and
Edinbuyrgh, adding a total of 2,200 beds.
We expact all of the schernes to be fully

- et for the 2017/18 academic year.

Reglonol deveiopment pipeline

During the year, we have continued to
grow our 2018 and 2019 regional pipeline
and have now secured a total of eight
schemes which are expecied to deliver
approximately 4,800 beds in additicn

to our ongoing 2017 projects. All new
regional developments are being
undertaken wholly cn baiance sheet
and prospective returns for the secured
pipefine are very atiractive at an average
8.5% yleld on cost.

Planning is now in pkace on ali of the
schemes in the pipeline [with the
excaption of the Old BRI site in Bristol
which & expacted to receive consent
in the first half of 2017}, During the year,
we have reorgonised the phasing

of deliveries in 2018 ond 2019, with
Aberdeen and Bristol baing pushed
back fo 2019 and Birmingham ond
Sheffield occelerated 1o 2018, This wilt
ensure a bakinced level of activity
across the two yvears.
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PROPERTY REVIEW
CONTINUED

Secured developmaent pipeline (wholly owned)

Totad Totor Forecust
complaiod development Cooex n Capex Foreoost NAY ymakd
Sacired bacs v e cosfs peroa TN N ARG off coxt
No £m £m £m m &m %
2017 completions
St Leonards Edinburgh 581 64 41 i5 13 g 9.5%
Millenniurn Point Coventry | 34 24 12 12 4 88%
Tara House Liverpoo! 776 45 46 24 13 [ 9.3%
2018 completions
Newgate Street Newcastie 575 44 37 7 fal 8 8.5%
BrunelHouse  GBrstol 232 8 21 ) 10 5 85%
Chaucer House Portsmouth 484 4} k) —6 26 & 8.0%
StVincent's Sheffield 545 45 s v T3 W 8xm
IntetnationaiHouse  Birmingham 586 48 B 1 7 8.0%
201% completions
Skelhorne Liverpool 1,085 e 73 14 0 16 8.0%
Oid BRI Bristol 706 93 74 2 58 7.4 8.4%
ronstiution Street Aberdean 400 54 40 o} 33 7 8.4%
Total (wholty owned) & 541 611 442 83 324 102 5%

' Subject to olotaireng plonrng consent,

Secvured forward fund pipeline (USAF)
USAF has secured two assets on a forward fund basis in Oxford and Edinburgh. These acaquisitions are consistent with its strategy
to incredse exposure 1o high quality Universities and 1o expand its presence in markets to iake advantage of scoie,

whilst USAF has tully deployed its equity, USAF is making good progress with a simall number of further acquisitions and could
expect to deploy more capital, released from porifolio recycling activities into these opportunities

Securea oornpl::i mw::::rl Caeax Capex Forecas! hAV Forecost
beds VO (=<4 m period rErarng rarmaning ymald on cost
NO. £m £m £m £&m £m %
USAF

2017 compistions
Beech House Oxford 167 23 18 Tl 3 6.3%
Lutton Court Edinburgh 237 33 P 18 9 4 £0%
Total USAF 404 54 47 Fa) 17 7 &1
Unite shore of USAF n/a 13 11 T 4 2 8.1%
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Qur development pipeling remains a source of significant future volue and earnings growth and the taibie below summarises its
potential impact on future NAY and eornings per shore:

IBustative returns oy 2019)

Future Future
NAVDs EPS
Secured regianal projects fwholly owned)] 42 13
Secured USAF projects 1 -
Totat secured pipeline 43 13

Asset disposals

During 2014, £52 million of ossets were sold in third-party tronsactions (Unite share: £46 million). In addition, Unite sold two wholly-
owned assels in Porismouth and Coventry to USAF for a combined 1otal of £88 milion, taking total disposals on a see-through basis
1o £114 million, All of the assets ware sold in line with book value.

Assel glsposais remain an important part of our strategy going forward ta ensure that we afign our portfolio with our strategy to work
with high and mid-ranked Universities. Disposals also pravide the capital to fund further growth in our development pipeline in 2019
and 2020, We remain focused on our capital discipling to balance further growth oppaortunities with our leverage fargets and
expect o make around £150-200 million [Unite share] of disposals in 2017. In February 2017, we exchanged contracts to sell o
regional portfalio of 4,175 beds for £295 million {Unite share £102 million) in line with book value.
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Richard Simpson
Graup Proparty Director
22 Fepruary 2017
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Gasford Street, Coveniry

GROUWJING AND
SUSTAINABLE

Our strategic objective

o

Qur consistent strategy continves
to deliver susiginable and growing
eamings underpinned by our
highly accretive development
pipeline, strong University
parinerships and scalable
operational platform, PRISM.
Recurring profits increased

by 24% and our dividend s up

by 20%. We achieved rental
growth of 3.8% increasing
eamings and NAV.

Our high quality portfolic with o wide
range of price points and room sizes,
sector-wading brand and senices contnue
to affract students and 1o delivera
superior experience for students and
universities, driving sustainable income.

PRISM s fully implemented and delivering
improvements to customer service and
demonsiroting efficienciaes of scale.

EARNINGS

Qur net operating income margin is
up to 73% and our improved overhead
efficiency of 40bps is on trock to meet
target of 25-30 basis points by the end
of 2017.

We continue to operate a strong capital
structure maintaining LTV at 35%. Our
cost of debt has reduced to 4.2% and

o net dett 1o EBITDA ratio of 6.5 remains
within aur largeted rangse of & o 7 times,
Qur sirong debt position means we
have iimited refinancing requirements
before 2020.

in Navernber 2016 at a General Meeting
for sharaholkders, the Company's
conversion to Real Estate Investment

Trust [REIT) status wos approved, effective
on | January 2017, strengthening fhe
eomings and dividend focus of the business.

Recycling capilal through assef disposals
remains an important part of our shrategy
to maintain capital dsciplineg and to fund
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Otympic: Way. London

further growth in our 2019 develkypment
pipeline. In total we delivered £125 milion
of asset disposais during the year including
the disposal of two properties to USAF

in Septermber 2014 and the disposal of
Curzon Gateway in Birmingham to HS2
under a compulsory purchase order
agrgement in July 2016, in line with the
book value of fhe asset.

In May 2016, USAF issued £125 million

of bonds under ifs exisling debt funding
platform established in June 2013, The
praceeds were used 1o repay secured
debf and fo fund further growfh in

the Fund,
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FOCUS ON DELIVERING SUSTAINABLE
GROWTH IN RECURRING PROFITS
AND CASHFLOW

Joe Lister

Chief Financial Officer and
Managing Direcior of People and Communications

QLA

Joe Lister addresses some topical questions from our shareholiders

During the year, the Group
ejecied fo be taxed as a RET
with effect from 1 Jonuary 2017.
The election will not change the
core business model of Unite
Students, ond we remain focused
on providing affordable purpose-
buill student accommodation,

E) »rotisaram

JNI REMTs provide o way forinvestors to
access the risks and rewards of
holding property without having to buy
it directly. REITs were intfroduced by the
Government in 2007 with the aim of
supporting investment in UK real estate
and HMRC has supported groups
converting to REITs over the kast ten years.

REIT status means that the Unite Group
is exempt from paying corporation tax
on profits and gains arising from its UK
property rental business. However, it will
still pay corporation tax on income
arising froen any non-property refated
activities such as management fees and
interest income. REIT status has no effect
on VAT, stamp taxes and employment
taxes, and REITs continue to pay these
taxes as normai.

aQ Whaot Is tha impact on

dividend payments?
Nl There are strict conditions set by

HMRC for groups toremain as REITs,

including the requirement to distribute
at teast 90% of their property profits
[as calculated for tax purposes which
may differ to the accounting profit) 1o

sharehoikders, For UK sharehoiders, this
distribution is treated for tax purposes
05 property rental income rather than
dividends, and overseqas shareholders
suffer withholding tax at the basic rate
of tax. The net effect is that the taxation
of property income is moved from

he REIT to the shareholder thereby
aliowing tax efficiency while protecting
the UK Exchequer.

The tax-exermpt property profits that are:
distributed to shoreholders are known
as Property iIncome Distributions {PIDs).

A REIT can also distribute post-tax profits
from its other activities, known as a
Non-Property Income Distributions
{non-PIDs}. Any one distribution from

a RET may be solely PIDs, solely non-PIDs
or amixfyre of the two.,

Inline with REIT conversion the dividend
pay-out ratio will be increased to 75%
of 2017 adjusted EPRA eomings.

Why is Unite Sludents becoming
a RET?

Jll Unite Students holds a large
portioio of student accommodation

and has a strong dividend. Its business
is therefore aready well suited to
becoming aREIT which provides a
tax efficient environment for property
investment groups that meet a dividend
requirement. Conversion to a REIT will
enable Unite to continue with its core
business whilst increasing its investment
in its property porttolic and growing
the return to shareholders. It con do
this without needing fo consicler the

impacts of tax on disposals of capital
assets and while offering an effective tax
transparent environment 1o investors in
relotion to its property income.

As a REIT, Unite is able to atiract a wider
pool of investors, most especioly those
who ana exempt from fax in the UK who wil
no longerindirectly suffier tax at the level of
the group. In addition, the concept of

a REIT s widely understood and valued
by the global investor community,

Q What ks the impact in 2016 for Unite
Bl Shsdents of REIT conversion?

The Group has histonically been

required under International
Accounting Standards fo recognise
a geferred tox liability in respect of
increases fo the market value of its
investment properties. This deferred fax
tiability is not tax that the Group owes,
but instead is an accounting provision
for estimated tax that covld become
payable were the Group to sellits
investment properties in the future
{on the excess of market value over
the amount originaily paid). As a RET,
such gains will be exempt from UK
corporotion tax and hence no provision
for deterred tax is required o be
recognised. The provision at 1 lanuary
2016 has therefore been released during
the yaar. The Group has slill provided for
the potential deferred tax iability relating
to assets that are not exempt as aREIT
{including investments in joint ventures)
ot the balance sheet date where it is
expected that the timing difference wil
give rise to taxable profits as it unwinds.

g
@
[ o}
3
3
Q
=
3]
@

SUBWISIDS |OIDUOULY

LOHDALLOJU IO



42

FINANCIAL REVIEW

CONTINUED

income statement and

profit measures

A tull reconciliation of profit before tax
10 EPRA eornings meaqsures i set out in
summary bekow and in full in section 2
of the financiol statements.

W14 05
tm £m

Adjusted EPRA eamings 413 49.5
EPRA eamings 62.7 413
Valuation gains ond
profit/loss on disposal 1383 32446
Changes in valuation
ofinterest rate swops
and debt break costs {1.0) a3
Minority interest
and tax included
in EPRA earnings 34 22
Profit betore tax 2014 3884
Adjusted EPRA
eqrnings per share 27.7p  23.1p
Baic ecmings pershare 101.3p  164.2p

EPRA eamings of £62.7 million fo

31 Decomber 2014 [2015: £61.3 milion) is
staited after deducting tax charges. share
option costs and abortive/pre-contract
development spend of £5.5 million,

The significant reduction in profit before
tax is primorily the result of o lower level
of unreolised valuation gains of
£136,3 million being recognised in 2016
compared with the £324.4 million
recognised in 2015.

Cashfiow and nef debt

The Operations business generated
£61.3 million of net cashin 2014 (2015:
£40.8 million) and see-through net debt
increased marginaily to £776 million
{2015: £731 million}. The key components
of the moverment in see-thraugh net debt
weyrg the operational cashfiow and the
disposal programme [generating total
Infiows of £175 million) offset by tolal
capital sxpenditure of £158 milion and
dividends paid of £34 millian, in 2017,

wa expect net debt fo increase by

a similar level as copital expenditure

on investment and development activity
wiil enceed anticipated asset disposols.

Dividend

Wo are increasing our dividend pay-out
level o 75% of EPRA eamnings fexcluding
USAF performance fees) and are
recommending a fully covered finol
dividend payment of 12.0 pence per
share (2015: 9.5 pence). making 18.0
pence for the full year {2015: 15.0 pence).
Subject 1o approvel at Unite's Annuai

| General Megeting on 11 May 2017, the
dividend willbe paid on 19 May 2017
to sharehaolkders on the register at Close
of business on 2t Aprit 2017,

Tax and REIT conversion

During the year, the Group elected to
convert to REIT status with effect from

1 January 207. This has resulted in the
release of the provision for deferred

fax on property business assets tolaling
£4].) million os disposols of investment
property, as a REIT, will be exempt from
fax. The remaining deferred tox liability
relating to unrealised goins on joint
ventura investments of £17.2 million, which
are not exempt from tax, exceeds the
deferred tax asset relating o tax adjusted
losses carried forward of £11.8 million.

As the losses con be set against gains as
they arise, the deferred tax asset relating
1o the losses con be recognised in fult
ogoinst defered fax liabilities.

Certain activities, primarity the investrment
management of joint ventures, whilst
expected to fall within the limits of the
balance of business tests, willincur o tax
charge which we expect to be in the
region of £2-3 million per annurn.

Debt financing

During the period, we have maintained
our focus on controlling gearing levels.
extending debt rmaturities and minimising
finoncing costs:

Key debt siatistics (see-through basls)

205 005
Net debt ET76m £731m
Ly U% A5%
Net debtEBITDA
ratic o5 49

1 Average debt
maturity 4.7 yeanrs 5.4 years
Average cost of
debt 42% 4.5%
Propoertion of
investment debtat
fixed rote 100% 0%

The Group's see-through LTV improved

to 34% ot 31 December 2014, from 35%

at the end of 2015 as a result of the value

- growth of the portfolio exceeding the

i increase in nat debt. Wa will continue
o manage our gearing proactively and
intend to maintain our LTV around the
mid-30% level going forward, assuming
curent yields. With greater focus on the
earnings profile of the business. we are
abse now manitaring our net debt to
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EBITDA ratio, which was 6.5 fimes in 2016
and we plan to keep this in line with
current levels going forward.

interest rate hedging

arrangemenis and cost of debt
Our see-through cost of debt hos
reduced to 4,2% (2015: 4.5%) as we have
secured additional debt on our recent
completions and refinancing in USAF ot
historically low levels. The Group has 100%
of its see-through investment debt subject
o a fixed intgrest rate (2015 90%) for an
average term of 4.9 years,

Convertible bond

The Group's £90 million converfitie bond
is due to mature in October 2018. Under
the terms of the bond, earty conversian

of the debt into equity could be friggered
by us from Oclober 2016 onwards i

the shawe price frades over 1.3 fimes

the conversion price for a period of time,
The initial conversion price of £5.10 has
reduced o £4.88 following shore placings
and dividend payments ond therefore
EPRA NAV has been prepared on the
basis that the bond will convert in the
future. This hos resulted in NAY dilution

of 15 pence per share as at 31 December
2016. Conversion would resuit in around

a 4% point raduction in LTV,
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Unite:
Propecy Net Other Nel share
qssets debt assers assets of NAY Total
£m £m £m £m Em ratum Ma'unty Lirute she:
Vehicle
USAF 2.268 714} (51} 1,523 a52 1% Infinite 23%
LSAV 1,009 {354) {15) 640 320 15% 2022 0%
Funds and joint ventures The asset management fees from both

The fable above summarises the key
finoncials for each vehicle.

USAF and LSAV have continued 10
perform wellin 2016, LSAV's totalreturn
is driven by stronger capital growth from
development returns.

USAF currently does not have any
acquisifion capacity following the forward
fund acquisitions and acquisitions from
Unite made in the year, but will cantinue
1o monitor acquisition opportunities
funded by capital recycling.

Feas

During the year, the Group recognised net
fees of £21.9 million {2015: £35.9 million}
from its fund and asset management

activities as follows:

2016 2015

m £m

USAF ;
Asset
management fee 100 8.7
Acquisition fee 0.4 1.8
Net
performance fee 65 202
LSAY
Asset and property
moncgement fee 4.0 33
Development
management fee 1.0 1.9
Totol fees 29 359

* A full breakdown of the net performance
fea 51N note 3.4(c} of the notes to tha
financial statements.

USAF and LSAV have increased Qs a result
of the growth in the portfolios under
management Quring the yeor generated
by acquisitions and valugtion growth.

A total performance fee of £8.1 milion
was earned and will be paid in units
during the first quarter of 2017. The net
fee recognised of £6.5 million is after
deducting £1.1 million, which represents
the Group’s share of the performance
fee paid by USAF and ofter advisory costs
of £0.5 million. The level of the fee is
sensitive o movements in property
valuations and is therefore significantly
lower than in 2015 due to the high level of
vield compression in 2015. After payment
of the fee, our stake in USAF will remain

at 23%.

Joe Lister
Chief Financlal Cfficer
22 Febwruary 2017
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RESPONSIBLE

BUSINESS REVIEW

Up tous

Our ambition s 1o crecte homes
o support the development

of future generations of dynamic
and successful graduates,
equipped to make postiive soclal
and economic contributions.
We have a unique opportunity
to make a voluable contribution
to society by helping our 49,000
students every year io leam,
adopt and develop responsible
living habits. The management
of, and accountabiiity for,
ourimpact on ourworld is
embedded as part of our
day-to-day operations.

UP

uS

# has aways been important fo Unite o act
as aresponsible business, Qur first buildings
were renovations of existing vacont
propertias in Bristol where therg was a lack
of good quality student accommodation.

In 2014 we started work on a new
responsible business strategy, called Up
to uS, addressing the key sustainability
issues offecting our business and supply
chains. Up fo uS is a plan designed

to equip us far o future in which our
refevance to students will depend on our
ability to help them protect their world.

Up to uS will deliver sustainabte value

for our stakeholders and maoke us the
leading sustainable purpose-built
accommodation provider. However,

we want to go further than being the most
sustainabile business in our sector. Further
even than making angeing improvements
o what we do as we grow and the warld
evolves, tiltimately our goalis to use our
business to drive positive social change.
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WE'RE MAKING A POSITIVE
CONTRIBUTION TO OUR PEOPLE,
OUR UNIVERSITIES, OUR STUDENTS
AND THE ENVIRONMENT

Joe Lister

Chief Financial Officer and
Managing Director of People and Communications

Up to u§ underpins our unique business
model to create long-term value through
the effective use of resources and
relationships. It is driven by the same
strategic priorities as our busingss model;
to be the most trusted brand, 1o have the
highest quality portfolio and strongest
copital structure.

Up 1o uS covers four main themes:

Great workplace 45

The environment &6

Sociol impact 48

Trusted pariner 48
Greatl workplace

We want to create an inclusive and
positive workpkace for all of our people.

Highlights and key commiiments

In 2016 we received Investor in People
Gold Aword and our tamget now isto
achieve investor in Peopie Platinum
by 2020,

We investad £110,000 into a programme
for paid interns, supporting current
students fowards employability and
giving our employees opportunities to
work directly with students, gaining
valuable insights into ther worlds.

Qur priorities in this area are:

Divarsity ond inclusion

we believe that inclusivity and diversity
across the organisation is critical to our
continued succeass. Our ermployees are
from rmony different backgrounds and
have diverse experiences, perspectives
ond skills. We aim to have o workforce
that is truly representative of all sections
of society, where each empioyee feels
respected and able o give their best.
Unite Students will promote a culture

of equality and fairness for alland
ensure no person acting on our

behalf shall discriminate in any
situation agoinst another individual

or group, directly or indirectty.

tn 2016 we conducted our first
company-wide Diversity Survey and
the insights provided by this will heip
inform the development of policies
and working practices.

Carser endchment

We have created G comprehensive
range of training courses and
davelopment programmes for our
employees at all levels. These are
focused on technical skills, parsongl
development and managemaent
competences. Cur leadership fromework
inciudes programmes such as Becoming
Q Supervisor, Becoming a Manager and
0 leadership deveiopment programme.

W

The health and welibeing of our
employees Is critical to creating
susiainable performance. In 2016 we

Gender diversity

intfroduced o wellibeing porial on cur
intranet, providing advice ond tips to
encble employees to look affer their
pearsonal health, financial and mental
wellbeing. Creating a cohesive wellbeing
strotegy will be a focus for 2017,

o
a:
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RESPONSIBLE

BUSINESS REVIEW

CONTINUED

Human Rights

Unile believes that human rights are
univarsaland recognises that the U
Guiding Principles on Business and
Human Rights set a standand of conduct
expected of companias. We do our
beast io ensure that everyone involved

or gssociated with our business is
protected, freated fairy and subyect to
our Anti-Bribery aond Corruption Policies,
Health and Safety Policy. ond various HR
palicies including those covering data
protection, disciplinary, performance
manggement, Rexible working,
grievance, leove, equality and diversity,

The environment

Wa wan! to reduce our environmental
impact and encourage responsible
behaviourin our students, employees
and suppliers,

Highlights and commitments

In 2014 we achieved further
improvements across various metrics
including a four starrating from the
Globual Redl Estate Sustainability
Benchmark (GRESB), were placed in the
98th percentile of the FTSE4Good index,
and were rated B for cur climate change
performance by the Carbon Disclosure
Project [CDP). Thase reflect our ongoing
efforts to reduce our confribution to
climate change, and improve our
broader environmental performance.
We were shortisted for the 2014 Energy
Awards and the 2017 EDIE Sustainability
Awards for our behavioural change and
engagement programme.

Our environmental strategy focuses on
four main objectives, which together help
us reduce our three material environmental
impacts: energy and carbon; water; and
resource use and waste.

In 2016 we pledged to develop a
science-based carbon reduction target,
in fine with the Paris Climate Agreemeni
fo limit warming to less than two degrees.
and have been working with the Science

Based Targets Initiative (SBT1) fo set
an ambitious and credible target.

We have also set a range of forgets to
help reduce our other environmental
impacts too:

¥ We signed up fo the intemational
RE100 scheme, committing to buy
100% renewable enerqgy by 2020
We are working to a target of doubling
our energy producthivity by 2032 under
the internationa?! EP100 programme,
meaning we will halve our energy
consumption per bed
We aim to send zero waste to kandfill
from our sifes by 2025
All mew buikdings opening from 2018 on
will achieve o BREEAM “Excelient’ rating
> By 2020 we will aim to effectively
engage 50% of our students every
year with sustainability compaoigns
while living with us.

v

v

v

Sustainable bulidings

Building on our Energy Savings
Opportunity Scheme [ESOS] surveys and
Energy Performance Cerlificate update
in 2015. we are producing individual
action plans for each of our buildings

to identify the fult range of energy and
water efficiency opporiunities. Cver 2017
we will bring this info o coordinatad plan
aiming to deliver significant energy and
water efficiency improvements. As well
as complying with the 2018 minimum
energy efficiency standards and the
2019 ESOS deadline, this will deliver
significant carbon reductions across our
existing estate. Ahead of this we have
continued our ongoing £21 million LED
lighting upgrade, and installed a range
of new ftechnologias to understand how
best to achieve the energy and water
efficiancy improvemenits, During 2014 we
deployed wiraless networked building
controls, installed PV panels and air-scurce
heat pumps, and assessed a range of
other potential technologies including
demand side response and battery
storage. This activity has helped deliver
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a 10% reduction in energy per bed from
2014-2015 ond a 4.8% reduction from
2015-2016.

Susiainabls behaviour

Qur Up ta us Sustainability Engagement
Programme is now in its third year, ond
seeks to defiver lasting changes in
behaviour fowards more environmentally
responsible iving and working habits. We
see this as a unique opportunity fo help
our students odopt endwing sustainable
living habits that stay with them after they
mave on from Unite Students, creating a
legacy of positive environrmental impact.
Aligned with the NUS Green Impact
Awards, the programme uses individual,
local and ngtianal initiatives 1o rraximise
engagement. During the 2015/14
ocodemic year we recryited more than
120 student volunteers 10 help us deliver
a range of activities 10 roise awareness

of suslainable living choices. Going into
2016/17 we lounched our Pledge for
Good compaign which includes
commitments to follow sustainable
behaviours that could deliver more

than 30 tonnes of carbon reduction.

Sustoinable Construction

As well s improving tha existing estate,
we are also committed fo making sure
our new buildings deliver high standards
of energy efficiency ond envircnmental
parformance, and hetp our students
live mora responsibly and sustoinably.
From 2017 onwards all of our new builds
willaim for an ‘Excellent’ rating under
the widely used BREEAM environmental
assessment methodology.

Sustainabie Energy

As well as improving energy efficiency.
we are koking at how best to use
renawable anergy to further mduce
our carbon emissions. Over 2017 we will
be looking af a mange of short and long
tarm options o identify the best way

to use credible renewable energy to
reduce our footprint and deliver wider
business benefits.

Calculation of market based emissions factor for grid electricity supplied under contract

Corbon Dxowde

Supphber's resdual amssons foreach  Resdual Fuel Mocx CO,

fued mac fuel saurce: emEEons

Primary energy source used for generation [N [g/Wh]) {k@/wh]
Coal 16 o9 0.1456
Natural Gas 66 0.39 0.2574
Nuclear 1 0 0
Renewables 14 c 0
Other Fuels i 059 0.0059

Overall emissions factor

D0.4089 kgCOL/Wh
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Corbon
Contribulions
Changevs Change vs
2004 X015 PO yeor 2018 prios yeor
Year end bed numbers 43.037 45,447 5.59% 48,437 T.02%
Carbon contributing bed numbers 39,125 43,084 10.12% 45,924 5.60%
Corbon contributing floor orea [m?) 1.097 06D 1,207,804 10.09% 1,282,018 5.14%
Energy ond water consumplion
2014 15 214
Change vs Change vs
Comumphon  Consumption pnoryear  Consumption pricd yaar
Electricity Absolute (kwh) 11,948911 110,948,791 089% 112,524,053 1.42%
Relative to bed numbers (kWh/bed) 28461314 2575154 -10.00% 2,450,108 -4 86%
Relatfive to floor area (kWh/m?) 102,045 91.860 -9.98% 87.mn A44SR
Naturol gas Absciute (kWhj 23328332 26977762 15.64% 29,075,859 7.78%
Relative to bed numbers (kwh/bed} 596,251 426.162 9.52% 633,09 0.02%
Relative to floor area {kwh/m?) 21.264 22,334 504% 22.680 1.54%
Water Absolute (m?) 1,819,569 2218231 NnN%
Relative fo bed numbers {m*/bed} 42.233 48.300 14.37%
Relative ta floor area
{m/m?) 1.507 1.720 14.85%
Greenhouse gos emissions
2004 x5 k1)
Change vs Chonge v
Consumption Corsumphion ONOr yadr Consamption Prior yeaor
L‘r’:‘:‘s‘s Scope ! Absolute {tonnes COz| 49376 537305 229%  5750.32 7.02%
n.
ons Relative to bed numbers {tornes CO.e/oed)] o1 0.12 11.05% 013 0.40%
Relative fo floor area (kg CO.e/m?) 4.0050 4.4484 11.08% 4.4854 0.83%
Total Scope 2 Absclute lonnes COe) 5602597 5238217 6.50% 4735215 -9.60%
smissions Relative to bed numbers (fonnes COe/bed) 1.43 1.2 B00% 1.03 -1277%
[kocation based) |
Relative to floor area (kg CO.e/m?) 51.06%2 43.3678 -15.08% 34.9354 -14.84%
Iotqi Scope 2 Absolute (tonnes CO-g) 48,488.98 46,997.70 -3.00%
emissions Relative io bag numbers (fonnes COe/bed) 1.13 1.02 -8.38%
{market based) .
Retative to floor areq (kg CO,e/m?) 40,1464 36.45%2 -B.49%
Total Scope Absolute (fonnes CO.e| 60,419,732 57.755.22 -4.41% 5310247 -8.06%
: +2 e:]‘"”'g:’ed] Relative to bed numbers (fonnes CO.a/bed) 1.54 1.34 56.14% 116 -1051%
location S
' Relative to floor areo (kg COe/m?) 55,0742 47.8184 -1317% 41,4270 -13.38%
Total Scope Absolute (tonnes COe) 53.862.03 52,748.02 -20T%
1+2 emissions Reiative fa bed numbers {tonnes COe/bed) 1.25 115 4775
{market basad) .
Relative to floor area (kg CO.e/md} 44,5950 41,1445 -1.74%
Total Scope 3 Absclute {fonnes CO.8) 14,802.20 15,486.29 4,62% 15,4856.29 -1.74%
émissions Relative to bed numbers {fonnes COe/bed) 038 0.36 -4.59% 0.3¢ -7.82%
{location based) .
Relative to floor area (kg COe/m?} 13.4926 128219 -497% 12.0796 -5.719%

+ Scope ) emissions include gos consumplion and business vehicies use.

* Scope 2 smussions molude gric elacingity and heot
* Scope 3 emissions include supply chain emissions such as waler and poper use, business travel, and energy supply Chain emissions (transmission
and distnbution losses and wall-to-tank emissions).

* Location bosed emissions are Colculated using DEFRA 2016 ernissions fociors.
* “perbed" emissions use pro rota bed numbers, taking into account the length of hme the site was under our awnership.

= Market Sased emisslons ore calculated using market based emssions foctor based on supplier's siated residual fuel mix shown below:

g
g
3
§
g
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RESPONSIBLE

BUSINESS REVIEUW

CONTINUED

Scope 1 and 2 emissions have been
cakcukated in ling with the DEFRA
Environmental Reporting Guidelings
2013, DEFRA 2015 ermissions faciors
have been used. except for market
based amissions which hove been
caiculated using an smissions foctor
reflective of our eleciricity supplier's
generation mix as shown below:

Scope 112 CO,e emissions per bed

Scops 142 CC,e emissions per m?

|

More details on our environmental
strategy and impacts are available on
owr webisite and will be updated over
2017 along with mare details of our wider
approach 1o Up to us.

The table on page 47 summarises

our carbon footprint compared to the
previous Iwo years. Although energy
efficiency improved. a 6% increqse in
total bed numbers resulted in an overall
1.4% increqse in electricity consumption.
Gas congurnption also rose by 7.8% due
fo more widespread use of gas in newer
openings compared 1o oider properties
that typically use eleciricity for heating.
Despita this. however, our carbon
footprnt shrank: changes o the DEFRA
carbon emissicns factors in 2014 meant
our combined location-based Scope 1 +
Scope 2 carbon footprint shrank by 8% in
absolute terms, or 10.5% per bed. The
recluction in our gbsolute and per-bed
market-pased Scope 1 + Scope 2 footprint
was 2% and 6.8% respectively, with the
smotier rectuction nere diiven by changes
in our supplier's net generation mix.

Social Impact

Delivering positive impacts to help young
peopie succeed in Higher Educafion
and build sustainabie fives,

Highiights and commiiments

In 2016, we donatad £2 million 1o charities,
inciuding the Unite Foundation and aur
charity of the yeor Sport Relief. Mora than
33% of cur employees volunteered with
local cornmunities,

These are our prioritias:

Cemmunity )

Our students and employees hove o
crucialroie in shaping their cormmunities,
and have a more enriching experience
by being integrated with local residents
and groups. Over the farthcoming years,
we are commitied to doing even more
with our communities through use of our
proparties, giving support fo community
groups and collaborating further with
Universities and students' unions. We want
fo use the research we commission in our
annyal Insight Report to help develop
meaningful engagement with young |
people in the communities we operote

in fo help prepare them for University life.

Chority

Supporting charitable organisations is

at the heart of our values at Unite
Students. We believe we have o unique
opperunity o help raise awareness of
charitable giving to the future generation
of charitable givers, while cho providing

! a great opportunity for engagement

| between our employess, students and
Universities olike. We are cormmitted o
supparting charifalole organisations that
ore aligned to our bysiness. whether this
is through cash orin kind donations.

Volunteearing

Yolunteering provices a briliant basis for
engogement with the locaol communities,
giving valuable resource and axpertise
to organisations to really make o tangible
difference, while aiso developing skills,
team building and increasing maofivation
for those taking part, In just two years,

our employee voluntearing scheme has
achieved more than a 30% participation
rate and we are commitied o continuing
1o grow this in future years, with particular
focus on skils-matched volunteering.
Alongside this, we absolutely recognise
the apporiunity 1o develop student
volunteering cpportunities, While done
on o smal scale curentiy through

our NUS Green Impact scheme, we

are looking to develop this so that

it becornas scalable, providing
opportunities for students whether

they are looking to do this to develop
employability skills, or just to give their
support 1o a great cause.

Trusted pariner

We aim to develop tfrusted and open
reiationships with our investors as well as
Universities ond other stakehoiders who
partner with us. This is fundamental o
our long term sustainability.

Highlights and commitments

In 2016 we were recognised in the
Building Public Trust Awards for our
strategic reporiing. We were alio
awarded Busingss of the Year 2016 by
the Brisiol Post, in our nome city. We ore
committed 1o maintaining the highest
stondards of fransparency and integrity
in aur reporting and our rekationships.

Priorties

> Maintaining high ESG ratings. with

indices such as FISE4Good and GRESB.

In 2016 we raceived a FISE4Good ESG

Rating ICB Supéersecior Relative

Percantiie Score 98, with 100 being

the highest possible. We achieved

Greenstar status for the third

consecutive year, increasing our

2006 score to 71, from 66 in 2015

Building longear lerm commercially

sustainable relationships with our

University pariners and increasing

our Higher Education trust score

» Developing o mote sustainable supply
chain, working with suppliers certified
oy the CIPS Sustainability Index.

~
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Affordability

Unite Students recognises that going

to University now represents a big
investment for students, and their
accommodation needs represent a
significant component of those costs. we
have a responsibility to ensure that the
living environment we offar our students
represents good quality accommodation
at the best possible value formoneay.

To maet the studenis’ needs, we offar

a choice of room types at different price
painis, in purpose built envionments, which
include common spaces and, wherever
passible, g quiet study o, autdoor space
and even a gym. Qur proposition further
differs from traditional Hormes of Multipie
Cccupancy (HMO) properties, where
we believe we represent better value in
a number of key areas. These include not
chamging booking or adminkstration fees.
and offering a range of flexible payment
plans. Qur rents alst include a range of
valye-odded components such as
ali-inclusive utility bills; high-spaed
broadband access; a forinightty cleaning
sarvice for shared spoces; best-in-class
contents insuronce; on-site kaundry service:
24-hour security; a 24-hour haipline service
centre; and discounts with well-known high
street retailers.

For schokars from the most challenging
backgrounds, the Unite Foundation was
established in 2012 ta provide assisiance
o those who might not otherwise be able
ja attend University. Working with 10
Universities across the UK, the Foundation
provides free accommodaotion ond is
currentty supporting 128 active scholars.

-

CREATING AN

ENGAGING
ENVIRONMENT

In setting our rents, we will Continue

to routinely work with Universities’
accommodation services, through
nominations agreements and mone widely,
to ensure that the living environment

we offer our students reprasents the best
possible value for money,

The Unlte Foundation

Unite Students is the founder of and

a major donor to the Unite Foundotion,

a charity that helfps undergraduates who
iack family support, The Foundation
provides its scholars with occommodation
throughout their study years and
applicants are selected by the Universities
o which they apply from the 10 Universities
which part of the Foundation programme.
Established in 2012, the Foundation

has supporied 179 pecpie ta dafe

and currently has 128 active scholiars,

The end of the 2015/16 academic year
saw 18 Foundation scholors groduate.

Unite Sfudents hosted a Foundation
Fundraiser at the Natural History Museurn
in 2014 ta celebrate its 25th anniveriary.
Guests heard from 2016 Foundation
groduate Emily Drew cbout her experience.
Unite Students itself donated o further

£5 million to the Foundation in 2014. The
donation took the form of an investment
in the Unite Studant Accommodation
Fund (USAF] in order to give the
Foundation greater long term security.

Our 2014 Strotegic Report from page
1t page 49 hos beenreviewed and
approved by the Board of Directors on
22 February 2017.

Jow Lister
Chief Anancial Officer
22 Fabruary 2017
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CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTION

TO GOVERNANCE

THE UMITE GROUP PLC ANMUAL RE PORT ANO ALCGUNTS 2014

A GOOD GOVERNANCE
CULTURE SITS AT THE HEART
OF GROWING LONG TERM
SUSTAINABLE EARNINGS

Phil White
Chairman

I'm pleased to present our Corpomte
Governance Report on behalf of the
Board. 2014 has been a busy year. The
Leave vole has led o a dynamic external
market while in pargliel - as we celebrate
Unita’s 25th anniversary - we are seging
amaturing PBSA sechor,

Succession planning and corporate
culture has been o focus in 20146, We had
a change in Chief Executive, with Richard
Smith taking over from Mark Alkan after

17 years with Unite, 10 os CEQ, as well as
the Group converting to ¢ REIT effective

1 Jonuary 2017.

The Boord's governance role hos focused
on the impoct of change in the wider

economy, while ensuring we are prepared
for change in the Higher Education and
PBSA sector, This preparation includes our
substantial investment in technology -
roling out our scalable operating platform
PRISM — a5 well as ensuring our develaprment
pipeling is well funded.

Our governance frarmework is designed
o help us navigate these extemnal and
internal changes. it is imperative the

Beord is able to provide the necessary

oversight and challenge 1o secure the

Group’s long term sustainable success,
building on all we have learnt in our 25
years, and the following pages provide
insight as to how we are doing this.



THE UNITE BROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2918 31

Govemance overview underpinned by the Corporate Govemance Code

Governance framework

QOur governance framework,
underpinned by the Corporate
Governance Code, is designed to
support our strategy and ensure
our long tem sustainable success.
Similar to our risk management
framework (described on

pages 22 to 23}, our govemance
frarmework is driven by an open
and collaborative Board and
broader Unite Students culture,

Leadership

On pages 54 ong 55, we describe the
composition of the Board explaining
their skills and expernence. On pages
57 to &1 we expilain how the Board
operates as an effective boord.
colectively responsible for the
long-term sustainable success of
Unite, the cleor division of responsibilities
of the Board and the role of the
non-executive directors to
constructively chollenge and

Effectivenass

Pages 62 and 63 describe how

our governance framework ensures
the effectiveness of the Board.
Recognising how critical corporate
culture is to effectiveness and
sustainable success. during 2016
our Board evaluation focused on
{among other things) our corporate
culture and governance
leadership. In addition, in a year
when the CEO rale transitioned,

:
8
a
:

creating an environment for develop our strategy. Richard Smith's induction as the

people to have confidence fo incorning CEQ has been critically

challenge the norm. For exampile, important to develop his Chief

we Now consider proceeding with Executive skills and relationships

certain site acquisitions not and ensure g smoath transition.

conditional on plkanning. provided The Nomination Committee

certoin planning risk thresholds are Repon (pages 64 and 65) describes

satisfied. Balow and on the next how we manage our succession

two pages, we describe how planning, cur broader leadership

governance has supported our development, our approgch

strategy during 2016 and how this is 1o diversity and inclusivity and -

linked fo our principal risks. wWe clso how we ensure we have a deep g'

describe our governance priorities talent pipeline. a

for 2017. o
g
o

Shareholider relolions ‘3
Accountabilily Rernuneration and engagement &+

The internal controls and the
Audit Committee Report (pages
66 10 69), together with ourrisk
management fromework and
principairisks (pages 22 to 29],
describe how we ensure g fair,
baknced and understandable
assassment of Unite's position and
prospects, the assessment of our
principal risks and their ciignment
with our strategic objectives and
how we maintdin an appropriate
relationship with Deloitte,

our externad quditors, consistent
with the Code and statutory
requirerments.

The Unite remuneration policy and
implementation chart (page 75)

and Remuneration at a glance

chart [page 76} provide an overview
of this complex areaq. together with
the detailed Remuneration Report
{pages 73 to 95) describing how we
ensure Executive Director remuneration
is designed to promote the laong-term
success of the Company and how we
develop our remuneration policy.

Page 56 describ»as how we engage
with shareholders, which dwring
2016 included a Capital Markets
Day in April, which allowed
investors to see our Coventry
portfolic and development
pipeline and the opportunity to
interact with our digital operating
pilatform. PRISM, and then a second
Capital Markets Day in December
in London demonstrating how
PRISM impraves and sireamlines
our operations. We alse describe

in our Remuneration Report [pages
7310 95) how we have engaged
with shareholders during 2016

on our Remuneration Policy and
executive rermuneration.

UOjoULIJU LBYO
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CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTION

TO GOVERNANCE
CONTINUED

How governance supported our strategy during 20146
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Shrategic Unk o
objeciive BSOS QOVemanCe O Principal Miak 2014 board octivity
Greal service PRISM 26 Reodmore  BoOrdreview of our digitalsirategy.
Oversight on PRISM delvery ond the reloted Marke! rak - supply Ovenight that FRISM dedivers:
:ﬁh;cedbc:sl'o;s\et service and opermating and demand > Arobust booking system
NS,
neY ¥ Animproved and scalable platiorm lor revenue
management and customer engagement
» Enhanced service levels for both Univenities and studants
> Market difterentiation.
30 Read morer Opaerafions review
Allordablity ond volue for money 26 Reodmore  Analss ol the HE accommodation sector and ersuring we
Mariet sk - supply confinue to offer an atfordable and valus for money product.
and demand 2 Read more: Aflcadahlily
Health & Solety 37 Recdmore. |10 Board reviews the satety of our students, visitors and
As we develop our brand through the Operational Bk amployees, as well as contractors ot our davelopmaent sites,
implemeniation of Home lor Success, the risk of —Major heotth & at eoch Board meeting.
g:';:lh 5";:‘?":*‘ dc;:oglng Wn?:::"’h":" safety (HAS)Incidert  HAS Comrrittes, o sub-commillee of Ihe Board. focus o
health £ salely, wellbelng and securlty of the In o propery ara » Fire. our biggest satety sk, and the appoeintment of the
49,000 sludents who moke Unife Students thek  Sveiopment st Avon Fire Authority as our Pdmary Authorfty lead
home Is critical ko the Group's continued success > Gxdemnal safety assurance through the appointment of
and Inusted reputation. the Bntish Safety Council as our new extemal satety oudtor
> Plysical security review of aur properties by WSP Parsons
Brinckerhotl.
79 Read more: HES CommbBtes report
Home for Success 26 Recdmom  Boaidreview of the ongong Implemeniation of the £40 mition
Challenging the substontiol investment m Mome Morket risk - supply Horna lor Success reinvesiment programime, Strategic review
tor Success and how It is tronsiating Info regl ang and demand of the next phase of Home for Success to ensure the Group
mproved cusiomer experences and stronger confinues to defiverimproved custormer experience inan
University reiationships. increasingly compatitive marketplace
39 Reaqd more: Operaiiona review
Brllkant Development pipeiine 28 Read mare: Board ansunad delivery during 2014 of five new developrnents,
properties Boand scrutiny of city and she selection kor new Property/ " representing 3.082 beds on programme and budgeat. 2.000
deveiopments ogainst bockdop of mcreasing Developrant risic of these secured with long term nominatiors.

competifion for the best sites. Governance of
deveiopments/acquisiions 1o ersure they runto
budget and schedula and are oamings accretve

34 Reod more: Property roview

Yield

2016PCs Beds on cost
Staphketan House Bs2 8%
Olympic Way. Wernbloy 99 88%
Gostord Gale, Coveniry 284 90%
Greotham $, Portsmouth a3s 93%
Cousewny View, Aberdeen 9y 98%
Total 3,082 1%
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.

Key
Stralegic Unk to
objective Board's govemance role Principal Risik 2014 boord ocitvity
Brilkant Property dispasok 28 Read more: Board ensuring fusther growih through developrrent activity.
properties Board oversight on akposal - ensuring value Proparty market © During 2016 Jowr schames exchanged ond five planning
obtained and proceeds recycled efficiently. g/ consents. 2.152 beds due or delivery in 201/ and good
cre pragress on our devetopment and funds pipeline,
2 Read mere, Development pipeline
Yieid
207 PCs Bexcs on cost
Devalopmsnhs
St Leonand's Ecinburgh 581 9 5%
Millennium View, Coventry k) a8%
Tara House, Liverpoot 76 ?23%
1,748 ¢.3%
Forword furxis (WSAF)
Beech House, Oxford 174 &0%
Luton Court, Edinburgh 237 6.1%
Tokat 2152
Growing and Caopital sWwuciure 29 Read mors, QOngoing Board review of our Capital Operating Gudelnes.
sustainable Group Board focus on a strong and flexible B Ing risk - Continued locus on iocking In debt ot historically kow retes for
eamings caphtal structure, which can adapt to market Unable fo amange new " debt fociities and forward starting interest swaps for
condiions, and reducing and drversifying the dabt ot axplring debt V7178 DOOWINGS for secuied deveiopment pipefne.
cost of funding. tocMies cannol be Al the end of 2016
replaced or only » Loan-to-volse 4%
alhighcost. > Average costof debt 4.2%.
Adverss inleresl
rate movernenis 40 Read maore. Ananciol review
Tax stralegy/REIT conversion Board review of the Group's tax posifion ond strategy Analysis
Group Board review of fax strategy for of conversion to REIT and why this is right for the Group.
publication in 2017 and our corvensation Qversight of angoing REM conditions and headroom for
o a REH. opergting within the Balanca of Business RE lests.
41 Reod mare’ QA on REIT conversion
2017 governance priorities > Delivery of the development Compliance with UK Corporate
> Graatservice pipeline - fo budget and on fime Govemance Code
Student and University expeciafions —with conlinued focus in fowns During 2016, our governance framework
are constantly increasing. Governance and cities with the strongest was bullt on the UK Corporate

to ensure;

» Continved investment in Home for
Success fransiating into value for
money for pur custormers and
market differentiation

* PRISM, our scalable digital
operaling platform. delivering
improved customer service,
efficiency and thus affordobility,

> Brlliant properies
PBSA sector maturing. Govermnance
fo ensure:

growth prospects
> Portfolio recycling with disposal
proceeds deployed effectively.

> Growing ond sustalncble somings

In the uncerigin world following the
Leave vote, Governance to ensure:

> Asfrong and fiexible capital
structure 1o enable us to adapt
appropriately to market conditions
as the ¢ycle evolves

> Compliance with cngoing REIT
status foliowing conversion on
1 January 2017

Governance Code [the Code). The Code
remained the minimum standard against
which we measurad ourselves during
2016, we complied with all the provisions
in the Code during 2016 and expect to
be fully compliant during 2017. The Code
is published by the Financiol Reporting
Council (FRC} ond is available at
www.fre.org.uk.

Phll White
Chainman of the foard
22 Februgry 2017
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

From left lo righ
Chris S2pojnarowicz. Andrew Jones;

Phil white, Joe Lister, Richand Simpson,

Richard Smith, Elizabeth McMeikon,
Tim Wilson and Manjit Wolstenholme.

Board committes key

N Nomination Committee

A Audit Committee

H Health & Safety Committee
R Remunegration Cornmittee

1 Phil White

Chalman

Chair of Nominafion Committee
Remuneration Cormmitiee

Relevani skills and axperience

Phil was appointed Chairrman in May
2009, The majority of his executive career
was spent in the pubiic fransport sector,
during @ period of dereguiation and
privatisation, He was Chiaf Executive of
National Express Group plc from 1997

fo 2006, leading the business through
cansiderable growth both in the UK and
overseqs, Phil is currently Non-Executive
Chawman of Kier Group pkc and Lockers

plke. and Non-Executive Director of Vp plc.

THE UMITE GROUP FLC AMNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 24156

5
)
2 Richard Smith
Chief Executive Officer

H

Relevant skilis and experience

Richard was gppointed Chiaf Executive
in June 2014, Prior fo this, Richard was
Unite’s Managing Drector of Cperations
from 2011. That MD role invoived Richard
leading the service provided to

our customars, and managing the
maintenance and facilities management
across the Group's portfolio.

Richard joined Unite as Deputy Chief
Financial Officerin 2010. Prior to this he
spent 18 years in the transpart industry,
working in the UK, Eurape, Austrafio and
North America. Richard spent 13 years
at National Exprass Group where he
heid a range of senior finance, strategy
and operotions roles, including Group
Development Director and Chief
Financial Officer, North America.
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3 Joe Lister
Chief Financial Officer and Managing
Director of People and Communicalions

Relevant skilis ond experience

Joe joined Unite in 2002 having qualifed
as a chartered accountant with
PricewaterhouseCoopers. He was
appointed as Chief Finance Officer

in January 2008 having previousty heikd
a variety of roles including Investment
Dvector and Corporate Finance Director.
In addition to the Group's finance
function and investment strategy, Joe is
now also responsible for People and
Communications. Joe is 0 member of
the Council at the University of Essex,

4 Richord Simpson
Group Property Director

Relevant skills and experdence

Richard k Group Property Director and sets
the strategic direction for all aspects of
e property portiolio, oversees the fund
management of Unite's co-investment
vehicles and leads the property
development aclivities. Richard joined
Unite in 2005 and has helkd a variety

of senior roles within the Group. Ha iy

a qualified chartered surveyor and

a fellow of Ihe Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors.

Richard has been a Non-Executive of
CityWest Homes from January 2017,

5 Prolessor Sir Tim Wilson
Non-Executive Direclor
Chair of Health & Safety Cormmitiee

H A R N

Relevont skilis and expedence

Sk Tirn was appointed Knight 8achelor
for services to Higher Education and to
business in the 2011 New Yeor's Honours
list. He 1s o strong advocate of the role
of Universities in econormic development
and is acknowiledged as one of the
leading thinkers in Liniversity business
coliaboration. He s the author of the
government commissioned wilson
Revienw of Business—University
Collcboration, published in March 2012,

Formerly Vice-Chancelior of the
University of Hertfordshire, Tim served

on the Boord of the Higher Education
Funding Council for Englana [HEFCE).
was Deputy Chair of the CBI Innovation,
Science and Technology Committee ond
a frustee of the Council for Industry and
Higher Education [CIHE}, He has extensive
axperience in both UK ond international
Higher Education.

Tirn was appoeinted 1o the Board in 2010,
He holds Honorary Degrees from London
South Bank, Plymouth and Hertfordshire
universities and is currently, as Chairman
of Arden University, @ member of the
Committee of University Chas.

& Manjit Wolstenholme
Senior Indapendent Director
Chair of Audit Commitiee

A R N

Relevant siilis and experience

Manjit qualified as a chartered
accountant with Coopers & Lybrand.
Her background includes roles as Director
and Co-Head of Investment Banking

at Dresdner Kleinwort Wasserstein, and
Partner at Gleacher Shacklock. She is
Chair of Pravident Financial and Senior
Independent Direcior and Chair of the
Remuneration Committee of Future pic
as well as Chair of Caia Group Holdings
and Chair of Audit ot CMC Markets pic.
Manilt was appointed fo the Board

at the end of 2011,

7 Eizabeth McMelkan
Non-Executiva Director
Chair of Remuneration Committee

R A N H

Relevant skifls and expedence

Liz was appointed Non-Executive Drector
in February 2014. $he has significant
exparience in customer-focused
businesses Tesco and Colgate Paimolive,
where she was successful in driving
growth through an understanding

of cusiomer needs and an innovotive
marketing approach.

Lizis Senior Independent Director at

FTSE 250 put group D Wetherspoon
and Chair of the Remuneration
Comrmittee ctf FlyBa plc. She is a Non-
Executive Director ot imporifexport fruit
ond vegetable company, Fresca Group
Ltd, and CH & Co Ltd, g privately-owned
cotering compeany.

In Navember 2012, Liz was appeinted
Chair of Moat Homes Lid, o leading
housing association working in the
Sauth East.

4]

PR e

& Andrew Jones
Non-Executive Director

Relevont 1kills and axperience

Andrew Janes is Chief Executive Officer
of LondonMetric Property, foliowing the
2013 merger of London & Stamford and
Maetric. Andrew was a co-founder of
Metric and Chief Executive Officer since
ils inception in March 2010. Andrew's
previous roles include Executive Director
and Head of Retail at British Land. He
joinad British Land in 2005 following the:
acquisition of Piliar Property where he
was on the rmain Board, with responsitblities
for their retail portfolio and the Hercules
Unit Trust.

Andrew was appointed o the
Board in 2013,

* Chris Szpojnarowicz

Company Secretary
Relevant skis and expedence
Chris was appointed Company Secretary
and Head of Legal in 2013, following
Generol Counsel roles at GE, MTV
Networks and other mulfinationals and
previously an MEA /corporate and
commercial lawyer ot Clifford Chance
ond Baker McKenzie. Chris uses his general
counsel and corporate/commercial legol
expernence to fuse our corporate and risk
governance with our Busineass activily. In
this way, Chris links his Compocny Secretary
and govarnance ieadenship role with that
of Head of Legal.
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SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Board attaches a high pricrity fo
effective communication with shareholders
and with other providers of capital to the
business, and welcomes their views on
the Group's approach to corporate
govaermance. In addition 1o the final and
interim presentations, a series of meestings
* between instinutional shareholders/other
providers of capital and senior
management were held throughout 2015,
The Board is made aware of the views of
major shareholders conceming the
Company through, among other means.
regular analyst and broker briefings, and
surveys of shareholder opinion. That
process wil continue throughout 2017,

During 2014, the Remunerotion
Commitiee conducted a consuliation
with shareholders representing around
two-thirds of the issued share capital,
as well as key UK instifutional investors,
regarding proposed chonges in our
Remuneration Policy

73 Remuneration

The Board. together with its professional
adbvisers, actively analyses the Register of
the Company with a view to ensuring the
long term stability of the Register.

The Company maintgins a corporale
website containing o wide mange of
informaftion of interest to institutional and
private investors. The Company has
fraquent discussions with shareholders on
arange of issues affecting its performance,
both following the Compary's
announcements and in response fo
specific requests. The Company regularly
seeks feedback on the perception of

the Compony amongst its shareholders,
the investor community more broodly
and its stakeholders.

Sava in excaptional cicumstances,

all members of the Board attend the
Company's Annual Genergl Meetings
and shareholders are invited to ask
questions during the meeting and to
meet with Directors priof to. and afier,
the formal proceedings. At the meeting,
the Chairman reviews the Group's
current frading.

The results of the votes at the Annual
Generol Meetings, together with details
of the levet of proxy votes lodged for
each resciution is made available on

a regulatory information service and
on the Company's website at
www.unite-group.co.uk.

155  Notica of the Annuol
General Meeting

Results of 2014 Annual General Meeting

For Aganst

R Voles X Voles

Resolutior cest cost

1 Receive AnnuolReports & Accounts 100.0 0.0
2 Directors’ Remuneration Policy 98.9 1.1
3 Annual Report on Remuneration 99.7 0.3
4 Declore a final dividend 100.0 0.0
5-14  Appeintment of Dractors ?38-99.2 O -63
15 Appoint the auditor 1000 Q00
16 Auditors’ remuneration 100.0 000
17 Appfove performance share plan 983 1.7
18 Approve empioyee share scherme 991 0.9
19 Authority 10 Qllot shares B83.4 11.6
20 Pre-emption rights 98.6 14
84.2 15.8

21 Allow general mee'rings on 14 days’ notice

Investor days

We regularly hold investor days to
profile the lotest developments in

aur business and showcase our new
properties and locations. During
2014, these events included a Capital
Markets Day in Aprit, which aflowed
investors fo see our Coventry
portiolio and development pipeline
and the opporiunity to interact with
our digital operating platiorm, PRISM,
and a second Capital Markets Day in
December in London demonstrating
how PRISM improves and streamliines
our operations, These events allow

us o demoenstrate the breadth and
depth of our management team
who hetp ensure thot Unite Students
continues to evolve.

Shareholders by geograptry

Top 10 sharehoiders
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LEADERSHIP

Corporate culture and
governance leadership

The Board hos uitimate resporsibility to
Unite Students’ sharehoiders for all the
Group's activities and also ¢ broodier
responsibility, extending 10 environmental
and social ssues, recognising that the
Group is home to 49,000 students during
a crucial stage of their personal
deveiapment and with Universities right
across the UK. To discharga this broader
responsibility effectively, the Group needs

to operate in an open, harmonious ond
ansparent manner. One way in which
this is achieved is by ensuring open
communication between the Board and
senior leaders. Yarious members of the
senior leadership tearm reguiarly present
to the Board. During 2016, Unite"s
Cperations Director, Student Experience
Director, Head of Digitol, Area Managers.
Development Director, Funds Director
{representing our various co-investiment
vehicles), University Partnerships Direclor
and Head of Legal & Company Secretary

57

[armong others} presented fo the Boord.
This direct occess to manogement opens
dialogue beyond the board room iself.

Further, with Board meetings located in
cities across the UK. the Board visits our
new developments as well as existing
propertias meeting with our Operations
teams and giving them a grounded insight
to the implementation of our sirategy.

Board structure
~.  Unite Operations
Board H Boord
Untte Property
. Board
Nomination Auvdit Heglth & Safety Remuneration
Committee Commiitee Committee Commitice
Phit White— Chair Maniit Woktenholme Sir Tin Wikson — Chair Elizabeth McMeikan
Ancirew Jones - Chaw Richard Smith = Chalr
Eizabeth MchMekan Eizobath McMelkan Elizabeth McMeikon Andrew lones
Sie Tim Wilson Sir Tim Wilson Phil White Risk Commitise
Manit Wolslenholme Sir Tirn Wikon
Manjt wWoklenholme Chrisicphef
o4 86 78 7 Szpojnarowicz
Nomination Auctt Health & Safety Remunesation {Head of Legaland
Committea Raport Committee Report Commities Report Comrritiee Report Company
Secretary) Chair
The Remuneration Richard Smith
Commitiee Report Joe Lister
15 ICorporated Ny .
into this Corporate Richard Sirmpson
Governance
Staterment

by refarencs.
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LEADERSHIP
CONTINUED

Board operating rhythm - linked
to sirategy and business cvernsight
The Board has an annyal operafing
rhythm with a forward agendo of items
for the forthcoming yeor built around our
three strategic objectives. The Board's
meatings are split between strategy
{these consider the Group's fonger term
strategy having regard to emerging risks
or the: review and approval of specific
investments above certain thresholds)
and routine cperationel, property and
financialupdates (these provide context
for the strategic discussions as well as
governance oversight of in-year activity).

Meetings fake ploce fhrobghouf the UK,
often at Universities in order for Ihe Board

Board operating rhythm

Regular vpdaoles rom the Board
Committees on their activities
and recommenddations

Operationdt, property
and inanclal ypdates

Markast and Higher Education
seclor updates

Strategy and five-year plan

Risk

New development schemes

Training

Review of Group policles

to meet Vice-Chancellors ond learm
about thelr experiences with Unite, their
accommaodafion nequirements more
generally and broader developments in
the Higher Education sector.

The Boand is able to oversee the setting
ond impiementation of the Group's
strategy due fo its fialt management
structure; three members of the Board
are Executive Directors and therefore
acftively involved in the day to day
implementation of the strategy. This
executive pernspective is balonced by five
Non-Executive Directors. including the
Chairrman, who bring a depth and breadth
of experience in senior management,
Higher Education, fingnce, customer
service and real estale.

Seniof leaders are regularty invited fo
attend meetings and present ia the
Board. This provides the Board, and in
particuiar the Non-Executives, with direct
and open access to keaders throughout
the Group and helps inculcate a culture
of openness and directness. In addition,
extemal experts are also invited to
present to the Board {such as University
Vice-Chancellors and property vaivers)
to give the Directors o broader and
independent perspective.,

Details of the number of Board and
Committee meetings held during the
year. and Director ottendance, is
avaikible in the table on page &1.

Ensure that the detailed work performed in the Board Committees
is considered by the Board as a whole

Provide the Board with the necessary information o track the Group's
performonce and chalienge any problems with performance

Ensure the Board is equippead with the most up to date knowledge and

understanding of the indusiry and enviionment we are operating in

Discuss, review and approve our strategy and five-year plan, and track
how we are perforrning ogainst our current strategy and the five-year plan

Review and discuss our principat risks at a Group level and also a review

of our opearational level risks (the Board's operational risk review is 1o verify
that risks have been properly identified and that oppropriate risk mitigation
plkans are being correctly managed with clear actions and ownership)

Review and challenge new development schemes being recommended
by management and, due to the significant capital expenditure

invotved and key strafegic decisions required, approve these new
development schemes

A raview ol the Board's training needs and also to ensure that the Board
is up fo date on key kegQ! and regulatory changes. During 2016, training
was conducted on how we are using technology and social media in
the business Qs well as govemance training on various topics, ncluding
the Market Abuse Regukations

Review of key Group policies, such as the Anti-Bribery Policy, 1o ensure
they are appropriate and implemented effectively
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Board acfivity and annual programme
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February [ 2 =00 BEs® niE e Y )
Corporate Post completion Property — approval  Preiminary resylts Tregsury
rasponsibifity and review - review of kand acqushion Policy review
Home forSuccess  oF 2015 property in Liverpool

complefions
March o
m Nominations
Committee
—SUCCEsSion
pkanning
April ] & a
El Development Approval of lend Traimng: Morket
pipeine acquisition Abuse Reguiations
irt Birmingham
and canstruction
conlractsin
Portamouth
May a1 B 2e Ee -
m Unite Foundation Intema oudit plon Assess oudhiors Review intermal H & S Committee
6 0 controks
PRISM workshop 2e¢
Principal
risks review
June & (-} a L
m rAaTkel Teview Half-yeor ACQuistion adophng
valuation opportunities new Inside
preview ~approval of Information
land acquisition Policy and Share
1 Sheffield Dealing Policy

Jvly n ¢

m ntenmresults

September & - ° . &

Strategic Plon Board evalyation USAF/LSAV/wholly Tax rewew and H & S Committee
and totent review owned portfolio REIT conversion
& review
Novembaer Y | F Y] ° B W . »
m Principal risks review 2017 budget Sales cycie Capital opesating  REM Circular
themes revigw guidelines review  approved

December ' aE -] LI L ]

m Customer Apprave Prospecive Whistleblowing Training; Corporate  H & S Commitiee
safisfaction 2017 budgel year end out-tum raview Govemnance

G

Anti-bripery review

& Strategy

Finoncal and rsk ‘th‘

monagemeant

QOperationat

h Commercial

Investor reiations é Governanos:

Digetal
Workshop

1 Great sandcea Briliant plonerﬂeso Growing and sustolnabie earmngs * No board activity in January, August and October
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LEADERSHIP

CONTINUED

Compaosifion and appointments | n cccordance with the requirements of

The compaosition of the Board during 2016« the Code, each of the cument Directors

is set out in the table on page 57, offers themsetves for re-election of the
Annual General Meeting 1o be convened
on 11 May 2017, Brief biogrophies of all the
Directors ore set out on pages 54 and 535,

. Folkswing the individual performance

| evoluations of each of the Non-Executive

Directors seaking re-election, itis

confirmed thal the performance of each

of these Non-Executive Directors

" continues o be effective. They each

demonstrate commitment 1o the role.

and add value and relevont experience

to the Board.

The Board cufrantly consists of the
Chaoirman, three Executive Directors and
four Mon-Execytive Directors.

Board composiion

Rale Description

THE UNITE GROUP PLC AMNUAL REPORT AND ACCTIINTS 2014

Roles

The Group's terms of reference for the
Chairmon and the Chief Exacutive
cleorty establish the division of
responsibility between the two roles.
Summaries of those roles, and thot of the
Senior iIndependeant Director, are set out
in the table below.

Chairman Phit white's principal responsibilities are:

% Ta establish, in conjunction with the Chief Executive, the strategic objectives ot the

Group. for opproval by the 8ourd
> To organise the business of the Board

» To enhonce the stonding of the Company by communicating with shareholders.
the financial community and the Group's stakeholders generally

Chief Executive Richard Smith has responsibility for:

» Establishing, in conjunction with the Chairman, the strategic obiectives of the Group.

for approval by the Board

> Implementing the Group's business plan and annual budget
> The ovenail operational and financial performance of the Group

Senior Independent Dractor

>
4

As Senior Independent Director, Manjit Wolstenholme's principal responsibilities are to:

Act gs Chair of the Board if the Chalman s conflicted
Act as a conduit to the Board for the communication of shareholder concerns if

cther channels of communication are inappropriate

>

Ensure thot the Chaiman is provided with effective feedpock on his performance

¥ Approving major investments,
ocquisitions. mergers and divesiments
Approving major deveioprment schemes
Approving appointments to and
dismissals from the Board

Reviewing systems of internal controt

and risk management

Responsibility and deliegation
A schedule of specific matters is reserved
for the Board, Those include:

> Approving the strategic objectives of
the Group and the business plon to
achieve those objectivas

> Approving policies rekating to
Directors’ remuneration.

' These fopics are scheduled as part of the
board's annual operating rhythm and
forward agenda or brought lo the Board
on on ad hoc basis, as and when this
is necessary.
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Board and Commiitee altendance at meetings in 2014

&1

Date of Heaith B,
Lurrent Appontroent Audit  Remuneraton Naminahon Satety
Dyeciors Status 1o 1he Boara Board Committes Committee Comrmittoe Commrise
Phil White Chgirman 21.001.09 9 N/A 5 2 N/A
Sir Tirn Wison Independent 0L12.10 K 4 5 2 3
Manjit Wolstenholme Independent oLz 9 4 5 2 N/A
Andrew Jones Independent 01.0213 9 N/A 5 2 N/A
Elzabeth MCcMeikan Independent 01.02.14 9 4 5 2 3
Jjoe Lister Executive 02.01.08 9 N/A N/A N/A NfA
Richard Simpson Executive 01.0112 9 N/A N/A NfA N/A
Richard Smith Executive 01.01.12 ? N/A N/A N/A 3
Resigned during the year
Mark Allan
Resigned 31.05.16 Executive 17.11.03 4/4 N/A N/A NFA 0
Patrick Dempsey
Resigned 31.08.16 Independent 01.03.16 4/4 2/2 2/2 171 14
Board Commitiees The graph below shows the curent Prolessional advice
The Board has delegated cerigin balanca of tenure of the Non-Executive and Board support

responsibilities o its Committees, as
detaied on the following pages. The
terms of reference for each Committee
are reviewed annuaglly and the current
varsions are available on the Company’s
website at www.unite-group.co.uk. The
current membership of each Committee
of the Board is set out in the chart on

page 57.

Board tenure

Each of the Executive Directors has a roling
coniract of employment with g 12 month
notice period, while Non-Executive
Directors are, subject to re-election by
sharehoiders, appointed to the Board for
a term of cpproximately three years. In
accordance with the recommendations
of the Code, the Directors wilt cll retire

at the Annuol General Meeting and wil
submit themselves for re-election by
sharehoidears.

Oirectors, including the Chairman,

Board lenure

Directors are given access to
independent professionai advice at the
Company’s expense when the Directors
deem it necessary in orger for them to
carry out ther rasponsibilities. The Directors
akso have regular dialogue with, and
direct access to. the advice and services
of the Company Secretary who ensures
that Board processes and corporate
governance practices are followed.

Insurance

The Company maintains Directors and
Officers liability insurance, which is
renewed on an annual basis.
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EFFECTIVENESS

induction

On appointment to the Board,
each Director takes partin a
comprehensive and perscnalised
induction programme covering:

» The business and gperations of the

Group and the Higher Education

sector: the role of the Board and

matters reserved for its decisions; the

terms of reference and membership

of Board Commitiees; and powers

delegated to those Committees

The Group's corporate govemance

practices and progedures and the latest

financialinforrnation about the Group

> Ther lagal and ragulatory responsibilifies
as a Director and, specificolly, as o
Director of o fisted company.

v

As part of the induction program, each
Director also visits key locations o see our
business operations and propertfies first
hand and the Higher EQucation institutions
wa pariner with. Also, they meet with key
senior execulives so from the outset they
have access to managers throughout the
organisgtion to help them form their own
independent views on the Group and its
performance, and the Higher Education
sector we operate in.in addition. they
are given the ocpporfunity to meot

with represeniatives of the Company’s
key advisars.

This induction is aiso supplemenied with
ongoing training throughout the year ta
ensure the Board are kept up to date with
key legal, reguictory ond industry updates.

Richard Smith's CEO induction
Following Richard Smith's oppointment
as CEQ, aspecific induction pian was
developed. Richard already had
considerable experience with the
Company, but o plan was devised to
reflect his new role s CEO. This included
meefing with various stakehoiders in this
new role as weh s building o development
plan to help ensure Richard's transition
into his new role.
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2016 evalugtion key themes
Corporate culture and
govermnance leadership:

This year, we expanded our Board
evalyation fo ask seorching questions
about our corporate culture and
governance leadership (see questions
set below] using the learnings from the
FRC raport, Corporate Culture and the
Role of Boards. The output was very
encouraging, with a consensus that
we have q positive and coherent
corporate culture with strong
governance keadership. We plan fo
build on this for 2007, using our Home:
for Success brand architecture and
ways of warking 1o develop KPIs to
help measure performance.

Collaborative team:

The Board and its Committess opesole
035 g collaborative team, balancing
their collective responsitifity
approprictely. Comments across

the Executive Directors and
Non-Executive Directors were

broadly similar, indicating no real
outiers or divergence of views,

Quesfions in Board Evaludiion focusing on corporaie culfure and govemance leadership

Does the Board have clear ogreement on ils role in shaping, embedding and overseeing the Group’s corporate cutture?

Does the Board devote sufficient time and resowrces to evaluating govemance leadership?

Does the Board have visiity over KPis which measure cosporate value arsing from Unite Students’ trand and reputation?

Are the Execulive Directors aligned in Unite Students” purpose and values?

is the brooder leadership teom aligned with Unite Students' purpose and values?

Do the Nor-Execufive Directors have appropriate ine of sight access to the business$

Does the Company Sacretary provide independent and transparent acivice and guidance on corporate govemanae matters?

Does Unite Students enjoy a high level of tust within its investor base, with a positive say/do rafio?

Does Unite Students enjoy a high level of nust within ifs wider stakeholder base. with & positive say/do rafio?
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Performance evaluation

Each year the Board, its Commitiees

ond Directors are evaiuated considering
{among other things) the bakance of
skills, experience, independence and
knowledge on the Board, its diversity
{inciuding gendert. how it works fogether
as a unit and other factors relevont to

its effectiveness.

During 2016, this Board evaluation
specifically explored our corporate
culture and governance leadership.

The key learnings from the FRC 'srecent
report, Comporate Culture and the Role

of Baards, wene used as the basis for this.
In addition. the eévaluation considered
the behaviours and processes of the
Boord, its Committees and each member
of the Board, ingluding the Chairman.

The Company's policy i to conduct an
externglly faclitated evaluation every
third year. During 2014, the evaluation
was conductaed internally. The previous
external evaluation was 2014 and the
next externgl evaluation is expected

to be during 2017,

The 2014 evaluation took the form of a
questionnaire asking searching questions
of the Board and Committees. This wos
conducted on an anonymous basis - to
encourage fronk and direct feedback
- and the results then collated by the
Company Secretfary and shared with
ihe Group Board and each Committee.
In addition, the recommended acticns
from the 2015 evaluation were reviewed
to determine progress against them,

Chairman and

Non-Executive Directors

The Board considers each of its four
Non-Executive Direciors to be
independeant, Accondingly, the Company
meets the nequrement of the Code in
relation to members of the FTSE 250 that
at least haif of the Boord (excluding the
Chairman, is made up of independent
Non-Executive Directors. In aadition,
Phil White (Chairmaon of the Board)

was considerad independent on his
appointment to that role.

The Chairman and the Non-Executive
Directors constructively challenge ond
help develop proposals on strategy, and
bring strong. independent judgement,
knowledge and experience to the
Boord's defiberations. Non-Executive
Directors are expected to commit
approximately 20 days per annum

to the business of the Group.

The terms and conditions of appointment
of the Non-Executive Directors are
available for inspection at the Company’s
registered office and ot the annual
general meeting.

&3

L T

Training

The Board reviewed their fraining needs
and considerad it imporiant that the
Direciors have a broader perspective
of the digital and technology needs of
the business. This led ta a Digital and
Social Media Workshop for the Board,
demonstrating PRISM and its functionality
and user experience in May 2014. In
addition, the Boand considered 1t
important that the Commitiee Chairs
conlinue to receive relevant functional
training (such as on accounting, UK
Corporate Gavernance Code and
axecutive remuneration reporting
developrmants) and accordingly the
Commitiee Chairs atiend relevant
external serminars, The Board receives
on-going fraining on corporate
govamnance developments, which in 2014
included training on the Market Abuse
Regulation in anficipation of this coming
into effect during 2016,
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Phil White Chairman

Nomination Committee

Chair's overview

Earlier in the report, | explained the Board
changas during the yaor, with Richard
Smith appointed Chief Executive following
Mark Allan's resignation afier 17 years
with Unite, inchuding 10 as Chief Executive.

With succession pianning and lalert
development a key area of focus for the
Committee over the years, it has been
especially plaasing that this cutminated

in the smoath tansition of the role of the
Chief Executive role with an internal hire.
This focus on succession planning and
talent davelopment has Glso enabled the
exparsion of the roles of our Chief Financial
Officer, Joa Lister, and Managing Director
of Froperty, Richard Simpson. Joe Lister's
ole expanded 10 include People ond
Communications and Richand Simpson’s
o include Heatth and Safety, Procurement
and Asset Management. This has resulted
in the number of Execulive Directors on
the Board reducing from four to three,

This focus on succession planning ond
talent development bas enabled the
Executive Directors to step up, with a
conmesponding stepping up in the seniar
leadership team. On an angoing basis,
the Committee reviews oyr talent pipeline
for future 8card appointments as welt as
reviewing the skills we need in our senior
leadership team. These reviews are
meosured against our three core strategic
objectives. The Committee's focus
extends fo developing high performing
individuals below Board kavel, ensuring

a deep talent pipeline to secure the
Busingss's long term susiainability,

Phil White
Chair— Nomination Committee
22 Febryary 2017

| Commitiee overview

. Composition
The Committee consists enfirely of
Non-Executive Directors. The members of
the Committee are set cut on poge 57 of
the Corporate Governance Statement.
Al the invitation of the Committee,
any other Director or other person may
be invited to attend meatings of the
Committee if considered desiable in

; assisting the Committeg in fulfilling its role.

Role
Thea role of the Committee is for

» Ensure that appropriate procedures
are adopted and followed in the
nomination, setection, training.
evaluation and re-election of Directors
and for succession pianning, with due
regard in all cases to the benefits of
diversity on the Board, inciuding gender

» Regularly review the structure, size,
composition, skills and experience
of the Board and to make
recommendations with regard to any
adjustments considered necessary

> Whan it is ogreed that an appointment
to the Board should be made. lead a
selectian process thal is formal, rigorous
and transparent

> Be responsibile for identifying, reviewing
and recormmending candidates for
appointment to the Board.

Activlties in 2014

Succession planning

Reviewing succession planning ond
ensuring we have a cledar faient pipaine
for future Board appointments — this
considers bath Executive Directors as well
03 the Non-Executive Directors. Specificaily
for 2016, this succession planning led 1o
the appointment of our former MD of
Operations, Richard Smith, as our new
CEO, following Mark Allon's resignotion.

As anintegral part of our executive
succession planning, the Committee
oversees the senior leadership
development programme {part of a
broader skills daveloprment programme)
o ensure we are growing and nurturing
our tolent and developing our high
potential, high pesformers.

THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANMUAL REPORT AND ACODUNTS 2414

Review of Board composition

An ongoaing review of the Board’s
composition to ensure it has the comect
balance of skills. experence, ndependence
and knowledge. The Committee believes
the Board has the correct balance al

the moment, but is conscious of the
developments in digital, technology and
customer experience and reviews this on
an ongoing basis.

Group Board Diversity Policy

We recognise that diversity and inclusivity
ot Board kevel and throughout the Group
is critical component of our long-term
sustainability. We are proud of the diversity
of the Group as 0 whole, an organisation
made up of employees, who ike our
customers, are frorm many different
backgrounds and countries and hove
diverse experiences. perspectives

and skills.

Beyond the Board room and within Unite
Students more generally, we have been
reviewing our approach to diversity and
inclusion during 2016, We recognise this
as a key building block of our people
sirategy and that the UK workforce and
our students are increasingly diverse. To
remain compelitive we need to develop
a diverse and inclusive workptace that
willin tum best reprasent and support our
customers in creating a Home for Success.

During Q3 2014, we conducted an
anonymous survey of our employees,
which has led not only to a greater focus
on female representation at senior levels
within the business but also broader
diversity and inclusion initiafives.
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This is transiating into the following
actions and focus for 2017, being driven
by a senior leadership working group:

> We are widening our recruitment
channets to bring in increased diversity

> We are training all recruiting maonagers
and the resourcing team on
unconscious bias to ensure thaot we are
recruiting the best person for the job

» We are ensuring that oll customer

facing tearns are diverse and

appropriately represantative of our

focal community and our students

We are actively supporting our high

potential fermaie employees

We are ensuring that all leadership

roles have diverse candidates on the

short list

We are actively working with

organisation such as Stonewall and

Business Disability Forum to raise

our awareness

> We are reviewing all HR policies and
procedunes 1o be more inclusive with
reloted line manager fraining

v

v

v

As regards the Board itseff, the Nomination
Committee considared during 2016
whether it wanled to set specific targets
for farnale representation on the Boord.
The Cormmitiee believes the current
focus of diversity and inclusivity shouid

be on the Group as a whole with the
devalopment of a diverse and inclusive
falent pipeline incorporating the initiotives
outiined above. The Committee is not
currently considering setting diversity
fargets for the Board itself believing thisis
not necessarily in the best interests of the
Group ond its stakeholders. but gender
diversity, along with afl other aspects of
diversity and inclusivity, will be considered
along with its more general remit to
consicer the balkance of skills, experience,
independence and knowledge when
reviewing appaointments 1o the Board.
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ACCOUNTABILITY

| intemal control

The Board has overall responsibility for

the Group's system of internal contral.
However, such a system is designed to
achieve businass objectives and can onty
provide reasonable and not absolute
ossurance against material misstatement,

The provisions of the Code in respect of
internal confrols require that Directors
review and monitor all controls including
opermlional, complionce and risk
mancgement, as well as financial
conirol. Through reports from the Boord's
Committess, the Group's Risk Committee
and the Group's Businass Units Boards
[Operations Board and Property Board),
the Board has reviewed the effectiveness
of the Group’s system of inftemal controls
for the period coverad by the Annual
Report and Accounts and has concludead
that such controls were effective
throughout such period.

Further information an the Company's
internal control framewark is set out in
the Audit Committee Report on the
fallowing pages. The Board delegates
certain of its duties, responsibilities and
powers to the Audit Committee, so that
these can receive suitably kxcused
attention, but in so doing the Audit
Cornmittee acts on behalf of the full
Board, and the matters reviewed and
managed by the Audit Committee
remain the responsibility of the Directors
taken as a whole,

Going concem

After making enquiries, the Directors
have a reasonable expectation that the
Group and the Company have adequate
resources o continue in operational
existence for the foreseeabile future.

For this reason, they continue to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing

the accounts,

Risk management

The Board, when setting the strategy,

also determines the nature ang exient

of the principalrisks and its risk appetile

in implementing this strategy, Coch year
the Board reviews the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management systems and
how the Board did this during 2016 is set
out on pages 22 to 25,

Business model
For o description of the Group's busingss
model, see page 5 of the Strategic Report.

Hoda Bajoug

‘§.n
&
:
¢

UOHOULIJU 18O



5

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Manjit Wolstenholme Chairman

Audit Commitiee Chair's overview
During 2014, the Audit Commiltee
confinued ils key oversight role for the
Board with its specific duties as set out

in its terrms of reference ko reassure
sharehoiders that their interests are
properly protected in respect of the
Group's financial manogement

and reporting.

The Audit Committee works to a structured
progromme of activities, with agenda
itarms focused o coincide with key events
in the annual financial reporting cycle.
The Committee reports reguiarly to the
Board on its work,

During the year, tha Committee has
continued fo moniter the integrity of

the Group's financial statements and
supported the Board with its ongoing
monitoring of the Group's risk
management and internal control
systems irt ling with the enhanced
requiremenls under the Corporate
Govarnance Code. The Committee also
determined the focus of the Group's
internal audit activity and reviewed its
findings and verifed that recommendations
were being appropriately implementad.
In addition, recognising the value of an
effective whistlieblowing channel, the
Committee again reviewed ormangements
tor the Group's employees to raise
concems in confidence.

Further 1o the appoiniment of Deloitie

as the Group's cuditors during 2015 and
subsequent to the completion of their first
audit report in February 2016 the Audit
Commitiee undertook a full evaluation
of the audit approach 1© oscertain the
effectiveness of the external audit
function. Further 1o the completion of the
evaluation of the external audit process
we ore sotisfied with both the auditor's
independence and audit approach and
have recommended o the Board thot
they be re-appointed in 2017,

As noted in this Corporate Governance
Statement, the Board dalegates certain
of its duties, responsibilities and powers
to the Audit Committee. so that these
can receive suitably focused attention.
However, the Audit Committee acts on
behalf of the full Board, and the matiers
reviewed ond managed by the
Committee rernain the responsibility

of the Directors as o whole.

Role of the Audit Commiiiee

The Audit Committee has delegated
authority from the Board set out in its
written terms of reference, The terms of
reference for the Audit Commiltee take
into account the requirements of the
Code and ore gvaiable for inspection
at the registerea office and at the
Annual General Meeting, and can

also be found on the Group website

at www.unite-group.co.uk/about-unite/
corporaie-governance.

The key objectives of the Audit
Committee are:

? To provide effective governance and
control over the integrity of the Group’s
fincncial reporting and review significant
financial reporting judgements
To support the Board with its ongoing
monitoring of the effectiveness of the
Group's systarm of internal controls and
risk managemant systems
To monitor the effectiveness of the
Group's internat audit function ond
review its material findings
» To ovarsee tha relationship with the
external guditor, including making
recommendalions to the Board in
relation fo the appoeintmen of the
external quditor and monitoring
the external auditor's objectivity
and independence.

A4

w
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Composition of the

. Audit Commiittee
The members of the Commitiee are

: set out on page 57 of this Corporate

Governance Statement. The Committee
meambers are alt independent Non-
Executives and have been selected with

. the aim of providing the wide range of
financial and commercial expertise

necessary to fulfil the Committee's duties,
The Board considers that 0s a chaortered
accountant | have recent and rekevant
financiai experience. in addition, in
contempiation of a change in the
Corporate Gavernance Code effective
for our next Annual Report, the
Committee considered whether it asa
whole has competence in the stugdent
accommodation sector, Hoving regard
10 the Audit Committee members*
experience in both the Higher Educotion
sector and their experience with Unite,
the Committee belleves it does have the
required compeatence.

Meetings are ottended. by invitation, by
the Chief Financiot Officer, the Deputy
Chief Financial Officer and the Group
Finoncial Controlier.

1 olso invite our external auditor, Deloitte,
o each meeting. The Committes
regularly meets separciely with

Deloitte without cthars being present.

As appropriate, { afso invite our internat
auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC),
1o attend the meetings. Deloitte and PwC
meet independently of management to
ensure alignment. to update on
respective findings and consider the
impact on the relative approaches of
their work,

Committee meelings

The Commiltee meets four times during
the year and attendance at those
meatings i shown on page 61 of this
Corporate Governance Statement.

Main activities of the Committee
during the year

Meetings of the Committee generally
take place just prior to a Group Board
mesting and | repor! fo the Board as parl

. of o separale agendaitem, on the

activity of the Committae and matters of
parficular relevance to the Bcardin the
conduct of their work. At its four meetings
during the year, the Commitiee focused
on the activities described below,
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The Committee reviewed the half year
and annual financial staternents ond
the significant financial reporting
judgemeants. As part of this review, the
Committee supporied the Board by
reviewing the finoncial viability and the
basis for preparing the accounts ona
going concem basis s outiined below.
The Committee also revigwed and
challenged the external auditor's
report on these financial statements.

As discussed above, the effectiveness of
the external oudit funclion was considered
during 2016, subseguent to the tender
and appoeintment process of Dekitte in
May 2015. During the evaluation process
the Committee considerect: the
independence and objectivity of the
external ouditor: the make-up and
quatity of the audit team; the proposed
audit approach and the scope of the
audit; the execution of the audit and
the quality of the audit report to the
shareholders; as well as ultimatety the
fee structure.

The Committee discussed reports from
PwC as the Group's internal guditor on
their audit and assessment of the controt
environment. The Committee reviewead
and proposed areqas of focus for the
internal oudit programme of review
including the approach to ensure that
the internal cudit octivity is aligned to
the principal Group risks.

Financlal reporting

The primary focus of the Committee, in
relation to fimancial reporting in respect of
the yeor ending 31 December 2016, was
to review with both management and
the external auditor the appropriateness
of the half year and annual financial
staternents concentrating on:

> The quality ond acceptability of
accounting policies and practices
> The clarity of the discloswes ahd
compliance with financial reporting
standards and relevant financial ond
governance reparting requirements
3 Materiai areas in which significant
judgemenis have been opplied
or where there has been discussion
with the external auditor
Whether tha Annual Report and
Accounts, foken as o whole, is fak.
balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assass the GOup's
position and performance, business
model and strategy.

v

The Cormmitiee’s assessment of the
Annuol Report 1o ensure that it is fair,
balanced and understandable took info
account the following considerations:

» A review of what fair, balonced and
understandable means for Unite
> The high level of input from the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer with early opportunities for the
Board to review and comment an the
Annual Report
> Ensuring consistency in the reporting
of the Group's performance and
manogement information (as
described on pages 20-21), risk (o5
described on pages 24-29), business
maodel and strategy (as described
on page 5)
A cross-Check between Board minutes
and the Annual Report is undertaken
to ensure that reporting is balanced
» Whether information is presented
in a cleor and concise manner,
ilusirafed by oppropriate KPIs
1o faciitate snareholders' access
o relevant information.

v

To qicd Our review, the Commitiee considers
reports from the Group Financial Controlier
and aiso reports from the external auditor
on the cutcomes of their half year review
and annual audit. As o Committee,

we support Deloitte in displaying the
necessary professional scepticism their
role requires.

Significant issues considered

by the Commiittee

After discussion with both management
and the external auditor, the Committee
determined that the key rsk of missiaterment
of the Group's 2014 financial statements
related to:

» Property valuations
» Joint venture accounting,

Property vaiuations

The Group's principal assets are
investment properties and investment
properties under development that

are either owned on bakince sheet or in
USAF or LSAV. The investment properties
are camied at fair value based on an
appraisal by the Group's external valuers
who camy out the valuations in cccordance
with the RICS Red Book valuation guide,
taking inlo account ransactional
avidence during the vear. The valuation
of property assets involves significant
judgement and changes in the core
assumptions could have a significant
impact on the carying volue of these
assets. Manggement discusses the

57
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underlying perforrmaance of each asset
with the external valuers and provides
detailed performance data to them
including rents, University lease
agreements, cccupancy, property costs
ond costs to complete (for development
properties). Management receaives
detailed reports from the valuers and
parforms o detailed review of the
valuations to ensure that they consider
the voluations to be appropriate. The
valuation report is reviewed by the Chief
Financiat Officer and Managing Director
of Property prior to sign-off.

During the year, the Commitiee ond/or
the Board met with members of the
Group's valuers and challenged them on
the basis of ther valuations ond their core
assumptions, including the yieks for eoch
property, rental growth and forecast costs.

The Committee questioned the external
vahsers on market tnends and transactional
evidence that supports the valuations.
The Committee was satisfied that the
Group's valuers were appropriately
qualified ond provided an independent
assessment of the Group's assets.

The Committee was satisfied that on
appropriate valuation progess had taken
place, the core assumptions used were ~
reasonable and hence the camying
valye of investment and development
properties in the financial statements
was Gppropricte.

The auditor explained their audit
procedures to test the valuation of
investment and development properties
and the Group's disclosures on the
subjact. On the basis of their audit work,
the auditor reported no inconsistencies
or misstaterments that were material in
the context of the financial statements
as a whole.

L] Further analysis and detail
on asset valuations
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPGRT

CONTINUED

Joint venture accounting

Two of Unite's significont assels are its
investments in USAF ond LSAV which the
Group has historically accounted for as
joint ventures.

The Group adopted IFRS 1012 from the
2014 financial yeor end which provides
guidance on how an investor should
account forits intarests in other entities,
including a gefinition of control and
guidance on how fo classify and account
for jointly controlied arangements,
During the year, Management undertook
a detoiled review of its classificotion

for both USAF and LSAY, and following
that analysis conciuded that there had
been no material change in its oniginal
assessment in 2014 thot both USAF and
LSAV should be treated qs joint ventunes,
The Committee considered this and
agreed there was no material change
ond accordingly it wos oppropricle jo
confinue o account for USAF and LSAY
as a joint venture under IFRS 11, with Unile
recording its 23% share of the results and
net assets of USAF as a jeint venture using
equity accounting. ond likewise 50%

for LSAV.

Risk management

The Groug's risk assessment process and
the way in which significant business risks
are managed is O key araa of focus for
the Commitiee.

Qur wark here was driven primariy

by performing an gssessment of the
approach taken by the Group's Risk
Committee, The Risk Committee is
responsible for the delivery of the Group's
risk management framework, which

the Commitiee has gpproved. and the
Group's assessrment of its principal risks
and uncertainties, as set out on pages
221029

The Board also formally reviewed the
Group’s principal risks at two meatings
during the year. Through these raviews,
the Committee considared the risk
rmanagement proceduras within

the business and was satisfied thai

the key Group risks were being
appropriately manoged.

The risk gssessment flogs the importance
of the intemal control ramework to
manoge risk and this forms a separale
areq of review for the Committee,

internal controls

Led by the Group's rsk assessment process,
we reviewed the process by which the
Group evaluated its contfrol envirgnment,
Management is responsiole for esiablishing
and mainaining odequate internat
controls. infernal controls are designed to
provide recsonable assurance regarding
{armong other hings} the reliability of
linancial reporting and the preparation
of the financial statements for external
reporting purposes. A comprehensive
strategic planning, budgeting and
forecasting process is in ploce. Monthly
financiol information and performance
insight is reported to the Board.

The Commitiee’'s work fo review the
effactiveneass of the internal controls was
driven by the Group Financial Confroller's
reports on the effectiveness of internal
conirols, supported by the work of the
ntemal ouditor ond their reports to the
Audit Committee. The feadback rom the
Group's internal auditar on specific areas
of control i tested on o periodic bosls
and they request our external auditor to
provide specific feedback and assessment
of the Group's financial controls

and highlight any areas of weakness,

No significont weaknesses were
identified through the course of the
Committee's reviews.

Intemnal cudit

The Graup engages PwC fo perform
internal audit activity, with this internal
audit function reporting directly to the
Audit Commitiee.

The Commitee considered and approved
the scope of the internal audit activity fo
be underiaken during 2014 and looking
forward on a twelve-moenth basis to
ensure that the internal Qudit approach is
more adaptable to the risk environment.
The Commitiee also discussed and
challenged the outpul from 1he internal
audit reviews undertaken in the prior year
and concluded that the reviews provided
good suppor for statements made by
manogement and thot the control
environment is solid in the areas tested
aver the kast three years.

During the year, PwC focused their internal
audit work on corporaie fox, fund
manogement and revenue manggernent.
All areas of intemnal audit were being
reviewed for the first time in 2016 and
overall PwC concluded that controls
ware well designed and are cperating
effectively. Since PwC {irst reported on
internal controfs in 2011, i was noted that
in each subsequentreporting period
there has been an improvement in the
overall conlrol environment.

External audit

The effectiveness of the exiernal audit
process is faciitaled by appropriate audit
risk identification at the start of the qudit
cycke which we receive from Deloifte

in a detoiled oudit plan, idenfifying their
assessment of these key risks.

For the 2016 financiol year the significant
risks identified were in relation to

the valuation of properfies and the
classification of joint ventures due o the
inherant management judgment required
in these areas. These focus areas were
discussed at the Comrmitieg ond it was
agreed that they should be the principal
areas of focus as they represent the
areas with the greatest tevel of
judgement and moterially impact the
overall performance of the Group.

Thase risks are fracked through the yeor
and we challenged the work done by the
ayditor to test Mmanagement’s assurnptions
and estimates around these areas.

We assess the effectiveness of the qudit
process in oddressing these maotiers
through the reporting we receive from
Deloitte at both the half year and year
end ond ako reports from manogement
on how thesa risks are being addressed.
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For the 2014 finoncial yeor, the Committee
was satisfied that there had been
appropriate focus and challenge on the
primary areas of audit rigk and assessed
thea quality of the audit process ta be
good. we hold private maetings with

the external auditor at each Committee

meeting to pravide odditional opportunity |

for open diglogue ond feedback fram
the Committee and the auditor without
management being prasent. Matters
typically discussed include:

?» The auditor's assessment of business

and financial staterment risks and

rmanagement activity thereof

The tronsparency and openness

of interactions with management,

confiernation that there has been no

restriction in scope placed on them by

management and the independence

of their audit

> How they have exercised professional
scepticism.

v

| also meet with the external lead audit
partner putside the formal Commitiee
process throughout the year.

Independence and exiemal
audit tender

The Committee considers the re-
appaintment of the external auditar,
including the rotation of the audit partner
which is required every five years, each
year and Qo assesses theirindependence
on an ongoing basis. The Group tendered
fhe axternal audit in May 2015 and
appointed Deloitte os the external guditor
followlng a robust review: the 2015 year
end was the first year with Deloifte as the
Group auditors.

The Committee reviewed Deloitte's audit
work and determined that appropricle
pians are in place to camry oul an effactive
and high quality audit. Dsloitte confirmed
to the Commitiee that it maintained
appropriote internal sofeguards to ensure
ifs independencea and objectivity. As part
of the Committee's assessment of the
ongoing independence of the auditor,
the Committee receives details of any
relationships between the Group and
Deloitte thot may hove a bearing on their
ndependence and receives confrrmation
that they are independent of the Group.

As discussed abbove, an assessment of
Deloitie’s effectiveness, its processes,
audit quafity and performance was
undertoken in May 2014 following
completion of the 2015 audit.

During the year, the Company has
complied with the provisions of the
Stotutory Audit Services for Large
Companies Market Investigation
{Mandotory Use of Cornpetitive Tender
Processes and Audit Commitiee
Responsibilities] Order 2014.

Non-audit services

To further safeguard the objectivity and
independance of the external auditor
from becoming compromised, the
Committee has a formal policy governing
the engagement of the external auditor
1o provide non-audit services. No matericl
changes have been made to this policy
during the year, This precludes Deloitle
frorn providing Certain services such

as valuation work or the pravision of
cccounting services,

For certain specific permitted services
(such os reporting accountant activities
and compliance work], the Committae
has pre-approved that Deloitte can be
engaged by management, subject ic
the policies set out above, and subject
to specified fee iimits for individual
engoagements and fea imifs for each
type of specific service. For all other
sarvices, or those permitted services
thot exceed the specified fee limits,

1.as Chairman, or in my absence
another member, can pre-approve
permitted services.

Thioughout 2014, ne fees nave been
poid o the Group's auditor {Deloitte]

for non-audit servicas, During the year,
Deloitte charged the Group £0.3 miliion for
audit services. The Committee approved
the fees for gudit services for 2014 after
areview of the kevel and nature of wark
to be performed. including the impoct of
ocquisitions, and after being satisfied by
Deloitte that the fees were appropriate
for the scope of the work required.

These fees are olso benchmarked against
other listed real estate companies of
comparable size and compiexity.

Commiliee evaluation

The Commitlee’s activites formed part
of the evaluation of Board effectivenass
performed in the year. Details of this
PIOCHss can be found under
‘Parformance evaluation',

Manjit Wolstenholme
Chalt - Audit Committee
22 February 2017
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HEALTH & SAFETY COMMITTEE REPORT

E

their behaviours and prevent fire related
incidents. Security can be a challenge
and an exteamal review has been
underiaken to ensure that strengths and

weaaknassas are identified and appropriate

measures designed and bwilt in fo protect
both student and ernployee alike.

During the yeor, we appointed the British
Safety Council as our new safety auditor.
They are condycting on external review

" of our H&AS Management System to ensure

Sir Tim Wilison Choirman {

Heatth and $alety Commitiee
Chalr's overview

The Health and Safety Committae
ansyres effective governance of the
health, safety and wellbeing of our
employees, customers, contractors

and other visitors fo our properties. Itis
parameount the business recognises that
health and safety does not stand still,
there will always be lassons to learn and
scope for continuous impravernent. lam
committed to ensuring that heolth and
safety s of the heart of everything that
the business does and have visited

a number of cur properties this year.
accomponying the city and heaith ond
safety feams, understanding and seeing
for myself how health and safety i baing
implemented within the business and

a positive cutture s being established.

Unite Students is home to 49,000 students
and their safety, wellbeing and security
is iImperative. We work Closely with
stakeholders including Universities and
emergency sarvices to ensure that health |
and sofety is at the heart of our most
trusted brand. It is recognised that fire

is the bigges) hazard to the operoting
portfolio and tha business is proactive
in its approach to fire safety, sething up
a primary fire authority agreement with
the Avon Fire Authority, which ensures
appropriate agvice and guidance to
our strotegic fire prevention decisions.
A successful fire safety compaign has
been deliverad fo students focusing on
cooking safely. This will directly influence

the appropriate systems and procedures
are devaloped and being implernented.
This provides assurance that the
appropriate checks and measures are
baing caried out.

SIe Tim Wiison
Chalr - Heolth ond Sofety Commitiee
22 Febryary 2017

Committee overview
Composition

> Sir Tim wilson {Chair)

> Elizobeth McMeikan

> Richard Smith

Richord Simpson (Group Property
Director), Steve Batiey [Esiates Director),
Julie Jarvey {Head of Heqlth and Safety)
and Anthany Amold (Construction
Directort regularty attend mestings

of the Commitiee.

Role
The role of the Heaith ond Safety
Commitiee is to:

» Ensure that tha Group's health and
safely policies and procedures are
reviewed annually ond effectively
implementad o ensure legal
requirernents are met as well os striving
for bast practice

> Ensura thot the busingss is awore of
regulotory chonges ond understands
the impact upon the busingss

> Remain updated on performance
ond any mgjor hectth and safety
incidents so as 10 ensure management
identifies and implements appropriate
correciive actions.

!

Activities in 2014

There hove been posilive improvements
throughout the year lo embed the Keep
us Sofe agendo to develop safe ond
healthy employees and customers.

The most trusted brand is ot the forefront
of our minds and our core values are at
the heart of health ond safety:

» We care about the haatth, safety and
wellbeing of our employees and
customers and it is at the heart of
everything we do

> We lead by daveloping robust systerms
and promoling good proctice

? We unite with stokeholders 1o develop
positive engagement

> We deliver by always seeking continuous
improvernent and good proctice.

The H&S Management System (H5G 65)
has baan daveloped and implemenfed
o include robust policies, proceduras
and hazard controts. The scope of the
system is to implement effective policies,
hazand conlnois, heafth and safety
fraining, equipment management,
effective communication, accupational
health provision, ouditing and review,
docurmant control as wel as identifying
where legal complionce i required,

The Group HAS Policy docurnents the
Group's commitment to a safe working
envionment ond ensure the safety of
our ermployees and anyone who may
be offected by our business as wel

s demonstrating compliance with
legisiative requirements, The policy is o
formal mechanism for the adherence
of the principles of the H&S Management
System (HSG 65| and sets out our aims,
details the structure of gur orgonisation
and how we will manage and pramote
our haalth and safety objectives.
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Along with embedding our H&S
Management System through HSG &5,
the key improvements this year have
included:

» The impilementation of regional heaith
and safety committees io ensure
effective consuliation with employees

» A fullreview and update of the
operations risk assessments to ensure
adequate hazard control

> Revised contractor management and
permit to work system o manoge
hazardous work activities

> Improved induction training platform
which encompasses host videos ond
augmented reality lecrning and on
associated hondbook. The videos
focus on driving for work, lone working,
sofety signage, housekeeping/
maintenance haznards such as
chemicals, machinery, asbestos and
parsonal protactive equipment.

There is an interactive gome for
accident, incident and near misses.
The ougmented reality technology

is based on hazard spotting and picks
up key areas of risk that employees are
Ikely fo come across

*» Updaled property mspections with

monthiy city ond quarterty leam checks

as well s additional development

site inspections

Quarterty health and sofety reviews

with all three framework development

contractors which include directors

and health and safety representatives

> Anexiemal audit has also been
undertaken of property development
sites and encompassed the principal
controctor and principal designer

> Unite branding has been introduced

on the development sites to drive the:

message from o client perspective

External benchrivarking of site

inspection scores via Considerate

Construcior Scheme (CC3). and UKCG

» Elevated Unlte health and safety profile

by becoming & ¢lient partner

of the CCS

Implemented a Yellow Card systemn

at the development sites 1o halt works

immediataly if there is significant

concern over health and safety.

v

v

v

Extemal audit

The British Safety Council was appointed
to undertoke a best practice audit of the
H&S Management System [HSG 65) and
its effectiveness. The audit focusexi on kay
areas including: policy and onganisational
responsibilities, strategy ond planning,
implementation and operation,
performance measurement, evoluation
and review, leadership and comrmitment.
It also benchmarked performance
indicators, which formed part of the
evailuation and included: continual
improvement, leadership, stakeholder
engagement, dsk management and
health and wellpging, The HES
Monagement System was awarded a
three-star rating, with o numbser of areas
of good praclice identified as well as
oreas for continuous improvement fo
ctigin best practice and sirive fora
four-star rating naxt year.

The lead auditor was impressed with

the properties. commenting: “If my child
needed student accommodation | would
definitely ensure they stoyed with Unite."

The British Safety Council has also
underiaken an audit for the property
development operations of their principal
cantractors and principal designer, visiting
hree development sites and reviewing
appropriate documentation. As a result
of these audits appropriate stakeholders
are now baing consulted and regular
meetings set up to work together on
oking recommendations forward.

Security

WSP Parson Brinckerhoff undertook

an external security review providing
comprehensive recommendations for
confinuous improvernent. A senior level
steering group Is establishing the strategy
with a clear roadmap for security to be
buiMt into our projects’ design, layout and
customer impact. A business security
consuitant is being appointed 10 take
the lead and provide the necessory
advice and guidance to ensure the
recommendations are taken forword,

n

THE ORGANISATIONAL
CULTURE WITHIN UNITE
STUDENTS AS A
BUSINESS WAS FOUND
TO BE QUTSTANDING, IT
WAS OBVIOUS TO THE
SURVEY TEAM THAT ALL
STAFF THAT REPRESENT
UNITE STUDENTS ARE
COMPLETELY COMMITTED
TO THE ORGANISATION'S
FOUR CORE VALUES, IN
THAT THEY CARE, LEAD,
UNITE AND DELIVER

Security risk review report
WSP Parson 8rinckerhotf

Crisis management qlso forms part of
this work and it is imperative to test our
emeargency preparedness and response
plans and procedures. Hence, an
emergency test took plkace at an
operating property in London. A review
of the exercise has enabled the sharing
of good practice and lessons learnt, fo
drive further improvemenis and build
on the positive engagemaent with the
BIMErgaency services.

Hoday :Bajnug
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HEALTH & SAFETY COMMITTEE REPORT

CONTINUED

FIRE SAFETY

Richard Bobruk joined us in August as
our Primary Fire Authority Lead Fire
Officer (photo above with Alastair
Weston, Health and Safety Manoger
on the left and Richard Bobryk, Avon
Firer ancd Rescuie on the right).

This will drive focus on fire security through:

> Integroting fire strategy decisions into
the development journery

» Fire Safety Management - policies and
procedures, sk assessments, training.
fire records

¥ Maintenance Raegimes - testing ond
planned preventative maintenance

» Specification for new builds and
developments.

We have completed a benchmarking
axercise and produced a fire risk review
which provides clear direction for
designing out risk and suggestions for
fire safety strategies.

The external fire risk assessment
programme is being implemeantad with
a three-year rofing cycle and internai
annual reviews. Clearer risk ratings

have been established with prioritisation
and accounlability.

Mental health and welibeing
Mental health issues are of grave concem
1o ther Higher Education sector and also
o us at Unite, especially since we are
their home while at University. Employees
receive mantal health first aid training

to look for signs and signpos! help. The
student support services teom provides
support 1o empiayees and students

alike and works closely with the University
support feams,

Incidents

Operations

Incidents invotving our employees,
customers or visitors:

> Five reportable injuries (under RIDDOR)
to employees relating to injuring
themsetves following & fall or knock

> 314 mingr {non-reportable) incidents
lemployees 164, cusiomer 125,
contractor 23).

Development

During 2016, there have been four
RIDDOR reportoble incidents and 20
minor incidents in owr development
activity, This performance is within our
Unite Students internal benchmarks —
beqting the indusiry slandord - os foliows:

inclaants P Benchmark
4RIDDOR 023 0.30
20 minor 1.13 500

* XP| calculoted as: No. of ncidents x 100,000

hoursfhours worked
Deveiopment incidents for 2014
Non-
RODOR  reporiable
Projec! HOWS InCidents incidents
Stopleton House 317.024 0 0
Qlympic wWay 345,810 1 1
Greetham st 28,443 a 2
Causewgy End 239,090 1 4
Far Gostord 150,847 0 1
Tara House 238,857 2 2
St Lechards 96,544 0 10
Millennium View 79.515 0 0
BRI Bristol 5,760 0 o
TOTALY 1,766,912 4 20
Priorities for 2017 The focus for continuous improvement by initigting a contractor forum to share

Qur vition for the next three years is
the journey to interdependence with
empowerment m day lc doy health
and safety management at the core
of everything we do.

Qur aimis to ensure the health, sofety
and welbeing of employees, and have
a positive influence on customers

and controctors.

includes: prioritising and progressing

the fire risk review, crisis management,
sacurity review and external audit
recommendations and actions,

Specific topical projects include
bespoke manual handling training and
assessment, integrating wellbeing into the
management system, near miss reporting
campaign and engaging with our
stakeholders on health and safety

good practice, lessons leamt and ensure
the very best controctars work on
our properties,
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ANNUAL STATEMENT OF THE CHAIR OF
THE REMUNERATION REPORT COMMITTEE

Ellzabeth McMelkan Chair

Dear Shareholder,

Cn behailf of the Boord, it is my pleasure
to present the Directors' Remuneration
Report for 2016.

As in prewvious years, this report is splitinto
three sections: this Annual Stalerment, the
Paolicy Report and the Annual Report on
Remuneration. Our Remuneration Policy.
detailed on pages 77 to 83, remains
congistent with that approved by
shareholders ot the 2016 AGM, and

is reproduced in full for both ease of
reference ond in order to provide context
to the decisions taken by the Committee
during the year.

As evidenced earier in this Annual Report,
2016 has been another strong year for
Unite. Financial highlights have included
a 20% increase in adjusted EPRA EPS. a
totatretumn of 15%, further reductions in
see-through LTV, @ three pence increase
in cur annual dividend, and our 3-year
TSR centinuing to out perform the FTSE 350
Redl Estate Index, Operationally, we have
continved o ncrease curnumber of beds,
whiler also maintaining high occupancy
rates, custormer satisfaction levels and
University trust scores. Morg broadly Unite
has continued to deliver against is strategy.
with progress against the three pillars of
delivering great service to students ond
University pariners, operating britliant
bwildings and maintaining high-quality
earnings and a strong capital structure,
aiding our transition to REIT status effective
1 January 2017,

The year also saw a change in the
executive team, with Richard Smith,
formerly Managing Director of
Operations, taking on the Chief Execufive
role further to the departure of Mark
Allan. There were changes oo for our
other Executive Directors, as both Joe
Lister and Richard Simpson tock ona
number of key additional responsibilifies
as part of an overall streamlining of the
axecutive team.

decisions during the yeor reloted fo the
foliowing areqs:

Salaries for Executive Direciors
During the sharehoider consultation

that preceded the 2016 AGM, the
Committee sat out ifs intention of increasing
the salaries of Executive Directors by
between 4% and 9% for 2016, with a further
increQsa for the Managing Directors of
up 10 9% in early 2017. The firs! of these
planned increases was made with effect
from 1 March 2016 for each of Richard
Smith, Joe Lister and Richard Simpson.
Mark Allan received a 2% increase,
consistent with general increases for
employeeas across the Company.

Following Mark's resignation, additional
salary increqses were made {0 the
remdaining Executive Directors with effect
from 1 June 2016, details of which are set
out below.

Changes in leadership

In light of his promotion to CEQ., the
Committee reviewed Richard Smith's
salary agoinst a mnge of factors and
elected loset it at a level of £430,000 per
annum, representing a c.3% reduction to
his predecessor, effective 1 June 2014.

Reflecting the key additional responsibiities
taken on by the other nemaining Executive
Directors. Joe Lister and Richard Simpson,
the Committee reviewed a number

of aiternative approaches for thewr
rermunaration with the ultimate gim

of ensuring that they remain focussed

on delivering Unite's strategy curing o
period of potential instablity. Following
careful consideration of the alternatives
permitted within our rermuneration policy,
and discussions with some of our major
shareholders, the Cornmittee determined
toincrease each of ther base salaries

by ¢.20% to £350,000 and £325.000 per
annum respectively with effect from

1 June 2016.

The rernainder of each Exacutive Direcior's
remuneration package has stayed
consistent with that cutiined in last year's
report, namely eligibility for an annual
bonus ofup to 144% of salary (with personal
objectives updated for new rolas and/or
respansibiiities), LTIP awards of 200% of
satary (made in June 2016) vesting on
Unite's performance over three years
and subject 1o a two-year holding
period, pension contributions of 20% of

. salory and other applicable benefits,
In fight of the above, the Commitiee’skey

Further details of our considerations in
making these changes are set out in the
relevant section on pages 85 and 84,

Annual bonus ovicomes

for the financlal year

Executive Directors will each receive
bonuses of 62.5% of salary {cf. a maximum
of 144% of sakary) in respect of 2016
performance. Overall bonus oulcomes
reflect solid financial performance by the
Group and the individual contributions
made by each of the Executive Directors
over the last year, including significant
progress in their new and exponded roles.

Despite strong performance against
profit targets, the overall bonus outcome
s just beiow target and is some way
below that received in previous years,
which the Committee considers
appropriate in the context of a more
challenging year in terms of broader
business circumstances. Financial
performance was above target under
both the adjusted EPS and net debt to
EBITDA rofio elemants but this was offse?
by total relurn performance being below
torget and a set of strefching customer
satisfaction lorgets set by the Committee
at the start ¢f the year being missed.
Reflecting a fransiticnory period,

and despite a number of notable
achieverments, the Committee assessed
aach of the Executive Directors' individual
performance as ‘on target’, meriting

a 1.0x personal performance multiplier
{cf. the maximum 1.2x multiptier].

Further details, including annual bonus

- largets, outcomes and details of personal

achievaements are included on page 87.
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ANNUAL STATEMENT OF THE CHAIR OF
THE REMUNERATION REPORT COMMITTEE

CONTINUED

Long-term incentives

Executive Directors were each granted
on award under the LTIP in June 2016
based on performance over Ihe three
financial years to 31 December 2018,
These owards wilt vast to the extent that
challenging EPS,. total return and relative

TSR targets are ochieved over the period,

with any award vesting required to be
held for an additional two-yecr period.

Performonce shore aowards made

in April 2014 vested on performance to
31 Dacember 2016, These awards were
similarty based on EPS, Total Return

and TSR outperformance of the FTSE350
Real Estate Super Sector Index. The
Company exceeded maximum targets
for each elament, resulting in 100% of the
original award vesting. The Committee
is satisfied that the implied vesting level
reflects the underlying performance of
the Company and the progress made
over the last three years. Consistent with
the rules of the pian at the time of grant,
thase awards shares will vest in franches
with two-thirds released on the third
anniversary of grant in April 2017, ond
the remaining ong-thind released after
a further year-long holding period.

Overall poy for 2014

The Commitiee is satisfied that overoil
pay outcomes are oppropriate and
reflect Unite's performance across the
various time horizons covered. Fixed pay
levels are competitive but not excessive
when taking into account similar roles at
comparable companies, individual
contributions, experience ond overall

" levels of responsitility. Annual bonus
outcomes refiect a more challenging
financial year, with outcomes below
those achieved in each of the [ast three
cycles, whilst the LTIP - which makes up
the majority of each Executive Director's
singte figure for the year - reflects strong
financial and operatonal performance,
and significant value creation aver the
three-yaar measurament pariod.

Implementation of policy tor 2017
The Committee has reviewed the curment
Remunaration Policy and is confident
that it continues to effectively support
Unite’s short- ond long-term strolegic
objectives and promote management
and shareholder alignment. We are
satisfied also thot the proposed
implementation is appropriate given the
Company's conversion 1o a REIT, which
became aeffective 1 Januory 2017,

Far 2017, the annwal bonus will operate on
the same basis as in previous years, save
for two rminor changes. The non-financial
elemant of the 'corporate’ scorecand,
curently based entirely on customer
safisfaction, wil be supplemented with
University Reputation, with each measure
weighted 12.5%in order lo satisfy the
75125 finoncialfnon-financial split
permitted under our Remuneration Policy.
The inclusion of University Reputation
recognises the equalimportance of
Unite's refationships with Higher Education
partners together with the opinions of owr
student customess directly, and has been
used as one of our operationot KPIs for

a number of years. The other change
redates to the individual parformance
multiplier where it is proposed that the
majority of objectives will be shored
across each of the Execitive Directors in
order o refiect the collaborative ethos

of the executive team. As always, the
Committee will provide refrospective
disciosure on the key achievements

next year in order to allow shareholders
to make an informed vofing decision.

Save for these minor changes, the
implementation of policy for 2017 will

be consistent with that opplied in recent
years. Further details, including proposed
salory and fee increases, are included
on page 0.

Leaver arrangements for

Mark Allan

Mark Allan stepped down as Chief
Executive effective 31 May 2016 and
ceased being a director of the Company
from the same date, remaining employed
in an advisory capactty with the Company
unfil 31 October 2016. For the period

b June 2016 fo 3t Oclober 2014, Mark
confinued fo receive base pay. pension
and other contractual beneafils. He was
not eligitke to parlicipate in the 2016
annual bonus and there was no payment
in fleu of nofice.

Full detaits of how the Committee treated
Mark Allan’s outsionding long-term
incentives are set out in the relevant
section on page %0.

Areas for fulure conskleration
The Commitiee will continue to monitor
market trends throughout 2017 in order
to assess ongoing requirements for the
Company's remuneration practices,
and will consuit with shareholders about
making changes should any significant
departures from best practice arise. We
are mindfut of the continuing debate
around Executive Director remuneration
and of the varlous updates fo shareholder
thinking in this areo, ond while we are
proposing no material changes for 2017,
this is sormething that we will confinue

to take into account as we review the
effectiveness of our arrangements

each year,

Elizabeth McMeikan
Chair of Remuneration Commlitee
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Overview of Unite remuneration policy and implementation

Overvnew of policy

Rermunaration i respect of 2016

Impiemantgtion of pOkcy In 2017

Ajos as0g

> Reviewed from time fo time,
with reference 1o salary levels
for similar roles at comparable
companies, to individuol
cantributicn fo performance;
and fo the experience of
each Executive

> Salaries increased by between 2%
and 9% effective | March 2016

¥ Following roke: changes, sakary of new
CEO, Richond Smith, set at £430,000
effective | June 20146, Sakaries of Joe
Lister and Richard Simpson increased
by ¢.20% o £350.000 and £325,000
respectively from the same date,
reflecfing significant increase in
responsiboilities

» Saiaries increased by 2% effective
1 March 2017, as follows:
> CEO, Richard Smith = £438,600
» CFO, loe Lister = £357.000
> MD Property, Richard Simpson
= £331.500

77 Reod more

85 Read more

91 Read more

SIOUSq "UGISUSY

2> Pension contributions of up to
20% of salkary or an equivalent
cosh allowance

> Benefils typically consist the
provision of a company car
or a car allowance, and
private health care insurance

? Infina with polcy

*» No change to pension contribution
rates or benefits for 2017

77 Reod more

85 Read more

71 Read more

SNUOQ [DNUUY

> Maximum annual bonus
opportunity for all Executive
Directors of 144% of salary

> Perforrmance measures
typically include both
financial ond non-financial
metrics, 0s well as the
achievement of individual
objectives

2> Payments defivered in cash,
except where an individual
has not met their
sharehoiding guidelfines,
inwhich case up
o 50% is deferred in shores
for three years

¥ Malys and clawback
provisions apply

3 Annual bonuses of 62.5% of solary for
each Executive Director [43.4% of
maximum opportunity] based on:
> acorporate scorecard outcarme

of 62.5% of salary (out of 120%)
» Individual performance multipliers
of 1.0x {cf. 1.2x maximum)

% Bonuses to be poid in cash in early 2017

2> Maximum annual bonus opportunitias
to remain gt 144% of salary
> Payments to be determined taking into
consideration a corporate scorecard
based on 75/25 on financial/non-
financial performance, and after
appiying anindividual performance
muttiplier of up to 1,2x
For 2017, the non-financial elerment wil
be supplementad with a measure of
University Reputation; individua!
objectives to be more team focussed

v

8 Reod more

86 Read more

9l Read more

di

¥* Maxirmurn awaend size for alt
Executive Directons of 200% of
sakary In normal crcumstances

» Awards vest subject to
performance overa
three-year period. vested
shares are typically subject
fo an additiona! two-year
holding period

?» Malus and clawback
provisions apply

> 20!4 LTIP vested al 100% based or:
¥ 2016 adjusted EPS of 27.7p vs.
astretch targel of 23.5p
> Total Return over the period 2014-16
of 21.3% p.a. vs. a siretch target of
14.5% p.a.; ond
Relative TSR outperformance of the
FTSE350 Reaql Estate Index of 10% p.a.
vs_ a stretch target of PR p.a.

v

¥ Awards of 200% of salary to be made
to each Executive Director in April 2017

¥ Performence fo be measured over the
period | January 2017 to 31 December
2019 against EPS, totalreturn and
relative TSR

> Two-year holding period will apply
to vested shares

7% Read more

88 Retid more

92 Read more
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ANNUAL STATEMENT OF THE CHAIR OF

THE REMUNERATION REPORT COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

2014 Remuneration at a glance
2014 Single total figure of remuneration for current Executive Directors

Rchord oa Bcharg
Seth Lester Srmpmon
Sakary 359417 322702 298367
Taxable benefits 15,256 15,854 15,236
Pension benefit 60853 55,979 55,404
Annual Bonus 227083 23385 188,802
LTP 528,559 584,742 528,559
Other 8] 0 0
Total 1,191,378 1,182,652 1,084,558
2014 Annual Bonus outcomes
Corporate torgels
“Threshaid’ ‘Tapat’ ‘Sirmtch’
0% % 1007% 120% Vst Coponale
Moaswe Wweignt of salary of satary of sokary of wiary Actuol % sakiry) vesting
Adjusted EPS 25% 247p 257p 27.2p 28.2p 27.7p 27 5%
Total Return per share 25% p B7p 100p 108p 83p 15.0% s2.5%
Net debt to EBTDA rafio 25% 6.5 6.3x 8.0x 58 6.2x 200% )
Customer satisfoction 25% 83 a4 B84 87 80 0%
Overall Cveroll barus autcame
Corporota Parsonat %ol % of
Execulive veshing mutipler sakaxry maxrLmT E
Richarg Smith 1.0x 62.5% 43.4% 227083
Joe Lister 462.5% 1.0x 62.5% 434% 203385
Richard Simpson 1.0x 62.5% 43.4% 188,802
2014-2014 LTIP ovicomes
Targets
Thrashoid Statch Overall
Measure Wengt 25% verst 100% vest Actua % vast % vast
2014 Adjusted EPS 13 18.1p 23.5p 27.7p 100%
Total Return p.a. [2014-2016} 1/3 8.5% 14.5% 21.3% 100% 100%
Inclex Index
Relative TSR outperformonce 173 Index +%¥%pa. +10%pa. 100%
COverdall vesting
Exacuive Overan% vest Interests veshing Date vasiing Eshmatsa valus
Richard Smith 84,566 0 A 2017 (2/3) £528,559
. 10 A
Joe Lister 100% 95,753 10 Al 2018 (173] £584,742

Richard $impson 86,566 £528.559
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DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION POLICY

This report has been prepared in
accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006 and Schedule 8 of
the Large and Medium-sized Companies
and Groups [Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 (as omended). It also
meets the requirements of the UK Listing
Authority's Listing Rules ond the Disclosure
and Transparency Rules.

In accordance with the regulations, the
following sections of the Remuneration
Report are subject o oudit: the single
total figure of remuneration for Directors
and accompanying notes [pages 85

o B8}, scheme interests awarded during
fthe financial year [page 70). payments
to past directors (page 91), payments for
loss of office [page 82) and the stalement
of Directors’ shareholdings and share
interests {poge 80). The remaining sections
of the report are not subject to qudit,

Unite's Remuneration Policy was opproved
by sharehoiders at the 2016 Annual

» References to finoncial years have
been updated where appropriate
Poy for perfkermance scenario
charts have been updated to reflect
2017 salaries /
> Cument Non-Executive Director

appointment expiry dotes have

been updoted ‘
» Section on consideration of shareholder |

views updated to reference consuttation

on pay increases made during the year

to refiecting chonges in responsibilities

b d

In addition 1o *he above, the remuneration
palicy for the Executive Directors and
other senior executives is based on the
following key principles:

1> A significant proportion of

rernuneration should be tied to the
achievement of specific and stretching
performance conditions that align
remunercation with the creation ot
shareholder value and the delivery

of the Group's strategic plan.,

. » Thene should be a focus on sustained

Directors’' Remuneration Policy
The Group aims 1o balance the need ]
to attract, retain and motivate Executive
Directors and other senior executivas of
an appropriate calibre with the nead 1o
be cost effective, while at the same time
rewarding excepfional performance. The
Committee has designed a remuneration
policy that baiances those factors, taking
account of prevailing best practios, investor
expectations and the ievel of remuneration
and pay awards made generally to

long-lerm performance, with
performance measured over clearty
specified timescales. encouraging
executives to fake action in line with
the Group's strategic pkan, using good
business management principles and
taking well considered risks.

» Individuals should be rewarded for
success, but steps should be taken,
within contractual obligations,
to prevent rewards for failure,

Geaneral Meeting. The report below employeess of the Group. This section of the report sets out the Policy
is as disclosed in the 2015 Directors’ for Executive Directors, which shorehokders
Remuneration Report save for o number approved at the 2018 Annual General
of minor changes as foltows: Meeting and which came info effect
from that date.
Paolicy Table
Funclion Cperation Opportunity Performance metncs.
Base salary Base salkaries are reviewed from time to Any base salory increases are applied in None
Torecognise the  time, with reference to sokary levels for fine with the outcomae of the review as part
individual's skills  similkar roles at comparable companias, of which the Committee olso considars
and experience  toindividual contribution to performance; average increases across the Group.
gncc; :2 ;?i:i\ge and to the experiance of eoch executive. i res pect of existing Execy hve Direcfm:s
base reward. it is anticipated that salary increases will
generclly be in line with those of salaried
employees ¢s a whoia. In exceptional
circumnsiances {including, but not limited
to, o material increase in job size or
complexity) the Commitiee has discretion
to moke appropriate adjustments to salory
levels io ensure that they remain market
competitive. This was the case for solary
increases owanded during the course
of 2016.
Pension All executives ane either members of The Executive Direclors receive g pension None
To provide an Unite Group Personal Pension scheme condribution of 20% of salary or an
opportunity for orreceive a cash pension allowonce. equivalent cash allowance,
executives to

build up income
upon retirement,

Salary is the only element of remuneration
that is pensionable.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

Funchon Cpagtion Opporfunity Performance maincs
Benefils Executives receive benefits that consist Benefits vary by roe and individual None
To provide primarity of the provision of a company circumstances; eligiility ond cost is
non-cash car or a car qlowance, gnd private reviewed pericdically.
benefits which heallh care insurance, atthough can . . " .
are competitive  include any such benefits that the Ige C°’“'“'"°: ':*"'"’ ’:‘i‘g;cﬂ'sz”
in the morket in Committee deems oppropriate., > apprave a higher costin « i
which the circumstances (e.g. relocation)
e | or in crcumstances where factors
execulive is . .
employed. outside the company's confral have
changed malerially (e.g. increases
ininsuranNCe premiums).
SAYE An HMRC-approved scherme whereby Savings are capped at the prevailing None

To encourage
the ownership
of shares in Unite.

employees {including Executiva Directors)
may save up to the maximum monthly
savings limit {as determined by prevailing
HMRC guidelines) over a period of three,
Options granted at a 20% discount.

HMRC limit ot the time employees are
invited to participate.

Function Cpertion OpgortJnity Performance malrics
Performance Performance measures, targets and For Executive Performance is assessed on an annual
reloted weightings are set af the start of the year.  Directors, the basis, as measured against specific

annuagl bonus
To incentivise

The scheme has two elements. a ‘corporate’ tonus opportunity is

element and an ‘individual” multipler

meximum annual

objectives set at the start of each year. The
measures typically include both financial

and reward strong 144% of base sakary, and non-financial metrics as well as the
perforrnance alemant. M. the end o_f the year, fh? comprising: achievement of personal objectives.
against financiol Remunerofpn Commitiee determme_s the i . ]
ard non-financict  @xtent fo which targets hove been achieved. > A maximum Corporc‘re measures will be weag‘hted
annualtorge’s,  Bonus payments are delivered in cash oo under appropriatslyeach year gccording rod
fhus delivering unless an individual's shareholding a corporate business pﬂc_m 395. Mecsu_res may include,
value to requirements have not been met, in etement of but are not liemited !o,. adjusted EPS, total
shareholders which case up to 50% of the annual bonus IZ(?'; of salary; ;etgngfw% ::m:,rc"o of r}?ffodgff
andbeing payable lo the relevant Director is safisied ¢ =0 NI o O el e e
corsistentwith by on aocation of shares inthe Company, oo 9 P eaan 10% and SO%. with tho 1
the deliveryof  which are held inits Employee Share D e o rearod e each T0°
the strategic plan.  Gwnershio Trust. warranis a‘ of performance raqum'ed under each
P bonus equivalent  measure calibrated with reference
Awaids under the performance related to 70% of sakary fo Unite's intermal budgets. Financiat

annual bonus are subject 1o malus and
clewback provisions, further details of

> A maximurm
rmultiplier under

measuras willmake uvp at leost 75%
of the lotal opportunity under the

which are included as o note o the the individual corporate element,
i lement of 1.2, e .
policy table. ev:h a rc:r?g; 2 The individual element is based on the
of zero 10 1.2 Commitiee’s assessment of an executive's

For threshold level
performance, the
bonus will bae 50%
of base solary,

personal performance over the course of
the year, as measured by the Performance
Development Programma review.

The Committee has discration to adjust the
forrmuioic bonus outcormes both upwards
{within the plon §mits) and downwands
{including down to 22ro) to ensure aignment
of pay with performance, e.g.. in the event
of one of the tagets under the bonus
being significontly missad or unforeseen
cireumstances outsice of manogement
control. The Committee also considers
medasures outside of the bonus framework
(e.Q. H&S) fo ensure there is no reward

for foilure.

Further details of the measuras, weightings
and targets appiicable are provided on
page 7%, 86 and ?1.
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Function Coaratar

Opportunity

Parformance metnics

e The LTIP comprises a Performance Share
To drive sustained  Plan (PSP) and an Approved Employese

The LTIP provides for
anaward upfoa

Vesting of LTIP awards is subject to
continued employment and performance

long-term Share Option Scheme [ES0S). normal aggregate  against three equally-weighted measures,
rformance . R ) limit of 20 f whi rent] i :
3:“ supoor?s The ESOS is used to delivar a propaortion solor?r foroEre?:ulive ich are cumently as foilows
the creation of the LTIP in a tax-efficient manner, Directors, with an > Adjusted eornings per share [EPS);
of shareholder and is subject to the same performance averol fimit of » Totalreturn (TR} and
value. conditions as owards made under the PSP, 300% of sakary > Rekative total shareholder return (TSR)
Award levels and performance conditions  in exceptional The Committee has the discrefion to adjust
are reviewed before each award cycle circumstances. the performance meaqsures 10 ensure that
fo ensure they remain appropriate and The current intenfion  thay cantinue to be finked to the delivery
no less stretching than the first cycle. is to award each ot Company strategy.
Executive Director
Awards under the UTIP are subject lomalus  qwards equivalent  Under each measure, threshold
and clawback provisions, further details to 200% of saiary. performonce will resultin 25% of
of which are inciuded as anote to the maximum vesting for that element,
policy tabtle. Awaids may include  ising on a straight-iine to full vesting.
o gran of HMRC
approved options Awards made under the LTIP willhave o
not exceeding performance period of ol least three years
£16,000 per annum,  and a minimum vesting period of trree
valued on a foir years. If no entitiement hos been earned at
vatue exchange the end of the relevant performance
{cumently 50-60% period. awards will iIopse. A proportion of
of a PSP award). vested awards may, at the discretion of the
Committee, be subject 10 a mandatory
A payment equat holding pericd following fhe end of a
to the value of {hree-year vesting pericd. The Committee's
dividends which intention is that under future LTIP cycles, oll
would have awards will be required 1o be held foran
accruedonvested  gddifional two-year period post-vesting.
shares will be made
following the As under the Performance Reicted annual
release of Gwards 8onus, the Committee has discretion to
to participants; adjust the formulaic LTIP guicomes to
either in the form ensure afignment of pay with performancs.,
of cash or as Le. fo ensute the oulcome is a true
additional shares. reflection of the performance of
the company.
Details of the targets to be used in future
LTIP grants are included in the Annual
Report on Remuneration,
Notes to the policy table afocus on total retun [also used in financial measures. targets are

The Committee is satisfied that the above
Remuneration Policy isin the best interests
of shareholders and does not promote
exceassive risk-taking.

Performance measure selection
and approach lo target selting
Measures used under the perfermance
reloted onnual bonus and LTIF are
selected annually to reflect the Group's
main short- and long-term objectives and
reflect both financial and non-financial
priorities, as appropriate.

The Committee considers that EPS jused
in both the short- and long-term incentive)
is an objective and well-accepted
measure of the Company's performance
which reinforces the strategic objective
of achieving profitable growth, while

both the short- and long-term incentive}

is consistent with ane of our stated
objectives ond a key indicator of company
performance in the reql estate secior. The
use of relative 1SR is strongly aligned with
shareholders and ensures that executives
ore rewarded only if ihey excaed the
raturns that an investor could achieve
elsewherg in our secior,

Targets applying to the performance
reloted onnual bonus and LTIP are
reviewed annuglly, based on o number
of internal and extemal reference poinis.
Performance targets are set to be
stretching but achievabie, with regard
to the particular sirotegic priorities and
economic environment in g given yeaor,
Under tha bonus, target performance
typically requines meaningful improvermnent
on fthe previous year's outfurn, and for

typically in ine with the upper end
of market consensus.

Remuneration Policy

for other employees

Unite’s approach to annual salary
reviews Is consistent across the Group,
with consideration given to the level

of experience, responsibility. individual
performance and salary levels in
comparable companies. The Company
is aiso now ¢ fully occredited Living
wage employer.

In terms of voriable incentives, all
employees are eligible to porticipate in
an annual bonus scheme with business
area-specific metrics incorponated
where appropricte. Senicr manogers
{c.18 individugls} are eligible to
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

CONTINUED

parficipate in the LTIP with annual awards
curantly up fo 75% of sakary. Performance
conditions are consistent for oll participonts,
while award sizes vory by level, Specific
cash incentives ore aiso in place to
motivate. reward and retain stafi below
Board level.

Al employees are eligible 1o participate
in the Company's SAYE scheme on the
same terms,

shareholding in the Company.
Shareholding guidelines are in pioce that
raquire Executive Directors 1o acquire

a holding {excluding shares that remain
subject to performance conditions)
equivalent to 250% of base sakary for the
Chiet Executive and 200% of base solary
for each of the other Executive Directars.
Until the relevont shareholding levels are
acquired, up to 50% of the annual bonus
poyabie to tha relevant Director will be

Molus and clawback

Awards under the Performance Related
Annual Bonus and the LTIP are subject

o malus and, from 2014, claowback
provisions which can be applied fo both
vested and unvested awards. Clawback
provisions will apply for a period of at
least two years post-vesting. Crcumstances
in which mahs ond ciowback may be
applied include a materiol misstotement
of the Company's financial accounts,

Shareholding guidelines

The Committes continues fo recognise
the importance of Executive Direclors
aligning their interests with sharenokders

through buikding up & significant ©n Remuneration.

Non-Executive Director remuneration

subject to deferral into shares and are
fransferable to the Director after three
years. Details of the Executive Drectors’
current personal shareholdings

are provided in the Annuol Report

gross misconduct on the part of the
award-hokler and error in cakculafing
the award vesting cutcome.

Non-Executive Dinector Date of serwce contraot
P M White 10 January 2009
R JTWilson 1 Decemper 2010
M Wolstenhoime I December 2011
A Jones 18 October 2012

E MchMekaon e 13 November 2013

Subject to annual re-election by shareholders, Non-Executive Direclors are appointed for an initial term of approximately three
years. Subsequent terms of three yoars may be owarded. Current appointments will expire at the Annual General Meeting in 2017
in the case of Elizabeth McMeikan and Sir Tirm Wilson: at the 2018 Annual General Maeting in the case of Phil white and Manijit
Wolstenholme, and at the Annual General Meeting in 2019 in the case of Andrew Jones. The appointment and re-appointment
and the remuneration of Non-Executive Direciors are matters reserved for the fuil Board.

The Non-Executive Directors are not eligible to participate in the Company's performance related bonus plan, long-term incentive

pkans Qr pansion arangements.

Details of the policy on fees paid to our Non-Executive Directars are set out in the fable below:

“unclion Operation Opoortunity Pecformance metncs
fees Fea levels are reviawed annually, with any  Non-Executive Direclor fee increasesare . None

To atiract adjustments effective 1 January in the year oppliedin ine with the outcome of the

and retain foliowing review. annual fee review. fees for the year

Non-Executive . . commencing 1 January 2017 are set out

Directors of the 11 fees paid to the Charmon are in the Annual Report on Remuneration.

highest calibre determined by the Committee, whilst

with broad the fees of the Non-Executive Directors Fee levels will be next reviewed auring 2017,

commercialand O determined by the Board.

other experiance
relevant to
the Company.

Additionat fees are payable for acting

s Senior Independent Director and as
Chaimnan of any of the Board's Committeas
|Audit, Remuneration, Nomination and
Health and Safety}.

Fee levels are benchmarked agains! sector
comparators and FISt-listed companias

of similar size and complexity. Tire
commitment and responsibility are token
inte account when reviewing fee levels.

with any increase effective 1 Jonuary 2018,

it is expacted that increases 1o non-
executive director fee levais will be in line
with salaried employees over the life of

the policy. However, in the event that there
is a matenal misalignment with the market
or o change in the complexity, responsibility
or fime cormmitmeant required to fulfil

a Non-Executive Director role, the Boand
has discretion 1o make an appropriate
adjustment fo the fae lavel.
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Pay for performance scenarios

The chars below provide anillustration of the potential future reward opporiunities for the Executive Directors, and the potential
split betwean the different elements of remuneration under three diferent perforrmance scenarios: Minimum, On-target

and Maximum.

Polential reward opporiunities are based on Unite's Remuneration Policy. applied to the base salories effective 1 March 2017, The
annual bonus and LTIP are based on the maximum opporiunities set out under the Remuneration Policy for normal crcumsiances;
being 144% of salory and 200% of sakary raspectively, Note that the LTIP awords granted in a year do net normally vest until the thidd
anniversary of the date of grant, and the projected vaive is based on the face value at aword rather than vesting (ie., the scenarios
exclude the impact of any share price movement over the period).

The Minimum scenaric reflects base soiary, pension and benefits [i.e., fixed remuneration} which are the only elements of the

Executive's remuneration packages not linked fo performance. g’
3
The On-target scenario retlects fixad remuneration as above, pius bonus payout of 70% of sakary and LTIP threshold vesting at 25% 3
of maximum award. g
The Maximum scenaria reflects fixed remuneration, plus full payout of all incentives. §
3
Approach to recruitment remuneration ”
External gppolintment lo the Board
In the cases of hifing or appeinting a new Executive Director from outside the Company. the Rermunerction Committee may make
use of all the existing components of remuneration, as follows:
Maxmiurm anfiuol
Camponant Approach grant vaiue
Base solary The base salkaries of new appointees will be determined by reference 1o relevant market
data, experience and skils of the individual, internal relativities and *heir cument basic
salary. Where new appointees have initial basic salaries set below market, any shortfall
may be managed with phased increases over a period of two to three years subject to
the individual's Gevelopment in the role. Q
Pension New appointees will receive pension contributions or an equivalent cash suppiement §
rot greater than the axisting policy. g
Benelits New appointees will be eligible 1o receive benefits which may include (but are 3
- notlimited io} the provision of o company car or cash aiternative, privete medical g
SAYE insurance and any necessary relocation expenses. New appoiniees will also be
eligible o participale in all employee share schemes.
Performance The structure described in the policy table will apply to new appainiees with the 144% of salary
Relaled Annual  relevant maximum being pro-rated to reflect the proportion of empleyment over the
Benus yeor. Targets for the individual element will be lailored to each executive.
e New appointees will be granted awards under the LTIP on the same terms as other 300% of salary

executives. as descrbed in the policy table. The normal aggregate limit of 200% of
salkary will apply, save in exceptional circumstances where up to 300% of salary may be
awarded.




DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

CONTINUED

In determining appropricte
rernunaration, the Remuneration
Committee will take into consideration all
relevant factors {including quanium,
nature of rermunerotion and the
jurisdiction frorm which the candidate was
recryitad) to ensure that argngements
are in the best interests of both Unite ond
its sharsholders, Tha Committes may
make an gward in respect of a new
appaintment to buy- outincentive
arangements forfeited on leaving a
pravious employer on A lke-for-fke Basis,
which may be awarded in addition to
the remuneration structure outlined in the
table above. In doing so, the Committee
will consider relevant faclors including
fime to vesting, any performance
conditions attached to these awards and
the likalhood of those conditions being

met. Any such buy-out awards will
typically be made under the existing
annual bonus and LT schermes,
although in exceptional circumstances
the Carmmitiee may exercise the
discretion availkable under Listing Rule
9.4.2 R fo make awords using a different
structure. Any buy-oul awords would
have a fair value ne higher than the
awards forfeited.

Internal promotion to the Board
In cases of appointing a new Executive
Director by way of internal promotion, the
Remuneration Cormmittee and Board will
bea consistent with the policy for external
appointeas delgiled above. Where an
individual has contraciual commitments
made prior to their prormotion to
Executive Director level, the Comparny

Service contracis and treatment forleavers and change of control
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will continue to honour these
arrangements. The Remuneration Poicy
for other employees is set out on page 77.
Incantive opportunities for below Board
employees ome typically no higher than
Executive Directors, but measures moy
vary to provide better line-of-sight.

Non-Executive Directors

In recruiting a new Non-Executive
Director, the Remuneration Committee
wiil utilise the policy os set out in the table
on page 79. A base fee in ling with the
prevaiing fee schedule would be
poyablka for Board membership, with
additional fees payobile for acting as
Senior independent Direclor and/or as
Charman of the Baard's Committees,

Execulive Daie ot sarnce controct
1 3 Lister 28 March 2002
R C Simpson 28 Septembber 2011 T
RS Smith 28 September 201)

Executive Director service confracts,
including arrangements for early
termination, are carefully considered by
the Committee. In accordance with
general market practice. each of the
Executive Directors has a rolling service
contract requiring 12 menths' notice of
termination on either side. Such contracts
contain no specific provision for
compensotian for loss of office, other
than an obligation to pay for any notice

period waived by the Company, where
pay is defined as salary, benefits and any
other statutory payments only. Executive
Director service controcts are ovaikable
to view at the Company's registerect
office,

The Remuneration Committee will
exercise discretion in making oppropriate
payments in the context of outpiacement,
selting legal claims or potential legaol

cloims by o departing Executive Director,
including any other amounts reéasonably
due 1o the Executive Director, for
example to meet the legal fees incurred
by them in connection with the
termination of employment, whare

the Company wishes to enter into a
settiement agreement and the individual
must seek indepandent legat advice.
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When considering exit payments, the Committee reviews all potentiol incentive outcomes to ensure they are fair to both sharehclders
and porticipants. The fabie below summarises how the owards under the annual bonus and LTIP are typically treated in specific

circurmstances, with the final freatment remaining subject to the Committee's discrefion:

Raason for lsaving Calcuirhon of veshing /foayment
Annuol bonus
Resignation No annuai bonus payable.
'‘Good’ leaver’ Cash bonuses will onty be paid 1o the extent that financiol and individual objectives set
Change of conirol at H_me beginning o! the plan year have been met. Any resulting banus wil be pro-rated
for time served during the year.
Lnp
Resignation Outstanding awards Igpse
‘Good’ leaver The Committee determines whether and to what extent outstanding awards vest

Change of control

based on the axtent ta which performance condilions have been achieved and the

proportion of the vesting period worked.

The determination of vesting will be moade as soon Gs reasonably practical fallowing
e end of the performance period or such earlier date as the Committee may cgree

{within 12 months in the event of death).

In the event of a change of control, Unite awards may alternatively be exchonged
for new equivalent awards in the acquirer where appropriate,

' ‘Good’ leover i defined as a parhcipant ceasing ta be employed by the Group by reason of death, disabiiity, ill ealth, redundancy, refirement
or gny other reason that the Committee detetmines in its obsolute discretion.

The treatment of shares subject 1o deferal
or holding periods will be subject fo the
Remuneration Committee's discrelion
and will take into account the
circumstances af the time.

External appointments

With the approval of the Board in each
cose, and subject o the overriding
requirerments of the Group, Executive
Directors may accept extemal
appointments as Non-Executive Directors
of other companies and retain ony fees
received, Joo Lister is curently o member
of the Council of the University of Essex
forwhich he does not receive a fee.
Richard Simpson joined the Board of
Citywest Homes at the beginning of 2017,
Richard Smith does not currently holkd

an exfemal appointment,

Consideration of conditions
elsewhere in the company

when making decisions on Executive
Director remuneration, the Committee
considers pay and condifions across
Unile. Prior ta the annuol salary review,
the Group People Director provides the
Committee with a summary of the
proposed level of increase for overall
empiloyee pay. The Remuneration
Committee does not formally consul
with ermployees on the executive
Remuneration Policy and Framework.

Consideration of shareholder views
The Remuneration Committee maintains
o regular dialogue with its major
sharehoiders, and is encouraged by

' the support received al the 2016

Annyol General Meeting for the new
Remuneration Policy. During 2016 we
consulted with shareholders representing
around two-thirds of Unite’s issued share
capital regarding Executive Diractor
salaries following the role changes arising
as a result of Mark Allan's resignation

and subsequent neorganisation of
respongsibilities, The Committee will
continue fo monitar trends and
developments in corporaie governance
and market practice to ensure the
structure of the execurtive remuneration
rermnains appropriate.

Hoda Jibajous

IR0

A

v

e
pe
>

S
=

SJUBLLS|OJS [DIDUDUL

UOHDULIO 190



L3

THE UNITE GROUPF PLC AMMUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2814

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

The following section provides details
of how Unite's Remunenation Policy wos
implemented during the financiail year
ending 31 December 2016

Remuneration Committee

membership In 2016
The primary role of the Committee is 1o

> Review, racommeand and maonitor the
level and structure of remuneration
for the Executive Directors and other
senior executives

> Approve the remuneratfion packages
for the Executive Directors and
ensure that pay outcomes refiect
the performance of the Company

» Determine the bolonce between
base pay and performance related
elements of the package so as
to align Directors' interests to those
of sharehoiders.

The Cemmittee’s terms of reference are
set out on the Compoany's website, As of
31 December 2014, the Remuneration
Commitiee comprised five independant
Non-Executive Directors.

> Hizgbeth McMekan [Cormmittee Char)
> PhilWhite

» SirTimwison

¥ Manijit Wolstenholme

¥ Andrew lones

During the year, Patrick Dempsey, who
joined the 8oard effective 1 March 2016
ond resigned effective 31 August 2016,
oiso served on the Remunerotion
Committee. Cartain executives, including
Richard Smith {Chief Executive),

Mark Alian [former Chief Executive)

and Ruth George {Group Peopie Director)
have been, from lime 1o time, invited

1o attend meetings of the Committeea,
and the Company Secretoary, Christopher

Szpojnarowicz, acts os secretary to the
Committee, No individuals are involved
in decisions relating to their own
rermuneration. The Remuneration
Committee met five times during the year
ond detdils of members’ attendonce ot
meetings are provided in the corporate
governance section on page &1

Key activities of the Remuneration
Committee in 2016 included:

» Reviewed and approved the Executive
Directors' performance against annuaot
objectives and LTIP targels: determined
bonuses payable lincluding balance
between cash and shares), and
approved LTIP vesting
Determined leaver treatmant for
Mark Allan, including freatment
of outstanding incentives
> Reviewed Executive Director
remuneration following role changes
and reorganisation of responsibilities.
and undertcok consultation with
major sharehoiders on proposed
changes ta Executive Director salaries
» Confirmed trectment of Mark Allan’s
incentives following end of
employrnent and reaffimation of
duties confained in compromise
agreement, Followed up with
sharehalders summarising changes
made during the year
Consicered remuneration
marke! trends ond corporate
governance developrnents
» Reviewsd and approved salary
increases for the Exacutive Drectors
and senior management for 2017
Determined the Executive Directors’
bonus and LTIP performance kargets
for 2017 in line with the shategic plon
> Reviewed and approved the
Chairmon's fee
Prepared tha Drectors’
Remuneration Report,

v

A

v

v

Summoary of shareholder voling ot the 2016 AGM
The foltowing table shows the results of the binding vole on the forward-iooking Remunergtion Policy and of the advisory votes on
the 2015 Annual Report on Remuneration and the amendments to the 2011 Performnance Share Plan at the 2014 AGM:

Advisers

Kepler Associotes, a brand of Mercer
['Kepler') were appointed as the
Committee’s independent adviser
following a competitive tender process
in 2014, and were retained during the
yaar, The Committee undertakes due
diigence periodically to ensure that
Kepler remains independent and that
the edvice provided is impartial and
objective. Kepler & g founding member
and signatory of the Codea of Conduct
for Remunearation Consultants,

details of which can e found at
WWW.BTUNEaONCONSUIaNSGroup.CoNm.
In 20146 Kepler provided independent
advice on revisions to Unite's
Remuneration Policy, updates on the
extamal remunenation environment;
parformance testing for long-term
incentive plons: and support during
the sharehokler consutiation process.
Kepler reports directly to the Chairman
of the Remuneration Cornmittee and
does not advise the Company on any
other ssues. Thei tofal fees for the
provision of remunaration services to
the Committee in 2016 were £44,775

on the basis of tima and materials.

Remunaration Annual Report Amdncments 10
Policy on Remuneanation 2011 PSP
For fincluding discretionary) 184,107,530 $8.9% 187,241,043 P9.7% 185286990 98.3%
Against 2,088,144 1.1% 591,183 0.3% 3,170,079 \ 7:%;__
Total votes cast (excluding withheld votes) 188,189,674 187.832.226 188,457,069 )
Votas withheld 300,425 657.873 33,030
188.490.099 188,490,099 188,490,099

Total votes cost {including withheld votes)
R —
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Single tolal figure of remuneration for Executive Directors (audited)
The lable below sets out a singla figure for the toiol remuneration received by each Direcior for the year ended 31 Decermber 2016
and the prior year:

Richond Smith loe Lster Rcherd Simpacn Mark Adlan!
1Y 05 20t il 2014 15 0% 015
[4 £ £ £ £ £ ] [3
Saiary 359617 244492 32702 273,483 298,347 246,692 183,003 432233
Tarxable penafits? 15254 14,064 15854 15.264 15236 13,894 7.894 2319
Pension benefit? 60,863 47,336 55979 49,147 55,604 43,355 32,162 75964
Annuaol Bonus* 227083 314579 203,385 348742 188802 314,579 0 5880
LTips 528,559 748,451 584,742  828.041 528,559 748,451 ¢ 1.299.189
Other’ 0 4,499 ¢ 2249 0 &) a 0
Total 1,194,378 1375420 1,182,442 1.516928 1086588 1,366,970 222,860 2,381,885

Mark Allan stepped down effechive 31 May 2016 and ceased being o director of the Company from the some date He remained employedinan
advisory capacity with the Company urhi 31 October 2014. Amounts above reflect remuneration received as o result of his role os Chief Executive,
with details of remuneration received for the period | June to 31 October 2014 disclosed under 'Exit payments’ sechon on page %0

* Taxable benefits for 2016 consist pnmanly of comparny car or car abowance ond private heaith care insurance.
the figures above include cor benebis of £14,167, £14,583, £14,167 and £7.223 for Messrs, Smith, Lister, Simpson and Allon respectively.
1 Pension figures include contibutions 1o The Unite Group Personal Pension Scheme ond cash aliowances. where applcable.

+ Payment for performance during the year. Having akeady reached their share ownership guidednes, each Executive Director will receive 100%
of their 2014 bonus award in cash. Mark Alian was nof efigible fora 2016 annual bonus payment. See following sections for further dalals.

2015 figures: LTIP awarcs granted in 2013, and which vested based on performance to 31 December 2015, are valued using ihe market prices of
the date of vesting (10 Aprit 2014) of 436p. Thase amounts have been revised from last year's report to reflect the actual share prices on the dates
of vesting.

+ 2016 figures: For the 2014 awards. the market price on the date of vesting is currently unknown and so the volue shown is estimated using the
average market vaive over the last quarter of 2016 of 575.90. Mork ARan's unvested 2014 awards lapsed on his resignation from the Compory.
See fnllowing sections for further details, LTIP figures also include cash payrments in lieu of dividends for vested awards.

T 'Other' includes the embedded vakse of SAYE oplions at grant.

Single total figure of remuneration for Non-Executive Direclors (audited)
The table below sets out o single figure for the total remuneration received by each Non-Executive Director for the year ended
3) December 2014 and the prior year:

36 ‘oo Commitiee Chor fees SID fom Total

04 05 2% 015 0% 2015 21 2015

t £ e £ £ £ £ £

P M White 129650 127100 - - - - 129450 127,00
R J T Wilson 45,000 44,100 6,600 6.475 - - 51,600 50.575
M Walstenhoime 45,000 44,100 9.350 %150 5250 5125 59,600 58,375
A lones 45,000 44,100 - - - - 45,000 44,100
€ McMeikan 45,000 44,100 9450 2150 - - 54,350 53.250
P Dempsey 22,500 - - - - - 22,500 -

' Patick Dempsey joined the Board on | Morch 2014 and resigned effective 31 August 20t8, during which fime he served as o member of the
Remynerotion ond Heallh and Safety Committees.

Remuneratfion ouicomes for the yeor ended 31 December 2014 (audited)

Base saiarles

As foreshadowed in last year's report, salary increases of between 6% and 9% were made with effect from | March 2016 to each of
Richard Smith, Joe Lister and Richard Simpson. Mark Allon received a 2% increase, consistent with general increases for employees
across the Company, from the same date.

Following his promaotion to CEO, the Commitlee reviewed Richard Smith's salary ogoinst a range of intemnal and exlernal fociors
and elected fo set it at & levei of £430,000 per annum effective 1 June 2016, For the other remaining Executive Directors, loe Lister
and Richard Simpson, the Committee reflected on the intention to operate with a smaller management team going forward, and
the additional key responsibilities taken on by each individual. Specifically. Joe Lister will now lead investor relations and has line
management responsibility for the Corporate Affairs and People directorates, whila Richard Simpson has been tasked with heading
up Unite's Health and Safety, Maintenance and Lifecycle and Asset Management functions.
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Considering these significant role changes. and mindful of the need fo retain successful, expearienced and weli-regarded Executive
Directors in a competifive sector, the Committes reviewed a number of alternotive approaches for the remuneration of Joe Lister
and Richard Simpson to ensure they remain focused on delivering Unite's strategy during a peried of potential instabitity,

Following careful Consideration of the alternativers permittad within the recently approved remuneration policy. the Committee
determined 1o increase the base salaries of Joe and Richard by €.20% fo £350,000 ond £325,000 per annurm respectively with effect
from | June 2016. In jaking this decision, the Commitlee noted the allernctive of making exceplional LTIP awards but conchuded that:

> Salary levels were the element of remunenation most significantly below market (particularty taking into occount the additional
responsibilities), whereas long-term incentive opportunities. at 200% of salary, are market competitive

» Anincraass in fong-term incentive opportunities had atready bean implemented for 2015 from 150% to 200% of salary; and

> Maintaining the current ratio between fixed/voriable pay and short-term/long-term pay is important so as not fo incentivise
excessive risk-taking.

Details of the evolution of each Director’s role and saiary cver the course of the year is summarised in the table below:

Base sakaxry rom
Bowe soary 1o | Marcn 2016 Base salory
28 Fepruory 15 3 My FPercaniaoge from 1 Jure Percentage
Exacutive Director Role 2016 206 chonge 4 chonge
MD, Operations £247,700 £270.000 9%
R § Smith 59%
(3% below
Chief Executive £430,000 predecesor]
1 Lister Chief Financial Officer £274,600 £291,000 6%
Chief Financial Officer+ £350,000 0%
. MD, Property £247,700 £270,000 9%
R C Simpson "
Group Property Director £325,000 0%
MC Allon Chief Executive £434,000 £442, 680 2%
Tolol Boord £1.204.000 £1.273.680 5.8% £1,105.000 -13.2%

rerforrnance related annuol bonus in respect of 20146 performonce

The 2014 annual banus consists of two elements, corporate and individual. The corporote element of the bonus is calcukated on o
sliding scale up to a moximum of 120% of base salary, in ceccordance with which on-target performance by the Group results ina
corporale bonus of an amount equivalent to 70% of base salary, To determine the actual bonus payment lo an Executive Direcior,
a muttiplier {being the individual element of the scheme), ranging between zero and 1.2 is opplied against the corporate bonus.

Applying the maximum individual multiplier [of 1.2, against the moaximum corporate bonus {of 120% of base salory), results in g
maximum annual performance related bonus opporiunity of 144% of base salory. However, bonus payments at that level woulkd
only be made subject to the achievermnent of exiremely strelching corporate performance targets and exceptional individual
performance by the relevant Drector. Target performance typically requires meaningful improvement on the previous year's
autturn, and for financial measures. fargets are typically in fine with the upper end of market consensus,

The performonce related bonuses awarded In respec! of 2014 reflect corporate bonuses of 62.5% of base salary. After applying
individual multipliers, actual performance related bonus payments awarded 10 the Executive Directors were 62.5% of their
respective base salgries (43.4% of their maximum bonus opportunities}. Further detuails, including the targets set and performance
ogainst each of the matrics, are provided in the iables below:

Corporate slement aulcomes
Orginal performance oxgets
“Threshoid® Tanget’ “Stretch’
50%of 70% of 100% of 120% of vest
Mo ure Weighl salary solcry sory akory Actuat % skary)
Financial Adjusted EPS 250% 24.7p 25.7p I o] 28.2p 27p 27.5%
Total return 250% 770 B7p 100p 1080 83p 15.0%
pér share
Mat debt to 25.0% 6.5% 6.3 &0 5.8x 6.2x 200%
EBITDA rafio -
Non-financial  Cysiomer 25.0% 83 B4 8s 14 a0 o%
satisfaction

Total corporate vesting [% of saiary) 625%
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Individyal element outcomes
EBxecutive Achevements Jurmg the year included: Personal multhpher

> Successhul delivery of Operations and Group KPIs covering both roles as Monoging
Director. Operations and Group Chief Executive.

» Completed on effective fransition to the Group Chief Executive role, providing clear
and valued leadership fo the Group in the second half of the year.

R S $mith > Effectively delivered a reclignment of roles and responsibilities across the other iwo 1.0x

Executive Direclors and wider senior management team ensuring the continued
delivery against the wider Group's KPls and the retention of the Group's key talent.

» Led the evolution of the Group siralagy, focused particularly on the development
of our brand and earning focus.

» Successiul delivery of finonce related KPls and our capilal operating guidelines.
> Successful execution of the REIT conversion plan.
» Execution and evolution of a debt financing. fundraising and hedging strategy allowing
J JLister the Group to take advantage of low interast rates while retaining appropriate balance 1.Ox
sheet strength and flexibility.
» Embraced new areas of responsibility including the Group’s People and Communication
agenda following the management change in mid-year.
> All Property reloted KPis successfully delivered for the year.
> Delivery of high quality growth through a secured development pipeline in an
increasingly competitive market.
> Oversaw product development and design innovation activities, allowing the Group 1.0x
to mantain attractive returns on new development. ’
> Embroced new areas of responsibility including the Group's health and safety
and meintenance and procurement agenda following the management change
in mid-year.
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R C Simpson

'

Individual objectives were updated foliowing the changes in roles and responsibilifies, with additional strelching gools set to test

executives in their new roles. The ratings above reflect a holistic view by the Committee of the extent to which each indlividual has n
perfarmed in their expanded role during the year, guided Dy these new objectives. a
=
Overall bonus outcomes 8_
Ovenall bonus outcome g
Executve Corporate vesting Personal ruyticler % of sciory) {% of maxImumm) o i §
ﬁRiSASmi'rh L 1.0x 6?.5% 43.4% 227.083 2
J J Lister 62.5% 1.0x 62.5% 43,4% 203,385
R C Simpson 1.0x $62.5% 43.4% 188,802

The Committee is satisfied that the overall bonus outcomes are appropriate. The Company's strong financial performance,
porticulorly under the adjusted EP$ and net debt to EBITDA rotio elements, is testament fa both management and the broader
employee population, and while sxecutives fell short of the stretching customer satisfaction targets, the 2016 result still places
Unite in the upper quintile of our benchmark.

Each of the Executive Directors has been a significant contributor to the achievement of key business objectives, while continuing
to demonsirale both strong persanal progression and exceptional teamwork despite a year of significant change. The proposed
On-target individuol multipliers ot 1.0x reflect our satisfaction with the progress thot each individual has made in heir new roles and
we will look for this to be prograssed further os we move into 2017,

Having already reaiched their respective share ownership guidelinas, each Executive Director will receive 100% of their bonus
awords in cash.
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

2014 LNP vesling (vesiad on periomance to 31 December 2015}

Awards in 2014 were made under the new LTIP, consisting of the Unite Group plc Performance Share Plan and the Unite Group pic
Approved Employee Share Option Scheme. Vesting of the awords was dependent on three equally-weighted measures over

a three-yeor performance period; tatal return per share, Earnings per share and TSR outperformance of the FISE 350 Real Estate
Super Sector index. There was no ratest provision. Further detais, including vesting schedules and performance agdinst each

aof the metrics are provided in the table below:

Mesciure: Wmghiirg Targets Quicome vest %
0% vesting bekow 18,1 pence 27.7 pence 100%
25% vesting for 18.1 pence
100% vesting for 23.5 pence or more;

Stroight-iine vesting between these points

2016 Adjusted EPS  1/3

0% vesting below 8.5% 21.3% 100%
TR per share p.a. 3 25% vesting far 8.5%
{2014-2014) 100% vesting for 14.5% or more;
Straight-line vesting between these points
TSR 0% vesting if Group underperforms the Index Index +10% p.a.  100%
outperforrmance 25% vesting for matching the Index {55.6% return)
of the FTSE350 /3 100% vesting for outperforming Index by 9% p.a.;
Real Estate Super Straight-line vesting between these points
Sectorindex
Tatal LTIP vesting (sum product of weighting and vest %) 100%

The performance period for the each of the elements ended on 31 December 2016, Two-thirds of awards will vest on the third
anniversary of the dote of grant, with the rermaining one-thid vesting after an additional hokding period of one year,

intammsts Interesty Date Asurmed Estrnatea

Executive Drecior hend veshingd% vesting veshng markel price: Viohae

R S Smith 86,566 B4,564 ol £498,572
I ) T acgen  10APN 2017 (2/3) YTV

J JLister 95,753 100% 95,753 10 April 2018 (1/3) 575.9p £551,484

R C Simpson B, 566 85,566 £498,572

In line with regulations, ihe volue disclosed above ond in the single total figure of remuneration table on page 85 captures the full
number of interests vesting (i.e. excliuding the one-year hokling period}. As the market price on the date of vesfing is unknown af the
time of reparting, the value i estimated using the average marke! value over the last quarter of 2016 of 575.9p. The actual value at
vesting will be frued-up in the 2017 Annual Report on Remuneration. Executives ako became entitled o cosh in lieu of the dividends
payoble on vested LTIP shares over the three-year performance period. These payments arg included in the row entified 'LTIP” in the
single total figure of remuneration table on page 85, and amounted to £29.987, £33,258, and £29,987 for Messrs. Smmith, Lister and
Sunpson respectively.

Percentage change in CEO remunetation
The toble below shows the perceniage chonge in CEQ remuneration from the prior year compored 1o the overoge percenioge
change in remuneration for allemployees.

The CEQ's remuneration includes base salary. taxable benefit and annual bonus and for 2014 is calculated as an aggregate of the
remuneration of Mark Allan until 31 May 2016 and of Richard Smith thereofter [onnual bonus relates fo Richard Smith full year). The
pay for all other employees is cokculated using the increasa in the earnings of fulk-time employees for tax vears 2015 and 2016. The
analysis excludes part-time employees and is based on a censistent sat of employess, i.e. the same individuals oppear in the 2015
and 206 populations.

CEQ All @mgioyses
0 015 % change % chorge
£ E 015-15 15-15
Base salary ' 433,837 432233 0.0% 20%
Taxabie benefits 17.07¢ 23.31¢ {26.81% 4.4%

Annual bonus 227083 551,180 {58.8)% [58.6)%




THE UMITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015 ®

o —

Relative Importance of spend on pay
The table below shows shareholder disiributions (i.e. dividends and share buybacks) and iofal employee pay expanditure for the
financial years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, along with the percentage change in both,

2016 015 % chonge

£m £m 2015~ 18
Total empioyee poy expenditurg 39.2 43,7 10.31%
Distribytions to shareholders 35.3 33.2 6£.3%

The Directors are proposing a final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2014 of 12 pence per ordinary
share. Empioyee remuneration excludes social security costs.

Review of past performance

The following graph charts the TSR of the Company and the FTSE 350 Real Estate Super Sector Index over the eight-year period from
1 January 2009 to 31 December 2016. While there is no comparator index or group of companias that truly reflects the aclivities of
the Group, the FTSE 350 Real Estale Super Sector Index (the constituent members of which are all property hokding and/or
development componies of reol estate investiment trusts within the LK), was chosen as it reflects trends within the UK property
market generally and tends to be the index against which analysts judge the performance of the Company. The table below
aetails the Chief Executive's single figure remuneration over the same period.

Historical TSR performance
GigtgvitciHT gaspetomnning &y pothatical £100 holding over the 8 years fo 31 December 2016,
Growth in the value of o hypothefical £100 hokding over the B years to 31 December 20146

2009 00 20 2012 2013 2014 005 206

MC Alan

MCAKn  MCAlon  MCAlon  MCAlan  MCAlen  MCAllan  MCAlian R 55mith

CEQ single figure of £222.850
remunergtion (£000Q) £645313 £487,175 £1,475577 £993754 £1,943,734 £2987,402 £2,381,885 £1,191,378
5Tl aword rates against nig
maximum opportunity 420% 43.4% 75.8% 63.4% 84.0% 89.4% 88.7% 43.4%
LTI award rates against n/a
maximum opportunity 0.0% 0.0% 82.4% 26.3% 83.1% 95.2% 100.0% 100.0%

wodla xBayoys

-
T
3
3
nn
23
vy
g
g
S

UODWLI i8W0O



" THE UMITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2036

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Scheme interests gwarded in 2015 {audited)

e

In June 2014, Executive Directors were granted awards under the LTIP with a maximurn face vatue of c.200% of thei respective
salaries, The three-yeur performance period over which perfarmance will be measured began on 1 January 2016 and will end
on 31 Decermber 2018, Any awards vesting for performance will be subject fo an additional two-year holding period.

Shares over whh Markst pros of
Sxmeutiva Diector Date of gront owonds granied' dkate of aword Foce value
R $ Srmiith h 134,802 £865268
1 Uister 23 June 2014 109,941 64150 | £705272
R C Simpson 102,147 £655.273

' Combinction of HMRC approved options under the ESOS (735) and nil cost ophons under the PSP caicukated using a share price of §41.5p. being
the closing mid-rmarket price on the day ihe awards were calculated.

Vasting of 2016 owards is dependent on three equally-weighted measures over a three-yeor performance period; total return per
share, earnings per shara and TSR outpertormanca of the FISE 350 Real Estate Super Secior Index. Thene is no retest provision. The
Committes cansiders that the targets applying under each of the performance measwures ame ne less streiching than in previous
years. Details of the vasting schedules are provided below:

Measure . Wesghhng Targels
2018 Adfjusted EPS 1/3 0% vesting below 30 pence;
25% vesting for 30 pence;

100% vesting for 38 pence or more;
Straight line vesting between these points

TR pershare p.a. 113 0% vesting below 9% p.a.;
12016 - 2018) 25% vesting for 9% p.a.;
100% vesting for 15% p.a. or more;
Straight line vesting between these points,

TSR outperformance of the FTSE 350 Real Estate {Super  1/3 0% vesting if Group underperforms the index;
Sector] Index (2015~ 2017) 25% vesting for matching the index:
100% vesting for outperforming index by 9% p.a.;
Straight-line ves[r_gg bafweaen thase poinis,

SAYE

During the year under rgview, no new SAYE awards were granted to the Executive Direciors.

Exit payments mude in the year (audited)

The terms of Mark Allan's exit wene set out in an agreement of the time he gave notice fo the Company. In formalising this agreement,
tha Commitlee sought to ensure that the oulcomes were fair to sharehclders. fo the Company and fo Mark Allan, kaking into account
the terms of his departyre and his service o Unite aver his 17 years of emplayment with the Group, including almost 10 years as
Chief Execulive. The Ogreement ako set out some additional undertakings which included remaining with the business in an advisory
capacity until 31 October 2014 fo support the new Chief Executive, as well as strengthened non-compeate and non-pooch arangements,
all of which were considered to be in the interests of the Company and of cur shareholders.

For the period 1 June 2014 to 31 Oclober 2016, Mark Allan continued 1o receive base pay [£201.474). pension [£32,417) and other
confroctual benefits {£7.884) totalling £241.777. He was not eligible to participate in the 2016 annual bonus ond there was no
payment in lieu of nolice,

Far the purposes of Cutstanding long-term incentives, Mark Allan was not considered a 'good’ leaver. with the default policy position
dictating that all of his cutstanding awards would kapse upon leaving the Compary, uniess the Committee wouid delermine otherwise.
Reflecting 0 number of considerations set out balow. the Committee exsrcked discretion 1o ailow vesting of LTIP owards that had
aiready been performance tested and were wilhin a few days of vesting at the time he made his announcerment. This use of
discretion look into atcount thot:

> Therslevant awands wouid have ordinarily vested three days ofter the official announcerment of the changs in Chief Executive
{i.e. 10 April 2014), byt that Mark elected to announce os early as possible in order fo permit an orderty handover of his duties

> The applicable performance periods had been completed and vesting was strong under aach cycle and

¥ Other elements of Mark's package wene minimised under the termns of the compromise agreement. Namely no onnugi bonus
would be pavable inrespect of 2016, and the previously onnounced &% salary increase would instead be kept in lineg with general
increasas across e group ot 2%.
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As aresult, and having henoured his obligation to rernain employed with the Company in an advisory capacity through to 31 October
2016, the final third of Mark's 2012 LTIP award [which vested as to 95.22% of maximurn based on performance to 3t December 2014}
and the first hwo-thirds of his 2013 LTIP award (which vested in full based on performanca to 31 December 2015} were preserved and
become capable of exercise, subject to malus and clawback provisions, from | November 2016 and 1 April 2017 respectively - in
both coses being an increased deferral period from the original vesting dote. All other cutstanding and unvested awards {i.e. the
final third of his 2013 LTIP awards, and each of the 2014 and 2015 LTIP awards) lapsed following Mork's resignation. Details of the
preserved awards are included in the table below:

interests Original Revsed Market pnce
Award cycle veshing vashng date veshng date on vesting Value
2012 LTIP " 1 November 2016 549p 74,940
104.725 10 Aprl 2014 £5
2013LTIP 131,209 1 Aprl 2017 5755p' £755.633

' Asthe market price on the date of vesting s unknown at the fime of reponing, the value ks estimoted using the average market value aver the lost
quarter of 2016 of 575.9 pence,

Payments to past directors (audited)
Save: for Mork Allan’s remuneration detailed above, there ware no further payments to past directors during the year.

Implementation of Executive Director remuneration policy tor 2017

Base solory
The Committee has approved the following sakary increases with effect from 1 March 2017:

Bose salary from Basa solary frovn

1June 20161028 1 March 2017 ko 28 Perceniage
Executive Drector Fabruary 2017 Fabruory 2018 ncrecse
R S Smith £430,000 £438,600 2%
J JLister £350,000 £357,000 2%
R C Simpson £325.000 £331.500 2%

Proposed salary increases are consistent with the average increase applied acrass the Group (c.2%).

Pension

Executive Directors will continue to receive a pension contribution of up to 20% of salary or an equivalent cash allowance.

Performance related annual bonus

Corporate
-~ maosureas Wwot
Financial (75%) ) " Adjusted EPS 25.0%
Tetal retum per share 250%
Net debt to EBITDA ratio 250%
Non-financial (25%) Customer satisfaction 12.5%
University Reputation 12.5%

The performance related annual bonus for the 2017 financial year will cperate on broadly the same basis as in 2014, The Committee
has approved an unchanged maximum bonus opportunity for each executive of 144% of sclary. consisting of a maximum of 120%
of salary under the 'corporate’ element and o maximurm individual muttiplier of 1.2x.

For 2017, the ‘corporate’ element of the annual bonus will continue to be based on a combination of financial and non-financial
measuras, weighted 75% and 25% respecitively. The Committee intends fo supplement customer satisfaction with a measure based
on University Reputation, with each weighted 12,5%. The inclysion of University Reputation recognises the equal importance of
Linite's relationships with Higher Education partners, fogether with the opinions of our student customers directly, and has been used
as an operational KPl for a number of years. it is also intended that the majority of 2017 objectives under the individual performance
multiplier will be shared across each of the Executive Directors. Proposed target levels have bsen set to be challenging reiative

to business plan, although specific targets ore deemed to be commercially sensitive at this time. it is the Commitiee’s current
intentlon fo disclose these targets, and the key achievements by each Executive Director, retrospectively in the 2017 Directors'
Remuneration Report.

Annual bonuses will continue to be paid in cash. unless the recipient has not met their shareholding guidelines, in which case up
to 50% of the amount payable will be satisfied by an aliocation of shares in the Company. deferred for three years. Clawbaek and
molys provisions apply to all awards.
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
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For 2017, the LTIP will continue to operate broadly on the same basis as in the 2016 financial year, The Committee, having considered
the performance of the Company and other relevant factors, intends that Executive Directors will each receive on award
aquivalent to o maximum of 200% of solary delivered through a combination of the PSP and ESOS, with the final levet of vesting
dependent on the achievement of three-year performance targets relating 1o EPS, TR ond TSR, as follows:

Measum Waghting Torgets
2019 Adjusted samings i3 0% vesting betow 36 pence
per share (EPS} 25% vesting for 36 pence

100% vesting for 42 pence or more;
Straight line vesting between these points

Tolal return (TR} per share /3 0% vesting below 7% p.o.

p.a. (2017 - 2019) 25% vesting for 7% p.a.
100% vesting for 13% p.q. or more;
Straight line vesting between these points

TSR outperformaonce of the 173 0% vesting it Group underperforms the Index
FTSE 350 Real Estate Super 25% vesting for matching the Index
Sector Index [2017 - 2019} 100% vesting for outperforming index by $% p.a.;

Straight ine vesting between these points
M

Targets have been set with reference 1o internal and external reference points, including our strategic pkan and broker consensus
estimates. and are designed to be stretching but achievable for participants. Full vesting under each element wilk requive continued
exceptional parformance over the next three years. Any awards vesting for performance will be subject lo on additicnal two-year
holding period. during which time clowbock provisions will also apply. Further details of the grant date and number of interests
awarded will be discloted in the 2017 Annual Repart on Remuneration.

Implementation of Non-Executive Director Remuneration Policy for 2017

Chalman ond Non-Execuitve Director Fess

During the finat quarter of 2016, the Board undertook its annual review of Non-Executive Director fees. Following consideration of
solary increases across the Group and indicative fee increxases al seclor and FTSE comparators, the Board determined that the
basic fee should be increased from £45,000 p.a. to £45.900 p.0. and that additionai fees should be increased by a similar rate,

in both cases being broadly in line with increases for the broader employee population.

In respect of the Chairman of the Boord. Phil White, the Committee determined that with the new executive leadership structure
how in place. and given the significont increase in the size of the Company in recent yeors, the timing was appropriale to undertoke
& full market assessment of the Chairman role, Having consicdersd a number of reference points, inciuding data for sector and size
comparators and time commitment, the Committee recommended an increase in the fee payable fa the Chairman 1o £185.000 p.a.
which will position him around lower guartile against the blended market assessment, The Commitlee considers this increase
appropriate given Phil's significant experience and leadership of the Company over his fenure to data.

A summary of the fee increases. which are effective 1 January 2017, is set cut in the table below.,

Pomihon 2015 fees 014 fees 2017 fels
Base lees
Chairman £127.100 £129.650 £185,000
Non-Executive Director ' £44,100 £45,000 £45.900
Addifional feas
Senior Independent Director £5.125 £5.250 £5.400
Audit Committee Chair 7 ' £9,150  §£9.3%0 £9.550
Remuneration Committee Chair ' £9,150 £9.350 £9,550

) Nomination Committee Chair n/a nfa n/qa
Health and $afety Committee Chair £6,475 £6,600 £6.750

" As Chairmaon ol the Board, Mr White does nct receive any additional fee in respect of Chairing this Committee.
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Directors' interests (audited)

Ordincwy S$hares  Orcinary Shanes
of 25p each o of25peachat
31 December 31 December

2014 2015
RS Smith 166,344 81,313
JJ Lister 410,934 430,981
R C Simpson 159,026 75,625
P M While 10,952 10.952
R 1T wilson 8275 6275
M Wolstenholme o ' - 7.995 7.995
A Jones ’ 15,000 15,000
E McMeikan 5.000 5000

A table setting out the beneficial interests of the Directors and their families in the share capital of the Company as at 31 December
2014 s set out to the right.

None of the Direclors has a beneficial interest in the shares of any other Group company. Since 31 December 2016, there have been
no changes in the Directors’ interests in shares.

Detaiks of Directors’ share options are set out in the tables below.

Share price Information
As at 31 December 2014 the middie market price for ordinary sharas in the Company was 604p per share. During the course of the
yaar, the market price of the Compary's shares ranged from 543.5p 1o 463.5p per ordinary share,

Executive Directors’ shareholding requirements (audited)

The table below shows the shareholding of each Executive Director ogainst ther respective shareholding requirernent as at %"
31 December 2016: 3
Interests g
bectto  Unvested andior Sharshoksing Curmant g
Owned  defermai/holding subyect to perf, reculreent sharehoknng % Requrement
outrght penoc? conditions woly/ee saiary/fee” mat?® g
R § Smith 166.346 99.249 286,627 250% 9% Yes Z
JJLister 410,936 41,827 277,788 0% 750% Yes
R C Simpson 159,024 70,088 253,892 200% 366% Yes
P M white 10,952 5%
R 1T Wilson 4,275 B85%
M Wolstenholme ) B 7.995 108%
A Jones 15,000 202%
E McMeikan 5,000 67%
' Includes shares subject 10 a holding panod under the 2013 LTIP and defarred bonus shares, where applicable. %
? Based onshare price as at 31 December 2016 of $06p. Shares wubject 1o defemal/hoiding penods are taken on a 'net of lax’ bass for the purposes =
of the cument sharehokding cokcuiation. 3
* Asolthe date that he stepped down from the Board, Mark Allan had exceeded the aopplicable shareholding guideine of 250% of salary. g
g.
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Directors’ interests in shares and options under Unite incenfives (audited)

Deferred bonus
Intenasis heid Inferests heid ot
gt | Jonuary Gronleg during  Marke! pnce pes hrenesis vestad intemsis lopsed 31 Decembe- Deferal
Exécutive 014 the year shomargrant dunngheyecr  cwing the yeor 2016 penod
R C Simpson 0,790 - 310.0p 30,790 - - 07.03.13
-06.03.16
32.277 - 44200 - - 2277 07.03.14
-06.03.17
43,067 - - 30,790 - 2277 -
RS Smith 33.849 - 31000 33,849 - - 07.03.13
-0603.14
32,277 - 442.0p - - 32277 07.03.14
-0603.17
29161 - 533.50 - - 2,181 240215
-23021 8
95,307 - - 33.849 = §1.438 -
LTi® awards
Outstargiing at
Inlerests awarded 31 Decemioer
cunng the yaar 2314 {ordinary
(ominary shaxes  Marest pRce per nterests vested shares of 250 Period of
Irterests halkd  Of 250 eacm N e shgrewhen  tor parformancos Irteres’s kKapsed eqch Inthe quaylng
Executive a0l 16 Caornpary| gwarded  dunngtheyagr  dunng the yeor Company) condiicns
J 3 Lister 125,482 - 319.0p 125,482 - - 10.04.13
- 1004.14
95,753 - 42840 - - $5,753 10.04.14
-10.04.17 )
72074 - 583.5p - - 72,094 0204.15
~02.04.18
- 109,941 64150 - - 109.941 2306.14
-23.06.19
293329 109,941 - 125482 - 277.788 -
R C Simpson 113.432 - 319.00 113,432 - - 10.04.13
- 10.04.14
84,566 - 428.6p - - 84,566 10.04.14
-10.04.17
65,179 - 383.5p - - 65,179 0204.15
~02.04.18
- 102,147 64°.5p - - 102,147 230614
~2306.19
265177 102,147 - 113.432 - 253,892 -
R § Smith 113,432 - 319.0p 113,432 - - 1004.13
-1004.1%
84.566 - 42B.6p - - 84,566 10.04.14
~10.04,17
65,179 - 583.5p - - 65,179 0204.15
-0204.18
- 134,882 641 .50 - - 134,882 2306.16
- 230419
265177 134,882 - 113.432 - 284.627 -

' One-third of owards vested for perfanmance are subject to on odditional ane-year hokding period, i.e. 41,827, 37.811 and 37,811 shares in respect

of Messr. Lister, Simpson and Smith respectivety.
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SAYE
Options heid Options held ot
at | Jonuary Gronted dunng Exaresad Ophion pnca 31 December
Executive 2018 the yeor dunng the yeor per shore 218 Matunty gate
. 7,299 - - 205.5p 7.299 01.12.17
1 Jlister
- 1.705 - 527.6p +70S 01.12.18
R C Simpson 5216 - = 345.1p 5216 01.12.17
R 5 Smith — 3,411 -~ 527 .60 3411 01,1278

The highest, lowest and closing share prices for 2014 are shown on page 93.

Details of the qualifying performance conditions, in relation o the above referred fo awaords made in 2014 and in 2016, are set out
earlier in this report. Those detalls should also be laken as forming part of the ‘guditable part’ of this repart. Details of performance
conditions applying fo the 2015 aowards were set out in the 2015 Directors’ Remunerafion Report.

Awards made in 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016 took the form of a combination of nil cost oplions under the PSP and HMRC approved
options under the ESCS. No variations have been maode to the lerms or conditions of any awards.

The fak value in respect of Directors' share options and LTIP awards recognised in the Income Statement is as follows:

200 2015
Execulive 4 £
J 1lister 312,135 415856
R C Simpson A3TE9T 429956
R § Smith 407,570 470,254
MC Align (449,737} 654,775

The Directors' Remuneration Report has been approved by the Remuneration Committee ond signed on its behalf by: 'g“

=1

Ellzabeth McMeikan g

Chair, Remuneration Commities g

22 February 2017 &
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DIRECTORS” REPORT

As at 22 February 2017 the Company had
received nofifications from the following
companies and institufions of the voting
interests of themselves and their clients in
3% or more of the issued ordinary share
capital of the Company.

Percentoge
of Share
Sharehcider Caplal
Blackrock Inc 8.0l
APG Asset Management NV 4.36
Cohen & Steers Inc 438
Aberdeen Assat
Management Group 395
Old Mutual ple are
Royal London
Asset Managemant 3.40
invesco Lid 3.50
Principal Financiat Group an
Norges Bonk
3.9

tnvestmeni Management
R

Share capital

Af the date of this report, thewe are
222,068,787 ordinary shares of 25p eoch in
issue, all of which are fully paid-up and
quoied on the London Stock Exchange,

During the year and through to the datfe
of this report, a total of 65,408 ordinary
shares of 25p each were aliotted and
ssued pursuant to the exercise of options
undet the Unita Group plc Savings
Related Share Option Schemne ond

o tofcl of 72,448 ordinary shares of 25p
exach were allotted and issued pursuant
to the exercise of options under the
Approved Scheme.

Tha rignts attaching to the Company's
ordinary shares, as well as the powers of
the Cormpany’s Directors, are setoutin
the Company's articles of association,

There are no restrictions on the transfer

ar voting rights of ordinary shares in the
capital of the Company {othar than those
which moy be imposed by Yow from time
to time or as set out in the Company's
arficles of association).

In aceordance with the Market Abuse
Reguiations, certain employees are
required to seek approval to deal in
the Compony’s shares.

The Company is not aware of any
agreements between shareholders that
may result in restrictions on the fronsfers of
securities ang/or vofing rights. No person
nolds securitias in the Company carrying
special rights with regard to control of the
Company. Unless expressly specified to
the contrary, the Company's articles of
asseciation may be amended by special
resolution of the shareholders.

Change of control

All of the Compxany’s share schemes
conigin provisions relating 1o G change

of cantrol. Outstanding rewards and
options would normoally vest and become
axercisable on a chonge of control, subject
fo the satisfoction of any performance
conditions. Other than ceetain of the
Group's banking facilities, there are no
other significant ggreements to which the
Company is a party that affec, alier or
terminate upon g change of control of
the Company following o takeover bid.
Nor are there any agreements betweaen
the Compony ond its Directors or
employees praviding for compensation
for kass of office or employment that
occurs because of a tokeover bid.

Following o change of control of the
Company, the convertible bonds issued
by Unite Jersay Issuer Limited and
announced on 3 Oclober 2014 become
redoemabla and/or convertible into
ordinary shares of the Company {atf the
option of the holder).

The Directors have no outhority fo buybock
the Company's shares.

Detais of proposals 1o be put 1o the Annual
Generol Meeting in rekation to the power
of Directors 10 ssue shares in the Company
are set out under the heading 'Annugl
General Meating'.

Going concern and

viabiiity statement

The going concem statement and
viability statement is set out on pages 65
and 25 respectively and is incorporated
into this Directors’ Report by reference.

Disclosure of information

to auditors

The Directors who held office at the

date of approval of the Directors” Report
confirm that, so far as they are each
oware, there is no relevont cudit
information of which the Company’s
ouditor is unaware; ond each Director
has faken all the steps thot he aught to
have taken os a Director to make himselt
aware of any relevant oudif informafion
ond 1o establish that the Company's
auditors are aware of that information.

Directors’ confiicts of interest

The Company has procedures in pkace
for managing conflicts of interest. A
Drectar is to nolify the Chairman (and
the Chawrnan notifies the Chief Execufive]
if they become aware that they, or any
of their connected partes, may have

an interest in an existing or proposed
transaction with the Company or the
Group. Directors have a confinuing duty
to update ony changes to these conflicts.

Political donations
No poiitical donations were made during
the year ending 20186.
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Other information

incorporated by reference
The: following information in the Strategic
Report is incorporated into this Directors’

Report by reference;

Results and dividend Page 1
Post balonce sheet events  Page 109
Greenhouse gas emissions Page 47

Financial Instruments and
financicl risk manogement  Page 29
Employment of disabled

persons/Employee
involvement

Page 46

The Corporate Governance Statement
on pages 50 to 95 gnd the Statement of
Directors’ responsibiiities on page 99 are
incorporated into this Directors’ Report
by referance.

Management Report

This Directors’ Repart together with the
strategic report and other sections from
the annual report forms the Management
Report for the purposes of DTR 4.1.8R.

Annual General Meeting
The Annual Genergl Meeting of the
Company will be held at 3 Rivergate,

' Temple Quay, Bristol BS1 4GD, at 10.00 om
on 11 May 2017. Formal notice of the
meeting i given On pages 155 to 15%.

Resolution 14;

Authority to allot shares

in addition to the ardinary business of the
meeting, Resolution 14 will be proposed
as an ordinary resciution to grant the
Directors authority to aliot shares in the:
Company, and grant rights fo subscribe
for or to convert ony security into shares
of the Company, up to an aggregote
nominal value of £18,505,732 {representing
approximately one third of the issued
share copital of the Compony as ot the
date of this report). in accordance with
guidelines issued by the Investment
Association, this resolution oiso grants the
Directors quthority to atiot further equity
securities up to an aggregate nominal
vaiue of £18,505,732, again representing
approximately ore: third of the nominal
valye of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this report.
This additional Quthority moy only be
appled 10 fully pre-emptive rights ssues.

Resolutions 15 and 14:
Disappiication of pre-emption
rights resolutions

If the Directors wish to gliot new shares
and other equity securities for cash {other
than in cannection with an employee
share scheme). company kaw requires
that these shares are offered first 1o the
shareholders, in proportion to their existing
holdings. The Directors consider it desirable
o have the maximum flexibifity permitied
by corporate governance guidelines

to respond to market developments

and fo enable allotments to toke ploce
to finonce business opportunities without
making a pre-emptive offer to existing
sharehoiders. This cannct be done uncler
the Companies 2006 Act uniess the
sharehoiders have first waived their
pre-emption rights. The purpese of
Resotutions 15 and 14 [together the
'disapplication of pre-emphions rights
resolutions’) is ko enabie shareholders

1o 50 waive their pre-empfion rights.

Resolution 15 authorisas the Directors to
allot new shares pursuant 1o the authority
given by Resolution 14 {the allotment
resolution} for cash:

{a} Inconnection with a rights issue
or pre-emptive Bsue: and/or

{b} Otherwise up to a nominal vclue
of £2,775.859, equivalent fo
approximatety 5% of the totat
issued ordinary share copital of
the Company as at the date of this
report, in each case without the
shares first being offered Yo existing
sharehclders in proportion to their
existing holdings.

Resclution 14 additionally authorises the
Directors to aliot new shares for cash,
without the shares first being offered to
exisfing shareholders in proportion to their
existing hokdings, in connection with the
financing (or refinancing, if the authority
is ' be used within six months after the
orfginai fransaction) of an acquisttion

or specified copital investment which

is announced contemporaneousty with
the allotment or which has taken place
in the preceding six-month period and

is disciosed in the announcermeni of the
alietrnent, The authority under Resclufion
16 is fimited to a nominal value of
£2,775,859 equivalent to approximately
5% of the nominal value of the ordinary
share capital of the Company in issue

as of the date of this report.

"

e

Taken together, these disopplication of
pre-emption rAghts resolutions will allow
the Directars to issue new shares for
cash without offering the shares first

to existing sharehalders in proportion to
ther existing holdings under the
following circumstances:

» In connection with a rights issue o
other pre-emptive issve, with a nominal
value equivalent to two-thirds of the
present ssued share capital (which will
allow the Directors o make exciusions
or such other armangements as may be
appropriate to resolve legal or
practical problems which, for example,
might arise with overseas shareholders};
For any other purpose. with a norminal
volue equivalent to 5% of the present
ssued share capitat and

In connection with the fingncing

or refinancing of an acquisition or
specified capitalinvestment which is
announced contemporanecusly with
the aflotment or which has faken pkace
in the preceding six-month period and
is disclosed in the announcement of
the dilotment, with a nomingl value
equivgient 1o 5% of the present issued
share capital but subject to an

overall aggregate limit equivaient

to two-thikds of the present issued
share capitol.

v

v

The Direciors intend tc adhere to the
provisions in the Pre-Emption Group's
Statemaent of Principles, as updotedin
March 2015, and not to aliot shares for
cash on a non-pre-emptive basis
pursuant to the aulhority in Resolution 15
either in excess of an amount equal to 5%
of the total issued ordinary shane copital
of the Company or in excess of an
amount equal to 7.5% of the otol issued
ordinary shove copitol of the Company
within a rolling three-year period, without
prior consuiiation with shareholders.
Even though odherence to the principles
wovld not preciude issuances under the
authority sought under Resolution 14, the
Direciors cufrently do not intend to use
such authority without prior consuliation
with leading shareholders.

The allotment and the disapplication

of pre-emption rights resolutions comply
with the Share Capital Management
Guidelines issyed by the Investment
Association in July 2016 and the
disappiicotion of pre-emption rights
resoiutions follow the resolution templates
issued by the Pre-Emption Group in

May 2016,

Hodernbsioys
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUED

1f the resoiutions are passed, the authorities
will expire ot the conclusion of the next
Annugl Genergl Meeting of the Company
ar, if earlier, 10 August 2018, this being the
date 15 months from the passing of the
resolutions, whichever is the earlier.

Resolvtion 17:
Amend Article 74 (Directors’ fees)
of the Arlicles of Assaciation

Resolution 17 i a proposal to armend
Articie 94 of the Articles of Association

to increqse the [imit on Directors' service
fees {as distinct from salary, remuneration
and other payments to the executive
directors} from the cumrent £500,000 to
£750,000 per annum. This i i allow the
Company sorme headroom in relotion to
any further appointments of Non-Execultive
Directors or increases in Directors’ fees.
There is no cument intention to utilise the:
proposed increased limit and the level of
fees paid to the Non-Execytive Directors
will conlinue to be monitored by the
Boord, which intends that all such fees
should be in line with market practice.,

Resolution 18:

Nofice of Generai Meetings

The Companies (Shareholders' Rights)
Reguiations 2007 (the Shareholders’
Rights Regulations). increased the nolice
perica for general meetings of the
Company fo 21 days uniess shareholders
approve o shorter notice period, which
canncl be less than 14 clear days. At the
annual general meeting of the Company
helkd in 2015, shareholders authorised the
calling of general mestings, other than
an annual general meeting, onnot less
ihan 14 clear days' notice, Resotution 18
seeks the approval of shareholders to
renew the authority fo be able to call
general meetings (other than on onnuai
general meeting) on 14 clear days'
notice, The flexibility offered by Resolution
18 wil be used where, faking into account
the circumstances. the Directors cansider
this appropriate in relation to the business
of ihe meeting and in the intenasts of the
Company and shorehoiders as a whole.
The Compaony undertakes to meet the
requirements for electronic voling under
the Shareholders' Rights Regulations
before catiing o general meeting on 14
Clecr days' notice. If given, the approval
will be effective until the Company's

next annual general meeting, whenitis
intended that a similar resolution will

be proposed.

By order of the Board
Christapher Szpojnarowicz

Company Sscrelary
22 February 2007

THE UNITE GROUP PLC AMNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2014
S




THE UHITE GROUP PLC ANMUAL REFOAT AND ACCOUNTS 2814

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsibie for preparing
the Annual Report and Accounts and the
Group and parent company financiol
slaternents in accondance with cpplcable
law and regulations.

Company low requires the Directors

1o prepare Group and parent company
financial statements for each financial
year. Under that laow they are required 1o
prepare the Group financial statements
n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the EU and applicable kaw and have
elected to prepare the parent company
financial sialermeants on the same basis.

Under company law, the Directors must
not approve the financial staterments
uniess they are satisfied that they give

a true and fair viesw of the siate of affairs
of the Group and parent company and
of their profit or lass for that period.

In preparing each of the Group cnd
parent company financial statements.
the Directors are required to:

> Select suilable accounting policies
and then apply them consistentty

> Make judgments and aestimates that
are reasenable and prudent

3 State whether Ihey have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs as cdopted
by the EU

¥ Prepare the financial statements on
the going concern basis unkass it is
inappropriate to presume that the
Group and the parent company
will continue in business.

The Direciors are responsible for keeping
adequote accoynting records that are
sufficient o show and explain the porent
company's transactions and disclose with
reascnable accuracy at any time the
firancial position of the parent company
and enable thermn to ensure that ils
financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They have general
responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open 1o them to safeguard
the assets of the Group and to prevent
and detect froud and other imegularities.

Under applicable low and regulations,
tha Owectors are atso responsible for
preparing a Directors” Report, Directors’
Remuneration Report and Corporata
Govemance Statement that compty
with that law and those regulations.

The Directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the
corporate and financial information
included on the Company's website.
Legisiation in the UK gavemning the
preparation and dissemination of
fingncial stataments may differ from
legsiation in other jurisdictions.

Each of the Directors, the nome of whom
are set out on pages 54 and 55, confiams
that fo the best of his or her knowledge:

» The Annual Report ond accounts taken
as a whole is fair, bolanced and
understondable and provides the
information necessary for sharehokders
fo assess the Company's position
and performance, business modst
ond sirategy
The financial stotements. prepared in
accordance with the applicable set of
accounting standards, give o frue ond
fair view of the assets, kabilities,
financiol position ond profit and loss
of the Campany and the undertakings
included in the consolidation taken
as a whole
» The Directors' Reportincludes
a fair review of the development
and performance of the business
and the position of the issuer and
the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole,
together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that
they face.

v

R Smith J Lister
Direclor Director
22 Feruary 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF THE UNITE GROUP PLC ONLY

Opinion on financial statements of The Unite Group plc
Our opinion on the financial statements is unmodified

I our opinion:

> the financiql stalements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the parent company's affairs os
at 31 December 2016 and of the Group's prefit for the yeor then ended:

> the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the Eurcpeon Unian;

> the porent cormpany financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs os adopted by the
Ewropean Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2004; and

> the fingncial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and,
Qs regards the group fingncial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

The financial staternents compxise the Consolidiated ond Company balance sheets, the Consolidated incorne statement, the
Consofdated skatement of comprehensive income. the Consofidated and Company statement of changes n shareholders' equity,
the Cansoiidoted and Cornpany statements of cash fiows and the related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been
apphed in ther preparation s applcable low and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the parent company
financial staterments, as applied in accordance wilh the provisions of the Companies Act 2006,

Golng concem and the directors’ assessment of the principal risks thof would fiwealen the solvency

or Bquidity of the Group

As required by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the direclors' statement regarding the appropricteness of the gaing concem basks
of accounting contained within the Regulatory disclosres section of the Govemance report 10 the financial siaternents and the
drectars’ statement on the langer-term viabiity of the Group contained within the strategic report on page 25.

We have nothing material to add or draw attention to in relation 1o:

> the directors’ confrmation on page 99 that they hove carmied out a rabust assessment of the principal risks facing the
Group, including thase that would threaten ifs business model, fufure performance. solvency o fiquidity:

> the disclosures on pages 26 o 29 that describe those risks and explain how they are being managed or mitigated;

> the directors' stolement in section 1 to the financial statements about whether they considered it opproprigte 10 adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing them and ther identification of ony material uncertainties to the Group's
ability to continue to do 50 over a period of of least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial siatements;

> the director’s explanation on page 99 as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over what period they
have done so and why they consider that period lo be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have o
reasanoble expectation that the Group will be able to contfinue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over
the period of ther assessment, including any related diclosures drawing attentfion 10 any necessary qualifications
or ossumptions.

We agreed with the drectors” adoption of the going concem basis of accounting and we did not identify any such material
uncertainties. However, because not all futre events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the
Group's ability to continue as a going concem,

independence

We are required to cornply with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standards for Auditors and we confim that we are
independent of the Group and we have fulfilied our other ethical responsioiliies in accordance with those standkrds, We also confirm
we have not provided any of the prohibited non-audit services referred to in those standards,

Qur assessment of risks of material misstatement
The assessed risks of material misstatermeant dascribed balow are those thot had the greatest effect on our audit strategy,
the aliccation of resources in the audit and drecting the efforts of the engagement team.

Last year our report included a risk around the recognition of deferred tox assets, which & not included in owr report this year. We have
identified a new risk relating ¢ the impact of the Group becoming a REIT on 1 January 2017 as the REIT fransition has had a sigrificont
mpact on the measurement and presentation of defered tax ossets and liabiffies.

The description of risks below should be read in conjunction with the significant ssues considered by the Audit Committee discussed
on page &6.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financiol statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Risk: investment and development property valuation (£2,274.6 million)

The Group's principal assets ore investment properties and investment properties under development that are either owned on
batance sheet or tiwough the investmants fhat the Group holds in SAV and USAF. The invesiment properties are corried at far value
based on on apprasal by the Group's independent external valuers who cairy out the valuations at sik-monthly intervals for the Group
in accordance with the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors Valuation - Professionad Standards {the ‘Red Book’), taking into
account fransactional evidence during the yeor.

Mahagement conduct a detaied exercise in the assessment of the valuation of the Group's property portfalio. The valuation of these
properties s undeminned by a number of judgements and assumpfions. such as property yields, rental growth, occupancy and
property management costs. A small change in these assumptions could have 4 significant impact on the valuation of properties
and. with respect to the vaiuafion of the USAF properties, coukd also have a significant impact on a key input 10 the calculation of
the performance fee recognised for the year ended 31 Decemiber 2014 as this is based on the net asset vale of the fund.

With regards fo the investrment properties under development. additional judgement is required 1o torecast discoynted cash flows
with & deduction for construction ¢osts fo complete,

Refer to Section 3.1; Wholy owned property assets

How the scope of our audit responded to the risk
We performed testing on the property valuations and critically assessed the judgements and estimates that had been made.
This work included:

> Undernstanding and documenting the underlying business process and then evaluating the design, determining
implementation and testing operating effectiveness of the retevant controls;

> Undesstanding and challenging the assumptions taken in relation to key drivers such cs rantal income and growth,
occupancy, viekds and costs wifh reference fo the trends af the end of the year and the following year's budgef and
Group's strategic plan;

> Meetling with the Group's valuers to understand the assumptions being token and consistency of the judgements
with prioe vear;

> Working with our valuation specialists within our Deloitte Real Estate team to validate the assumptions used against
market data;

> Assessing the Group's development appraisal process through meeting with the development team and assessing
the forecast cost to complete against budget and substantive testing of costs incurred ‘o date; and

> Use of dota analytic tools to determing whether there were any anomalies in the valuation spreadsheet dato sent
1o the valuers.

Key observations
We are satisfied with the approach and methodology adopted in valuing the property portfolio ond consider the valusations 1o be
suitable for inclusion in the financial statements a1 31 December 2016.

Risk: accounting for joint ventures (£4692.9 million)

A significant proportion of the Group’s assets are held within USAF and LSAY which are jointly owned entities that are accounted for
as joint ventures, At 31 December 2014 Unite had a 23% ownership in USAF and 50% ownership in LSAY, and acts as manoger of both
joint venture vehiclas.

Due to the complexity of the confractual arangements, and the Group's role as manager of the joint veniure vehicles, the
assassment of control invoives judgements around o number of significant factors, particulorty with regonds to USAF given that itis o
muylti-investor fund and the Unite ownership stake & subject 1o change. In accordance wilh IFRS 10, there s a need 1o assess conirol
with regords to the Gty to direct relevant aclivities, have exposure 10 variable refurns and the obifity to use power to affect retums

at each reporting period.

Refer to Section 3.4: Investmaents in joint ventures
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

OF THE UNITE GROUP PLC ONLY
CONTINUED

How the scope of our audi responded to the risk

Qur qudit procedures on this areq focussed on assessing the activities of the businessas, understanding the contractual ogreements
n place and identifying the methodology applied by manogement in reaching ther business decisions in order to consider the
appropiateness of the classification of these arangements as joint ventures in accordance with the requirerments of IFRS 10.

with regards to both USAF and LSAV, we have:

> Understood and documented the undertying business process and evaiuated the design, determined implementation
and tested operating effectiveness of the relevant controls;

> critically assessed the kay activities and how they impact the returns to the Group from the funds and challenged
Management's own consideration of thase factors in their application of IFRS 10; and

> assessed the Group's monitoring of its role and the three key factors relating to control and its exercise in accordance
with the judgement required under IFRS 10.

Given the particular focus on USAF, we have;

> assessed the roie of the USAF Advisory Committee fwhich represents the interests of alt unithoklers) on an on-going basis,
including obtaining evidence as to how it has carried out its duties and evaluated where dacisions were taken that did
not involve the Committee as to indicafions of the ability of the Group to exercise cantrol; and

> critically evaluated the impact of the percentage cwnership on a regular basis.

Key observafions

Thers has been no change 1o the structure and underlying assumptions on determination of control of USAF and LSAV in the
period and the role played by Unife as investor ond asset/development manager.

we consider the reatment as joint ventures to be appropriate,

Risk: REIT transifion

The Greoup possesses significant potential deferred tax liabilities in redation to future gains on investment propertias and unit trusts
and also significant potential deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses. The recognition of both liabilities and assets depend
on an assessment of forecast taxable profits, forecasts themselves primarnly dependent on the conversion to REIT status on

1 January 2017. The recegnition of both deferred tax assets and fiobilities in this period therefore involves judgements regarding
their appropriate tfreatment on REIT conversion and assessment of the certainty of conversion and ongoing maintenance of
REIT status.

Refer to Section 2.5: Tax

How the scope of our audit responded to the rdsk
Our audit procedures ncluded:

» Understanding and documanting the underlying business process and then evaluating fhe design, determining
implementation and testing operating effectiveness of the relevani controls;

>  working closely with our tax audit specialist team, including newly intfroduced REIT specialists, to ensure thal the key
judgements relating 1o REIT transition are understood:

> considering the cClarity and presentation of the Group's disclosures of its tax balances and effective tax rate reconciliation;
and

> testing the Group’s curent and forecast compliance with the REIT regime rules,

Key observalions

We are safisfied with Management’s assessment of the impact of REIT conversion on the defemed tax pastion of the Geoup and agree
with the resulting credit of £3%.8m on fhe derecegnifion of defered tax previously recognised on revaluation of investment properties,
accelerated capital allowances and property business tax losses. We consider the presantation of the disclkasures of the fax balances
and effective tax rate reconciiation to be appropriate.
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Our application of materiality

We define matericity os the magnitude of misstaternent in the financial statements that makes it probable that the economic
decisions of g reasonably knowledgeabile person woulkd be changed or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope
of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work.

We determined materiality for the group to be £14.8 million (201 5: £2.3 milion), which is 1.0% of nat assets (2015: 1% of net assets).

In addition fo net assets, we consider the EPRA earnings measure to be ¢ critical financial performance measure for the Group and
we have applied a lower threshold of £3.0 million (201 5: £3.1 milkon} based on 5% of EPRA ecrnings (201 5: 5% of EPRA eamings) for
testing of revenue, cost of sales, operating expenses, loan interest and simiiar charges, finance income, share of joint venture profit
and taxation.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee off audit differences in excess of £1 53.000 (2015;
£184,000), as well as differences below that threshold that. in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also report
1o the Audit Committes on disciosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements,

An overview of the scope of our audit

Our group audit was scoped by obtaining on understanding of the Group and its environment, including Group-wide confrols, ond
assessing the risks of matericl misstatement at the Group level. The Group is audited by one audit team., led by the Senior Statutory
Auditor. The audit is performed centrally, as the books and records for each entity within the Group are maintained at head office.
We aiso tested the consoidation process and camied out anatyfical procedures to confirm ow conclusion thot there were no
significant risks of material misstatement of the aggregated financial information. We audit ak of the Group's subsidionies and joint
ventures which are subject to audit at statutory materiality level, which in many cases is substantialy lower than Group materiality .

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion:

> the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report 1o be audited has bean propery prepared in accordance with the
Cormpanies Act 2004; and

> the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial
stotements are prepared is consistant with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to repori by exceplion
Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records
Under the Compxanies Act 2006 we are requiredt fo reper to you if, in our opinion;

> we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

» adequote accounting records haove not been kept by the parent company, or relurns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches nol visited by us; or

> the parent company financial stolements are not in agreement with the occounting records and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matiars.

Direclors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required 1o report if in our opinion certain discloswres of directors’ remuneration have not
beenh made or the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to e qudited is not n agreement with the accounting records and
retums. We have nothing o report arlsing from these matiers.

Cormporate Govemance Statement
Under the Listing Rules we are aiso required 1o review part of the Corporate Govermance Stalement relating to the company’s
compdance with certain provisions of the UK Comparate Governance Code. We have nothing fo report arising from our review,

Hodss i6abuys
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

OF THE UNITE GROUP PLC ONLY
CONTINUED

Ouwr duty to read other information in the Annuol Report
Under intemational Standaras on Auditing JUK and frelond)], we are required to repart to you if, in aur opinion, nformation in the
annual report s:

> matedally inconsistent with the information in the audited financial stalements; or

> apparentty materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, cur knowledge of the group acquired in the
course of performing our audit: or

> otherwise misleading.

In porticular, we are required to considler whether we have identified any inconsistencies between our knowledge acquired during
the audit and the directors’ statement that they consider the annual report & far. balanced and understandable and whether the
annudl raport appropriately discloses those matters that we communicated to the audit committee which we consider shouid have
bean disclosed. We confirm that we have not identified any such inconsistencies or misleading statements.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As expidined more fuly in the Drecions' Responsibilifies Statement, the drectors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give o frue and fair view. Our responsibility is to oudit and express an opinion on the
financial stalerments in accordance with appicable law and Internationa Standards on Auditing (UK and reland}. We also comply
with Intemationol Standard on Quality Control 1 (UK and Irelond}. Qur audit methodology and taols aim to ensure that our quality
confrel procedures are effective, understood and appled. Our quality controls and systems include our dedicoted professional
stondards review teom and ndependent partner reviews.

This report is made soioly to the company's members, as a body, in occordonce with Chopter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006,
Owr audit work has been undertaken 5o that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required o state 1o
them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fulest extent permitted by low. we do not accept or assume responsioility
1o anyone other thon the cornpany and the company's members as a body. for our audit work, for Ihis report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the omounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error, This includes an
assessmiant of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group's and the parent company's crcumstances and have
been consistently appled and adequately disclosed: the reasonobleness of significant accountfing estimates made by the drectors;
and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the
annual report 1o identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is
apparently materially incorrect bosed on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the counse of performing
the cudil. if we become aware of any oppoarent material misstatements or inconsistencies. we consider the implications for our report,

N>

Judith Tacon (Senlor siatulory audiior)

for and on behalf of Delolte LLP

Charterad Accountants and Statutony Auditor
London

United Kingdom

22 February 2017
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These financia siolements are prepared in accordance with IFRS. The Board of Direclors also present the Gioup’s perdormonce
o on ihe basis recommended for real esiole componies by the Eurcpeon Public Redl Estale Association (EPRA). The reconcilalion
between IFRS performance measures and EPRA performance measures con be found in Section 2.2 b) for EPRA eamings
and 2.3 c) for EPRA net assel value (NAY). The adjusiments to the IFRS resulls are intended lo help users in the comparabiliity
of these resulls across other fisted recl estale companies in Ewope ond reflect how the directors moniior the business.
We have grouped the notes to the financlal stalements under six main headings:
> Resulls for the yeor, including segmental informolion, EPRA eamings and EPRA NAV
> Asset monagement
>Funding
>Worldng caplial
> Key manogement and employse benefits o
>Company subsidicsies and Joint ventures Q
Each section sefs oul fhe relevont accounting policies applied in these financial sialements together with the key §
Judgements ond esimoles used. ]
Q
Primary stalements g
Consoidated income statement a
Consokdated statement of comprehensive income é

Consoidated balance sheet
Company bolonce sheet
Consoddated statement of changes in shareholders' equity
Cormpany statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
Staternents of cash fiows
Section 1: Basis of prepcaration
Section 2: Resulls for the year
2.1 Segmental information
2.2 Eamings
2.3 Net assets
2.4 Revenue and costs
25Tax
2.6 Audit feas
Section 3: Asset monogerment
3.1 wholly ownett property assets
32 Inventories
3.3 Other non-cuent assats
3.4 investments in joint ventures
3.5 Investments in subsidiaries
Section 4 Funding
4.1 Borowings
4.2 Interest rate swaps
4.3 Net financing costs
4.4 Geaning
4.5 Financial rek factors
4.6 Operating keases
4.7 Capital marnagerment
4.8 Equity
4.9 Dividends
Section 5: Working capliol
5.1 Cash and cash equivalents
52 Trade and other receivables
5.3 Credil risk
5.4 Trade and other payables
5.5 Transactions with olher group companies
Section 6: Key management and employee benefils
4.1 Staff numbers and costs
4.2 Key managemant personnel
4.3 Share based compensation
Section 7: Events after the balonce sheel dale
Seciion & Company subsidiarnes ond joint ventures —
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2014

M4 s
Note m £m
Rental ncome 24 7.1 2340
Property soles and other incorme 2.4 236 1158
Total revenue 120.7 208.8
Cost of sales 24 (44.9) (1149}
Operating expenses (25.0) {28.5]
Results from operating octivities 508 45.4
Profit/(Loss} on disposal of property 04 (0.6}
Net valuation gains on property 31 72 1648
Proltt before net finoncing costs 1284 294
Loan interest and similar chorges 43 (20.9) {22.6)
Mark lo market changes in interest rate swaps 43 - {0.4)
Swap canceliation costs 4.3 (1.0) —
Finance costs 4.3 {21.9) {23.2}
Finance ncome 4.3 0.1 0.2
Net financing corls 42 (.8) {21.0)
Share of joint venture profit 3.4 943 181.8
Proift before tax 2014 3884
Cument tax 2.5 {23) (1.8}
Deferred tax 2.5 27.3 [31.1)
Profit for the yeor 244 as5.7
Proftt for the yeor aliiibulable fo
Owners of the parent company 22¢ 2040 3519
Minority interest 2.4 38
2264 355.7
Eamings per thare
Basic 2.2c 101.3p 164 2p
Diuted 2.2¢c .7p 150.3p
All results are denived from continuing activities.
For the year ended 31 December 2016
Fars 0s
Noter m £m
Proftt for the yeor 2264 1557
Movements in effeciive hedges 42 (9.2) (1.9
- Defemred tax in relation to movements in effective hedges 2.5d (1.1} 1.0
Gains on hedging instruments transfered o income statement within mark to market
changes in interest rate swaps - 0.3
- Defered tax in relation to hadging instrurnents fransfamed to income statement - 0.1}
Share of joint venture movements in effective heages 34b (1.4) 0.6
- Defered iqx in relation to share of joint venture moverments in effeclive hedges 254 (0.5) 0.1}
Other comprehensive income for the vear (12.2) (0.2}
Tolad comprahensive ncomae for the year 214.2 355.5
Altributable to
Owners of the parent company 211.8 351.8
Minoxity interast 24 3.9
2142 3555

All other comprehensive income may be classified as profit and koss in the future,
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————
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET .
At 31 December 2016 §
O
2
8
24 5
Nole Im £m
Asspls
Investment property 31 1.061.6 1.024.4
Investment property under development 31 184.4 1438
Investrnent in joint ventures 3.4b 4929 461046
Other non-curent assets 33 298 245
Deterred tax asset 2.5d - 1.0
Toltl non-curent assets 1,948.9 18103
Inventones 32 29 36 O
Trade and other receivables 52 77.9 830 2
Cash and cash equivalents 5.1 42.7 270 g
Total cument assets 1235 1134 3
Toted assets 20924 19239 g
a
Uatyities §
Botrowings 4. (1.3) {31.3)
Trxie and other payables 5.4 23n (115.5)
Current tex ability (2.4} (2.3}
Total curent Habilitles (127.4) (149.1)
Borowings 4.1 (471.5) [443.8)
integest rate swaps 4.2 (11.4) (2.3}
Defemed tax liabilty 2.5d (4.4) (31.0)
Total non-current labillies {489.5) {477.1)
Tokal Babkfles (615.9) (626.2)
Net gssets 1,475.5 1297.7
Equity
Issued share capital 48 558 555
Shore premium 48 493.6 493.3
Merger raserve 40,2 40,2
Retgined eamings 847.9 679.5
Hedging reserve (15.0) [2.8)
Equity portion of convertible instrument 4.1 9.4 9.4
Equily altributable to the owners of the parent compony 14516 1,275.1
Minority interest 239 224 a
Tokl equity 1,475.5 1.297.7 Z
These financiat statements of The Unite Group plc. registered number 3199160 were approved by the Board of Directors on 3’
22 Febryary 2017 and were signed on its behalf by: 3
RS Smith J ] Lister g
Director Director
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

Al 31 December 2014

018 mnis

Nole ) Em
Assails
Investments in subsidicries 35 7254 448.3
Total mvestrments 1254 4483
Loon to group undeartaking 3.5 179.9 179.9
Total non-current cusets 053 828.2
Amouynts due from group undertakings 52 864 £39.3
Cash ond cash equivalents 5.1 - -
Total current assets 6864 6393
Tolal arsels 1.571.7 14475
Current Babiitles
Bomowings 4.1 {0.1) (1.4)
Amounts due fo group undertakings 5.4 {1.3) [58.2)
Other poyables 5.4 (3.0) 2.7
Total current lobiifles {4.4) (62.3)
Borrowings 4.1 (175.3) (173.0)
Totad non-current Bobililes (175.3) (173.0)
Tofad iablifles (179.7) (235.3)
Net assels 1.412.0 12322
Equity
Issived share capital 55.5 555
Shane premium 493.6 4933
Merger resarve 402 40.2
Retained eamings 8133 633.8
Equity portion of inlercompany loan 9.4 7.4
Total equity 1,412.0 1,232.2

Total equity is wholly attributable to equity holders of The Unite Group pic.

These financial statermants of The Unite Group pic, registered numiber 3199160 were approved by the Boord of Drectors on
22 February 2017 and were signed on its behalf by:

R 3 Smith J 4 Lister
Director Director

T ity
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2015

19

Ecqully poriion Alsbulalle
vad Share Marger Pelained Hedging ol converftle o ownens Minory
share oaplial premium Tearve SCTings AT rsirument of the porent inferest Tolal
£m tm m tm tm £m m £m tm
Al Jonuary 2014 55.5 4933 40.2 679.5 (2.8) 2.4 1.275.1 2.4 1.297.7
Profit for the year ' - - - 240 - - 24.0 24 2264
mMovements in effective .
hedges [net of ! '
associoted deferred fax} - - - - 122) - (12.2) - {122)
Tatal comprehensive
income for the year - - - 224.0 (122 - 0.8 24 2142
Shares issued - 03 - - - 0.3 - 0.3
Defesred tax on share
based payments - - - {0.1) - - {0.1) - (0.1}
Far value of share based
payments - - - 1.2 - - 1.2 - 12
Own shares acquired - - - (2.5) - - {2.5) - (2.5)
Dividends paid to owners
of the parent company - - - (34.2) - - {34.2) - (342)
Dividends to minority
interest - - - - - - - (1.71) (1.1}
At 31 December 2014 55.5 4936 40.2 867.% {15.0) 7.4 1,451.5 239 1475.5
Equity parhon Atmoutable
sued Share Merger Reioined Heagng  of converkbie 10 owners. snonty
shaae captal preann resenve eamings reserve instrumant of the parent wntevest Iolat
£m £m £m Em &m £m £m £m £m

At 1 Jonuary 2015 504 3858 402 3592 (2.5) 9.4 842.5 19.8 %42.3
Profit for the year - - - 351.9 - - 3519 38 3557
Other comprahensive
income for the year - - - - 0.3} - 0.3) 0.1 0.2}
Total comprehensive
incoms for the year - - - 3519 {0.3) - 351.8 3.9 355.5
Shares issued 5.1 107.5 - - - - 112.4 - Y126
Defered tax on share
based payments - - - 08 - - 0.8 - 08
Foir value of share based
poyments - - - 29 - - 29 - 29
Own shares actuired - - - 3.4} - - (3.4) - {3.4)
Dividends paid 1o owners
of the parent company - - - [31.9) - - (319} - (31.9)
Dividends to minwority
nterest - - - - - - - (1.1) {1.1)
Al 31 December 2015 555 493.3 40.2 479.5 (2.8) 9.4 1,275.1 224 1,297.7

The notes on pages 112 to 153 form part of the inancial stotements.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2015

uad Share Merger Retained Equily porion of
shegw coplial Premium reerve o L P joan Tokd
tm Em tm £m tm m
Al 1 Jenuary 2014 55.5 4713 402 6338 9.4 1.232.2
Profit for the year & other comprehensive income - - - 137 - 2137
Shares issued - 03 - - - 0.3
Dividends 1o sharehokders - - - (34.2) - (34.2)
Al 31 December 2014 555 493.4 40.2 813.3 .4 14120
Hsuad Share Merger Retaned Equity porton of
share cugetcl PrEmiUm reassne eqmigs  miemompany oan Total
£m £m £m im £m £m
A} 1 Jonwary 2015 504 5.8 40.2 3758 9.4 851.6
Profit for the yeor & other comprehensive income - - - 289.9 - 289.9
Shares ssued 5.1 107.5 - - - 112.6
Dividends to shareholders - - - 31.9) - (31.9)
At 31 December 2015 555 493.3 40.2 4338 2.4 12322

The notas on pages 112 to 153 forrm part of the financial statemeants.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

111

Group Company
016 2015 P 015

Note tm £m tm 2m
Cash fiows from opercling aclivities 5.1 703 1208 (2.8} 22)
Cash flows from taxalion {22) (0.3) - -
Investing oclivities
Proceeds from sale of investment property 126.1 {0.8) - -
Payments to/on behalf of subsidiaries - - (157.4) {194.9)
Payments from subsidiaries - - 541 54.4
Repayment received of joint venture investment loan - - - -
Loan 1o joint ventures - {30.5) - -
Dividends received 292 229 1392 55.7
Interest received o1 0.2 - -
Investment in joint ventyures - {52.4) - -
Acquisition of intangible ossets {8.2) (7.7) - -
Acquisition of property {131.0) (96.3) - -
Acquisition of plant and equipment {3 A - -
Cash flows from investing acitvities 131 {148.5) 41.0 {84.8)
Financing ocliviles
Interest paid in respect of financing activities (23.7) {21.8) (5.5) (5.5)
Ineffective swap payments - 2.3} - -
Swap cancelation costs (1.0) - - -
Proceeds from the issue of share capital 0.3 124 0.3 1126
Payrments to acquire ovm shares {2.5) {3.4} - -
Proceeds from non-curent borrowings 9.0 17.6 a3 1.8
Repayment of bomowings {102.3) {34.1}) - -
Dividends paid to the awners of the parent company (34.2) (319 (34.2) 319
Dividends paid to mincrity inferest (1.1) {+.1) e oL
Cash flows from financing activilies (65.5) 334 (37.1) 770
Net (decrease)/Increcse in cash and cash squivalents 15.7 (14.4) 1.3 {10.0)
Cash and cash equivalents ot start of year - 270 414 (1.4) 8.4
Cash ond cash equivalents at end of year 5.1 42.7 270 (0.1) {1.4)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Section 1: Basis of preparation

This section lays out the Group's accounfing policies thal relale 1o the finoncial stalements as a whole, Where on occounfing
policy Is speciiic fo o paricular note to the financial stalemands, the policy is described In the note to which it reiates and has
been clearty ideniified In a box.

The financial statements consolidate those of The Unite Group ple, {the Compony| and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the Group) and include the Graup's interests in jointly controfied entities. The parent company financiol statements present
information about the Company Qs a separate enfity and not as a group.

Both the parent company financial stalements and the Group financial siatements hove been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU [Adopted IFRS] and appraved by the Directors. On publishing
he parent company financial statements here together with the Group fimancial statemants, the Company & toking advantage
of the exernpiion in 5408 of the Componies Act 2006 not 1o present its individuol income staternent and relcted noles.

The accounting policies have been applied consistentty 1o all periods presented in thase consolidated financial staterments.
The Company is domiciled in the United Kingdom.

Going concem

The Group's business activities, together with the factors fkely to affect its future development and position are set out I the Strategic
Repaort on pages | to 49. In addilion, section 4 of these Notes to the financict stalements includes the Group's objecives, pokcias and
processes for managing its copital: detals of its borrowings ankd interest rate swops: and in note 5.3 ils exposwre to credit risk.

The Group has prepared cash flow projections three years forword to December 2019 and the Group has sufficient headroom

to meet al its commitments. The Group added £100m to an exsting faclity duing 2014 and this together with existing facilties will

be sufficient to fund the Group's commilments over ihe next three years. The Group maintains posifive relafionships with ifs lending
banks and has historicaly secured new facilfies before maturity dates and remained within its covenont leves. The Group s i full
compliance with its covenants ot 31 December 2116. Owr debt fachities nclude loan-to-value, interast cover and minimum net worth
covenants, ol of which have a high level of headroom. In order to manage fulure financial commitmients, the Group operate a
formal approval proceass, theough its Major investment Approvals commitlee, to ensure appropriate review i undertaken before

ony transactions are agreed.

The Directors consider that the Group has adequate resources io confinue in operational existence for the foreseeabie future,

Measurement convention
The finoncial stalements ore prepored on the historicol Cost bask excep! for mvestiment property, investiment propesty under
development. investments in subsidianes and interest rate swaps of of which are stated at ther fair value.

Basls of consolidation

Subsidiaries are those entities controlled by the Company. Conirol exists when the Company has an existing Aght that gives il the
cument abifity 1o direct the ralevant aclivities of Yhe subsidiary. has exposure or right to vorable retums from its involvernent in the
subsidiory ond has the abiity to use its power to affect its retums. The firanciol statements of subsidianies ore included in the
consolicatad financiol statements from the date that control commences unti the date that control ceases,

Infra-group balkances and transactions, and any urrealised goins and losses arsing from intra-group fransactions, such as praperty
disposak and management fees, are eliminated in praparing the consolidoted financial statements. Urvealised goins arksing from
transactions with joint ventures are efiminated to the extent of the Group's retained interest in the enfity. Urrealised losses are
elminated in the same way as urredlised gains except where the loss provides evidence of a reduction in the net reglisabie
vaise of curent gssets or an impaimment in vale of fixed qassets.
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Secfion 1: Basis of prepargiion continued

Impact of accounting standards ond inferpretations in issue but not yet eftective
At the date of authorsation of these financial stalements, the Group has not applied the following new ond revised IFRSs that have
been ssued but are not yet effective and in some cases had not yet been adopted by the EU:

IFRS ? 'Financial Instruments™;

IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers’:

IFRS 14 'Leqses’;

IFRS 2 {amendments) ‘Classification and Measurement of Share-bosed Payment Transaction’

1AS 7 {amendments} 'Disclosure Intiative®

IAS 12 lamendmenis) 'Recognition of Defered Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses’

IFRS 10 and I1AS 28 [amendments] ‘Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Ventyre';

Vv VY VVYY

The directors do not expect that the adoplion of the standards fsted above will have o materialimpact on the financial siatements
of the Group in future periods, except that IFRS 9 wil impact both the measurement and disclosures of financial instruments. IFRS 15
may have on impoct on revenue recoghition and related disclosures and IFRS 16 will impact the reatment of leases. During 2016 the
Group continued to moniter the potential impact of these changes. Beyond the information above, it s not practicable fo provide
a reasonable estimate of the effect of IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and IFRS 14 until ¢ detaied review has been compieted.

SOUDLIBACE BjniodioD

Accouniing estimates and judgemenis
The preparation of financial statements requires management io exercise judgement in applying the Group's accounting policies.
1t also requires the use of estimates and assumplions that affect the reported amounts of assets and babikties, Income ond expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions care based on historical experience and various other factors thot are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstancaes, the results of which form the basis of making judgements about canrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readiy apparent from other sources. Actucot results may differ from these esfimates.

Estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis with ravisions recognised in the periad in which the estmates arerevised
and in any future periods affected.

SNTN

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement of complexity ore set out below and are explained n more detail in the related
notes ta the financial statements.

el

The areas involving the rnost sensitive estimaltes and assumptions that are significant 1o the financial siatements are set out below and
in more detail in the related notes:

e
T
™
b
i

> valuation of investment property and investment property under development [note 3.1)
The accounting policy descriptions set out the areas where judgement needs exercking. the most significant of which is as fofows:

> classification of joint venture vehicles (ncte 3.4)

UOHOWIOIU S0
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 2: Resulis for the year

This section focusas on the resulls ond perfarmance of the Group and provides a reconcitation between the primary
o statements and EPRA performance meaiures. On the following pages you will find disclosures exploining the Group's

resutts lor the year, segmental Informalion, laxallon, somings and net asset value pet share.

The Group uies EPRA samings and NAY movement as key comparable indicalors across other real esiale companien

In Europe.

Performance measures

Nole 218 P H
Eamings basic 22 £224.0m £351.9m
Earnings diuted 22¢c £227.7m £351.9m
Basic eqamings per share (pencej 22c 101.3p 164.2p
Diuted eamings per share [pence| 22 4. 7p 150.3p
Net assets Basic 2.3c £1,451.8m £1.275.1m
Basic NAV per sharg (pence] 2.34 &53¢p 574p
EPRA performance medasures

Note e x5
EPRA eamings 2.2a £62.7m £61.3m
EPRA eamings per share [pence} 22c 28.4p 28.4p
Adjusted EPRA eamings 220 E&1.3m £49.5m
Adiusted EPRA eamings per share [pence) 22c 27.7p 23.1p
EPRA NAV 23a £1,557.3m £1.394.4m
EPRA NAV per share [pence) 2.3d Sép 5790
EPRA MNNAY 2.3c £1.517.3m £1.330.2m
EPRA NNNAY per share (pence} 2.3d $30p 552p

2.1 Segmental information
The Roard of Directors monitor the business along two activity lines, Operations and Property. The reportabila segments for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 are Operations and Property,

The Group undertakes its Operations and Property aclivities directly and thvough joint ventures with third porties. The joint ventures
are an integral part of each segment and are included in tha information used by the Board 1o monilor the business.

The Gioup's properties are located exclusively in the United Kingdom. The Group therefore has one geographical segment,

2.2 Eamings

EPRA eamings amends IFRS measures by removing principaily the urnrealised investiment property valuation gains and losses such
that wsers of the financials are able to see the extent to which dividend payments (dividend per share) are underpinned by eamings
arising from purely operational activity. The reconciliation between Profif affibutable 1o ownens of fhe parenf company and EPRA
earnings is availoble in note 2.2 {b}.

The Operations segment monages rental properties. owned directiy by the Group or by joint ventures. Ifs revenues ore derived from
rental income and asset managemant fees eamed from joint ventures. The way in which the Operations segment adds vale to the
business s set out in the Operations review on pages 30 1o 33. The Operations segment is the main conirbutor to EPRA eamings and
EPRA EPS and these are therefore the key indicators which ore used by the Boord to monitor the Operations business.

The Board does nol manage or monitor the Operations segment through the balance sheet and therefore no segmental information
for assets and fiabikfies is provided for the Operafions segment.
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Section 2: Resvlts for the year confinued
2.2 Eamings continved
a) EPRA ecamings
2016
Group on
R
UNITE Shewe of joind veniures bawin
Tokal USAF LEAV Tokal Total
[ m tm £m £m
Rental ncome .1 389 251 82.0 159 e}
Property operating expenses (29.3) (10.7) (2.8} {13.5) {42.8) g
Net operdling Income 878 26.2 23 485 1143 g
o
Management fees 208 (28) (4.0) (6.8) 14.0 g
Operaling expenses (22.4) 0.4 {0.3) (0.7} {23.1} é
=
[0}
Operating lease renlals® (13.5 - - - (13.5) ®
Net financing costs {20.8) (5.7) (5.9) {11.8) (32.4)
Opevations segment result 319 17.3 12.1 294 413
Properly segment result (1.0} - - - {1.0)
Uncallocated to segments 24 - - - 2.4
EPRA samings 333 17.3 2.1 294 62,7
Yield refoted USAF peformance fees (1.4) - - - (1.4)
Adjusted EPRA somings 3.y 173 121 294 413

* Operafing lease rentals anse from properties which the Group has sokd ond is now leasing back. These properties were soki to generate financing and
they now contiibute to the Groun's rental income and Incue property operating expenses. Therefore the Gioup consider these lease costs fo be a form
of inancing.

inciuded In the above is rental ncome of £18.5 mition and property operating expenses of £5.9 milion relafing fo sale and
leaseback properties.

The unatiocated to segments balonce includes the kair value of share based payments of [£1.2 million). UNITE Foundation of
(£1.0 milion). fees received from USAF relating to acquisitions £0.4 milion. net USAF perforrmance fee of £6.5 milion, defered tax
of {£0.3 milion) and current tax charges of {£2.0 milion).

Q
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Seclion 2: Resulis for the year continued

2.2 Eamings confinved
a) EPRA samings conlfinued
2015
Group on
EPRA
UNITE Srare of oint venhues bois
Total USAF LSAV Tota Tetal
im £m £m £m £m

Rental ncome 93.0 316 19.7 51.3 144.3
Property operating expenses 128.2) 9.3) {2.3) {11.6] {39.8)
Ne! operaling Income: 48 23 17.4 397 104.5
Management fees 17.5 22} {3.3) 15.5) 120
Operating expenses (2+.3) 0.3] 0.3} 10.6) {21.9)

410 198 138 336 94.6
Operating laase rentals® {14.5} - - - {14.5)
Net financing costs (23.6) 15.6} {4.4) 10.0) {33.6)
Operafions segment resull 79 142 o4 236 dé.5
Properly segment resutt (1.8} - - - (1.3}
Unallocated o sagments 16.4 - - - 16.8
EPRA eamings ary 142 9.4 236 413
Yield reloled USAF pefformance fees (11.8) - - - (1.8
Adjusted EPRA samings 259 142 7.4 238 4.5

* Operating lease rentals arise from properlies which the Group has sokd and s now leasing back. These properhes were sold to generate financing ond
they now confribute to the Group's rental mcome and iNCur property operahng expenses. Therefore the Group consider these lease costs to be a form
of fnancing.

included in the above is renfal income of £20.3 milicn and property operating expenses of £6.4 mikon relating to sale and
leaseback properties,

The unallocated to segments balance includes the far value of share based paymenits of (£2.9 millon), UNITE Foundation af
[£1.0 miion ), fees received from USAF relafing 1o acquisitions £1.8 mikion, net USAF performance fee of £20.2 miflon, deferrad tax
ot (E0.t mifion) and curent tax charges of (£1.4 milion}.



THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015 117
- L

podas Baeys

Seclion 2: Resulis for the year confinved

2.2 Eomings confinued

b) IFRS reconcBation to EPRA samings

EPRA eamings excludes movements relating to changes in values of investment properfies and interest rate swaps, profits from the:
disposal of properties ond property impaimments, which are included in the profit reported under IFRS, EPRA eamings reconcile to the
profit athibutable to owners of the parent company as follows:

00 ms
Note im £m
EPRA eomings 22a &2.7 61.3
g
Net vaafion gains on investrment property 31 772 1648 g
Property disposals and write downs 0.3 58 g
@
Share of joint venture gains on investment property 3.40 58.8 1527 ‘g
Share of joint venture property disposals and write downs - 0.3 g
3
Mark to market changes in nterest rate swaps*® 43 - 0.6) 8
Intarest rate swap payments on ineffective hedges* - 12
Swap cancekation costs (1.0} -
Share of joint venture swap canceliation costs 3.4b - (0.3)
Deferred tax relafing to interest rate swap movement - 02)
Deferred tax relating to properties 27.6 (309}
Minority intesest share of reconcling items™ (1.8) (3.2 -
Profit altributable o owners of Ihe parent company 2240 3519 o

7

* Swops ane designaled os hedging instruments within hedge relationships concluded to be effective for the year ended 31 Decerber 2016 and so are
reported within Cther Comprehensive income for the year, In the prior yecr certain hedging relationships were conciuded to be ineffective and hence
the for value movement of the swaps desgnated as hedaing instruments in those relationships were recorded within the income siatement rather than
Cther comprahenave income.

* The minaity interest share, or non-controling interest, arises as a result of the Company not cwning 100% of the share capital of one of its subsidiaries,
USAF [Fesder] Guemsey Lid. More detail is provided in note 3.4,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 2: Results for the year continuved

2.2 Eamings confinued

<) Eamings per share

The Basic BPS calculation & based on the eamings attributobie to the equity sharehoiderns of The Unite Group pic and the weighted
average number of shares which have been in ssue during the year. Basic EPS b adjusted in Ine with EPRA guideiines n order fo allow
users to compare the business performance of the Geoup with other listed real estate companies in a consistent manner and o reflect
how the business is managed and medaswred on 0 day to day basis. EPRA EPS and EPRA £PS pre yield reioted USAF performance fee
are calkcuated using EPRA eomings.

The calculations of basic and EPRA EPS for the year ended 31 December 2016 is as follows:

2014 s
Note tm £m
Eomings
Basic 2240 aste
Diuted 2277 3519
EPRA 22a 62.7 61.3
Adjusted EPRA [excluding yield related USAF perfarmance fee} 22a 61.3 49.5
Weighled average ntumber of shcares (thousands}
Basic 21.013 214,304
Diutive potentiol ordinary shares [convertittte bond and share options) 19.31%8 19,877
Diuted 240.328 234,181
Eamings per shore (pence)
Baosic 101.3p 164.2p
Diuted W.7n 150.3p
EPRA EPS 28.4p 28.4p
Adjusied EPRA EPS (excluding yieid relaled USAF performance fee) 27.7p 23.1p

Movements in the weighted average number of shares have resulted #om the issue of shares arismg from the employee share based
payment s<chemes,

Excluded from the potenfial diutive shares (share options], in 2014, are 16.838 (2015: 191,000} options which do not affect the diluted
waighted average number of shares.
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Section 2: Resulis for the year continued

2.3 Net assels

EPRA Net Asset Yalue per share makes adjustiments 1o IFRS measures by principally removing some iterms that are not expected to
materiaiise in normat circumstances fike iterns of deferred tax and the foir value of financial derivatives. The reconciliation between
IFRS NAV and EPRA NAV is available in note 2.3 (c).

The Group's Property business undertakes the acquisition and development of properties. The Property segment’s revenue comprises
revenUe from development management fees eomed from joint ventures. The way in which the Property segment odds value to the
business is sel out in the property review on pages 34 to 3%,

(%]

a} EPRA net assets 8

201 15 g

Wholly owred Share of IVs Toka Wholly ow nexdl Share of Tvs fotal Fl

Em £m £m £m £rn £m Q

Investment properties 1,061.6 10232 20848 1,024.4 8108 1,835.2 §

Investment properties under development 184.6 7.2 191.8 1498 80.2 2300 g

Tolal property portioiio 1.245.2 1.030.4 2,276.6 11742 891.0 20652 §
Debt on properties (474.8) (3446.8) (841.8) 1475.1) (304.6) [77%.7)
Cash 42.7 231 65.8 27.0 20 420
Nef debt (432.1) (343.7) (775.8) (448.1) {282.6) (730.7)
Other assets/(habiities) (14.8) {14.3) (28.%) (4.9) {18.3} {23.2)
EPRA net assels (pre convertible} 799.5 §72.4 1471.9 721.2 590.1 1,311.3

Convertble bond* 854 - 85.4 83.1 - 83.1

EPRA nut assebs BA4.? §724 1.567.3 804.3 570.1 1.3%4.4
Laan f6 valye % II% 4% % 3% 5%

* Under the terms of the Convertibie Bond, earty conversion of the debt nte eguity can be tiggered if the share price trades over 1.3 fimes ihe
Conmversion pace for o pedod of time, see mone detalin Note 4 5b).

Q
o
g
Q
3
g
3>




1. THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCDUNTS 2914

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 2: Resulls for the year confinued

2.3 Net assefs continued
b) Movement In EPRA NAY duing the year
Confributions 1o EPRA NAY by edach segment during the year s as follows:

2014 Group on
EPRA
UNITE Share of joint venhees bosis
Total UsaAr LAy Todal Tokat
e tm ™ £m £m
Operations
Qperations segment result 3.9 17.3 121 29.4 613
Propesty
Rental growth 58 148 120 248 62,4
Yelkd movermeant 49 7.2 7.5 4.7 19.6
Disposak and acquisifion gains 1.0 - - - 1.0
Investment property gcins 4.7 20 195 415 832
Deavelopment property gains 365 04 4.5 14.9 51.4
Pre-confract/other developrnent costs {(1.0) - - - {1.0)
Total property 772 224 340 564 1336
Undliocated
Shares issued 0.3 0.3
Investment in joint ventures 33 73 (10.6) {33 -
Convertitie bond 23 - - - 23
Divicends paic (34.2) - - - {34.2)
USAF performaonce fee 6.5 - - - 6.5
USAF property acquisition fee 0.4 - - - 0.4
Swap cancekation costs {1.0) - - - (1.0)
Cther (6.3) - - - (6.3)
Total unallocated (28.7) 73 {10.8) (3.3) {32.0)
Total EPRA NAV movement in the year 806 4568 55 823 142.9
Total EPRA NAV brought forward 804.3 305.3 2848 590.1 13944
Total EPRA NAV coried forward 8349 3521 3203 4724 1557.3

The £5.3 milicn charge that comgxises tha other balkance within the unallocated segment includes o tax charge of £2.3 milion,
fair value of share aptions charge of £3.0 milion and £1.0 milkon for the UNITE Foundation.
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Secfion 2: Resulis for the year continued
2.3 Net assels continved
b) Movement in EPRA NAV during the year confinued ’
Groupon
EPRA
2015 UNITE Share of jomt venhurgs s
Total USAF LSAY Tolkal Tetal
£m £m £m £m £m
Operations
Operations segment result ne 142 94 23.6 445
0
Properly Q
Rental growth 21.6 58 ol 280 49.4 §
Yield movement 97.4 370 41 78.1 175.7 3
Disposals and acqukition costs {17.3) 0.1 02 03 {17.0) “g)
Investment property gains 01.9 429 435 106.4 208.3 8
Developrent property gains 45.7 - 381 36.1 ars g8
Pre-confract/other deveiopment costs (18] - - - (1.8 &
Total property 1458 42.9 9.6 1425 2883
Unaliccoled
Shares issued 1126 - - - H12.4
Investment in jont ventyros (57.8] 414 162 578 -
Convertible bond 83.1 - - - &3.1
Dividends paid {319 - - - 319
USAF performance fea 19.8 - - - 198 =
USAF property ocquisifion fee 1.7 - - - 17 =
Swap losses and debt exit costs (1.1] {0.3) - ©3) {1.4) E
Other (5.4] - E - {5.4)
Total unallocated 121.0 41.3 16.2 57.5 176.5 z
Total EPRA NAY movement in the yeor 289.7 98.4 1252 223.8 5133 “
Total EPRA NAV brought forward 514.6 2069 159.4 3645 881.1
Yotal EPRA NAY carled forward 2804.3 305.3 284.8 590.1 13944

The £5.4 millon charge that comprises the other balkance within the unalocated segrment includes a tax charge of £1.5 milion,
far value of share options charge of £2.9 milion and £1.0 million for the UNITE Faundation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Secfion 2: Resulls for the year confinued

2.3 Net assels continved

¢} Reconcilialion o IFRS

T4 detemine EPRA NAV net assets reported under IFRS ore amended to exclude the mark o market valuation of swaps, defered tax
kabilifies and to recognise all propextias at market valye.

The Group also manages NAY using EPRA NNNAY, which adiusts EPRA NAY {0 include the fair value of swaps and debt. Under EPRA
best practice guidetines this is considerned 1o give stakehciders the most relevont comparable information on the curent fair vaolue of
all the assets and Rabilites in the Group.

The Net Assetsraported under IFRS reconcie 1o EPRA NAV and EPRA NNNAY as follows:

11 015
_ Noke £m £m
Net asset value reported under IFRS 1.451.6 1,275.1
Mark to market interest rate swaps 14.9 4.3
Ceferred tax 54 KR
EPRA NAV (pre conveitible) 2.3a 1.47.% 1,311.3
Convertible bond 85.4 83.1
EPRA NAV 1,5573 1.394.4
Mark to morket of fixed rate debt {1%.7) [28.0)
Mark 1o market interest rate swaps (14.9} {4.3)
Oefered tax {5.4) {319}
EPRA NNNAY 1.517.3 1,330.2

d) NAV per share

Basic NAV s based on the net assets attributable to the equity sharehoiders of The Unite Group pic and the number of shares in issue
at the end of the year. The Board uses EPRA NAV and EPRA NNNA Y to moniter the performance of the Property segment on a daoy
o day basks.

Fr 2015

Note m £m
Net casets
Basic 2,3c 1.451.4 1,.275.1
EPRA 2.3a 1,557.3 1,394.4
EPRA diuted 1.55%.¢ 1,396.7
EPRA NNNAY (diluted) 1.520.0 1.332.5
Number of shares (thousands)
Basic 22268 222,051
Convertible bond shares 18.426 18,124
Qutstanding share options 762 1.027
Diuted 241 454 241,202
Net asset value per shate (pence)
Bosic 453p 5740
EPRA &7p Hp
EPRA (fully diuled) S44p 5T

EPRA NNNAV {fully diuted) $30p 552p
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Secfion 2: Resulis for the year confinued
2.4, Revenue and cosis
The Group eams revenue from the following activities:
2018 s
Note tm £m
Rental income Operations segment 220 7.1 930
mManogement fees Operations segment 160 152
Development feas Property segment 1.0 19
Property sales Unakocated - 77.0
USAF performance fee Unailocated 7.0 22.4 o
1211 2095 §
impact of minority interest on management fees {0.4) 0.7} %
Total revenve 120.7 2088 Q
&
The cost of sales included in the consclidated income statement includes property operating expenses of £30.3 milion (2015: 2
£28.9 milion), operating lease rentak of £13.5 mlion (2015: £14.5 milkon), costs associated with development fees of £1.1 milion a
[y

(2015: £1.9 milion} and the camying value of property scles of £nd (201 5: £69.6 milion).

There were no disposals of properties heid as trading properties during 2016 and therefore ne revenue was recognised, During 2015,
Stratford One. @ rading asset, was sold to LSAY resulting in £77.0m of revenue.

Accounting policies
Revenue is recognised on the following bases:

Rerta Income

Rental income fram property leased out under operoting leases {comprising direct lets 1o students and leases 1o Universities and
commercial tenants} is recognised in the income statement on a stroight-ine basis over the term of the lecse. Lease incentives are
sometimes gronted on commercial units; these areg recognised as an integral port of the total rental incorme and spread over the
term of the lease.

Property soles
Income relating to the sale of frading properties is recognised once contracts for sake have been unconditionally exchanged.

Management and performonce fees

The Group acts as asset and property manager for the joint ventures and receives management fees in relation o these services.
In addition, the: Group is entitied to performance fees from USAF and LSAV if the joint ventures cutperform cerlain benchmarks.
The Group receives an enhanced equity interes! in the JVs as consideration for the perforrmance fee.

WIS TYIDNYR A

Management and performance fees are recognised, in line with the management confracts, in the periad to which they refate
as services are provided.

UOHOWUIQILIBUO
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 2: Results for the year conlinued

25Tax
The Group has not paid any coporation fax n the recent past due to the avoilability of capttal Glliowances, indexafion and brought
forward losses, However, it does pay UK income tax on rental income that arises from investments held by offshore subsidicones,

Accowunfing policies
The lax charge for the year is recognised in the income statement ond the staternent of comprehensive income, according 1o the
occounting freatment of the related fransaction. The fax charge comprises both curent and delered tax.

Cument tax is the expected tax payable or reCeivable on the taxable Income or loss for the year and any adjustment 1o tax payable
in respect of previous years, The curent tax charge s based on tax rates that are enacted or substantively enacted at the year end.

Deterred tax arses due fo certain temporary differences between the camying amounts of assets and kabiities for financial reporting
puposes and those for taxation purposes. Temporary differences relating 1o investrments in subsidiaries ond joint ventures cre not
provided for to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseaabile future. The amount of deferred tax provided is based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlermant of the camying amount of assets and liabilities,

During the year, the Group elected to become a RET with effect from | January 2017. As @ RHT, rental profits and gains on dispesal of
investment properties wil be exempt from comporation fax. As a result, no defered tax provision has been recognised at the baonce
shest date in respect of property assets (revalation and capital allowances). and the provision for deferred tox ioblity on property
business assets of £41.1m at 31 December 2015 has been fully relecsed.

The Group's investments in unit trusts are not exempt from fax as a REIN and, where they remain within the charge to tax, a deferred tox
fiabiity has been recognised as appropriate. The Group will be abie fo ufilise ifs tax odjusled losses against gains ansing on the disposol
ot its investrnents in unit rusts, As the deferred tax iability on non-propery business investments exceeads the asset relating 16 the losses,
the deferred tax asset in respect of the tax adusted osses has been recognised in full

a) Texx = Income staternent
The total taxation charge/ (credit) in the income statemeant is analysed as follows:

200 o5

tm £m

Income kax on UK rental ncome arising in non-UK companias 23 1.6
Curmrend tax charge 23 1.6
Revendl of deferred tax provision in respect of RET property business assets {398} -
Onigination and reversal of temporary differences 137 272
Effect of change in lax rate na {4.1)
Recognition of previously unrecogrsed asset - BO
Detferred lax charge /{credil) (27.3} 31
Tolal fax (credl)/charge In income stalement {25.0) 2.7

During the year, the Group elected to be taxed as a REIT with effect from 1 January 2017, As a result of this, the Group's
investment properties are exempt from tax and no deferred tax is required on the balance sheet. Accordingly the Group's
defermed tax now only relates to non-propefly invesiments (being primorily its interests in joint ventures) and historic tax losses.
The removal of the deterred tax provision in respect of REIT property business assets is comprised of credits of £29.2m in relation
1o investmen! properties and £11.3m in relation to accelerated capital aliowonces, and a debit of £0.7m tor fax adjusted losses
extinguished on conversion.

The movement in defermed tax provided Is shown in more detad in note 2.5 dj below.
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Section 2: Resulis for the year conlinued

2.5 Tax continued

a) Tax - income siatement continued

In the income statement, a tax credit of £25.0 milion arses on a profit before tax of £201.3 million, the taxation charge that would arse
at the standard rate of UK comoration tax is reconciled to the actual tax charge os fallows:

2015 D15
m im

Profit before fax 2014 3884
Income tax using the UK comporation tax rate of 20% (2015: 20.25%) 0.3 787
Release of defemed tox bolances due to REIT conversion (37.8) -
Property revaluations not subject fo tox {20.4) (28.4)
Effect of indexation on investments (2.1} (3.4)
Effect of statutory tax reliefs 1.5 2.9}
Income due to Uinite Foundation (1.0} -
Effect of tax deduction ransfemed to equity on share schernes 0.4 b1
Rote difference on defered tax (1.2} 4.7}
Movement on unprovided deferred tax asset - [0.8)
Recognition of previously untecognised deferred tax asset - 7.4)
Prior years adjustiments 0.3 {0.3)
Tolal fax charge in Income sialement (25.0) 2.7

The main rate of comoration tax reduced from 21% to 20% with effect from 1 Apxil 2015. Accordingly, the reconcliation above has
been cakculcted at a rate of 20% (2015: 20.25%).

Following the Group's election to become a RET [effective 1 January 2017}, defemred tax on its REIT property business assets is no
longer required. Accordingly, the Group has recognised a credit of £39.8m in the Income Statement reversing the provision for
deferred tax kbilities and gssets recognised at 31 December 2015 relating to the revaluation of invesiment property, ccceleraled
capitol allowonces, and property business tax iosses.

Deterred tax i an accounting adiustment intended to refiect tax that the Group may have fo pay in the future if certain events occur,
and s distinct from the Group's curent tax charge [the iatter being the tax actually payable to HM Revenue & Customs for the year).
Accordingly, the release of the deferred tax provision is an accounting onty adjustment, and does not result in the Group recewving a
tax credit or refund. The curent tax charge for the year ended 31 December 2014 is unaftected by the election to become a REIT.

b} Tax - other comprehensive income
Within other comprehensive income @ kax charge tolaling £1.6 milion (2015: £0.8 milion credit] has been recognised representing
deferred tax, An analysis of this & included in the deferred tax movement on page 126,

<) Tax - skalement of chonges in equity
Within the statement of changes in equity a fax charge totaling £0.1 milion {2015: £0.8 milkon credit) has been reacognised
representing defemed tax. An analysis of this is included in the deferred tax movement on page 126,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 2: Resulis for the year confinued

2.5 Tax confinved

d) Tax - balance shaet

The table below outiines the deferred tax liabilties/{assets) that are recognised in the bakance sheet, together with their movements
in the year

2015

A131 December {Credred)] Charged At 31 December

LS Tronssers noncome: ety 1

£m £m £m £m m

Investments 14.7 - 25 - 172

Investment property (REIT property business assets) 413 - {41.1) - -
Property, pkant and machinery (0.3 - 0.2 - (a.1)
Share schemes {1.8) - 0.1 0.5 0.9)

Interest rate swaps (1.1) - 11 -

Interest rate swaps rekating to joint ventures {0.5) - 0.5 -
Tax vaive of cared forwald 1osses recognised [22.3) - o 10.4) (11.8)

Net tax (assels)/lablities 30.0 - (27.3) 1.7 4.4

2015

Al 3} December [Cradited) Charged At 31 December

D14 Trorsfors nincoma in equity x5

£ £m £m £m £m

Investment property 17.3 - 167 - 340
Property, plant ond machinery 0.6} - 0.3 - f0.3)

Invesiments in joint ventures 10.7 - 11.1 - 218
Share options {1.5) - 0.2) 0.1 (1.8}
interest rate swaps 0.3 - 0.2 (1.0 {1.1)
interest rate swaps rekating 1o joint ventures [0.4) - - o {0.5)
Tax value g)_f camed forward losses re_cognised [24.4) - 30 (0._91 (22.3)_

Net tax (assets)/Babilifies 0.6 - 311 (.7 30.0

A reduction n the UK corporafion fax rate from 19% to 17% leffective | Aprl 2020} was substantively enacted on 26 September 2016,
This wil reduce the Group's future curent tax charge accordingly. The deferred tax liabilty ot 31 December 2016 has been caiculoted
based on the rate at which it is expected to reverse.

Foliowing the Group's election to become a REIT, dispasals of nvastment property wil be exemnpt from tox and as a result no deferred
tax liability has been recognised in relation to these assets. The movement of £41.1m in the yeor s made up of a combination of in
year movement and reversal of the remaining provision. The Group’s investments in property unit trusts {being prirnarily its interests

in Join! ventures) are not exempl from tox os o RET. Where the interes! in joirt ventures rermains subject toiax, a defermed fax Yability
has been recognised on the excess of the market value of these assets aver ther histonc tax base cost. At 31 December 2014 the
deferred tax iabilty in relation to these investments waos £17.2m.

Company
Deferred fax has not been recognised on termporary differences of £118.9 millon (2015; £104.9 mifion) in respect of revaluation of
subsidianies and investment in joint ventures as il is proboble that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.,

2.5 Auditfees
Disclosures in respect of fees paid to the audi‘ors can be found n the Audit Committee Repar, page &4.
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Seciion 3: Asset management

The Group hoids its properdty porifollo direcily and through s joint ventures. The perfonmance of the property porifolio

o whether wholly cwned or In joini venlures is the key factor thal drives net asset value (NAV), one of the Group's key
perdormance indicalors. The following pages provide disclosures about the Group's investments In propesty assels
ond joinl venhwes ond thelr performance over the year.

3.1 Wholly owned propesty assels
The Group's whoily owned property portfoiio is heid in two groups on the balance sheet at the canmying values detalled below.
In the Group's EPRA NAV, all these groups are shown of market value.

T) mvestment property (fixed assets)
These are assets that the Group intends to hold for & long period fo eam rental income or capital oppreciotion. The assets are held
at far value in the balance sheet with changes in far value taken to the income staterment.

W) Invesiment property under development (xed casels)
These are assets which are cumently in the course of construction and which will be fransferrec to ‘Investment property”
on completion. The assets are held at fair value in the balance sheet with changes in fair value faken to the income statement.

Accounting policies
Properties held under operating leases are not ncluded in assets, but the future payments due in respect of these properties are

disclosed in nole 4.6a.
Investment property and investment property under development are held at far value.

Completed properties, properties under development and inventaries are shown at the kower of cost and netreclisabie value.

Net reclisable value k the estimated sefiing price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and seting
expenses. All costs directly associoted with the purchase and construction of a property, and alf subsequent qualfying expenditure
is capitalsed.

The recogrition of acquisitions and disposals of investment and other property eccurs on unconditional exchange of contracts.

Boowing costs are capitalised if they are directly attributabie to the acquisition and construction of a property asset. Capitalsation
of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the asset are in progress and expenditures ond borowing costs are
peing incured. Capitalisation of borowing costs continues until the assets are substantiaty ready for ther intended use but stops i
development activities are suspended. If the resulting camying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an imparment
loss is recognised. The capitalisafion rate is amived at by reference ‘o the actual rate payable on bomowings for development
purposes or, with regard to that part of the develcoment cost inanced out of general borrowings, 1o the average rate. During the
year the average capitolisation rate used was 6.4% (2015 6.4%).

The valuation of property assets nvolves significant judgement and changes to the core assumptions; market conditions, rental
income, occupancy and properly management costs. could have a significant impact on the conying value of these assets.

Valualion process

The valuations of the properties are performed twice a year on the basis of vakeation reports prepared by exlemal. independent
valuers, having an appropriate recognised professional qualification. The fair values are based on market values os defined in
the RICS Appraisal and Valuation Manuai, issued by the RoyalIinslitution of Chartered Surveyors. CB Richard ENs Ltd, Jones Lang
LoSalle Ld and Massrs Knight Frank, Chortered Surveyors were the valuers in the years ending 31 December 2016 anct 2015,

The valuations are based on both:

> information provided by the Group such as current rents, accupancy, operating costs. terms and conditions of leases and
nomination agreements, capital expanditure, ete, This information is derived from the Group's financial systems and
subject to the Group's overall contro! envilenment.

> Assumptions and valuation models used by the valuers — the assumplions are typically market related, such as yield ond
discount rates. These are based on their professional judgement and market observation.

The information provided to the valuers — and the assumptions and the valuation models used by the valuers - are reviewed by the
Property Board and the CFO. This includes a review of the far value movarents over the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Section 3: Asset management continued

3.1 Wholly owned properly assefs confinued

The movements in the camying vaive of the Group's wholly owned property portfolio during the year ended 31 December 2016
are: shown in the table below. Whie completed property is held ot cost on the balance sheet, the Group marages the assets
based on ther market value (far value). These properties cre included in EPRA NAV at ther foir vaiue, valued on the same basis
as for investment property and investment propedty under development. by external valuers. The far vakee of the Group's wholly
owned properties at the yeor ended 31 December 2016 ore ako shown below.

2016
Investment
mvesimend  gropeny uncler Compisted
propanty development proparty Tolal
wm fn tm m
At 1 Januory 2018 1.024.4 149.8 - 11742
Cost capitalsed 7.8 1017 - 109.3
Inferesi capitalsed - 59 - 5y
Transfer frorm irnvesiment property under deveiopment 34.6 (34.8) - -
Transfer from work in progress - 8.0 - 8.0
Disposois o s - (28
Valustion goins < “s a2 - 8y |
valuation fossos ‘ [eX)] (1.0) - @
Net vaiuation gains o 37.0 40.2 - 72
Carrying value ot 31 December 2014 1.061.6 184.6 - 12442
Valugtion gains nol reécognised under IFRS but included in EPRA NAY - - - -
Brought forward - - - -
Market value at 31 December 2014 10416 184.4 - 12462
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Section 3: Asset management continved

3.1 Wholly owned property assets confinved
Tha movements in the camying volue of the Group's wholy owned property portfolio during the year ended 31 December 2015 and
the tar value of the Group's wholly owned property porfolio at the year ended 31 December 2015 is as follows:

2015
Invesiment
irvesiment proparty under Completed
poenty charverl i propaty Tolal
tm tm tm

At 1 January 2015 850.5 49.2 70.1 959.8
Cost copitolised 8.6 97.4 - 106.0 O
Interest capitalised - 27 - 27 é
Transfer from invesiment property under development 412 (41.2) - - %
Transfer frorn work in progress - 1.0 - 10 Qa
Disposais - - {70.1} [70.1) g
Valuation gains 126.4 410 - 1674 | 2
Valuation losses (2.3) {0.3) - (2.6} ] 2
Net valuagtion gains 124.1 40.7 - 1448
Carrying value at 31 December 2015 1,024.4 149.8 - 1,174.2
Yaluation gains not recognised under IFRS but included in EPRA
NAV
Brought forward - - 312 312
Disposals - - [31.2) [31.3
Mcarket value ot 31 December 2015 1,024.4 149.8 - 1.174.2

TN

Included within investment properties at 31 Decernber 20146 are £31.5 milion (2015: £41.6 milion] of assets hekd under a long keosehoid
and £8.9 million (2015: £10.5 milion) of assets held under short leasehold.

Totalinterest capitalised in investiment and development properties at 31 December 2016 was £34.9 miion (204 5: £35.4 mion)
on a cumuiative bask. Total intermal costs retating to construction and developmenl costs of Group properties amount to £51.1 milion
at 31 December 2014 (2015: £49.6 milion) on g cumulotive bass.

pund
=
o

Recurring fair value measwerment

All investiment and development properties are classified as Level 3 in the far value hierarchy. While completed property and property
under development are held at costin the balance sheet, the Group discloses the far vakee of these assets and includes them at fai
value in EPRA NAY. Completed property and property under developrnent far volue measurements are categorised os Level 3in the
far value hierarchy and ther fair value is measured wsing the same technigues as for investment properties ond investment properties
under development.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 3: Asset managemeni confinued
3.1 Wholly owned property assels continued

2016 xS
Class of assat Lm £m
Longon - Renial properties 424.9 409.4
Mojor provinciat - Rentol properhes 440232 4311
Ofther provincial - Rental properties 1965 1839
Muaijor provincial — Development properties 1584 94.2
GCiher provincial - Development properties - 256.2 55.8
Market value 1,246.2 1,174.2

The valuation techrique for investment properties i a discounted cash flow using the following inpuls: net rental incorme, estirmated
futre costs, occupancy and property management costs.

Where the asset i leased to o university, the vatkuations also reflect the length of the lecse, the allocation of maintenance
and insurance responsipiifies between the Group ond the lessee. ond the morket's general perception of the lessee's
credit worthiness.

The resulting valuations ore cross-checked against the initicl yields and the capifal volue per bed derived kom actuol
market transoctions.

For development properties, the far value | usually cakculated by estimating the for value of the completed property
{using the discounted cash flow method] less estimated costs o compietion.

Fakr value using uncbsesvable inputs (Level 3)

014 015

£m £m

Opering far value 1,1742 10010
Gains and losses recognised in income siatement 2 164.8
Gains and kosses not recognised on properties under developrnent - -
Acquisitions - -
Capital expenditure 1241 109.7
Disposal (129.3) (101.3)

Closing fair value 12442 11742
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Section 3: Asset management continued
3.1 Wholly owned propeity assets continued
Quanlilalive information about fair value measurements using unocbservable inpuls (Level 3)
2014
Foi value Vahiion Weighted
&m echikjue Unobervatile puls Range average
London Discounted Net rental income (£ per week) £179 - £327 £249
- rentat properties 424.9 cash fiows Estmated tuture rant (%) 1% - &% 4%
Discount rate (yield) (%) 4.5% - 52% 4.7%
Magijor provincial Discounted Net rental income {£ per week) E105-£162 £129 Q
- rental properties 440.2 cash flows Estimarted future rent (%) 1%-7% 4% S
Ciscount rate (yield) (%) 52%-7.0% 5.7% Q
Other provinciol Discounted Net rental income (£ per week) £95-£153 €126 8
-rantal proparties 196.5 cash flows Estimated future rent (%) 2% =-8% 3% 2
Dkcount rate [yield) %) 55%-120% 8.2% g
Major provincial Discounted  Estimated cost fo complete (§m) £10.5m=-£59.5m  £36.1m B
- development properties 1584 cash flows Estimated future rent (%} 3% 3% @
Discount rate {yleld) (%} 48% -59% 5.4%
Other provincial Discounted  Estmated cost io complete (Em) £12.3m -£265m  £20.1m
- development properties 262 cash flows Estimated future rent (%} % %
Discount rate [yield) (%)} 5.7% ~58% 5.7T%
Falr value af 31 December 2014 1.246.2
2015
Far vake Vaiuahon Weighted
£m techrque Unobsarvabile inpute Range Crverage
London Discounted Net rental income (£ per week] £190-£326 £244
—rental properties 409.4 cash flows Esfimated future rent (%] 2% - 4% 3%
Discount rate {yield) (%) 4.6%-52% 4.8%
Maijor provincial Discountec Net renial income (£ per waek| £95-£146 £120
-rental properties 431.1 cash flows Bstimated future rent (%) 1%- 4% 4%
Discount rate (vield) (%) 5.2%-70% 58%
Other provincial Discounted Net rentalincome (£ per week) £77-£135 £z
- rental properties 183.9 cash flows Estimated future rent (%) 2% 6% 4%
Discount rate (yield) (%) 58%-94% 63%
Maijor provincial Discounted Estimaoted cost fo complete (Em]  £9.4m - 47.6m £31.6m
- development properties ?4.2 cosh flows Estimated future rent (%) % 3%
Discount rate (yield) (%) 5.2% - 5.8% 5.6%
Other provincial Discounted Estimated cost to complete (Em) £89m- £10.5m £10.0m
- development properties 55.6 cash flows Estimated fulure rent (%) 3% 3%
Discount rate (yiekd) (%) 58%-55% 59%
Falr value ot 31 December 2015 11742

A decrease in net rental income, estimated future rents or occupancy will result in a decrease in the far value, whereas a decrease in
the discount rate {yield] or the estimated costs to complete will result in on increase in fai value. There are interrelationships between
these rates as they are partically determined by market rate conditions.

i
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Secfion 3: Asset management confinved

3.2 inventofies
2018 015
£m £m
Interests in lond [ X ] 0.9
Other stocks 21 2.7
Inventories 29 Aé

At both 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 the Group only has interests in one piece of land.

3.3 Other non-current asseds

Accounting policies

Property. plant and squipment

Other than kand and buidings: property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated deprecighion and mpaiment
Iosses [see below]. Land and buidings are stated at fair value on the same basis as investment properties. Property, plant and
equipment manly comprise leasehold improvements at the Group's head office and London office as well as computer hardware
and software at thase sies,

Depreciation & charged to the income staternent on a straight-ine basis over the astimated useful ives of items of property,
plant and equipment. Freehold lond i not depreciated. The estimated useful ives are as folows:

> Leasehold improvements Shorter ife of lease ond economic Fe
>  Other assets 4-20 yeors
Infangible arsets

Intangible assets predommately comprise internally developed computer sofftware which aliows custormers to book online and
processas transactions within the saies cycle. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materiak, drect labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Expanditure on reseorch activities is recognsed in the ncome statement as an expense
incured. 2014: £N1, {201 5: £M1). The assets are amoxtised on o straight-ine basis over 4 to 7 yaars being the estimaoted useful fives
of the intangible ossets, rom the date they are ovailabile for use. Amartsation is charged fo the incorme staternent within
operating expenses.

The Group's other non-current ossets can be analysed as follows:

N4 DS
Froperty, plort ndargitle Property. puont Intangle
and equipment amels Toda  oraequipment asels Toal
£m tm £m £m £m £m
Cost or valuation
At T January 18.¢ 33 52.0 14.8 25.4 40.2
Additions 3 8.2 11.3 4.1 7.7 11.8
At 31 December 2.0 413 633 189 33 52.0
Depreciaion, omodisalion and
impairment losses
At 1 Januory v4d 141 275 82 147 249
Depreciation/amortsation chorge
for the year 1.4 28 a4 12 14 2.6
Impaiment* 1.4 - 1.4
At 31 December 12.6 20.9 335 9.4 18.1 275
Camrying value at | January 9.5 150 24.5 &.6 87 15.3
Carrying amount ot 31 Becember 9.4 204 298 9.5 15.0 24,5

* Being wiite down of leasehold mproverments on vanahon of kease.

intangible assets include £3.9 milion {2015: £10.1 milion} of assets not being amartised as they are not yet ready for use, Property, plant
and equipment assets inciude £1.1m (2015: £nil} of assets not being depreciated as they are not ready for use. At 31 December 2016
he Group had capital commitrnents amounting 1o £1.0 mifion relating 1o intangitbie asiets ond £) 8m reiafing to Property. Plant &
Equipment,
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Secfion 3: Asset management continued
3.4 invesiments in joint ventures (Group)

Accounling policies

Joint ventures are those enfifies over whose activities the Group has joint confrol, established by confractual agreement, The
consolidated financial statements inciude joint venturas initially of cost subsequently increased or decreased by the Group's share of
total gains and losses of joint ventures on an equity basis, Interest free joird venture investrment loans are initially recorded at fair value
- the difference between the nominal amount and far value being treated as an investment in the joint venture. The impied
discount B amortised over the contracted lite of the investment loan.

The Dreclors consider that the agreements integral to its joint ventures result in the Group having joint control; a significant degree
of judgement is exercised in this assessment due fo the complexity of the confractual arasgerments.

USAF and LSAV are jointly owned enfities that are accounted for as joint ventures. Due to the complexity of the controctuat
arangements and Unite’s role as manager of the joint venture vehicles, the assessment of joint control following changes to
accounting stonckrds (IFRS 10) involves iudgements around a numiber of significont factors, These foctors include how Unite as fund
manager has the abilty to direct relevant activities such as acquisitions, disposals, capital axpenditure for refurbishments and funding
whether through debt or equity. This assessment for USAF is complex because of the number of unitholders and how thet rights are
represented through an Advisory Committee. For some of the activities it s not clear who has definitive control of the activities, n
some scenarnios the Group can confrol, in others the Advisory Committee. However, for the activities which are considered o have
the greatest impact on the retums of USAF, acquisitions and equilty financing, it has been determined that ihe Group and the
Advisory Cormmiftee has joint power in direcling these activities ond thot on balance, it s appropniate to account for USAF as a joint
venture. The assessment for LSAY s more straightforward because the Group and GIC each own 5% of the joint venture and there
is therefore much clecrer evidence that control over the key acivities i shared by the two parties.

The Group has two joint ventures:

Group's share
of assetsfresulls Legal entity n wihich
Joint ventue W6 {25 Otyective Pariner Group has Inferest
The UNITE UK Student 24.6%" {23.0%) Invest ond operate Consortium of investors UNITE UK Studient
Accommodation fund student occommodation Accommodation Fund,
[USAF) throughout the UK G Jersey Unit Trust
London Student S0% (50%} Deveiop and cperate GIC Real Estate Pte, Ltd  LSAV Unit Trust, a Jersey Unit
Accommodation Venture student accommodation in Real estate Trust and LAY {Holdings)
{LSAV] London nwvestment vehicle  Ud, incorparated in Jorsey
of the Govemment
of Singapore

* Part of the Group'sinlerest s heid through a subsidiary. USAF (Feeder) Guemsey Lid. in which there is an extemnal investor. A minority inferest therefore
eccuws on consalidahon of the Group's rasulls representing the external investor's share of profits and assefs rekaling to s mvesiment in USAF.
The ordinay shareholders of The Unite Group plic are beneficialy interested in 22.0% (2015 21 4%) of USAF,

poda 180048
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

section 3: Asset management confinued
3.4 Invesitments in joint ventures (Group) confinued

d) Net ossets and results ol the joint ventures
The surmmarised balance sheets and results for the year, and the Group's share of these joint ventures are as follows:

THE UNITE GROUP PLC AMNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2614

2014
USAF LSAY Tokad
fm m tm

Gross $hare Grom Shae {roms Shave:
Investment property 2287.% 5621 1,009 504.5 32969 1.066.6
Cash a8 10.3 70 135 88 238
Debt (755.5) [185.8) {381.4) {190.7) {1.136.9) {376.3)
swop labifities 0.7 02 (7.1) 13.5) (64) (3.3}
Qther cument assets 35 0.8 08 04 4.3 1.2
Other curent kabiities (55.3) (L7 (14.8) (7.4) (70.1} (19.1)
Net assets 1.523.1 3761 $33.5 316.8 2,158.6 £92.9
Profit/{loss) for the yeor 164.7 45,3 97.0 485 261.7 94.8
EFRA nef assefs 15471 a2 640.6 320.3 2,207.7 724
205

USAF 15AV Total
— b im &m

Groms Share Cross Shave: Gross Shone
Investment property 20742 477 .4 8944 4472 29684 924.6
Cash 356 8.4 28.4 14.2 45.0 22.6
Debt {638.3) {144.9] [334.0) [168.0] 1974.3) {3149}
swap iobilities - - (3.9} {2.0) (3.9) (2.0}
Other curenf assets 1.9 0.5 1.0 s 29 10
Cither cument liablifies (66.2} (1.6 {18.2) {9-1] {84.4) (207}
Net assets 1,408.2 3278 565.7 2828 1.9739 6106
Profit/(loss) for the year 2343 3.7 234.1 18.1 4704 1818
EPRA net assels 14082 308.3 549.6 284.8 19778 §90.1

Net assets and profit for the year above inciude the minority interest. whereas EPRA net assets exclude the minority mterest.



THE UNITE GROUP PLC AMNUAL REPORT AN ACCOUMTS 2814 135

’4_:_'
g
a
9
)
g
Seclion 3: Asset management confinued
3.4 Invesiments in joint ventures {Group) continued
b) Movement in canying value of the Group's invesiments In joind venhures
The camying valse of the Group's investment in joint ventures has increased by £82.3 milion during the yeor ended 31 December 2016
{2015 £226 .8 miion). resulting in an overal comying vaiue of £692.9 milion {2015: £410.6 milion). The following table shows how the
increase has been achieved.
2016 015
tm £m
Recognised In the income siatement:
Operations segment result 294 236 O
Minarity interest share of Operations segrment result 12 12 )
Monagement fee adjustiment related to trading with joint venture 54 4.1 g
Net revaluation gains 588 1527 g
Deb axit costs - - [
Loss on cancalation of interest rate swaps - 0.3} e
Loss on disposal of properties - 0.3 g
Other - 02 o
948 1818
Recognised in equity:
Movement in effective hedges (14) 0.4
Other adjusiments to the canying vaive:
Profit adiustment reloted to frading with joint venture {(8.3) (1.9
Increase in koan 1o USAF - 30.5
Additional capital invested in USAF - 29.1 é
Performance fee units issued in USAF 256 - z
Additional capited invested in LSAV - 233 N
USAF performance fee 1.2) (3.7
Distributions received (29.2) {22.9) o
Increase/{decrease) in carying value 823 2248 :?
Carrying value af | Jonuary s10.6 3838 ‘
Canying value al 31 December 492.9 6104

g
2
|
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 3: Asset management confinuved

3.4 Investments In joint ventures {Group) confinved

b} Movement in canying vaiue of the Group's investimenis in joint venhses confinuad

In oddition ta its equity shares, the Group has ako provided interest free investiment loans to some of the joint veniures. These were
primnarily provided on the setfing up of the joint venture to provide capital to acquire investment properties. As a result of being
provided interest free, the loons were discounted on recognition to reflect the fair value. the unwinding of the discount & reflected
in the Group's finance income.,

<) Tramsactions with joint veniures

The Group acts as asset and property monager for the joint ventures and receives management fees in relation to these services.
in addition. the Group is entilied 1o performance fees from USAF and LSAV if the jont ventures outpertorm certain benchrmorks,
The Group receives an enhanced equilty interest in the joint veniures as considerotion for the perfomnonce fee. The Group has
recognised the following fees in its results for the year.

2014 015

tm £m

USAF 128 85
LSAV 40 4.7
Asset and propedy monagement fees® 208 132
LSAY 1.0 14
Development management fees 1.0 14
USAF performance fee a1 256
USAF gcguisition fee a.s 21
Invesimeant monagement lves™ 86 77
Totol fess 30.3 423

* X014 Assel and property management fees are shown gross. 2015 Asset ond property management fees are shown as reporied, net of frading
with joint ventures. The equivalent gross Rgunes in 2015 wene £10 7m for USAF ond £4.6m for LSAV,

** included in fhe mavement in EPRA NAY i a USAT perfarmance fee of £6.5 milion {2015: £20.2 rrikon), This is the gross fee of £8.) mikon (2015
£25.5 millon) paid by USAF net of advisory fee costs of £0.5 rmillon (2015 £2.2 milion) and a £1.1 milion (2015: £3.2 miion] adfusiment redated to
froding with jomit ventunes. The USAF perfamance fee wik be settied in units in The UNITE UK Student Accommodation Fund rather than cash.
Full detalis of the USAF parforrmonce fees are el outin the Sinilegic Report on pages | 1o 49.

Included in share of joint venture profitin the income statement is a share of joint venture property manogement fee costs of

£1.6 rdfion {2015; £1.4 milign). On an EPRA basis these costs are deductad from the praperty management feas shown obove, plus
an adjusiment for the minodty interest of £0.4 mihion (2015: £0.2 milion], This results in the net fees inCluded in the Operating Segment
result (note 2.2a) of £14.0 milllon {20135; £12.0 milion). Development manogement fees are ncluded in the Property Segrnent result
[note 2.2q). Investment monagement feas are included within the unalldcated to segmeants {note 2.2a).

Included in the mavement in EPRA NAY is a USAF praoperty acquisition fee of £0.4 mikion [2015: £1.7 milkon). This is the gross
fee of £0.5 milion [2015: £2.1 millien] paid by USAF net of a £0.1 milion [2015: £0.4 mikion) adjustiment related to frading with
joint venturas.

During the yeor the Group hos poid operating lease rentals io USAF rekating to two properties under o sale and lecseback
agreement amounting to £2.2 milion [2015: £2.7 milion).
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Section 3: Asset management continued
3.4 Investmenits in joint ventures (Group) conlinved
¢) Transactions with joind ventures confinued
Dunng the year the Group sold two properties to USAF for £88.4 million. Both properties were held on the balance sheet os investment
property under developrment within non-curent assets, the proceeds and camying value of the property are therefore recognised in
profit on disposal of property and the cash fiows in investing activities. One property was sold to LSAV in 2015. The profits relating to
sales and associated disposal costs and related cash flows are set out below:
Proft anc ioss Profit and ioss
2016 DS
LsaY 134y
£m im 8
Included in property sales and other income [net of joint venture trading adjustment) - 772 '8
Included in cost of sales - (20.1) g.
Proftt on disposal of prapery - 7.1 ‘g
2
=2
a
Prott and loss Proft and ioss a
s 15 @
USAF USAF
tm £m
Included in profit on disposal of property {net of joint venture trading adjustment) 32 -
Proftt on disposat of property 32 -
Cash flow Cash flow
204 D15
LEAV LSAV
tm £m
Proceeds - 84.3
Net cash fows included In cash flows from operaling achiviles - 84.3
Cash fow Caxh fiow
014 015
USAF USAF
&m &
Gross proceeds 88.4 -
834 -

Net cash flows included In cash flows from investing octiviles
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Section 3; Asset management confinued
3.5 investments in subsidiaries (Company)

Accounting policies .
In the financial stafements of the Company, investmenis in subsidiaries are hekd ot far vaiue. Changes in for value are recognised
in other comprehensive income and presented in the revaluation reserve in equity.

Cenmying value of invesiment in subsidiaries
The movermnants in the Company's interest in uniisted subsidiores and jont ventures during the yeaor are as follows:

o Invesiment n sJDsckanas ~
018 x5
m Em
At 1 January &48.3 4120
Revaluation 771 2363
Al 31 December 7254 448.3

The camying value of investment in subsidianes has been caiculated using the equity atiributable to 1he owners of the parent
company fram the consolidated balance sheet adjusted for the far value of fxed rate loans and properties under development. This
includes investment property, investment property under development and swaps at a fair value calcuigted by a third party expert,
Allinvestment properties and investment properties under development are clossified as Level 3 in the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy and
have bean discussed on page 129. The fixed rate Ioans range between Level T and Level 2 n the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy and
have been discussed further on poge 129,

In addition o the equity investment in subsidiaries and joint veniuras, the Compony has provided o koan with interest chorgeoble ot
6.125% to LDC {Holdings) plc. The camying value of the loan to LOC [Holdings) plc was £90.0 milion {2015: £20.0 milion). A further loan
of £89.9 milion (2015: £8%.9 milion} was provided to LDC (Hokdings} pic with interest chargeable at 5.0%,

A full list of the Company's subsidiaries and int ventures con be foundin note 7.
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Section 4: Funding

The Group finonces its development ond Investment activities thxough a mixture of refoined sarings, borrowings and
o equily. The Group continuously monltors ils inancing amongements to manage s gearing.

Interest rale swaps are used to manage the Group's risk 1o fluctuations in inlerest rote movements,

The following poges provide disclosures about the Group's funding position, including borrowings, gearing

and hedging insirumenis: its exposurs to market risks: and #s capitol monagement policies.

4.1 Bomrowings

Accounfing policies

Interest bearing borowings are recognised initially at far vaiue, less atiributable tronsaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest bearing bomowings are stated at amorfised cost with any difference between cost and redemption vaiue being recognised
in the income statement over the pericd of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.

On 10 October 2013 the Group ssued a convertible bond. The unsecured instrument pays @ coupon of 2.5% unti 10 October 2018,

in accordance with IFRS, the equity and delbt components of the bond are accounted for separalely and the far value of the debt
component has been detemined using the market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond. As aresult, £80.3 million was
recognised as a iobiity in the bolkance sheet on issue and the remainder of the proceeads, £9.4 million, which represents the equity
component, was credited to reserves. The difference between the far value of the liability ond the principal value is amontsed
through the income skatement from the date of issue. Issue costs of £2.0 million were allocated between equity and debt anad

the slement relating fo the debt component is being amoriised over the life of the bond, The ssue costs apportioned to equity

of £0.2 milkon are not amortsed,

The toble befow analyses the Group's borowings which comprise bank and other loons by when they fal due for payment:

Group Compony
2016 015 2016 DS
Camng Camng Carying Camying
value Falr value value Faw vawe volug wolye
m tm £m &m m £m
Cunent

I one yedr or 1838, or on demand 1.3 12 31.3 31.2 0.1 1.4

Non-current
In more than one year but not more than twa years 108.1 1322 1.5 r.4 85.3 -
In more than two years but not mare thon five years 126.3 1258 2022 240.4 90.0 830
In more than five yeors 239.1 223.0 240.1 2255 - 0.0
473.5 481.0 4438 467.3 175.3 1730
Tolal bomowings 4748 482.2 475.1 498.5 1754 174.4

In addition to the bomrowings curently drawn as shown above, the Group has avaiabile undrawn faciliies of £245.0 milion
{2015 £174.0 miflion}. A further overdraft faclity of £10.0 million {2015: £10.0 milion) is olso avaikable.

The carrying vatue of borowings is considered to be approximate 1o fair value, except for the Group's fixed rate knans caried

at £330.3 million (2015: £331.4 milion) and the convertible bond coried at £84.2 milion {2015: £84.3 milion). The converfible bond and
£90.0 mikion (2015: £90.0 milion) of the fixed rate loans are classified as Level 1 in the IRRS 13 fair volue hierarchy and have a tar value
of £212.5 million (2015: £218.4 milion). The IFRS 13 Level categorisation relales to the extent the fair value can be delermined by
reference to comparable market values. The ciassifications range from Level 1 where instrumants are quoted on an active market
through to Level 3 where the assurnptions used to amive at far value do not have comparable market data,

The remaining £240.3 mifion (2015: £24) .4 million) of the fixed rate loans are classified as Levet 2in the IFRS 13 far value hierarchy.
The: fair value of these fixed rate loans has been calcuilated by a third party expert discounting estimated future cash flows on
the bask of market expectations of future interest rates. The fair value of these loans & £215.1 million (2015; £226.4 mikon).

Properties with a camying value of £998.0 rmilion (2015: £993.6 millon) have been pledged as security against the Group's drawn
down bomowings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 4: Funding confinved
4.2 Interest rate swaps

The Group uses interest rofe swaps o manage the Group's exposure to interest rate fluctuations. In accordance with the
Group's treasury policy. the Group does not hokd or issue interest rale swaps for frading purposes and only holds swaps which
ore considered to be commercially effective.

Accourfing policies
Interest rate swaps are recognised inificdy and subsequentty at fak value, with mark to market movements recognised in the income
statament unless cash flow hedge accounting s applied.

Hedge accounting, as defined in IFRS. & when the interest rate swap is designated as the hedging instrument in a hedge of the
variabiity in cash flows attibutoble fo the inferest risk of borowings. The effective portion of changes in far vaiue of the interest rate
swap is recognised in other comprehensive Income and presented in the hedging reserve in equity. Any ineffective portion of
changes in the far value of the interast rate swap s recognised immediately in profit or koss. The Group only appiies hedge
accounting when the hedge is expected to be highly effective.

When g hedging inskrument or hedge relationship is terminated but the hedged fransaction is stil expected to occur. the cumulative
gan or loss at that point remains in equity with any subsequent movements in far value taken to the income staternent. If the
hedged fransaction is no longer probable, the cumukative unreqglised gain or loss recognised in equity s recognised in the income
staternent immediately.

The tar value of interest rate swaps & the estimated amount that fhe Group woulkd recsive or pQy 1o terminate the swap at the
balance sheet date, taking into account curent interest rates and the current credit worthiness of the swap counterparties.

The following table shows the far value of interest rate swaps:

2006 D18
£m £m
Current - -
Non-current . 1.6 B g3_
Fair value of interest rate swaps 11.6 23

The fair values of interest rate swops have been calcukaied by ¢ third party exper, discounting estimated future cash flows on the
basis of rnarket expectations of future interest rates. representing Level 2 in the IFRS 13 far value hierarchy.

4.3 Net financing costs

Accouniing policles
Net financing costs comprise inferest payabie on bomowings less interest receivable on funds invested [both calculated using the
effective interest rate method) and gains and Josses on hedging nsiruments that are recognised in the income staternent.
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Section 4: Funding confinued
4.3 Net financing costs confinued
2018 018
Recognited in the income statement: fm £
Finance income
- Interest ncome on daposit Q.1) {0.2)
Rnance income (0.1} {0.2)
Gross interest expense on loans 268 253
Interest capitalised R 59 (2.7} 8
Loan interest and simikar charges 20.9 22,4 §
Changes in mark to market of intergst rate swaps not accounted for as hedges - 0.6 g
Swaop concellation costs 1.0 - g
Fnonce cosls 21.9 232 §
Net financing costs 218 23.0 9

The average cost of the Group's wholly owned investment debt at 31 December 2016 & 4.4% [2015: 4.7%). The overall average cost
of investment debt on an BPRA basis is 4.2% [2015: 4.5%).

4.4 Gearing

The Group's acfusted gearing ratio is a key indicator that the Group uses to manage its indebtedness, EPRA net asset value [NAY)
and adjusted net debt oare used to calculate adjusted gearing. Adjusted net debt excludes mark to market of interest rate swaps
as shown below.

The Group's gearing ratios are calcukated as follows:

014 2'5
Note £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 51 427 270
Current borrowings 4. (1.3} {31.3)
Non-curent borowings 4 (473.5) 443.8)
Interest rate swaps liablities 42 (11.6) (2.3
Net debt per balance sheet {443.7) (450.4)
Mark to market of interest rate swaps 1.6 23
Adjusted net debl (432.)) (448.1)
Reported net asset vakue (airbutabie to owners of the parent company) 23c 145146 1,275.1
EFPRA net asset value 23 1,587.3 1.394.4
Q
Basic [Net debl/Reporied net asset value) % 35% F
Adjusted gearing |Adjusted net debt/EPRA net asset value] 28% 3% §
Gearing (EPRA net debt/EPRA net asset value| 2.3a 50% 52% &
Loan to value [EPRA net debt/Total property portfoio) 230 4% 8% >
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Section 4: Funding confinued

4.5 Anancial sk factors

The Group's activifies expose it to o varety of inancial risks: market risks - prmar ity nterest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s freqsury policy focuses on the unpredictabiity of financial markets and seeks fo minimise potentiol adverse effects
on the Group's financial pesformance. Delalk on credit risk con be found in note 5.3.

a} interest rate risk
Interest rate risk & the risk that the Group & impacted by signficant changes in intesest rates. Borowings issued at or swapped
to floafing rates expose the Group to intarest rate risk. The Group's policy is separaled nto two main areas:

[} Development and refinoncing
The Group had no specific development boamowings as at 31 December 2014 (2015: £nil).

the Groug's principal exposure fo interest rate fluctuations during development rekitas to moverments int langer term inlerest rates
which affect the amount of debt the property income i capable of servicing at completion. Significant agverse movements
undemine the Group's ability to release equity from its developments.

The Group will continue 1o review the level of its hedging in the ight of the curient low inlerest rate environment. The Group's policy
allows this exposure to be managed through the use of forward storting swaps.

) Medium and long-term finonce

The Group holds its mediurm and long-term bank finance under both floaling and fixed rate amongements. The majority of this floating
debit is hedged through the use of interest rate swap agreements. although not all these arangements qualify for hedge accounting
under [AS 39. During 2016, the Group's poticy guidelne has been 1o hedge 75% and $5% of the Group's exposure for ferms of
approximatety 2-10 years,

At 31 Decernber 2016. after taking occount of interest rate swaps, 100% (2015: 87%) of the Group's medium and long-term investment
porrowing was heid of fixed rates. Excluding the £92.9 miion {201 5: £1.7 milion) ot swaps the fxed investment borowing is at an
average rate of 4.6% [2015: 4.6%) for an average period of § years [2015: 6 years), including these swaps the average rate s 4.2%
(2015: 4.6%).

The Group holds interest rate swaps at 31 December 2014 agaonst £92.9 milion (2015: £1.7 milion) of the Group's borowings.
The maiurity of these swaps and the opplicable intarest rates are as follows:

ms F 005 215

Nofihal Applicable NNl Apphicatie

armount hadged Inlwrestrales  omount hedgea mierest res

tm % £m %

within one year - - - -
Betwaen one and two years - - - -
Batween two and five years a7.8 1.8 - -
Maore than five yeors 45,3 22 1.7 5.4

During the vecr, if interest rates had increqsed/decreased by 1%, pre-tax profit for the yeor would have been £0.6 million
[2015: £0.7 milion) kower/higter.

b) Liquicity risk

Liquidiity risk is the rsk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obigations as they tfall due. For development activities, the
Group has a policy o inject substantioiy the full amount of equity required for each developmsnt before drawing debt against the
specific fachity for the devetopment. The funding requirements of each scheme ore therefore substantially ing-fenced’ and secured
at the outset of works.

The iabie below analyses the Group's financial labiities ard interest rale swaps into relevant maturity groupings bosed on the period
remaining unfil the contractual maturify date. The amounts disciosad in the fable are the contractual undiscounted cash flows
{including interest}, so wil not atways reconcile with the amounts disciosed on the balance sheet.
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Section 4: Funding continued
4.5 Financial risk factors continued
b) Liquidity risk continued
2016
Todol conlractual Less than Satwaen Bolwaan Over
cash Rows 1 year t and 2 years 2and S yecns Syeas
£m £tm £m £m &m
Bank and other ioans* 4902 19.7 40.9 1728 256.8
Convertible bonds 3.8 22 1.6 - -
Trade and other payabiles 123.7 1237 - - -
[#]
Intarest rate swaps - effective 15.7 08 17 82 4.0 §
Interest rate swaps — ineffective - - - - - Q
723.4 148.4 1382 181.0 2608 o
2
2005 3
Q
Total contractual Less than Between Betwean Crver ﬁ
cash fiows 1 yeor | and 2 years 2.and 5 yeare 5 yaors
£m Em £m £m Em
Bark and other oans® 507.3 503 19.6 171.5 2679
Convertible bonds 96.1 2.2 22 217 -
Trade ond other payabies 115.5 115.5 - - -
Interest rate swaps — eflective 2.1 03 0.6 48 34
Interes! rote swaps - neffective — - - - =
7%0.0 15683 24 2580 2713

* The contractual undiscounted cashfiows inckucle £108 8m (2015 £114 3m} in redafion 10 the Company.

During 2013 the Group issued £89.9m of convertibie bonds. The bonds have o maturity date of 10 Oclober 2018. Under the terms

of the Convertible Bond, earty conversion of the debt into equity can be figgered if the share price frades over 1.3 times the
conversion price for a period of fime. As at 31 Decemnber 2016 this threshold has not been Tiggered., This threshokd was triggered as at
31 December 2015; the bondholders had the right to exercise until 31 March 2016: no bondholders exercised during this pericd. The
bondhaolders may exercise the Conversion Right in certain circumstances discussed above but this is contingent on a number of
foctors and therefore the bonds are shown to maturity In the above disclosure.

c) Covenant compliance

Many of the Group's funding facilities camy covenants. The Group monitors its covenant posifion and the headroom avaiable on
an ongoing basis. At 31 December 2016. the Group was in full compliance with all of its borrowing covenants. The Group is able fo
use avaikible cash 1o reduce debt to increase headroom on its loan to value (LTV) covenants. The covenant headroom position
& outlined below and assumes that the Group is able to use a mixture of available cash and add additional property o banks®

security pools.
N x4 3! Decermber 2015 g
Weighted Weighted weghied weghted a
covenant achal covanant actual -
Loon to value 74% 15%* 74% 2% g
Interast cover 15 4.04 1.47 4,47 _g_
Minimum net worth - - £250m £1.394 g

* Cokuiated on The bass that avallable ¢osh s used fo reduce deblt and avolioble property can be used as addiional security.
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Secfion 4: Funding confinved

4.4 Operating leases
a) Payable

Accouniing poficies

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income statement on a straight- ling basis over the term of the lease.
Lease incentives received are recognised in the income staternent as an integrat part of the total lease expense. where the property
interest undar an operating lease is classified as an investment property. the property interest is accounted for as if it were a finance
leqse and the fair value model is used for the asset recognised.

The Group has a number of sale and leaseback properties which are accounted for as operating leases.

The total futse minimum lease rentals payable under non-cancellable operating lsases fall due for repayment as follows:

2014 is

£m £m

Less than one year 138 14.7
Between one and five yeors 56.2 57.2
More than five years 171.0 154.5
fola 241.0 224.4

These leases primarily relate to properties which the group has sold and lexsed back and on which rentalincome s eamed., The leases
are generally for penods between 13 ond 18 years ond subject to onnual RPHbased rent review. The total operating lease expenditwe
incured durng the year was £15.3 milkon (2015: £15.4 milion).

b) Recelvable
The Group accounts for its tenancy conltracts offered to commercial and individudl tenants as operating ieases. The future minimum
lease puyments receivable under non-canceikoble operating leases are as follows:

2016 215

£tm £m

Less than one yewr 7.1 B85.4
Between one and five years 1404 1243
Wore than five yeaors 247.2 26.7
Tolal 484.7 2354

4.7 Capltal management

The capital structure of the Group consists of shareholders' equity ond adjusted net debt, including cash held on deposit. The Group's
equity 5 analysed into its various components in the Statement of Changes in Equity. The components and calculation of adjusted net
debt is set outin note 4.4. Capitat is managed so as ta confinue as o going concern and fo promote the long-term success of the
business and to maintain sustoinable retums for shareholders and joint venture pairtiners,

The Group uses a number of key metncs to manoge its capital structure;

adjusted nef debt (4.4}

adjusted gearing (4.4}

LTV (2.3a)

weighied overage cost of investment debt (4.501)

vV Vvy

In order to manage levels of adjusted gearing over the medium termn, the Group seeks to deliver NAV growth and to recycle capital
invested in lower performing assets into new assets and property developrnents. £132.4 milion of property assets were soid in 20146 and
we plan to sef an averoge of £150- £200 million of property each yaar. The Group targets Q yield on cost of approximately $%. The
Group does not commit 10 developing new sites until sufficient equity and funding 1o fulfil the full cost of the developrment is secure.

The Boeard menitors the abiity of the Group to pay dividends out of avaikable cash and distibutable profits, The QOperations Segment
generated cash of £61.3 milkion {2015: £40.8 million] during the year, thareby covering the proposed dividend of £40.0 mififen. 1.5 times
[2015: £33.2 milion, 1.2 times).
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Secfion 4: Funding confinued

4.8 Equity

Accounting policies

Ordinary shares are chassified s equity. Extemal costs directly altributable to the ssue of new shares, other than en a business

combination. are shown as a deduction, net of ox, in equity from the proceeds. Share issue costs incured direcHly in connection

with a business combination are deducted from the proceeds of the issue,

The Company's issued share capital has increased during the year as follows: a
2

0% 015 §

Cailed up, cliofted and fully pald ordinary shares of £0.25p mj Preroium shares m a

each No. of shares m m Mo. of shares £m £m g

At start of year 221,930,911 555 493.3 201,541,803 50.4 3858 é

Share placing - - - 20,137.326 50 107.3 §

Share options exercised o 115,908 - 0.3 251.782 0.1 0.2 a

At end of year 222,047 814 55.5 493.8 221930911 555 4933

The holkders of ordinary shares are entitied to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company. Al shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residudl assets,

4.9 Dividends

Accounting policles
Dividends ore recognised through equity on the earfier of their approval by the Company’s shareholders or their payment.

SNYNIL

WVl

During the year, the Compxany deckred and paid an interim dividend of £13.2 milion - 6.0p per shore (2015: £12.1 million - 5.5p per
share) and paid ¢ £21.0 milion final dividend ~ 9.5p per share redafing fo the yeor ended 3t December 2015 (2014: £19.8 milion - 9.0p
per share).

Twars

After the year end, the Drectors proposed a final dividend per share of 12.0p (2015: 9.5p), bringing the total dividend per share for the
yaar to 18.00 (2015 15.0p). No provision has been made in relation to this dividend.

UGHOWIOMU IBUIO
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Section 5: Working capitfal

This section focuses on how the Group generale: lis operating cash flows. Careful manogement of werking caplial
is vital to ensure that the Group can meet ils irading and financing obligations within s ordinary operaling cycle.
On the foliowing pages you will find disclosures around the Group's cash posliion and how cash is genercted from
the Group's rading activiles, and disclosures aound irode recelivables and payables.

5.1 Cash and cash equivalents

r

Accounting policles

Cash and cash equivalents comyprise cash balances and call depaosits. Cash equivalents are short-terrn, highty licquid investrrants that
ara readiy conwvertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, Bonk overdrafts
that are repayabie on demand and form an integral port of the Group's cash management are included as a component of cash
and cash equivoents for the pupote of the siatement of cash flows.

The Group's cash position at 31 December 2016 was £42.7 milion (2015: £27.0 milion,).
At 31 December 2016 the Cormpany had on overdraft of £0.1 miion [2015: overdraft £1.4 milion).

The Group's cash balances include £13.4 milion (201 5: £8.5 miion) whose use ot the balance sheet date & resincted by funding
agreements to pay operating costs and loan interest relating to specific properties.

The Group generates cash flom its operating octivities as follows:

Grovp Cormpxany
i 215 2014 N5
Note £m £m £m &m
Profit/ [loss) for the year 264 355.7 2138 2899
adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortsation 33 44 26 - -
Far value of share based payments 6.1 12 29 - -
Dividends received - - {139.3) (55.7)
Change in value of nvestment property KX {77.2) {1564.8) - -
Change in vale of investments 35 - - {77.1) {236.3)
Net fingnce costs 43 ns 230 (0.3 0.3}
{Profit) 10ss on disposal of investrnent property (0.4} 0.6 - -
Share of joint venture profit 3.40 {94.8) [181.8] - -
Trading with joint venture odjustment 75 15.5 - -
Tax charge/|credit ) 2.5a {25.0) 27 - -
Cash flows from opearaling activiltes betore
changes in working capital 3.9 8.4 (2.9) {2.4)
{Increase)/decrecase in trade and other receivables (20.4) (39.6) - -
Decrease/(increase) in completed property ond property
under developrment - 701 - -
Decrease/(increase} in inventories ar 03 - -
increase/(decrease) in fade ond other poyobles - 246.1 s 0.3 02
Cash flows from operating aclivities 70.3 120.8 (2.8} {2.2)

£25.6 million of the brought forward trade and other receivables was settled inunits in 1he USAF rather than cash.

Cash flows consist of the following segmeniat cash inflows/[outfiows): Operafions £41.3 milion {2015: £40.8 milion), property

[£6.0 mithon} [2015: (£48.3 milion)) and unaliocated (£39.6 miion) (2015: £6.9 milion). The unallocated amount includes Group
divicends (£34.2 mifon| {201 5: (£31.9 miion)), tax payable of [£2.2 million] (2015: (£0.3 milion)), investment in joint ventures (£nd)
2015 (£52.4 milkon)). contributions 1o GNITE Foundafion (£1.0 million) {201 5: (£3.0 milion)} and amounts received from shares issued
£0.3 milion {2015: £112.6 miion).
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Section 5: Working capital confinued
5.2 Trade and other receivables
Accounling policles
Trade receivables are nitially recognised at the amount invoiced 1o the customer (far value) and subsequenty at the amounts
consideraed recoveroble (amortised cost). Estimates cre used in detemining the level of receivables that will not. in the opinion of
the Board. be collected. These estimates incilude such factors as historcal experence and industry specific factors. A provision for
impoiment of fracde receivabies is established when there is suficient evidence that the Group will not be able to collect al amounts
due. The camying value of trade recewables is considered 1o approximate far vaive.
g
Trade and ofher receivables con be analysed as folows, all trade and other receivables are current. g
g
Group Company g
E1T] 015 o1 5 ©
tm £m £m &m é
Trade receivables 17.8 23 - - §
Amounts due from group undertakings - - 686.4 639.3 9
Amounts owad by joint ventures 343 417 - -
Prepayments and accrued income 8.4 7.1 - -
USAF pefformance fee 81 25.6 - -
Other receivobies 73 6.3 - -
Trade ond other receivables 7.9 830 686.4 4639.3

The USAF perfomance fee will be sethed in units in USAF.

The Group offers tenancy cantracts to commercial (Universities and retail unit tenants) and individual tenonts based on the academic
yecor. The Group monitors and manages the recoverabiity of its receivables based on the academic year to which the amounts
relate, Rental ncome is payable immediately. therefore all receivables relating o tenants are past the payment due date.

2016
Ageing by academic yeur
Toral 00617 15718 Prior yeors
tm £m T [
Rental deblors
Commercial tenants ipast due ond impaied) 0.4 0.3 Q.1 -
Individuat tenants [past due and impaired) 188 174 09 05
Provisions carmed (1.4) (0.1) {0.8) 0.5)
Trade receivables 17.8 17.4 0.2 -
2015
Agang by ocodemc year o
Tota! WINS 214/15 Priof yers 5
£m £m £m _Em 1]
Renial deblors F
Commercial tenants (past due and impaired) 08 06 0.1 [eR] 3
Indivichsal ¥enanis {post due ond impaired) 3.6 19 07 10 %
Provisions canied (2.1 (0.4) {0.6) {1 >
Trade receivables 23 21 0.2 -

Amounts receivatie from joint ventures are net past due or impaired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 5: Working capital continued

5.2 Trade and other receivables continued
Moverments in the Group's provision for imparment of rade receivables can be shown as folows:

200 x5

m £m

At 1 January 2.1 1.7
Impaiment charged 1o ncome statement n yeor a7z 0.4
Receivables written off during the year |utiisation of provition) (1.4) -
Al 31 Decembaer 1.4 2.1

5.3 Credit risk

Credit risk s the risk of financial koss to the Groyp if o customer or counterparty 10 @ inancial instrument fails to meet its confracival
obigotions. it orises principolly from the Group's cosh balkances, the Group's receivables from custorners and joint ventures and loans
provided to the Group's joint venhures.

At the yeor end, the Group's exposure to credit risk was as follows:

06 D15

Note £m £m

Cash 51 427 270
Trade receivables 5.2 17.8 23
amounts due from joint ventures (exchuding kans that are copital in nature) 52 3.3 41.7
94.8 na

a) Cash
The Group operates investment guidelines with respect 1o sumplus cash. Counterparty limits for cash deposits are largely based upon
long-term ratings published by credit rating agencies and credit default swap rates.

b) Trade receivables

The Group's customers can be split into twé groups — {i) students (individuals) and (§) commercicil organisations including Universities.
The Group's exposure to credit risk 5 influenced by the characteristics of each customer. The Group holds tenant deposits of

£8.5 milion {2015: £7.8 milion) as collateral against individual customers. Based on the Group's experience and historical low level
of bod debt the Group views these receivables as recoverable balances with a low risk of defaull.

£} Joind venhures
Amounts receivable from joint ventures fallinto two categories - working capital bakances and investrment loans. The Group has
strong working relafionships with its joint venture partners therefore view this as a low credit risk balance.

5.4 Trade and other payables

Accounfing policies
Trade payables are nifially recognised at the value of the invoice received from a suppier (far value) and subseqguentty at amortised
cost, The canying value of rade payables is considered approximale to far value,

Trade and other payables due within one year con be analysed as follows:

Group Corrpany

0% 05 2016 2015

m £m m &

Trade payabies 168 207 - -
Retentions on construction confracts for properties 58 4.6 - -
Amounts due to group undertokings - - 1.3 58.2
Other payables ond accrued expenses 45.8 525 10 27
Deferredincome o . 377 - -
Trade and olher payobles 123.7 1155 42 60.9

Cther payabie and accrued expenses include £8.5 milion {201 5: £7.8 milion) in refation fo custormer deposits. These will be retumed at
the end of the tenancy subject to the condifion of Ihe accommodation and payment of any outstanding amounts. Defered income
relates o rentatincome hat has been collected in advance of it baing recognised as revenue.
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Secfion 5: Working capitfal contfinued
5.5 Transactions with other group companies
During the year. the Company entered into vorious interest free loans with its subsidicaries, the aggregate of which cre disclosed in
the cash flow statement. in addition, the Company was charged by Unite Integrated Solutions pic for corporate costs of £2.5 milion
{2015: £2.3 milion).
As a resull of these intercompany transactions, the following amounts were due (to)/from the Company's subsidiaries at the year end.
00 5
£m £m
Unite Holdings pic 70.7 103.7 A
LBC (Holdings) pic 415.7 5346 Q
UNITE Jersey lssuer Lid - 10 §
Amourds due from Group undedaldngs 484.4 439.3 3
¢
Unilodge Hokding Lid - 158.2) 2
Unitodge Hoklings [UK) Lid - - §
UNITE Jersey Issuer Lid . (1.3) - ®
Amounts due to Group undertokings (1.3) (58.2)

The Company has had a number of transactions with its joint ventures, which are dsclosed in note 3.4c.

The Company has guaranteed £!21 milion of its subsidkary companies’ borowings (2015: £121 million). The guarantees have been
entered into in the normal course of business. A iabiity would only arise in the event of the subsidiory faling to fulfi its contractual
obiligations. These guarantees are accounted for in accordonce with IFRS 4.

e
=
2
2
g
g
5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section é: Key management and employee benefits

1 The Group’s grealiest resource is is stalt and | works hard to develop and relaln ity peopie. The remuneration policies
. o in place are almed to help recognise the conliibution that Unlie’s pecple make fo fhe performance of the Group.

Cver the next couple of pages. you will find disciosures on wages and salarles and share option schermes which allow
! smployees of the Group lo fake an squity interest In the Group.

4.1 Sioff numbers and cosis
The average number of persons employed by the Group (including Drrectors) during the year, analysed by category, was os follows:

NLmbes of ermpicyees
014 1S
Manogernid and administrative 325 330
Site operatives 581 758
1.204 1,088

The aggregote payroll costs of these persons were as follows:
201 ans
£m £
Wages and salaries 38.0 375
Sociol security costs aé 3.5
USAF performance fee bonus - 22
Fension Costs 1.2 1.t
Far vale of share based payments 1.2 29
44.0 47.2

The wages and salaries costs include redundancy costs of £1.0 milion (2015: £0.7 milion).

Full details of the USAF performance fees are set out in the Strategic Report on pages 1 10 49,

Accounting polcies
The Group opefates o defined confribution pension scheme. Obilgations for confributions to defined conlibution pension plans are
tecognised o8 an expense in the income statement as iIncured.

6.2 Key management personnel

The Board considers that the key management persannel within the Group are those appointed to the Board. As such, the
rermuneration of key managerment personnet is contained within the Remuneration Report on pages 84 1o 95, which covers
the requirements of schedule 5 of the relevant legisiation.
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Secfion 4: Key management and employee benefits confinued
6.3 Share based compensation

A fransaction is classified os o share based fransaction where the Group receives services rom employees and pays for these
in shares or simiar aquity instruments. The Group operates a number of share based comprensation schemes allowing employees
to acquire shares in the Company.

q) Share schemes

The Group operates the following schemes:

Executive share option scheme — 'The Approved Scheme’ } Detals can be found in the Directors
Executive share option scheme — ‘The Unapproved Scheme’ Remuneration Report

Executive Long-Tenm Incentive Pkan (LTIP)

Scive As You Eaom Scherme [SAYE) Open to employees, vasting periods of three

to five years, service condition

Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) Used o award parl of Directors’ and senior
manogers’ bonuses n shares, vest gfter three
years' continued service

b) Outstanding share oplions
The table below summarises the movements in the number of share options outstanding for the Group and their average

exercise prce:

Number of Number of
Welghiud overage oplion  waghted average optons
sxercies price (thousands) axercse price (IOUsSONCK)
e 016 015 05
Outstanding at 1 January €0 2,774 £0.57 34618
Forfeited during the year £0.80 (495) £1.3 (148}
Exercised during the yeor £0.40 (845) £0.35 {1,337)
Granted during the year £1.47 67y £1.76 461
Qutstanding at 31 December £1.32 2113 £0.91 2774
Exerciable at 31 Decemier £0.58 109

For thosa options exercised in the year, the average share price during 2016 was £6.24 [2015: £5.93).

For those opfions still outstanding, the range of exercise prices at the year end was 0p 1o 642p (2015: Op to 584p) and the weighted
average remaining contractuat ife of these options was 1.6 years {2015: 0.4 yeors).

The Group funds the purchase of its own shares by the 'Employee Share Ownership Trust” to meet the obligations of the LTIP and
executive bonus scheme. The purchases are shaown as 'Own shares acquired' in refained eamings. As at 31 December 2016 the
numiber of shares held by the ESOT was 1,165,592 {201 5: 1.589.285).

The accounting is in accordance with the relevant standards. No further information is given as the amounts for share based
payments are immateral.

Secfion 7: Events afier the balance sheet date

In the normatl course of business subsequent o the yeor end the Group completed cne acquisifion fransaction on ? February 2017
and one disposal ransactions on 17 February 2017 within Investment Property and Investment Property held within its Investment in
joint ventures.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Seciion 8: Company subsidiares and joint ventures

In accordance with Section 409 of the Companies Act 2006, a full ist of subsidiaries ond equity accounted investments as at
31 December 2016 i disclosad beiow. Unkess otherwise siated, the Group's ownership interest represents 100% of the ordinary shares,
units or partnership capital held indrectly by Unite Group ple. No subsidiary undertakings have been excluded from the consolication.

Regisiered office: The Core, 40 5t Thornas Sireed, Bristol, BS1 4JX

Branchiirn Umitegt

Frzhardinge Proparias Lriac

Hirernow Lnied [C3128294)%

Inficiorth Limved (DA34083) ™

LDC (AB Warshouse] nnied

LDC (Aol Road) L e

LDC (Brnel House) Limied {05740628)

LDC {Comaen Court Legsshok} Limiled (51406201
DG (Comden Cour} Limiled ER2671)"

LOC [Capsial Cines Nominea no, 1) Limisd

LOC {Capral Cmes Nomnee o, 21 Lrmited

LDC {Captal Ces Nomenes no 3) Lrnded

DC {Coapnal Ciies hormmes no, 4] bimned

OC {Capal Cities) Limiled

LDC (Caonsewayend) Linrbad

LDC {Chariry Cout Lecashala) Urntexd (05140258
LDC [Choucer House) Lervied {(07898020)=

LDC (Conshiubon Sireet) Lmited [0F7210%98] ™

DG (Consruction Twol mitec [MBA7268)™

OC (Corzon Skmei} Lo (48202711

LDHC [Euro Loca} Limried

LDC {For Gosford) Lrwied (OF 1 501 49

LDC {Fery Lane 2) GP 3 umsted

DG {Ferry Lore 2) GP 4 Lmited

LDC (Fermy Lo 2) HeINGs Limited

LDC (Fnonce) Lameec

LDC [Fogmare Siret) Umded® (00387585

LEC (Greethom Sweet] Limitexy

LOC (Gt Sufok 31) Lirwed Parinenshp

LDC {51 Sulfok §1) Management mited Partnership
DC |Gt Suffok Strmat] GP1 Limited

1DC {Gt Suffok Street} GP2 Limited

LOC (G Sutfalk Stroet) HOONQs Levadad

LOC (Gt Suftolk Sreet] Management GP1 Limited
LOC |G Suffolk Srmat] Manogemen GP2 Limied
DC {Hompion Streed) Umded 10641 5598)=

DC {Hitheadt Lmiled

LOC {Hokdingsj FLC”

LDC (Hokoway Road 3] brlled 0a333899)

LDC ftmpendcl Whaal] Lrrhed (04541478)~

LDC Intermnafional House) Limred (10131352)™
LDC [Jormes wason Leosehold) Limvtea {0328026)™
LDC iKethom ond) Lmded 251 52229 =

LOC {Leamehold A} Limred [0066933)"

LOC {Lamsehold B) Umved (05778242

LOC Loughtarough) Lmhed

LDC (Mognef Court Lecsehaoid) mied (05140255
LDC [Mansheid] SR1 amibed

LDC (monshieid) GP2 Limdect

1DC (vansheld) GP3 umibed (074340251

LDC {manshelcs) GP4 Umikea {074340° 11"

LDC (Marsfieid) Urmited

LDC (Mansheld) umied Parirershg

LDC (viarsheid] Manogemant umited Partnecshg
IDC (Margaret Rule Freehold)] Lmilad (06641 2651
DG [Margoret Rule Lsasehokgl) bmided [Déd41 261~
LDC (Mllenmmam Vigw] imtted [G9890375

LDC {MTF Porifolo) Lursted

LDC (Nom Sineet) GP 3 Limsted

LDC {Nam Sireai} GP 4 Lrmated

LDC {Moum Sireet] Holchngs Umitect

LDC {Newgate) Limied (088958491

LDC | New Wokefleid) Lrmded

LDC (Okd Hospise) Linvted (07702143)™
LDC [Ordorg Road Boumemouth) Unvied (044073091~
LDC (Piwmnes) mated (05718624]~

LDC Porttoss 100) Leniad

LDC (Pertioia 20) imeed

LD (Porioko Frve Normenoat Lrmikad

LDC {Portfobo Fve) Lrited (060795811
LDC [Porifols Four Lmiled

LDC [Porffold One) Lmted

LDC {Portfom Ten) Limded 6877517}

LOC {Portfolo] Lmiled

LOC {Progect 110} Lirated

LDC (Pregact 114) Lrvted

LDC [Rodmarsh Rood) ted

LDC {Shaihome} Limsect (0PB9R132)++

LDC {Smehhield) Limited {(XX373074)

LOC {8t Lxoreands) Lmited] (08895870 +
LIC {1 Pancres way) GP 1 Lirded

LOC 51 Pancees way) GP2 Lirmnded

LDC {81 Pancros Way) GP3 Limited

LDG {St Pancrcs Way) GP4 imded

LOC {51 Porcias Wiay) Hokangs Lernided

L2 {$1 Pancrs way) Umited Parmenshp
LDC 184 Pancras Way) Manogement Limited Farinershin
LOC 181 vincents) Limited (102583101

LDC {Swancion NHS) Liraded

LDC {Tara House) Lrrwed 1052141 77)%

LOC (M Siteel) GP1 Lirwied (07" 99022
LDC {Murso Stneed] GP2 Umdted {07 1589791
LOC (Thurso Straet) GP3 Limited (07434001
LDC (Thurso Sree’] GP4 Larwed (07434133
LDC (Thurso Street) Umited Parnershp

LRC (Mhurso Sheaf] Managerment Umiad Partnenshe
LDC (Veniuro) imied

LDC [vemon Squore} Lmeded (064441321
LOC [Wikiam Mo 1)) umited

LDC Captal Cives Two (GP} mited
Leadmil Road GP Limited 106518429)™
Lannon Studos Stucent Accommeodation bmited
Portnership

LSAY 'Angel Lone] GPA umited

LSAY (Angef Lane; GP4 Lmited

SAV (Shofford) GP3 Lrrted

LSAV ({Strafforc] GP4 Lirmitexd

LAV (Wambiey) GP3 Lmited

LSAY {Wembiey) GP4 Lmited

LAV Rent Colechon Uimited

L5AV (Stopeton) GP3 umied

SAV (Stopleton) GP4 Lmited

Raiyard GP Lirnnied! (0601 5486)

Royard Stucant Accommadation Linited Partnersnip
Starcesen Limdad

The UMITE Feunaghon

Unile Acoommaodionon Management 16 Lmted
L2061 314

uUrde Accommodabon Management 17 Lmited
(0B 6328)™

Urte Accommodaahon Manogemen) ™8 Limded
(OB32B484) ™

Unde Acoommaodohon Management 19 L led
Unile Acocommadahon Manageamer:' 2 Limmted
Unite Accommadation Management 20 Urmited
Unite Accommodation Management 4 mded
{D&4BE2251

Unie Accomrmrasahon Manogement & Limied
Unile Acoommodahon Management § Umiled
Unde Accommadaion Manogemer ¢ Limiad
(061908483

Urda Accommadaon Managerment Lemited
Unrte Accommaodation Management One
Hundrad plrmiled

UMITE Captal Cives Holiings Lirrdec

UNITE Consiruchon (Angel Lane; Limiled [0B292704)~
LNTE Consnuchaon [Stapsston) Lmitac (090Z3406)™
UNITE Constuchon (Wemblery} Lrmiled (0902347 41
Urte Fnance Lirited® (04353308)

UMITE Fnance: Cne [Accommaodohon Seraces) Lmited
Unde Feance One [Holdngsh rmmed (43162071
UNTE Fndince One [Propenty] Lmited (04302331 1+~
LINTE FM et (068075621

UNTE Far Success Umned

Unte Hoings L1g” (31 46458) =

UNITF Homes Limded (151 402¢2)

Unds inagroted Soktons plc

Unde London umied

Ur e MO SORMCNS Lirsted

Urite Rent Cotlechor: Lernded (05P8935;

LIMITE Studden! Lrang Lirmibexy

USAF GP No 11 Manage-nent Limuled

USAF LP Lrmided (105840874)™

USAF Manogement GP NO 14 Limited:

LSAF Monogement GP Mo 15 imitea

USAF Management GF MNo. | § rnitet

USAF Managesnent GF No |7 lmited

USAF Nomwse No 7 Limded

USAF NOrtines No 7A Urmded

Zenth (Twol Limnided

L3AF Monogement 10 Limied

LSAF Monogement |1 Limied

usaf managemert |2 Lmsed

USAF Monogamant |4 Limiec

USAF Manogement 18 Lmited

USAF Manogesment 4 Limeted

LSAF Monagement 8 meted

USAF Mancgemen! smited

LDC {Fanry Lane 2] GP | Limited | SO.00%)

LOC {Fary Lare 2; GF 2 Limiled {SO00%)

LDC {Farry Lone 2 Limied Porinership {30 CO%)
LDC {Fary Lone 2) Monogement Linied Partnershin
15000%)

LDC {Straiforcy) GPY uried (S0.00%)
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Section 8: Company subsidiaries and joint ventures continued

Registerec office: The Core, 40 $! Thomas Streel, Bdstol, BST $JX

LDC [Skattora) GP2 bmited {50.00%)

LDC [Skatford) Lnivted Parmnearship (50.00%)

LSAV {Angel Lone} GP| Limitad {SD.00%}

LSAY {Angel Lane) GP2 Limitexd (S0.00%)

LSAY |Angal Lane} imitad Partnershyp {50.00%)

L5AY (Angel Lone) hMonagemen! Lnded Potnentin
[5000%}

LSAV {Slapleton) Urmited Partnership {50 00%)

LSAV (Stapleton} Manopement trmiled Partnership
(50 00%)

LSV {Skatford) monagement Limited Patnership
1S000%,)

LSAV {Wembley) GPI Lirited [90.00%)

LSAV (Wembley] GP2 Lrruted (50.00%)

LSAY (Wembiey) Limded Partnarstup (50 00%)

LSAV (Wambley) Manogement Limnied Partnership
150.00%}

LSAV(Stapleton| GP 1 Lemited {50.00%]

LSAV(Stapkgion) GP2 Lirnted {50.00%)

Uneer Capiial Cies urmited Partnershe (30 00%)

Urute Coprtal Criies Two Umited Partnershp (50 00%)
USAF Management Mo +5 Limited Parthership (23.20%
USAF Manogemenrt No, 16 Limitted Poxinershup (23.20%)
USAF Manogemant NO. 17 Umited Parnersieg (23 20%)
USAF No 15 Lirmvied Portnership [23.20%}

Fert Viloge Student Accommodaton Lirmded
Partnershity (22.90%)

Farster Bl Urmnited Parinershe (22.90%)

Shuciant Hal Normenees Limsked (22.50%)

USAF Monagemeant No 16 LP {22.90%)

USAF No | Limited Portnershns {22.50%)

USAF No 19 Lrmited Partnershea [22.90%)

USAF No 111 Limited Parinershep [22.50%)

USAF No || Management Lmted Parfnenshp (22.90%)
USAF NG 12 Uimited Parnershp 122 S0%|

USAF Mg 14 bimited Parinersh (22.90%)

USAF No 14 Manogement Limited! Parinarship (22 90%)
USAF No 18 Linited Parinershe [22.90%,)

USAF No & Limided Partnershe (22.90%)

USAF No § Lmited Patnanted [22.90%)

LDC {hewm Sirmet] Limited Parinership (22 80%,)

LOC (Naem Sieet] Manogement Lrsted Parinershis
{22.80%)

Fibert Vilkage GP umiled (14 40%)}

Forster Hol GP Lirdded (14 40%)

LDC (N Sttoet} GP 1 Limited (14.40%)

LOC {icwen, Sttty GF 2 Leited (14.40%)

USAF Fnance ¥ Lrmited {14.40%)

USAF GP Mo T Umiad (14,40%)

USAF GP NO 10 Lamved {1 4.40%)

USAF GP NO 11 Lirrvled |1 4.40%)

USAF GP 4o 12 imited {1 4,405

USAF GP Na 14 Uimitect {14 40%}

USAE GP NO & Lmited {1 4.40%)

USAF G NO- 15 Lirrrted {14 40%)

USAF GP O 1B Limited {1 4,40%)

USAF GP NG 5Urmifedt 14.40%)

USAF GP NO & Limited {14.40%)

USAF GP No 8 Lmed {14.40%)

Regisiered office: 13 Caslle Sireet, St Heller, Jessey, JE4 SUT

LDC: {GH Suffok 5t} Uit Trust

LDC [Monshield) Unt Trust

LDOC ISt Poncros Way) Uret Trust
IDC (Thurso Street) Lird Trost

LSAV (Jersey Manager) Lmited
Unite {Captal Cives) jersey Limated
UNITE Jersey Issuor Lirmted™

USAF Jarsay Investmeants Limtecd
USAF Jersey Manoger Lmided

LDC (Feery Lane 2) Unit Trust {SD00%)
LOC (Srotlord) Unit Trust {S0.00%)
LSAY {Hokdngs) Unwied (S0.00%)
LSAY (Trustee) Leodled {000}
LSAV Uit Trust (SO0}

Regisiered office: Third Floor, Lo Pialderie Chambers, St Pelter Pod. Guemsay, GY1 IWG

USAF Feedar Guamsey Lamriad (45.20%]
USAT |5 Ut Trust {23.20%)

Regisierad office: Third Floor, Barclays House. Viciona Sireel. Douglas, Iste of Mon, 1M1 2LE

Laadtmil ROt Stucart AcCommackation Unit Tyst
Lennon Sucios Student Accommaodokon Unt Trust

USAF Porttolc 15 Unit Trust [23.20%)
USAF Porfiolic 16 Unit Trost {23.20%)

The Rodyard Student Aocarmeradation Unit Trust

Registerad office: Soltire Court, 20 Castie Terrace, Edinburgh, EH1 2 EN

LSAV (GP) Lamded {50 00%)

* Held directly by e Company.

LSAV [Propexty Holdings) EP (S0.00%)

USAF Hoidings B Limeted (14.40%)
USAF Hokdngs C Lirmited (14.40%

USAF Holckngs F Lirmitexct [1 4 40%,

USAF Hoidlings G Limyted ([ 4,40%)

USAF Hodings H Lrnited (14.40%)

USAF Hokdings | Lirniec {14 40%)

USAF Holdngs J Lrmated [14.40%)

USAF Hoidings brmied (1 4.40%}

USAF Normmnee No | Lirnuted [14.40%)
USAF Nomnee No 10 lmitea {14 40%)
USAF Normnee No 104 Urmted {14.40%]
USAF Nomines Na 11 Lmided (14 40%)
USAF Normnee No | 1A Limited {14 40%)
USAF Nominae No |2 urmited (14 40%)
USAF Nomnee No | 2A Lmded {14.40%)
USAF Nominee No 14 urmaked! {14,40%)
USAT NOmnes No 14A Lmed [14.40%)
USAF Normines No 18 Limited (14 40%)
USAF Nomines No 184 Lrvted (14 40%)
USAF Norminee Mo 1A Limited (14.40%)
USAF Nominee No § Limiked (14 40%)
LUSAF Nominee No SA Lmded (t4 40K
USAF Mommee No 6 Limdedl (14.40%)
USAF Nomnes No 4A Lirnited (14,40%)
USAF Normines No § Lmitedt (14.40%)
USAF Norminee No 8A Limded {14.40%)
USAF RCC Limibed {14 40%}

UNITE Coapltal Crties Uit Tust {SO.00%)
Stugont HOls Long Ledse * Un Thust (72 90%;
USAF Porifolo 18 Und Trust (22.90%)

LDC [Naim Stret Uit Trust (22.80%)

UITE UK Sludent Accommodaton Fund [14.40%)

USAF Porttalia 17 Uril Trust {23.20%)

Rbert Sreat Stugent ACCommodahon Und Trust {22.90%)

* The company is exampt fiom the requirernents of the Companies Act rekafing to the audit ofindividual accounts by wiue of 54794 for the financrl year

ended 31 December 2014,
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FINANCIAL RECORD

2016 2015 2014 2013 012
EPRA NAY per share [pence) 444 579 434 382 350
iFRS NAV per share |pence} 653 574 414 370 73]
EPRA nel assats (£Em) 1.557 1,394 asl &82 547
IFRS net assets (Em) 1,452 1,275 B43 453 514
Managed portiolio value [Em) 4,327 3827 2951 2736 2,688
LTV adjusted see-through (%) 34% 35% 43% 29% 5%
EPRA earings (Em) &1 50 ] 23 16
Profit/{loss) before tax (£m] 201 338 108 77 126
EPRA earnings per share [pence) 28 il 17 18 10
Adjusied EPRA earnings per share (pencel 28 23 17 14 10

IFRS eamings per share (pence] 0 164 53 44 78
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of The Unite Group pic (the Company) witl be held gt 3 Rivergate, Temple
Quay, Bristol BS1 6GD at 10.00am on 11 May 2017 for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, passing Resolutions | o 14 as
ordinary rasolutions and Resolutions 15 o 18 as special resolutions.

Ordinary Resolutions

Annual Report and Accounts

1. Toreceive the audited Annual Accounts of the Company for the year anded 31 December 2014 together with the Direciors'
Repori, the Strategic Report and the auditors’ report on those annual accounts [the Annual Report and Accounts).

Direcliors’ Remuneration Report
2. Tocopprove the Directors’ Remuneration Report contained within the Annual Report and Accounts.

Final dividend
3. Todeckore a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 of 12.0p per ordincry share payable on 19 May 2017
to shareholders on the register of members of the Company at the close of business on 21 Apnil 2012,

Re-election of Directors
4, Tore-elect Mr P M White as a Director of the Compaony.

5. Tore-elect Mr R § Smith as a Director of the Company.
6. Tore-elect Mr ) JLister as a Director of the Company.
7. Tore-elect MrR C Simpson as a Director of the Company.
8. Tore-elect Mrs M Woistenholme as a Director of the Company.
9. Tore-elect Sir Tirm Wilson as a Director of the Company.
10, Tore-elect Mr A Jones as o Director of thhe Company.
. Tore-elect Ms Elizabeth McMaikan as a Director of the Company.
Audttors
12. Toreappoint Deloitte LLP as auditors of the Campany 1o hoid office until the conclusion of the next general meeting at which
accounts ore loid before the Company.
i3. Toauthorise the Directors to determine the remuneration of the quditors,
Authority to allot shares
14. That, in substitution for any equivalent authorities and powers granted to the Directors prior to the passing of this Resclution, the
Directors be and are generaily and unconditionally authorised pursuant to Section 551 of the Companies Act 20056 [the Act):
{a) To exercise all powers of the Company fo aliot shares in the Company. and grant rights to subscribe for or o convert any
security info shares of the Company (such shares, and rights to subscritye for or to convert any security inlo shares of the
Company being “relevant securities”), up 1o an aggregate nominal amount of £18,505.732 (representing aporoximately one
third of the nominal value of the issued ordinary share capital of the Compary as at 22 February 2017). such amount to be
reduced by the nominal amount of any allotments or grants made under paragraph (b} below in excess of £18,505.732
(b} To allot equity securities (as defined in Section 560(1) of the Act) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £37,011,464
{representing approximately two-thirds of the nominal value of the issued ordinary share copitat of the Company as
at 22 Febryary 2017) (such amount 10 be reduced by the nominal amount of any alloiments or grants made under
pamagraph (o} above) in connection with an offer by way of rights issue:
{} Infavour of holders of ordinary sharas in the capital of the Company, whera the equity securities respectively

attributobie o the interests of such holders are proportionate (as necrly as practicable) to the respactive number
of ordinary shares in the capital of the Company held by them
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
CONTINUED

{iil Toholders of any other equity securities as required by the rights of those securities or os the Directors otherwise
considér necessary

but subject o such exclusions or other arrangaments as the Directors may deem necessary or expedient to deal with

in relation to treosury shares, fractional entitiements o legol, regukaiorny or practical problems arising under the laws or
requirements of any averseas tesitory or by virtue of shares baing represented by depository receipts or the requirements
of any relevant reguiatory body or stock exchange or any other matier whatsoever, provided that this authority shall expire
[unless previousty renewed, vared. extended or revoked by the Company in general meeting} on the dote falling 15 months
from the passing of this resclution or, if earlier, at the conclusion of the next Annual Generol Meeting of the Compony fo be
held following the passing of this resalution. sove that the Company rmay at any time before such expiry make an offer or
entar into an agreemeant which woukd or might require nelevant securities ia be allotted afler such expiry and the Directors
may ollot relevani securities in pursuance of such offer or agreement as if this authority had not expired.

Special Resolutions
Avuthority to disapply pre-emplion rights

i5.

Thot if Resoiution 14 [Authority to allot shares) is possed, the Board be authorised to allot equily secutiies fas defined in the
Companies Act 2004) for cash under the authority given by that resclution and/or to sell ordinary shares held by fhe Company
as treasury shares for cash as if Section 561 of the Companies Act 2008 did not apply to any such alotment or sale, such
authority 10 be limited:

[a] Toallotments for rights issues and other pre-emptive issues; and

(o) Tothe gllotment of aquity securities or sole of treqasury shares [otherwise than under paragroph (a) abovej up to a nominal
amount of £2,775,859 [this amount representing not more than 5% of the ssued ordinary share copital of the Company as
at 22 Fabruary 2017},

such puthority to expire af the end of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company {or. if earlier, gt the close of business
on 10 August 2018, 1his being Ihe date which is fifteen manths atter the date of this meeting) but, in eoch case, prior to its expiry
the Campany may make offers, and enter into egreements, which weuld, or might, require equity securities to be allotted (and
treasury shares to be solkd) after the authority expires and the Board rmay allot equily securities {and sell reasury shares) under
ony such offer or agreement as if the authority had not expired.

That if Resoiution 14 (Authority to aliot shares) is passed, the Soard be authorised in addition fo any cuthority gronted under
Resolution 15 to allot equity sacurities [os defined in the Companies Act 2004) for cash under the authority given by that
resolution and/or to sell ordinary shares held by the Company as treasury shares for cash as if Section 561 of the Companies
Act 2006 did not apply 1o any such allotment or sale, such authority to be:

{a) Limited o the aliotment of equity securities or sale of treasury shares up to a nominol amount of £2,775,859 [this amount
rapresenting nat more than 5% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as at 22 February 2017); and

{b] Used only for the purposes of financing [or refinancing, if the guthority is to be used within six months after the original
transaction] a transaction which the Board of tha Comparny determines to be an acquisition or other capital investmeant
of a kind contemplated by the Statement of Principles on Disapplying Pre-Emption Rights most recently published by the
Pre-Emption Group prior to the date of this nofice,

such authority 1o expire gt the end of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company {or. if earlier, at the ciose of business
on 10 August 2018, this being the date which is fiftaen months afier the date of this meeting) but, in each case, prior ta its expiry
the Company may make offers, and enter into agreements, which would, or might, require equity securities 1o be allotted (and
traasury shares 10 be sold) after the authority expires and the Board may oliot equity securities [and sall tredsury shares) under
any such offer or agreement as if the outhority had not expred.
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To amend Arficle %4 (Directors’ fees) of the Arlicles of Association +
17, That, Article 94 {Directors’ fees) of the Articles of Association be amended by deleting the existing Article 94 and replacing it
with the following:
"The Directors [other than alternate Directors) shall be entitied to receive by way of fees for their services as Directors such sum
as the Board may from fime 1o time determine (not exceeding £750,000 per annum in oggregate or such other sum as the
Company in general meeting shall from time to time determine). Such sum [unless otherwise directed by the resolution of the
Company by which it is voted) shai! be divided among the Directors in such propavtions and in such manner as the Board may
determineg or in default of such determination, equally (except that in such event any Drector holding office for less than the
whole of the relevant period in respect of which the fees are poid shall only rank in such division in proportion fo the time during
such period for which he holds office]. Any fees payable pursuant to this Article shall be distinct frorm any satary, remuneration
ar other amounts payable to a Director pursuant to any other provisions of these Arlicies and shall accrue from day to day.”
Notice of generol meetings 8
18. THAT, g general meeting other than an Annual General Meeting. may be colled on not less than 14 clear days’ nolice. g‘
By order of the Board -
L]
Christopher Szpojnarowicz 5
Company Secretary g
22 February 2017 8
Registered office:
The Core
40 5i Thomas Street Bristol
BS1 64X

Registerad in England and Wales with registered number 03199160
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
CONTINUED

Notes

A member of the Company who wishes io atiend the meeting in person shouid amive af 3 Rivengate, Tempie Quay, Bristol BS1
4GD in good lime before the meeling. which will commence at 10.00am In order to gain admittance to the meeling, members
may he requinad fo onodyce their attendance card, which is attached o the form of proxy enclosed with this document, or
otherwise prove their identity.

A member af the Company who is entitied fo atlend, speck and vote al the meeting and who is unable or does not wish to
atlend the meeting is entitled to appoint a praxy to exercise all or gy of histher rights to attend and 1o speak and vote on his/
her behalf ot the meating. A member may appoint mare than one proxy provided each proxy is oppointed to exercise rights
atlached lo different shores (so @ member must have more than one share lo be able lo oppein! rmore than one proxy). A
proxy need not be a mermber of the Company but must atend tha meeting Yo represent his/her appointing member. Appointing
a proxy will not prevent o member from otending in persan and voting af the meeting ofthough voting in person of the meeting
will terminate o member's proxy appointment. A proxy must vote in accordance with any instructions given by the member

by whom the proxy is oppointed. A form of proxy which moy be used ta make such appointment and give proxy instructions
accompanies this notice. You can only appoint a proxy using the procadures set out in tnese notes and the notes to the

proxy form.

To be valid, any form of proxy, and the original or duly cerfified copy of the power of attorney or other guthority (if any) under
which 1t is signed or authenticated, must be received by hand or by post at Computershore Investor Services plc, The Pavilions,
Bridgwater Road, Bristol, BS99 &1Y, no kaler than 10.00am on 2 May 2017,

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy appointrment service may do so
for the meeting and any adjournment(s] thereof by following the procedures described in the CREST manual. CREST personol
members or other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members who have appeoinied a voting service provider,
should refer to their CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s), who will be able 1o take e appropriate action on their behalf.

In ordler for a proxy appointrent or instruction made by means of CREST to be valid, the oppropriate CREST rmessage {o CREST
Proxy instruction) must be property authenficated in accordance with Eurociear UK & Ireland Limited's [Euroclear] specifications,
and must cantain the information required for such instruction. as described in the CREST Manual. The message. regarcdless of
whether it constitutes the appointrnent of a proxy, the revecation of a proxy of s an amendment to the instruction given 10 a
previously appainted proxy must, in order 1o be a valid, be fransmitted so as 1o be received by the Company's agent (CRESTID
3RA50! by tha Igtest time for receipt of proxy appointments specitied in note 3 above. For this pumaose. the time of receipt wil
be laken to be the time (as defermined by the timestamp oppiied to the message by the CREST Application Host] from which
the Compaony's agent s able to retrieve the message by enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST. After this fime
any change of instructions to proxies appointed through CREST shouid be communicated 1o the appointes through other means,

CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors of volting service praviders, should note that Eurocleqr doas not
make avaiioble special procedures in CREST for any particular message. Normod system timings and limitations will, therefore,
apply in reiation to the input of CREST proxy instrucions. I} is the responsibility of the CREST member concemed to take o, i the
CREST mermnber is a CREST personal member, or sponsored member, or has gppointed o voting service provider, o procure
that his/her CREST sponsor or voting servica pravider(s) takels)} such oction as shall be necessary o ensure that a messoge is
transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular time. n this connection. CREST members and, where applicable.
their CREST sponsors or voting service providers cre refevrad, in particular, o those sections of the CREST manual concerning
practical fimitations of the CREST system and timings.

The Company may freat as invalid a CREST praxy instruction in the crcumsiancas set aut in Regulation 35{5)(a) of the Uncertificoied
Sacurities Regulations 200} as amended).

If you would Tike to subbmit your proxy vote via the internat, you can do so by accessing our regisirar's weabsite
(www.eproxyappointment.com). You will require the control number, your unique PIN fwhich will expire ot the end of the voting
period) and your Shareholder Reference Number [SRN}, printed on the proay cord, in order fo log in and submit your proxy vote
electronically. You can access this site frorm any internet enabled PC. if you submit your proxy via the internet it thould reoch the
registrar by 10.00am on ¢ May 2017, Should you compiete your proxy form electronically ond then post a hard copy, the form
that armives last will be counted to the exclusion of instructions received earliar, whether slectronic or posted. Please refer to the
terms and conditions of the service on the website,

in the case of joint halders of shares, where more than one of the joint holders purports to appoint a proxy, only the appointment
submitted by the most senior holder will be accepted, Seniority is determined by the order in which the names of the joint
holders appear in the Company’s register of members in respect of the joint holding (the first-named being the most senior).

if you submit more than one valid proxy appointment in respec! of the sorme shares. the appointment received last before the
latest fime for the receipt of proxies will take precedence.
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Any person to whom this nofice has been sent wha is o person nominated under Section 144 of the Act 1o enjoy information
rights [a Nominated Person) may. under an agreement between him/her and the shareholder by whom he/she was norminated,
have aright to be appointed [or to have someone else appointed)] as a proxy for the meeting. If a Nominated Person has no
such proxy appointment right or does not wish to exercise it, he/she may, under any such agreement, have o right to give
instructions to the shareholder as 1o the exercise of voling rights,

Tha statement of the rights of shareholders in relation 1o the appointment of proxies obove does not apply 1o Nominated
Persons. These rights can only be exercised by shareholders of the Comparny.

. Pursuant fo Part 13 of the Companies Act 2006 and Regulation 41 of the Uncerfificated Securities Reguiations 2001 (as amended],

the Company specifies that only those sharehaolders registered in the register of members of the Company at 5.00pm on 9 May
2017 [or, if the meeting is adjourned, 48 hours before the timed fixed for the adjourned mesting) shali be entitled to attend or
vote at the meeting in respect of the number of shores registered in their name ot that time. In each case, changes to the
register of memizers of the Company after such time shall be disregarded in determining the righis of any person to attend

or vote at the meeting.

As at 22 February 2017 (being the last practicoble business day prior to the publication of this Notice). the Company's issued
share capilal comprised 222,048,787 ordinary shares camrying one vote ecch at a generat meeting of the Company. No
ordinary shares were held in treasury and therefore the total voting rights in the Company os at 22 February 2017 are 222,068,787,

You may nat use any elecironic address provided either in this notice of meeting or any related documents {including the proxy
form) to communicate with the Company for ony purposes other than those expressty stated.

Mermbers atlending the meeting have the right fo osk and, subject 1o the provisions of the Act, the Company must cause to be
answered, any questions relating to the business being decit with at the meefing.

The following information is available at www.unite-group.co.uk (1] the matiers set out in this notice of Annual General Meeting:
{2) the total numbers of shares in the Company in respect of which members are entitled to exercise voting rights at the meeting;
{3} the tofals of the voting rights that members are entifled fo exercise at the meating; and (4] members’ statemeants, members’
resolutions and members’ matters of business received by the Company after the date on which notice of the meeting

wqs given,

. Wis possinle that, pursuant 1o requests made by members of Ihe Company under Section 527 of the Act, the Compary may

be required to publish on a welbsite a stalement setting out ony matter relating to: (o} the audit of the Company’s accounts
{including the auditor's report and the conduct of the audit) thot are to be lid before the meeting: or {b) any circumstance
connected with an auditor of the Company ceasing to hold office since the previous meeting at which annual accounts and
reports were loid in accordance with Section 437 of the Act. The Company may not require the members requesting any such
website publication 1o pay its expenses in complying with Sections 527 or 528 of the Act. Where the Company is required o
ploce a statement on a website under Section 527 of the Act, it must forward the statement 1o the Company's auditor not kater
than the fime when it makes the stalement available on the website, The business which may be dealt with ot the meeting
includes any statement that the Company has been required under Section 527 of the Act to publish on a website.

In accordance with Section 338 of the Act, a member or members of the Company may [provided that the criteria set out

in Section 338(3] of the Act are met] require the Company lo give to members notice of a resolution which may properly

be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting, provided that: {a) the resolution must nof be, if passed., inaeffective
{whether by reason of inconsistency with any enactment or the Company's constitution or otherwise]; and (b} the resolution
must not be defarmatory of any person, frivolous or vexatioys. Such o request may be in hard copy form or in electronic form,
must be authenticated by the person or persons making it, must identify the resolution of which nofice is 1o be given and must
be received by the Company not iater than six weeks before the meeting, o, It later, the time at which notice is given of the
meeting. (In the foregoing sentence, the ferms 'hard copy form’, ‘electronic form' ana ‘authenticated' bear their respective
meanings set out in the Act in relation fo a communication, or a document or information sent or supplied, fo @ company.}
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
CONTINUED

20.

21,

In accordance with Section 338A of the Act, a member or members of the Company may [provided that the criteria set out

in Section 3384 (3 of the Act are mej require the Company ta include in the business to be dealt with at the meeting a matter
{other than a proposed resolution] which may properly be included in the business of the meeting, provided that the matteris
not defamatory of cny person, frivolous or vexatious. A request may be in hard copy form or elecironic form, must identify the
mater 1o be included in the business, must be accompanied by o statement setting out the grounds for the request, must be
avthenticated by the person or persons making it and must be received by the Company not later than six weeks before the
meeting, o, if later, the time atwhich notice is given of the Annual General Meeting. (In the foregoing sentence, the terms *hard
copy lorm’, ‘electronic form' ond 'authenticoted” bear the respective meanings saet out in the Act in eiation to a communicotion,
or a document ¢r information sent or supplied, fo @ company.}

A member that is a company ar ather arganisation not having a physical presence cannot atlend in person but can appeint
somagna 1o represant it. This can be done in one of two ways: either by the appointment of a proxy {as describad in the notes
above| or of a corporate reprasentalive. Members considering the appointment of a comporate reprasentative shouid check
their own legal posttion, the Company’s orticles of associotion and the relevant provisions of the Act.

22. The foliowing documents are avaikable forinspeciion at the registered office of the Company during the usual business hours

on any weekday (Saturday, Sunday or public holidays excluded) from the date of this notice until the conclusion of the meeting
and will ako be available for inspection gt the place of the meeting from %.15am on the day of the meeting until its conclusion:

(o) copies of the Executive Diraciors’ service controcts with the Cempony and any of its subsidiary undertakings; and

(b} letters of appointment of the Non-Executive Direciors.
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GLOSSARY

Adjusted EPRA eamings

Adjusted EPRA earnings are prepared
on the basis of EPRA earmings excluding
the yield related element of the USAF
periormance feea.

Adjusted EPRA eamings per share
The earnings per share based on adjusted
EFRA eamings.

Adjusted net debt

The Group's debt, net of cash ond
unamortised debt raising costs, exciuding
the mark to market of inferest rates swaps.

Adjusted net debt

to property assets

The adjusted net debt as o percentage
of the value of Unite properties.

Basis points (BPS)

A basis point is a termn used to describe a
small percentage, usually in the context
of change, ond egquates 10 0.01%.

Direct lot

Properties where short-hold tenancy
agreements are made directly betwean
Unite and the student.

EBITDA

The Group's EPRA eqrnings before
charging interest. tax, depreciation and
arnortisation, The profit numberis used ta
calculate the rotio 1o net debl.

EPRA earnings

EPRA earnings are prepared on the basis
recommended for reql estate companies
by EPRA, the Ewropean Public Real Estate
Association, This excludes movements
relating to changes in values of
invastrment properties and interest rate
swaps and the related tax effects.

EPRA eamnings per share
The earnings per share based on
EPRA gamings.

EPRA NAV

EPRA NAY is prepared on the basis
recommended for real estate companies
by EPRA, the European Public Real Estate
Association. This includes all property

at market value but excludes the mark

o market of interest rate swaps. Thisis
recornmended by EPRA gs a measure

of net assets.

EPRA net asset value per share
The diluted NAV per share figure based
on EFRA NAYV,

EPRA NNNAV

As EPRA NAV but includes both debt

and inferest rate swaps camied at market
value. This is mcommended by EPRA

os a 'spot’ fair value net asset measure.

Financing cosis

Gross financing costs net of interest
capitalised into developments and
interest recaived on deposits.

Gross asset value

The Group’s wholly owned property
portfolio together with the shore of the
Joint Ventures property portfolio.

Gross financing costs

This includes all interest paid by the
Group, incheding those capitalised
into developments and operating
lease rentals.

itinciudes all receipts and payments
under interest rate swaps whether they
are effective or ineffective under IFRS
as economically they all hedge inferest
rate expaosures.

Interest cover ratio (ICR)

The interest cover ratio is the income
generated by a property as a multiple of
the interest charge on the debt secured
on the property.

181

Lease

Propertias which are leased 1o Universities
for a number of years and have no Unite
managermeant presence.

LSAV

The London Student Accommodation
Joint Venture [LSAV) is 0 joint venture
between Unite and GIC, alongside UCC.
Both Unite ond GIC have a 50% stake
and LSAV has the same maturity date as
UCC (September 2022], Itis the premnary
vehicle through which Unite undertakes
development acfivity in London ond it
has right of frst refusal over Unite's London
development pipeline projects until such
time as its capital investment targets are
met. LSAV and UCC were merged during
2012 and the new combined entity is
referred fo asLSAV.

Net debt: EBITDA

The Group see-through debt, net of cash
and unamortised debt mising costs and
excluding mark to market of interest rale
swaps as O proportion of EBITDA.

Net inMial yleld {NIY or yield)
The net operating income generated by
a property expressed as a percentage
of its value, faking into account notional
acquisition costs,

Net operating income (NOI)

The rental income from rental properties
less those operafing costs directly related
to the property, therefore excluding
central overhead.

Net rental growth

The annual growth in net operating
incorme [Mmeasured on o like-for-like
basis, ie excluding impact of completion
and disposals).

poda: oieyons

80UDUBAOE gitsocior

g
:




182

GLOSSARY
CONTINUED

Nominations

Praperties where Universities have
entered info 0 confract fo guaranfee
oceupancy. The Universities nominate
studentis to five in the building and Unite
enters into short-hokd lenancias with
the students.

Non-core assels

Properties that do not fit with the Group's
long-tarm invesiment strotegy because of
their location ar thelr size.

Overhead sfficlency

The Group's overhead efficiency
measuras shows opearating expenses,

net of managemant leas, as a proportion
of the gross asset vaiue.

Rental properties

Investment and completed properties
whose construction has been completed
ond are used by the Operations segrment
o generate net portiolio contribution.

Sale and leaseback
Properties that have been sold to

q thind party investor then feased
mack to the Company, Unite is also
responsible for the management of
these assets on behalf of the owner.

See-through

See-through refers jo the Group's wholly
owned assets of liabilities in addition

to the share of the joint weniunes (USAF
and LAY} assets or iabilities.

Total income from

managed portfolic

This measure indicates the overall scale
of the property portfolio thet the Group
manages. It comprises rental and related
income, totalling £304.9 mitlion from
properties owned by Unite and its
co-investiment vehicles,

The Group's share of this gross mcome
is shown in note 2.2{a).

USAF/THE FUND

The Unite UK Student Accommodation
Fund [USAF} is Europe’s iargest fund that
purely focuses on compieted incorme
providing student accommodation
investment assets. The fundis on
open-ended infinite ife venicle which
nhas unique buying access to Unite's
development pipeline. Unite acts as
fund manager for the fund, as well g
owning a significant minority stake.
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COMPANY INFORMATION
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Unite Group Executive Team
Richard Smith
Chief Executive Officer

Joa Lister
Chief Financial Officer

Richard $impson
Group Properly Director

Registered Office
The Core

40 5t Thomas Street
Bristol BS1 6JX

Registered Number in England
3199150

Company Secratary
Christopher Szpojnarowicz

aouoweant gyoiodio)

Auditor

Delolite LLP

2 New Street Square
London EC4 3BZ

Financial Advisers
J.P. Morgon Cazenove
25 Bank Street

tondon El4 5JP

Numis Securilles

The London Stock Exchange Building
10 Paternoster Square

London ECAM 71T

:
!

Registrars

Compulershare Investor Services pic
PO Box 82
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OTHER INFORMATION

THIS REPORT IS COMPLEMENTED

BY A RANGE OF ONLINE INFORMATION
ABOUT OUR BUSINESS INCLUDING OUR
OPERATIONS AND PROPERTY DIVISIONS,
OUR MARKETS, AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY.

WHERE TO
FI N D M 0 RE WWW.UNITE-GROUP.CO.UK
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40 5t Thomas Street
Bristol BSI 4JX

+44 {0} 117 302 KO0
info@unite-studaents.com

www.unile-group.co.uk
www.unifesfudents.com



